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10 35.00
P.T.YTL 7,000,000 98.03
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250,000

23,458,000.00

23,458,000

800,000.00 80.00

800,000

2,333,300.00

2,333,000

)

1,750,000 56.00

2,000,000 70.00

2,000,000

800,000

8,000,000

MSC 60.00

3,000,000 100.00

2,500,000 100.00
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27,000,000
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100 100.00
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56.95
472,089,934.65 56.95

REIT
138,089,574.33 56.95

REIT
55,591,011 56.95

REIT
278,409,652.67 56.95

REIT
392,820,201 56.95

REIT
23,805,002 56.95
2,200,001 56.95
1,100,001 56.95
4,200,001 56.95
56.95
REIT 56.95

G.K. 1,595,000,000
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MTN
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35,000 100.00
100.00
800,000 100.00
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100,000.00 90.00

100,000

9,187,000.00
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1,250,000 80.00
250,000 64.00
1,000 51.00
100.00
100.00
10,000 100.00
100.00
N.V. 10,000 100.00
P.T. 500,000 100.00
100,000 100.00
RW 2,949,664 100.00
RW 2,948,368 100.00
RW 8,354,988 100.00
782,700,000 100.00
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1,500,000.00 100.00
1,500,000
104,900.00
1,049,000
100.00
210,389,499 100.00
216,198,318 100.00
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100.00
100.00
100.00
250,000 100.00
260,000 100.00
100.00
100.00
18,000 100.00
100.00
100.00
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1,854,000 100.00
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(
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1,000,000.00 65.26
1,000,000
12,819,000.00
12,819,000
500,000 65.26
250,000 65.26
60,000,000.00 45.68
60,000,000
5,148,000.00
5,148,000
1,000,000 65.26
25,000 65.26
11,000,000 65.26
65.26
4,250,000.00 65.26
4,250,000
8,288,000.00
8,288,000
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100,000.00 65.26
100,000
90,988,000.00
90,988,000
PYP 250,000.00 65.26
250,000
1,000,000 65.26
500,000.00 65.26
500,000
28,454,000.00
28,454,000
8,000,001 65.26
5,000,000 65.26
2.00 65.26

112,421,000.00

112,421,000
65.26
SR 100,000 65.26
3,000,000 65.26
(

3,000,000 )

59,998,000.00

59,998,000
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100,000.00 65.26

100,000

88,599,000.00

88,599,000
41,960, 680.00 65.26

41,960,680
1,000,000 65.26

(MM2H)

65.26
1,000,000 65.26

)
28.16
1,768,000 55.21

B.V.

B.V. 4,550 55.21
100,000 33.13
100 55.21
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500,000 33.13
35.89
50,002.00 55.21
500,002
2,000,000.00
2,000,000
14,027.70 38.06
14,412.30 38.06
100,000 38.06
EV (S) 55.21
(
YTL (
)
)
100 55.21
55.21
55.21
55.21
(
)
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5,403 1,642,792,551 15.54

1,117 2,427,252,892 22.97

30,458 10,569,697,011 100.00

67 A@)(c)
10,910,559,429 341,862,418

3,340,110,644.00
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)
(D)
55100 4,704,491,387 44.16
55
11
C )
50100 622,197,887 5.84
10
SFS-D Y
HSBC 50100 490,215,221 4.60
No
RHB 50400 460,000,000 4.32
RHB
C )
284,237,844 2.67
50400
201-A
23 PNB
048543 261,798,317 2.46
No. 06-01
048543 217,078,398 2.04
No. 06-01
048543 196,796,355 1.85
No. 06-01
048543 183,087,748 1.72
No. 06-01
10 59000 137,552,943 1.29
SA
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11

55100
55
11

115,217,861

@

@
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2019 2019 30
2019
1985 35
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2017

2019 30

2019 30 CG

www.ytl.com

www . bursamalaysia.com
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2016 235 (2)(a)

2014 30

www .yt .com

(www.ytl.com)
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2019

12

33.3%

30

2019
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12 8
1/3
2019 12
33.3
36 AGM
www.ytl.com
/
25.0
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YTL
YTL
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®

®

integrity

www . ytl.com.my www . ytlcommunity.com
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®
(2019 12 26 )
25
1954 23 65 1984
1988
(Executive Chairman) 2018 29
2004
2014
1988
YTL
REIT
YTL
YTL L&D 2018
29
YTL
SGX-ST
YTL
REIT
YTL
YTL
REIT
YTL
YTL
YTL
2016
2005 2012
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25
2002
2010 CNBC
2006
(CBE) 2019 (KBE)
2008

2010 Primus

Inter Pares Honouree
2015
2016
2017
2017 Asian Power Awards
2018
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1957 17 62 1984 24
(Managing Director) 2018
29
1981
( ) 2017
1984
(UK)
YTL
YTL L&D
2018 29 YTL
YTL L&D
YTL REIT
YTL YTL
YTL
SGX-ST
YTL
REIT
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1948 10 27 71 2004 30
(Independent
Non-Executive Director)
2003 12
YTL L&D
1956 13 63 1984 24
(Executive Director) C )
1990
12
1IN
YTL
YTL
YTL
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ooooOoog
1959 22 60 1985 19
(Executive Director) 1982
«c )
YTL
2010
YTL
YTL
YTL
YTL YTL L&D YTL
YTL
YTL
1960 10 20 59 1985 19
1983
(Executive Director)
YTL
YTL
YTL L&D YTL
YTL
YTL
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1963 10 56 1996 16
(Executive Director) 1985
YTL
2013 2015
YTL
YTL YTL
YTL
1965 14 54 1995 22
LLB
(Executive Director) 1988
( ) 2014
1989 YTL
YTL
UK PT
YTL
REIT
YTL L&D YTL
YTL
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1950 24 69 2015 11 26
(Independent
Non-Executive Director) 1973
1973
Lembaga
Penggalakan Pelanchongan Malaysia, Malaysia
Industry- Government Group for High Technology
YTL
YTL REIT YTL
1954 14 65 1999 10 20
1977
( ) ( )
(Executive Director) 1984 1994
1994
11 1996
MIDF
YTL

YTL
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1958 23 61 2011 12
(Independent Non-Executive ACCA
Director) 1982 1993 1998
1982 The New Straits Times Press|
(M) Berhad 1999 2003
2003
2006 2007
YTL
1958 12 13 60 2019
1980 /NMARA Institute off
(Independent Non-Executive Technology Twinning Programme (
Director) ) 2008
(ICLIF)
30
2018 12 2015
2018 CIMB ( CImB
) 2007 2015
CIMB Investment Bank Berhad( CIMB IB )
GAM
CIMB CIMB
CIMB GAM
CIMBMapletree
CIvMB JP Morgan
JP Morgan
JP Morgan
M&A
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2019 23
)
142,661,239 1.34
56,621,344 0.53
52,833,890 0.50
52,425,780 0.49
56,213,386 0.53
20,482,775 0.19
9,592,215 0.09
2019
90,399,000 882,000
2019 2019 ESOS
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2019 12
2019 12 2019
HLB PLT HLB
Terms of Reference
YTL
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2019 30 HLB
HLB 248 2,243
HLB 16 125
HLB 12 325
28 450
YTLIA YTLIA
ACCA
36
YTLIA YTLIA

HLB
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( )
240,000 16,000 244,000 14,000
9,568,000 1,761,000 9,904,000 713,000
9,808,000 1,777,000 10,152,000 727,000
4
@ @
®)
100
( )
**%
29,600 33,937 - - -
12,586 10,508 463 - -
*
*%
@) 14 17
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2019 2018

26.25
2019 12

132

30

134
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193
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oOoOooodn

[€)) (2019 30 )
2019 2018
4 18,047,528 473,747,610 15,890,147 417,116,359
5 (13,940, 465) (365,937, 206) (11,403,266) (299, 335,733)
4,107,063 107,810,404 4,486,881 117,780,626
403,255 10,585,444 274,662 7,209,878
(405,168) (10,635, 660) (358,615) (9,413,644)
(1,333,690) (35,009, 363) (1,356,896) (35,618,520)
(398,549) (10,461,911) (464,593) (12,195,566)
6 (1,747,499) (45,871,849) (1,644,573) (43,170,041)
411,095 10,791,244 398,874 10,470,443
7 1,036,507 27,208,309 1,335,740 35,063,175
8 (315,152) (8.272,740) (364,868) (9,577,785)
721,355 18,935,569 970,872 25,485,390
242,589 6,367,961 340,999 8,951,224
478,766 12,567,608 629,873 16,534,166
721,355 18,935,569 970,872 25,485,390
(©3) 9 2.30 1 3.24 1
10 4.00 1 5.00 1
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30 o )
2019 2018

548,616 14,401,170 530,422 13,923,578
548,616 14,401,170 530,422 13,923,578
6,210 163,013 1,910 50,138
(63,626) (1,670,183) (64,384) (1,690,080)
(175,950) (4,618,688) (174,320) (4,575,900)
315,250 8,275,313 293,628 7,707,735
(16,802) (441,053) (16,212) (425, 565)
298,448 7,834,260 277,416 7,282,170
298,448 7,834,260 277,416 7,282,170
298,448 7,834,260 277,416 7,282,170
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0 (2019 30 )
2019 2018
721,355 18,935,569 970,872 25,485,390
C )

(50,743) (1,332,004) 150,319 3,945,874

(20,987) (550,909) — —

184,661 4,847,351 (700,783) (18,395,554)

— — 13,383 351,304

(353, 606) (9,282,158) 317,664 8,338,680

128,360 3,369,450 (705,388) (18,516,435)

¢ (112,315) (2,948,269) (924,805) (24,276,131)
609,040 15,987,300 46,067 1,209,259

« D

132,512 3,478,440 (90, 694) (2,380,718)

476,528 12,508,860 136,761 3,589,976

609,040 15,987,300 46,067 1,209,259
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OOooOoOoOoo
@) (2019 30 3(
2019 2018
208,448 7,834,260 277,416 7,282,170
C )

277 7,271 _ —
_ _ 11,533 302,741

_ _ (753) (19,766)
¢ ) 277 7,271 10,780 282,975
298,725 7.841,531 288,196 7,565,145

( )

298,725 7.841,531 288,196 7,565,145
208,725 7,841,531 288,196 7,565,145
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©) (2019 30 )
2019 2018 2017
11 30,759,493 807,436,691 28,111,233 737,919,866 28,542,497 749,240,546
12 10,217,573 268,211,291 10,003,889 262,602,086 10,517,010 276,071,513
13 1,127,238 29,589,998 1,127,391 29,594,014 1,026,267 26,939,509
15 2,581,165 67,755,581 2,275,515 59,732,269 2,401,951 63,051,214
16 264,184 6,934,830 147,635 3,875,419 76,291 2,002,639
17 409,971 10,761,739 1,136,775 29,840,344 845,165 22,185,581
18 8,023,200 210,609,000 5,975,875 156,866,719 6,353,040 166,767,300
19 1,159,120 30,426,900 967,866 25,406,483 988,439 25,946,524
23 5,616 147,420 6,125 160,781 2,681 70,376
20 18,722 491,453 49,860 1,308,825 13,629 357,761

54,566,282 1,432,364,903 49,802,164 1,307,306,805 50,766,970 1,332,632,963

21 2,783,723 73,072,729 2,808,716 73,728,795 762,445 20,014,181
22 561,937 14,750,846 367,032 9,634,590 2,522,314 66,210,743
19 4,198,733 110,216,741 3,594,404 94,353,105 3,450,633 90,579,116
23 239,524 6,287,505 124,543 3,269,254 342,554 8,992,043
20 65,022 1,706,828 198,405 5,208,131 52,124 1,368,255
121,292 3,183,915 128,091 3,362,389 80,116 2,103,045

24 31,131 817,189 36,254 951,668 87,497 2,296,796
17 2,352,947 61,764,859 2,650,117 69,565,571 3,241,812 85,097,565
25 10,635,496 279,181,770 10,619,683 278,766,679 12,145,557 318,820,871
25 1,171,006 30,738,908 1,014,971 26,642,989 1,174,691 30,835,639
22,160,811 581,721,289 21,542,216 565,483,170 23,859,743 626,318,254

76,727,093 2,014,086,191 71,344,380 1,872,789,975 74,626,713 1,958,951,216
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) (2019 30 W)
2019 2018 2017
26 3,340,111 87,677,914 3,340,111 87,677,914 3,340,111 87,677,914
27(a) 907,066 23,810,483 1,009,785 26,506,856 1,523,559 39,993,424
9,488,302 249,067,928 10,029,178 263,265,923 10,533,856 276,513,720
26(a) (472,793) (12,410,816)  (337,142) (8,849,978)  (596,577)  (15,660,146)
13,262,686 348,145,508 14,041,932 368,600,715 14,800,949 388,524,911
7,631,855 200,336,194 7,518,505 197,360,756 8,041,024 211,076,880
20,894,541 548,481,701 21,560,437 565,961,471 22,841,973 599,601,791
28 1,231,419 32,324,749 901,513 23,664,716 930,430 24,423,788
23 26,264 689,430 6,618 173,723 1,964 51,555
29 18,961,666 497,743,733 17,512,946 459,714,833 19,966,528 524,121,360
30 11,760,855 308,722,444 18,035,360 473,428,200 14,166,295 371,865,244
31 560,828 14,721,735 548,493 14,397,941 547,775 14,379,094
32 2,073,144 54,420,030 2,144,181 56,284,751 2,150,892 56460915
33 759,646 19,940,708 685,509 17,994,611 1,115,512 29,282,190
20 54,116 1,420,545 34,308 900,585 44,008 1,155,210
35,427,938 929,983,373 39,868,928  1,046,559,360 38,923,404 1,021,739,355
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?) (2019 30 Y )
2019 2018 2017

35 3,685,052 96,732,615 2,849,767 74,806,384 3,012,750 79,084,688
23 996,420 26,156,025 461,686 12,119,258 349,837 9,183,221
20 63,491 1,666,639 19,817 520,196 128,772 3,380,265
24 16,006 420,158 9,105 239,006 8,486 222,758
29 520,024 13,650,630 2,708,701 71,103,401 — —
30 14,837,243 389,477,629 3,529,505 92,649,506 8,996,806 236,166,158
34 147,613 3,874,841 146,005 3,832,631 148,018 3,885,473
33 4,874 127,943 4,677 122,771 6,685 175,481
133,891 3,514,639 185,752 4,875,990 209,982 5,512,028
20,404,614 535,621,118 9,915,015 260,269,144 12,861,336 337,610,070

55,832,552 1,465,604,490 49,783,943  1,306,828,504 51,784,740 1,359,349,425

76,727,093 2,014,086,191 71,344,380 1,872,789,975 74,626,713 1,958,951,216
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OooooOodd
3) (2019 30 W)
2019 2018 2017

11 4,474 117,443 4,006 105,158 5,363 140,779
14 7,807,515 204,947,269 8,172,710 214,533,638 8,172,788 214,535,685
15 205,241 5,387,576 205,241 5,387,576 205,241 5,387,576
17 44,445 1,166,681 42,186 1,107,383 31,565 828,581
8,061,675 211,618,969 8,424,143 221,133,754 8,414,957 220,892,621

19 13,345 350,306 12,059 316,549 11,486 301,508
22,271 584,614 39,073 1,025,666 39,119 1,026,874

24 1,014,435 26,628,919 1,180,987 31,000,909 1,147,171 30,113,239
17 797,277 20,928,521 766,448 20,119,260 738,801 19,393,526
25 198,360 5,206,950 511,616 13,429,920 853,092 22,393,665
25 122,948 3,227,385 3,502 91,928 2,329 61,136
2,168,636 56,926,695 2,513,685 65,984,231 2,791,998 73,289,948
10,230,311 268,545,664 10,937,828 287,117,985 11,206,955 294,182,569
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?) (2019 30 Y )
2019 2018 2017

26
27(a) 3,340,111 87,677,914 3,340,111 87,677,914 3,340,111 87,677,914
66,676 1,750,245 61,436 1,612,695 46,900 1,231,125
26(a) 3,294,895 86,490,994 3,742,991 98,253,514 4,325,927 113,555,584

(472,793) (12,410,816) (337,142) (8,849,978) (596,577) (15,660,146)

6,228,889 163,508,336 6,807,396 178,694,145 7,116,361 186,804,476
29 2,500,000 65,625,000 2,000,000 52,500,000 2,500,000 65,625,000
30 550 14,438 200,172 5,254,515 978 25,673
32 113 2,966 113 2,966 113 2,966
2,500,663 65,642,404 2,200,285 57,757,481 2,501,091 65,653,639
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2019 2018 2017

35 17,488 459,060 34,989 918,461 19,373 508,541
24 5,546 145,583 127,224 3,339,630 101,593 2,666,816
29 10,000 262,500 500,000 13,125,000 — —
30 1,467,420 38,519,775 1,267,661 33,276,101 1,468,056 38,536,470
33 305 8,006 273 7,166 481 12,626
1,500,759 39,394,924 1,930,147 50,666,359 1,589,503 41,724,454
4,001,422 105,037,328 4,130,432 108,423,840 4,090,594 107,378,093
10,230,311 268,545,664 10,937,828 287,117,985 11,206,955 294,182,569
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* (2019 30 )
26 26(a
( ) C 27(2) @)
2019
2018 30
R 3,340,111 1,000,646 10,123,292 (337,142) 14,135,907 7,540,331 21,676,238
MFRS 15 — 139 (68,128) - (67,989) 284 (67,705)
— — (25,986) — (25,986) (22,110) (48,096)
2018 30
¢ ; 3,340,111 1,000,785 10,029,178 (337,142) 14,041,932 7,518,505 21,560,437
MFRS
— (37,908) (225,802) — (263,710) (2,220) (265,930)
iﬁégs) 3,340,111 971,877 9,803,376 (337,142) 13,778,222 7,516,285 21,294,507
— — 242,589 — 242,589 478,766 721,355
— (82,065) (28,012) — (110,077) (2,238) (112,315)
¢ — (82,065) 214,577 — 132,512 476,528 609,040
— — (109,797) — (109,797) 133,640 23,843
— — (422,748) — (422,748) (494,598) (917,346)
— 19,635 — — 19,635 — 19,635
— (1,748) 1,748 — — — —
— (633) 1,146 — 513 — 513
— — — (135,651) (135,651) — (135,651)
2019 30 3,340,111 907,066 9,488,302 (472,793) 13,262,686 7,631,855 20,894,541
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2018 30
(FRS)

MFRS 15

2018 30
MFRS

2018
(MFRS)

2019 30

2019
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OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)

OooooOodd
(2019 30 o )

C 2 (  26(2)

87,677,914 26,503,208 265,736,415 (8,849,978) 371,067,559 197,933,689 569,001,248
— 3,649 (1,788,360) — (1,784,711) 7,455 (1,777,256)
— — (682,133) — (682,133) (580,388)  (1,262,520)

87,677,914 26,506,856 263,265,923 (8,849,978) 368,600,715 197,360,756 565,961,471
— (995,085)  (5,927,303) — (6,922,388) (58,275)  (6,980,663)

87,677,914 25,511,771 257,338,620 (8,849,978) 361,678,328 197,302,481 558,980,809
— — 6,367,961 — 6,367,961 12,567,608 18,935,569
— (2,154,206) (735,315) — (2,889,521) (58,748)  (2,948,269)
— (2,154,206) 5,632,646 — 3,478,440 12,508,860 15,987,300
— — (2,882,171) — (2,882,171) 3,508,050 625,879
— —  (11,097,135) —  (11,097,135) (12,983,198)  (24,080,333)
— 515,419 — — 515,419 — 515,419
— (45,885) 45,885 — — — —
— (16,616) 30,083 — 13,466 — 13,466
— — — (3,560,839)  (3,560,839) — (3,560,839)

87,677,914 23,810,483 249,067,928 (12,410,816) 348,145,508 200,336,194 548,481,701
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Ooooooo
) (2019 30 Y )
C® 0 a C 26()
2018

igg) 3,340,111 1,523,559 10,606,817 (596,577) 14,873,910 8,051,734 22,925,644
MFRS 15 — — (47,206) - (47,206) 11,631 (35,575)
— — (25,755) — (25,755) (22,341) (48,096)

iﬁgs) 3,340,111 1,523,559 10,533,856 (596,577) 14,800,949 8,041,024 22,841,973
— — 340,999 — 340,999 629,873 970,872

— (512,911) 81,218 — (431,693) (493,112) (924,805)

(S — (512,911) 422,217 — (90,694) 136,761 46,067

— (226) (67,243) — (67,469) (57,602) (125,071)

— — (526,761) — (526,761) (601,678)  (1,128,439)

— — (334,881) 334,881 — — —

— 5,916 — — 5,916 — 5,916

— (1,290) 1,290 — _ _ _

— (378) 700 — 322 — 322

— (4,885) — — (4,885) — (4,885)

— — — (75,446) (75,446) — (75,446)

2018 30 3,340,111 1,009,785 10,029,178 (337,142) 14,041,932 7,518,505 21,560,437
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4 (2019 30 )( )
C® e ( 2%@)
2018

E‘F’ég) 87,677,914 39,993,424 278,428,946 (15,660,146) 390,440,138 211,358,018 601,798,155
MFRS 15 — —  (1,239,158) —  (1,239,158) 305,314 (933,844)
— — (676,069) — (676,069)  (586,451)  (1,262,520)

%3%25) 87,677,914 39,993,424 276,513,720 (15,660,146) 388,524,911 211,076,880 599,601,791
- — 8,051,224 — 8,051,224 16,534,166 25,485,390

— (13,463,914) 2,131,973 — (11,331,941) (12,944,190) (24,276,131)

¢ — (13,463,914) 11,083,196 —  (2,380,718) 3,589,976 1,209,259

— (5,933)  (1,765,129) —  (1,771,061) (1,512,053) (3,283,114)

— — (13,827,476) — (13,827,476) (15,794,048) (29,621,524)

- — (8,790,626) 8,790,626 — — —

— 155,295 — — 155,295 — 155,295

— (33,863) 33,863 — _ _ _

— (9,923) 18,375 — 8,453 — 8,453

—  (128,231) — — (128,231) — (128,231)

— — — (1,980,458) (1,980,458) — (1,980,458)

2018 30 87,677,914 26,506,856 263,265,923  (8,849,978) 368,600,715 197,360,756 565,961,471
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(2019 30 )
26 C 21@) (  26@)
3,340,111 61,436 3,742,991 (337,142) 6,807,396
— (9,968) (325,544) — (335,512)
3,340,111 51,468 3,417,447 (337,142) 6,471,884
— — 298,448 — 298,448
— 217 — — 217
—_ 277 298,448 — 298,725
— — (422,748) - (422,748)
— 16,679 — — 16,679
— (1,748) 1,748 — —
— — — (135,651) (135,651)
3,340,111 66,676 3,294,895 (472,793) 6,228,889
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2018
(FRS)
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2018
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2019 30
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(2019 30 o )
(26 (__21@) (__26())
87,677,914 1,612,695 98,253,514 (8,849,978) 178,694,145
— (261,660) (8,545,530) — (8,807,190)
87,677,914 1,351,035 89,707,984 (8,849,978) 169,886,955
— — 7,834,260 — 7,834,260
— 7,271 — — 7,271
— 7,271 7,834,260 — 7,841,531
— — (11,097,135) — (11,097,135)
— 437,824 — — 437,824
— (45,885) 45,885 — —
— — — (3,560,839) (3,560,839)
87,677,914 1,750,245 86,490,994 (12,410,816) 163,508,336
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) (2019 30 o )
(2 (__21@) (__26())
2018

2017 3,340,111 46,900 4,325,927 (596,577) 7,116,361
— — 277,416 — 277,416
— 10,780 — — 10,780
— 10,780 277,416 — 288,196
— — (526,761) — (526,761)
— — (334,881) 334,881 —
— 5,046 — — 5,046
— (1,290) 1,290 — —
— — — (75,446) (75,446)

2018 30 3,340,111 61,436 3,742,991 (337,142) 6,807,396
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) (2019 30 o )
(26 (__21@) (__26))
2018

2017 87,677,914 1,231,125 113,555,584 (15,660,146) 186,804,476
— — 7,282,170 — 7,282,170
— 282,975 — — 282,975
— 282,975 7,282,170 — 7,565,145
— — (13,827,476) — (13,827,476)
— — (8,790,626) 8,790,626 —
— 132,458 — — 132,458
— (33,863) 33,863 — —
— — — (1,980,458) (1,980,458)

2018 30 87,677,914 1,612,695 98,253,514 (8,849,978) 178,694,145
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(2019 30

2019 2018
1,036,507 27,208,309 1,335,740 35,063,175
(13,172) (345,765) 42,770 1,122,713
11,569 303,686 21,119 554,374
(4,579) (120,199) (3,968) (104,160)
(15,973) (419,291) (20,100) (527,625)
10,806 283,658 9,565 251,081
(4,187) (109,909) (1,204) (31,605)
5,552 145,740 5,052 132,615
1,497,585 39,311,606 1,538,709 40,391,111
(29,411) (772,039) (36,766) (965,108)
19,981 524,501 5,181 136,001
(62,507) (1,640,809) 27,382 718,778
— — (584) (15,330)
(3,709) (97,361) (3,484) (91,455)
(4,820) (126,525) (20,613) (541,091)
159,514 4,187,243 36,949 969,911
1,747,499 45,871,849 1,644,573 43,170,041
(311,520) (8,177,400) (320,253) (8,406,641)
77,662 2,038,628 119,299 3,131,599
— — (9,111) (239,164)
26,793 703,316 92,891 2,438,389
3,849 101,036 — —
64,699 1,698,349 (124,496) (3,268,020)
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(2019 30 o )
2019 2018
7,520 197,400 5,582 146,528
22,020 578,025 6,658 174,773
(411,095) (10,791,244) (398,874) (10,470,443)
(109,570) (2,876,213) (744) (19,530)
3,721,013 97,676,591 3,951,273 103,720,916
389,591 10,226,764 (72,857) (1,912,496)
(57,401) (1,506,776) (82,591) (2.,168,014)
(675,753) (17,738,516) (231,204) (6,069,105)
(79,135) (2,077,294) 124,586 3,270,383
354,963 9,317,779 37,851 993,589
451,648 11,855,760 (269,323) (7,069,729)
(12,024) (315,630) 51,863 1,361,404
4,092,902 107,438,678 3,509,598 92,126,948
438,742 11,516,978 446,466 11,719,733
(1,659,978) (43,574,423) (1,488,448) (39,071,760)
316,368 8,304,660 318,510 8,360,888
(111,214) (2,919,368) (108,103) (2,837,704)
(350,349) (9,196,661) (425,732) (11,175,465)
43,794 1,149,593 5,478 143,798
2,770,265 72,719,456 2,257,769 59,266,436
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(6) (2019 30 o )
2019 2018
(35) (919) (27,838) (730,748)
§ (2,596,753) (68,164,766) (91,156) (2,392,845)
(367,340) (9,642,675) (79,336) (2,082,570)
(132,686) (3,483,008) (163,077) (4,280,771)
29,432 772,590 50,593 1,328,066
1,285,382 33,741,278 385,045 10,107,431
13,837 363,221 18,849 494,786
20,039 526,024 34,685 910,481
— — 43,639 1,145,524
11,806 309,908 2,969 77,936
(4,215) (110,644) (6,618) (173,723)
(43,496) (1,141,770) (86,213) (2,263,091)
(2,412,100) (63,317,625) (2,073,482) (54,428,903)
(192,641) (5,056,826) (101,360) (2,660,700)
(60, 305) (1,583,006) (69,683) (1,829,179)
(4,449,075)  (116,788,219) (2,162,983) (56,778,304)
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(2019 30 Y )

2019 2018
(422,748) (11,097,135) (526,761) (13,827,476)
(494,598) (12,983,198) (601,678) (15,794,048)
(135,651) (3,560,839) (75,446) (1,980,458)
(198,625) (5,213,906) (86,031) (2,258,314)
510,000 13,387,500 — —
6,657,542 174,760,478 9,224,800 242,151,000
_ — 17,224 452,130
(500, 000) (13,125,000) — —
(3,763,118) (98,781,848) (8,966,953)  (235,382,516)
— — (192,996) (5,066,145)
(1,950) (51,188) — _
1,650,852 43,334,865 (1,207,841) (31,705,826)
(27,958) (733,898) (1,113,055) (29,217,694)
190,142 4,991,228 (602,140) (15,806, 175)
11,601,643 304,543,129 13,316,838 349,566,998
11,763,827 308,800,459 11,601,643 304,543,129
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OooooOodd
(6) (2019 30 Y )
2019 2018
2,412,100 63,317,625 2,073,482 54,428,903
2,210 58,013 484 12,705
8,348 219,135 13,803 362,329
56,766 1,490,108 — —
5,135 134,794 31,392 824,040
2,484,559 65,219,674 2,119,161 55,627,976
2019 2018
41,786,512 1,096,895,940 43,129,629 1,132,152,761
6,657,542 174,760,478 9,224,800 242,151,000
(3,763,118) (98,781,848) (8,966,953)  (235,382,516)
(1,950) (51,188) — —
510,000 13,387,500 — —
(500, 000) (13,125,000) — —
1,001,103 26,278,954 — —
117,621 3,087,551 123,645 3,245,681
(12,295) (322,744) 30,848 809,760
(44,430) (1,166,288) — —
12,463 327,154 10,344 271,530
1,195 31,369 484 12,705
315,145 8,272,556 (1,766,285) (46,364,981)
30 46,079,788 1,209,594,435 41,786,512 1,096,895,940
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(6) (2019 30 Y )
2019 2018
315,250 8,275,313 293,628 7,707,735
889 23,336 1,435 37,669
(487,269) (12,790,811) (460,997) (12,101,171)
(1,288) (33,810) — _
— — (580) (15,225)
() 72 1,890 — —
— — 958 25,148
175,950 4,618,688 174,320 4,575,900
(61,056) (1,602,720) (69,141) (1,814,951)
— — 78 2,048
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OooooOodd
(6) (2019 30 Y )
2019 2018
6,667 175,009 1,935 50,794
) (50,785) (1,333,106) (58,364) (1,532,055)
(3,049) (80,036) 3,758 98,648
(3,394) (89,093) (2,127) (55,834)
84,010 2,205,263 (5,075) (133,219)
( ) 26,782 703,028 (61,808) (1,622,460)
487,269 12,790,811 460,997 12,101,171
(175,950) (4,618,688) (156,785) (4,115,606)
61,056 1,602,720 64,812 1,701,315
— — (16,310) (428,138)
— — 144 3,780
399,157 10,477,871 291,050 7,640,063
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(6) (2019 30 o )
2019 2018
(35) (919) — —
( _ _ — —
)
58 1,523 — —
11,806 309,908 2,965 77,831
(292) (7.665) (78) (2,048)
(55,047) (1,444,984) (30,832) (809, 340)
(43,510) (1,142,138) (27,945) (733,556)
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(2019 30 Y )

2019 2018
(422,748) (11,097,135) (526,761) (13,827,476)
(135,651) (3,560,839) (75,446) (1,980,458)
510,000 13,387,500 — —
— — 200,000 5,250,000
(500, 000) (13,125,000) — —
(1,058) (27,773) (201,201) (5,281,526)
(549,457) (14,423,246) (603,408) (15,839, 460)
(193,810) (5,087,513) (340,303) (8,932,954)
515,118 13,521,848 855,421 22,454,801
321,308 8,434,335 515,118 13,521,848
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(6) (2019 30 Y )
2019 2018
292 7,665 78 2,048
1,195 31,369 — —
1,487 39,034 78 2,048
2019 2018
3,967,833 104,155,616 3,969,034 104,187,143
— — 200,000 5,250,000
(1,058) (27,773) (201,201) (5,281,526)
510,000 13,387,500 — —
(500, 000) (13,125,000) — —
1,195 31,369 — —
30 3,977,970 104,421,713 3,967,833 104,155,616
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@
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( MFRS ) ( IFRS )
2016
2019 30 MFRS
MFRS 44 MFRS
2017 MFRS
MFRS
44
MFRS 2016
(RM) (1,000
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(b) ( VFRS )
2011 11 19 ( MASB ) MASB
MFRS
MFRS 2012
MFRS 141 (
MFRS 141 ) IC 15 ( IC 15
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MFRS
2018
MFRS
2019 30
MFRS MFRS
MFRS MFRS
2017 2018 30 MFRS
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MFRS 2015-2017 2019
MFRS 2019
MFRS 11 2019
MFRS 112 2019
MFRS 123 2019

MFRS 16 2019

MFRS 2019

MFRS 119 2019

MFRS 128 2019

IC 23 2019

MFRS 2020

MFRS 2020

MFRS 101 2020

MFRS 108 2020

MFRS 134 2020

MFRS 137 2020

MFRS 17 2021

MFRS 10 MFRS 128

MASB
(MFRS 10 MFRS 128 )
MFRS 16
MFRS 16 (2019 )  MFRS 117
MFRS 16
( )
MFRS 16 ( ) (
) MFRS 16
MFRS 116
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2019 2018 2019 2018
17,153,379 14,965,446 291 284
894,149 924,701 548,325 530,138
18,047,528 15,890,147 548,616 530,422
@

2019 2018 2019 2018
6,705,782 5,789,116 — —_
3,432,281 3,359,384 — —

211,048 190,121 — —
863,289 763,534 — —
154,832 187,303 — —

11,367,232 10,289,458 — —

2,655,217 2,596,830 — —_
19,035 21,868 — —
2,674,252 2,618,698 — —
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2019 2018 2019 2018
1,219,499 386,467 — —
1,195,859 1,087,765 — —

27,292 9,334 — _
1,223,151 1,097,099 — —
435,872 98,973 — —
9,050 230,385 — —
19,546 18,838 — —
464,468 348,196 — —
3,669 4,363 — —

153 98 — —

3,822 4,461 — —
159,562 191,810 — —
21,632 20,804 — —
19,761 8,453 291 284
200,955 221,067 291 284
17,153,379 14,965,446 201 284
639,938 644,374 — _
224,804 244,238 61,056 69,141
29,407 36,089 487,269 460,997
894,149 924,701 548,325 530,138
18,047,528 15,890,147 548,616 530,422

192/628



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)
oOoOooodn

(b)

2019 2018 2019 2018
8,681,719 7,214,807 — —
8,471,660 7,750,639 291 284

17,153,379 14,965,446 291 284

2019 2018
2,043,891 1,579,741
1,027,401 331,472
6,748,448 5,522,534

17,423 33,409

193/628



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)
oOoOooodn

2019 2018 2019 2018
896,991 939,065 115,070 115,040

852,637 710,624 60,880 59,280

18,682 27,987 — —

1,768,310 1,677,676 175,950 174,320

22 (12,463) (10,344) — —
11 (8,348) (22,759) — —
1,747,499 1,644,573 175,950 174,320

194/628



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)
oOoOooodn

2019 2018 2019 2018
( )

23 11,569 21,119 — —

18 10,806 9,565 — —

10,098 9,780 244 240

54 28 4 —

727 1,777 14 14

5,552 5,052 — —

11 1,497,585 1,538,709 889 1,435

73,297 91,990 4,896 1,419

2,206 2,917 848 685

587 606 — —

15,059 11,221 — —

34 — — —

13 1,080 6,249 — _

18 — 960 — —

19 155,134 73,687 — —

17 — 1,907 — 958

— 428 — —

16 — 3,388 — —

11 4,347 5,582 — _

195/628



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)
oOoOooodn

2019 2018 2019 2018

77,662 119,299 — —
— — — 78
23,620 12,893 — 2,622
12,360 120,725 — —
36,074 — — —
11 26,793 92,891 — —
34 7,520 5,582 — _
188,442 180,419 931 957

( )
12 13,172 (42,770) — —
4,579 3,968 — —
31 15,973 20,100 — —
4,187 1,204 — —
— 584 — 580
3,709 3,484 — _
4,820 20,613 72) —
6,868 19,397 1,983 —
121,930 121,469 — —
4 677 — —
29,916 32,932 — —
82,582 72,920 — —
4,134 3,095 — —

196/628



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)

OooooOodd
2019 2018 2019 2018
29,243 9,111 — _
16,093 5,181 — —
() ( )
) 17 62,507 (27,382) 1,288 —
11,657 22,501 — —
11 1,024 55,252 — _
57 — — —
118,826,000 (2018 116,755,000 )

201,473,000 (2018 82,000 )

197/628



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)
oOoOooodn

2019
( )
306 14,265 2,477 1,486 1,114 2 184 19,834
CBE FICE

193 6,987 1,521 924 1,114 4 113 10,856
— 5,341 1,244 746 1,114 1 43 8,489
— 5,685 1,331 798 1,114 1 69 8,998
— 5,822 1,272 792 1,114 2 54 9,056
— 4,848 1,212 727 1,114 2 31 7,934
— 5,099 1,184 710 1,114 3 13 8,123
— 648 120 42 111 1 80 1,002
) 647 — — — — 30 — 677
) 440 — — — — 29 — 469
410 — — — — 24 — 434
210 — — — — 8 — 218
2,206 48,695 10,361 6,225 7,909 107 587 76,090

198/628



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)
oOoOooodn

2019
( )
— — — — 667 — — 667
CBE FICE
— 100 — 12 667 — — 779
— — — — 667 — — 667
— — — — 667 — — 667
— — — — 667 — — 667
— — — — 667 — — 667
— — — — 667 — — 667
— — — — 66 — — 66
) 208 — — — — — 13 221
) 220 — — — — — 15 235
210 — — — — — 13 223
210 — — — — — 8 218
848 100 — 12 4,735 — 49 5,744

199/628



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)
oOoOooodn

2018
) 42 — — — — — 27 69
( )
594 14,200 7,430 2,080 325 1 178 24,808
CBE FICE
431 6,965 4,563 1,283 325 4 103 13,674
100 5,369 3,761 1,045 325 1 60 10,661
190 5,686 3,992 1,118 325 1 36 11,348
240 5,837 3,816 1,097 325 3 56 11,374
190 4,848 4,848 1,163 325 2 58 11,434
240 5,101 3,552 995 325 3 13 10,229
150 648 120 58 33 1 75 1,085
) 180 — — — — 21 — 201
) 200 — — — — 30 — 230
240 — — — — 21 — 261
120 — — — — 19 — 139
2,917 48,654 32,082 8,839 2,308 107 606 95,513

200/628



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)
oOoOooodn

2018
) 15 — = — — — — 15
( ) 50 — — — 195 — — 245
CBE FICE
50 — — — 195 — — 245
50 — — — 195 — — 245
50 — — — 195 — — 245
50 — — — 194 — — 244
50 — — — 194 — — 244
50 — — — 194 — — 244
50 — — — 19 — — 69
) 70 — — — — — 6 76
) 70 — — — — — 13 83
70 — — — — — 11 81
60 — — — — — 8 68
685 — — — 1,381 — 38 2,104
2019 2018 2019 2018
( )

1,166,520 1,149,381 18,188 18,392

79,867 106,439 2,117 2,178

64,699 (124,495) — —

14,944 3,608 1,932 554

28,907 33,112 1,190 1,452

1,354,937 1,168,045 23,427 22,576

201/628



32

EDINETOOOO

OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)

oOoOooodn

2019 2018 2019 2018
159,742 146,097 16,802 16,212
146,015 214,997 — —

9,395 3,774 — _
315,152 364,868 16,802 16,212
307,876 390,304 18,980 18,393

(2,119) (29,210) (2.178) (2,181)

9,395 3,774 — —

315,152 364,868 16,802 16,212

202/628



24

(2020

EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)
oOoOooodn

2019 2018 2019 2018
1,036,507 1,335,740 315,250 293,628
24 (2018 248,762 320,578 75,660 70,471
340,440 498,235 58,031 49,952
(165,548) (280,146) (114,711) (102,030)
. (30,647) (38,583) — —
(3,467) 457) — —
(2,119) (29,210) (2,178) (2,181)
(98,663) (96,179) — —
2,036 (40) — _
24,358 (4,437) — _
— (4,893) — —
315,152 364,868 16,802 16,212
75.5 18 17
) 2016
2017 30 2017 30
17 2019 30
2010 11 10

203/628



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)

Ogoooood
2019 2018
( ) 242,589 340,999
« ) 10,569,956 10,529,529
¢ ) 2.30 3.24
ESOS 120,900,000 (2018 125,895,000 )
10
2019 2018
( ) ( )
2018 30
2018 11 13 4.0 422,748 — —
2017 30
2017 11 10 — — 5.0 526,761
4.0 422,748 5.0 526,761
2019 30 417,511,000
2019 29 2019 30
10,437, 766,240 ( )
2019 30

2019 30

204/628



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)

Oooooooo
11
.
2019
iom N 10,232,886 8,226,469 10,072,492 1,932,357 620,060 2,789,896 2,072,452 44,946,612
A — 2,504 — — — — — 2,504
iOlB N 10,232,886 8,228,973 19,072,492 1,932,357 620,060 2,789,806 2,072,452 44,949,116
604,297 — 4,231,549 74,687 19,862 — 118,415 5,048,810
495,187 316,914 677,605 428,625 104,504 14,588 447,136 2,484,559
(714) . (25,220)  (23,004)  (41,367) — —  (90,395)
(60,747) (426)  (100,138)  (22,381) (660)  (10,044)  (14,409)  (208,805)
1,024 — — — — — — 1,024
405,689 — 17,848  (309,660) 83,680 323,000  (520,557) —
6,900 — — — — — — 6,900
(10,549)  (78,301) 96,070 28 3,200 — ansTy (7.120)
2019 30 11,673,073 8,467,160 23,970,206 2,080,562 789,288 3,117,440 2,085,460 52,184,089
iom N 3,018,136 637,449 11,052,008 879,412 437,798 834,397 — 16,859,290
A — (21,407 — — — — —  (.407)
%018 N 3,018,136 616,042 11,052,008 879,412 437,798 834,397 — 16,837,883
359,028 — 2,864,89 62,355 17,135 — — 3,303,414
222,614 75,960 829,456 107,504 76,517 193,034 — 1,505,175
(125) — (21,725)  (18,480)  (34,846) — —  (5.176)
(54,630) (426)  (98,117)  (19,455) (3  (9,331) — (182,012)
— — 4,347 — — — — 4,347
4,235 — (63,581)  (4,947) 64,253 — — —
(8,216)  (5,410) 46,826 (4,519) 2,284 — — 30,965
2019 30 3,541,042 686,166 14,614,240 1,001,960 563,088 1,018,100 — 21,424,59%
2019 30 8,132,031 7,780,994 9,355,966 1,078,602 226,200 2,099,340 2,085,460 30,759,493
" 44@@)( )

205/628



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)
oOoOooodn

2018
%017 ; 10,320,196 8,216,955 19,452,971 1,624,051 630,977 2,665,019 1,743,343 44,653,512
A — 2,504 — — — — — 2,504
ion N 10,320,196 8,219,459 19,452,971 1,624,051 630,977 2,665,019 1,743,343 44,656,016
250,323 — 1,839 16,247 — — — 268,409
81,936 92,646 271,850 171,953 24,237 7,670 1,468,869 2,119,161

(498) — (21,439)  (2,830)  (30,077) ) (330)  (55,179)

(41,451)  (10,207)  (161,378)  (9,557) (545)  (13,218)  (46,830)  (283,186)

(5.,582) — — — — — — (5.,582)
29,127 370,277 241,244 224,173 4,278 130,430  (999,529) —

(401,165)  (443,202)  (712,595)  (91,680)  (8,810) —  (93,071) (1,750,523)
2018 30 10,232,886 8,228,073 19,072,492 1,932,357 620,060 2,789,896 2,072,452 44,949,116
ion ; 2,042,872 602,135 10,635,309 834,380 411,617 665,287 43,326 16,134,926

A — (21,407 — — — — —  (a1,407)
%017 N 2,042,872 580,728 10,635,309 834,380 411,617 665,287 43,326 16,113,519
213,717 68,044 927,447 96,684 57,866 181,678 1,545,436

(344) — (12,220) (2,392)  (26,151) — — (41,107)

(25,624) — (155,215)  (8,254) (167)  (1,035) — (190,295)

— — — (370) (23)  (11,533)  (43,326)  (55,252)
(8,095) — 8,783 (589) (99) — — —

(104,300)  (32,730)  (352,006)  (40,047)  (5,245) — — (534,418)
2018 30 3,018,136 616,042 11,052,008 879,412 437,798 834,397 — 16,837,883
2018 30 7,214,750 7,612,931 8,020,394 1,052,045 182,262 1,955,499 2,072,452 28,111,233

" 44@)( )

206/628



EDINETOOOO

OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)

oOoOooodn

2018
2019 30
2019 30
2018
2019 30
2019 30

1,033,325 472,694 166,383 6,953,618
6,271 200 — 2,478
1,039,596 472,894 166,383 6,956,096
31,862 48,963 126,743 —
667 73,568 — 162,883
(188) — (464) —

_ _ — (60,747)
— — — 1,024
(23,262) 8,022 19,314 316,020

12,367 (1,862) 5,894 (38,055)
1,061,042 601,585 317,870 7,337,221
1,054,959 601,385 317,870 7,334,743
6,083 200 — 2,478
1,061,042 601,585 317,870 7,337,221
— 55,553 72,830 2,407,449
— 30 —_ 700
— 55,583 72,830 2,408,149
40 15,776 92,880 —
— 6,219 11,056 162,604
_ _ (94) _

_ _ — (54,630)

— 146 — (4,757)

— 132 2,546 (13,964)
40 77,856 179,218 2,497,402
1,054,919 523,561 138,652 4,838,089
6,083 168 — 1,730
1,061,002 523,729 138,652 4,839,819

207/628



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)
oOoOooodn

2018
2019 30
2019 30
2018
2019 30
2019 30

1,087,824 507,458 2,635 10,223,937
— — — 8,949
1,087,824 507,458 2,635 10,232,886
— 396,729 — 604,297
247,340 10,729 — 495,187
— (62) — (714)
— — — (60,747)
— — — 1,024
80,095 5,500 — 405,689
— 6,900 — 6,900
(5,287) 16,394 — (10,549)
1,409,972 943,648 2,635 11,673,973
1,409,972 943,648 2,635 11,665,212
— — — 8,761
1,409,972 943,648 2,635 11,673,973
374,083 105,385 2,106 3,017,406
— — — 730
374,083 105,385 2,106 3,018,136
— 250,332 — 359,028
26,380 16,318 37 222,614
— (31) — (125)
— — — (54,630)
8,336 510 — 4,235
371) 3,441 — (8,216)
408,428 375,955 2,143 3,541,042
1,001,544 567,693 492 8,124,950
— — — 7,981
1,001,544 567,693 492 8,132,931

208/628



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)
oOoOooodn

2018
2017
1,018,876 457,910 188,705 7,031,686
6,271 200 — 2,478
1,025,147 458,110 188,705 7,034,164
35,228 — — 215,095
17,671 15,615 — 5,914
— (496) — @
— — — (18,900)
— — — (5,582)
467 — (8,801) 43,369
(38,917) (335) (13,521) (317,962)
2018 30 1,039,596 472,894 166,383 6,956,096
1,033,325 472,694 166,383 6,953,618
6,271 200 — 2,478
2018 30 1,039,596 472,894 166,383 6,956,096
2017
— 49,475 67,457 2,345,655
— 28 — 651
— 49,503 67,457 2,346,306
— 6,427 10,230 153,522
— (180) — —
_ _ — (3,835)
— — (280) —
— (167) 4,577) (87,844)
2018 30 — 55,583 72,830 2,408,149
1,033,325 417,141 93,553 4,546,169
6,271 170 — 1,778
2018 30 1,039,596 417,311 93,553 4,547,947

209/628



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)
oOoOooodn

2018 ()
2017
1,105,554 505,881 2,635 10,311,247
— — — 8,949
1,105,554 505,881 2,635 10,320,196
— — — 250,323
3,106 39,630 — 81,936
— — — (498)
— (22,551) — (41,451)
_ _ — (5,582)
(14,709) 8,801 — 29,127
(6,127) (24,303) — (401,165)
2018 30 1,087,824 507,458 2,635 10,232,886
1,087,824 507,458 2,635 10,223,937
— — — 8,949
2018 30 1,087,824 507,458 2,635 10,232,886
2017
360,777 116,759 2,070 2,942,193
— — — 679
360,777 116,759 2,070 2,942,872
24,540 18,962 36 213,717
(164) — — (344)
— (21,789) — (25,624)
(8,095) 280 — (8,095)
(2,975) (8,827) — (104,390)
2018 30 374,083 105,385 2,106 3,018,136
713,741 402,073 529 7,206,531
— — — 8,219
2018 30 713,741 402,073 529 7,214,750

210/628



2018

2019

2018

2019

2019

2017

2018

2017

2018

2018

2019

2018

30

30

30

30

30

30

EDINETOOOO

OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)

oOoOooodn

7,055 8,417 15,472
153 1,334 1,487
— (459) (459)
7,208 9,292 16,500
6,305 5,161 11,466
396 493 889
— (329) (329)
6,701 5,325 12,026
507 3,967 4,474
6,977 8,417 15,394
78 — 78
7,055 8,417 15,472
5,924 4,107 10,031
381 1,054 1,435
6,305 5,161 11,466
750 3,256 4,006

211/628



@

(b)

©

EDINETOOOO

OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)

oOoOooodn

2019 2018 2019 2018
1,497,585 1,538,709 889 1,435
7,590 6,727 — —
1,505,175 1,545,436 889 1,435
2019 2018 2019 2018
94,987 273,215 — —
4,302 4,225 2,528 2,119
99,289 277,440 2,528 2,119
2019 2018
164,166 148,502
1,381,634 1,417,976
1,545,800 1,566,478

212/628




EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)

Ogoooood
(D
8,348,000 (2018 22,759,000 )
2019 30 83.4
( PPE )
PPE
PPE
2019 2018
8.2 10.8
21.4 12.4
PPE
PPE
12 2.5 (2018 2.5 )
PPE
2019 2018
10.7 11.9
20.4 12.0
33.4 PPE
PPE 22 (2018 23 )

PPE

213/628



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)
oOoOooodn

12

2019
2,902,048 7,101,841 10,003,889
2,304 2,163 4,467
40,574 2,922 43,496
79,932 (66,760) 13,172
(34,799) 216,501 181,702
(10,128) — (10,128)
22 (23,225) — (23,225)
19,382 — 19,382
(15,182) — (15,182)
2,960,906 7,256,667 10,217,573

2018
3,068,253 7,448,757 10,517,010
72,544 13,669 86,213
(28,187) (14,583) (42,770)
(195,197) (346,002) (541,199)
(15,365) — (15,365)
2,902,048 7,101,841 10,003,889
29 30 2,455

(2018 2,636

214/628



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)
oOoOooodn

2019
— — 8,947,689 8,947,689
— — 667,000 667,000
— 34,592 568,292 602,884
— 34,592 10,182,981 10,217,573
2018

— — 8,810,878 8,810,878

— — 650,000 650,000

— 41,598 501,413 543,011

— 41,598 9,962,291 10,003,889
( )

215/628



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)

OooooOodd
@
37(b)
(b)
© ( )
()
3.50 8.50
(2018 3.60 8.25 )
3.70 6.88
(2018 3.75 7.00 )
()
6.0 7.5
( (2018 7.0 7.5 )
) 6.0 7.5
(2018 6.25 7.5 )

216/628
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EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)
oOoOooodn

DCF

217/628

1.75 2.25

12

18-28



13
2019
@
(FRS)
MFRS 15
(MFRS)
22
©)
22
11

EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)
oOoOooodn

411,576 235,425 267,815 914,816
— — (34,026) (34,026)
411,576 235,425 233,789 880,790
_ _ 12,244 12,244
1,380 62 (1,442) —
— 1) (1,123) (1,134)

— — 457) 457)

— (3,073) (915) (3,988)
412,956 232,403 242,096 887,455
— (27,315) (382) (27,697)
(530) (452) (98) (1,080)
(530) (27,767) (480) (28,777)
412,426 204,636 241,616 858,678
— 159,144 115,154 274,298

— 13,772 106,670 120,442

— — (3,392) (3,392)

— 4,141 3,180 7,321

— — (40,078) (40,078)

— — (83,131) (83,131)

— — (6,900) (6,900)

— 177,057 91,503 268,560
412,426 381,693 333,119 1,127,238

218/628



2018
@
(FRS)
MFRS 15
(VMFRS)
©)

22

EDINETOOOO

OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)

oOoOooodn

383,118 234,799 288,196 906,113
— — (34,026) (34,026)
383,118 234,799 254,170 872,087
40,250 626 12,003 52,879
(11,792) — (31,847) (43,639)
— — (537) (537)
411,576 235,425 233,789 880,790
— (21,066) (382) (21,448)
— (6,249) — (6,249)
— (27,315) (382) (27,697)
411,576 208,110 233,407 853,093
— 140,476 35,152 175,628
— 27,271 82,927 110,198
— (8,603) (2,925) (11,528)
— 159,144 115,154 274,298
411,576 367,254 348,561 1,127,391
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EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)

Ogoooood
1,080,000
(2018 6,249,000 )
30 182,590,000 (2018
181,121,000 )
PT PLN( ) 30
2018
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ICULS *
ICULS
* 1CULS
2011 10 31
10 ICULS
ICULS
0.99
ICULS

ICULS

0.66

221/628

EDINETOOOO

OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)

oOoOooodn

2019 2018
3,972,483 3,972,484
3,449,919 3,863,185

391,502 391,502
(6,389) (54,461)
7,807,515 8,172,710
4,701,802 5,353,099
238,816 340,606
4,940,618 5,693,705
1.32
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2019 2018

100.00  100.00
100.00  100.00

100.00  100.00

100.00  100.00

100.00  100.00

100.00  100.00

100.00  100.00

100.00  100.00

36.46  36.46

( SGREIT ) *
100.00  100.00
100.00  100.00
100.00  100.00

+

98.03  97.99
100.00  100.00
(UK) 100.00  100.00

*
100.00  100.00

( ) 3
100.00  100.00
( ) ¥
100.00  100.00
e

100.00  100.00
, ( ) 100.00  100.00
REIT 56.95  56.92

( YTL REIT )
100.00  100.00

SARLE

100.00  100.00

100.00  100.00
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C )
2019 2018
100.00  100.00
65.26 65.26
*
55.21 54.03
( YTL )*
100.00 100.00
*
SV 90.00 90.00
2019 2018
51.00 51.00
( )
51.00 51.00
( )
2019 2018
( ) 100.00  100.00
100.00  100.00
100.00  100.00
100.00  100.00
100.00  100.00
100.00  100.00
2019 2018
SCI 100.00  100.00
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( SGREIT )

2019 2018
* 36.46  36.46
36.46  36.46

(
*
SG REIT(M) * 36.46  36.46
SG REIT(WA) * 36.46  36.46
SG REIT(WA) * 36.46  36.46
SG REIT(WA) 1* 36.46  36.46
SG REIT(SA) 2% 36.46  36.46
REIT SPC 36.46  36.46
*
REIT SPC 36.46  36.46
*
REIT MTN 36.46  36.46
*
REIT One TMK* 36.46  36.46
ML t 36.46  36.46
36.46  36.46
*

2019 2018

100.00  100.00
*
100.00  100.00
93.80  93.80
'O) 100.00  100.00
100.00  100.00
100.00  100.00
100.00  100.00
25 100.00  100.00
100.00  100.00
70.00  70.00
100.00  100.00
100.00  100.00
100.00  100.00
P.T. —  67.00
e

100.00  100.00
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C )
2019 2018
100.00  100.00
93.80 93.80
C )
100.00 100.00
100.00  100.00
(
100.00 100.00
®
90.00 90.00
70.00  70.00
100.00 100.00
99.21 99.19
THP JV 70.00  70.00
2019 2018
100.00 100.00
*
REIT 100.00  100.00
1
REIT 100.00 100.00
t
74.89 74.89
( ) *
100.00  100.00
100.00 100.00
1
100.00 100.00
*
100.00 100.00
REIT
*
100.00 100.00
REIT SGREIT

225/628
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2019 2018
75.46 —
*@
98.03  97.99
(Sg. ) 98.03  97.99
98.03  97.99
*t
49.02  48.99
98.03  97.99
98.03  97.99
98.03  97.99
(KL 98.03  97.99
& 98.03  97.99
98.03  97.99
CMCM 75.46 —
*@
98.03  97.99
98.03  97.99
*
t 98.03  97.99
98.03  97.99
68.62  68.59
75.46 —
*@
75.46 —
*@
98.03  97.99
—  97.99
*N\
( ) 75.46 —
*@
( ) *2 88.99 —
75.46 —
(
( )
)*@
98.03  97.99
*
98.03  97.99
+
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2019 2018

*@
*e

/\(@*A

*@

*@

LCS

LMCB
*e

P.T.

2271628

98.

75.

75.

75.

98.

98.

75.

75.

75.

75.

75.

70.

70.
70.
75.
75.
75.
75.
75.
75.
98.
75.
98.
98.
98.

98.

35.

98.

98.

98.

03

46

46

46

03

03

46

46

46

46

46

38

38
38
46
46
46
46
46
46
03
46
03
03
03

03

00

03

03

03

97.99

97.

97.

97.

97.

97.

97.

97.

34.

97.

97.

97.

99

99

99

99

99

98

99

99

99
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«C )
2019 2018
98.03 97.99
98.03 97.99
PHS 98.03 97.99
PMCWS 75.46 —
*@
75.46 —
( )*@
RC 98.03 97.99
98.03 97.99
98.03 97.99
( ) 98.03 97.99
SMC 98.03 97.99

50.00 49.97

98.03 97.99

98.03  97.99
75.46 —

*@
( ) 98.03  97.99
98.03  97.99
( ) 98.03  97.99
98.03  97.99

98.03 97.99

98.03 97.99

*

( ) 98.03  97.99
*

( ) 98.03  97.99
*

« ) 98.03  97.99

98.03 97.99

98.03 97.99

( ) 98.03  97.99
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2019 2018
) 98.03  97.99
*
98.03  97.99
98.03  97.99
*
98.03  97.99
*

2019 2018
80.00  80.00
80.00  80.00

2019 2018
56.00  56.00
70.00  70.00
MSC 60.00  60.00

100.00  100.00
( ) 100.00  100.00

100.00  100.00

100.00  100.00
60.00 60.00

100.00  100.00
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( )
2019 2018
100.00  100.00
(SA)( ) t
REIT
( YTL REIT )
2019 2018
( 56.95 56.92
) *
REIT( 56.95 56.92
) *
REIT( 56.95 56.92
) *
REIT( 56.95 56.92
) *
REIT( ) 56.95 56.92
*
REIT( 56.95 56.92
)
( ) 56.95 56.92
( ) 56.95 56.92
*
( ) 56.95 56.92
*
( ) 56.95 56.92
*
REIT( ) 56.95 56.92
*
REIT G.K.* 56.95 56.92
REIT MTN 56.95 56.92
2019 2018
100.00  100.00
* 100.00  100.00
100.00  100.00
*
90.00  90.00
80.00  80.00
100.00  100.00
51.00  51.00
( ) 100.00  100.00
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(
2019 2018
X 100.00  100.00
100.00  100.00
100.00  100.00
90.00  90.00
80.00  80.00
64.00  64.00
51.00  51.00
100.00  100.00
( 100.00  100.00
100.00  100.00
©) 100.00  100.00
100.00  100.00
P.T. t 100.00  100.00
100.00  100.00
RW 100.00  100.00
RW 100.00  100.00
RW 100.00  100.00
X 100.00  100.00
100.00  100.00
( 100.00 —
( 100.00 —
( 100.00 —
100.00 —
( ) 100.00 —
t
( ) 100.00 —
( ) 100.00 —
s
( ) 100.00 —

231/628
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2019 2018

100.00  100.00

100.00 100.00

* 100.00  100.00

100.00  100.00

1 100.00  100.00
( ) 100.00  100.00

100.00  100.00

ICHM 70.00 70.00

( 100.00  100.00

100.00  100.00

2019 2018

100.00  100.00

100.00  100.00

2019 2018

100.00  100.00

70.00 70.00

100.00  100.00
100.00  100.00

100.00  100.00
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2019 2018

65.26 65.26
65.26 65.26

65.26 65.26
45.68 45.68
65.26 65.26

65.26 65.26

65.26 65.26

PYP 65.26 65.26
65.26 65.26

65.26 65.26
65.26 65.26
65.26 65.26
65.26 65.26

65.26 65.26

SR 65.26 65.26
*
65.26 65.26
65.26 65.26
65.26 65.26
65.26 65.26
MM H
D)
65.26 65.26
*
65.26 65.26
*
( YIL )
2019 2018
* 28.16 27.56
55.21 54.03
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( YTL )
«C )
2019 2018
55.21 54.03
*
33.13 32.42
*
55.21 54.03
*
33.13 32.42
* 35.89 35.12
55.21 54.03
* 38.06 36.90
38.06 36.90
*
38.06 36.90
X ©) 55.21 54.03
( )
)*
* 55.21 54.03
( ) * 55.21 54.03
55.21 —
"
( 55.21 54.03
) s
KJS * 23.19 32.42
33.13 32.42
*
* 55.21 54.03
P.T. 55.21 54.03
*
P.T. 52.45 —
t
P.T. 4417 43.22
*
55.21 54.03
*
55.21 54.03
*
sc GmbH* 55.21 54.03
sc GmbH* 55.21 54.03
sC 55.21 54.03
*
SIPP 38.65 37.82
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OooooOodd
( YL )
2019 2018
) 55.21  54.03
Q 55.21  54.03
1 55.21  54.03
Q 55.21  54.03
* 38.65  37.82
55.21  54.03
. 55.21  54.03
55.21  54.03
55.21  54.03
55.21  54.03
55.21  54.03
55.21  54.03
55.21  54.03
, 55.21  54.03
55.21  54.03
55.21  54.03
' * 55.21  54.03
. 55.21  54.03
X 55.21  54.03
55.21  54.03
. 55.21  54.03
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( YL )
C )
2019 2018
55.21  54.03
*
16.23  32.42
*
(1oT) 33.13  32.42
26.50  25.93
33.13 32.42
t
33.13  32.42
33.13  32.42
® *
55.21  54.03
(UK) *
33.13  32.42
55.21  54.03
UKy *
55.21  54.03
55.21  54.03
*
55.21  54.03
*
33.13 32.42
+
55.21  54.03
*
55.21 —
t
55.21  54.03
t
55.21  54.03
55.21  54.03
55.21  54.03
*
31.55  30.87
55.21  54.03
+
31.55  30.87
55.21  54.03
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Ogoooood
( YL )

2019 2018
X —  54.03
: X 55.21  54.03
X 55.21  54.03
55.21  54.03
o X 55.21  54.03
55.21  54.03
55.21  54.03
i 55.21  54.03
' X 55.21  54.03
55.21  54.03
55.21  54.03
' 55.21  54.03
’ 55.21  54.03

* (

( ) ) 55.21  54.03
55.21  54.03
)(UK) X 55.21  54.03
1 55.21  54.03
55.21  54.03
SIPP 38.65  37.82
55.21  54.03
i 55.21  54.03
' 55.21  54.03
' 55.21  54.03
i 55.21  54.03
i 55.21  54.03
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OooooOodd
( YL )
« )
2019 2018
55.21  54.03
t
55.21  54.03
t
55.21  54.03
t
55.21  54.03
S
) ©
55.21  54.03
® *
55.21  54.03
(UK) *
2019 2018
100.00  100.00
( ) i
100.00  100.00
( )SARL*
100.00  100.00
® *
2019 2018
100.00  100.00
N
100.00  100.00
*
100.00  100.00
*
*  HLB
+
0 2018 12 31
T 2020
§ 2019
Q
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)
2019

LNB
1,625,042,598.75
( LMB
LMB 2019
YTL

220,764,635
YTL

17

( LNB
51.0
LNB
)
LMB  YTL
LVB
( MGO

LMB
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)
( YTL )
YTL
LMB 433,344,693
3.75
LB YTL
LMB 3.75
) 2019 13 MGO
827,867,381
76.98
2,452,910
2,466,070
(248, 360)
2,217,710

235,200
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1,677,633
4,467
1,404,349
22,332
4,107
72,027
353,639
398,351
42,970
48,938

(571,838)

(929,835)

(54,816)
160

(6,414)

2,466,070

2,452,910

(48,938)

2,403,972
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(

) (
2019 19

65,988,114.20

HSL
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)

)
HSL  YTL

oOoOooodn

40,236,655

90.78

201,950

17,090

(1,576)

15,514

186,436

68,597
5,387
18,008
8,650

(34,586)

(48,966)

17,090




2019

()
2018

( YTLIE )

30

28
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201,950

(8,650)

193,300

287,432

(192,996)

94,436

(19,834)

74,602

(34,295)

40,307
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268,409
4,616
7,036

(11,484)

(192,996)

(55,747)

19,834

94,436
3,756

(7,036)

91,156

192,996

284,152




(b)

NCI

NCI

NCI

2019

2019

NCI

2019

30

2019
30

EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)
oOoOooodn

( NCI )
YTL SGREIT YTL REIT
44.79 63.54 43.05 23.02
2,411,526 3,741,188 716,437 257,625 505,079 7,631,855
116,329 198,445 46,275 (3,446) 118,925 476,528
34,168,822 9,379,782 4,681,459 3,432,128
12,104,156 235,935 183,318 1,008,743
(23,275,311)  (3,208,684) (1,017,356)  (323,255)
(10,127,005)  (500,398)  (1,110,321) (1,573,537)
12,870,662 5,906,635 2,737,100 2,544,079
11,732,716 623,355 490,905 162,022
613,528 198,282 104,673 (17,294)
414,374 312,310 152,743 (17,155)
1,248,400 293,749 221,676 (9,355)
137,412 (23,202)  (347,693) (2,365)
(1,267,562)  (247,234) 120,382 —
118,250 23,313 (5,635) (11,720)
171,879 183,212 56,005 —
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OooooOodd
YTL SGREIT YTL REIT
2018
NCl 45.97 63.54 43.08
NCI 2,577,205 3,725,955 728,318
NCI 102,715 (44,155) 46,604
2018 30
34,130,145 9,232,785 4,321,921
12,146,878 210,572 189,734
(27,707,631) (3,245,821) (1,688,682)
(5,495,177) (308, 449) (104, 462)
13,074,215 5,889,087 2,718,511
2018 30
10,605,950 634,168 500,953
718,327 255,849 236,559
« ) 275,605 (69,490) 321,627
1,287,806 296,739 242,624
(1,119,347) (22,765) (13,057)
(1,341,239) (303,697) (203,448)
(1,172,780) (29,723) 26,119
NCI 180,853 191,293 56,704
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15

2019 2018 2019 2018
1,743,643 1,355,513 205,241 205,241
902,538 983,489 — —
(65,016) (63,487) — —
2,581,165 2,275,515 205,241 205,241
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2019 2018
45.00  45.00
*
50.00  50.00
50.00  50.00
)
49.00  49.00
( ) 49.90  49.90
( 49.01  48.99
Q= )
49.04  29.46
Q*
29.40  29.39
)Q*
49.01 —
Q*
49.01  48.99
30.00  30.00
Q
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OoOoOoOoOodno
2019 2018
32.00 32.00
Q*
Q* 49.00 49.00
50.00 50.00
18.50 18.10
+*
I 16.56 16.21
P.T. +* 11.04 10.81
* HLB
Q 12 31
T
+ P.T
33.5 35.0
30
12 31
@)
2018 11 19
( YTL )
10,000 115,000
( ) 50
622,139,074,830 YTL
2018 12 13 (
) 99,775,174

39.91

248/628



(i)YTL
(i)
(i)

Q)
2018 12 13

2019
39.91

EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)

OooooOodd
1,015,000, 000
506,000,000,000 )
( 304,000,000,000 )
( 202,000,000,000 )
13 10,000
(

42,924,826

249/628



EDINETOOOO

OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)

oOoOooodn

@

P.T.

2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018

4,446,818 4,469,905 9,670,335 9,149,064 373,817 384,430

1,074,410 1,001,835 127,112 118,787 162,045 142,225
(815,962) (682,917)  (7,087,636)  (5,693,887) (900) (151, 360)
(269,317) (264,784)  (1,453,774)  (2,226,729) (66,657) (164,655)

4,435,949 4,524,039 1,256,037 1,347,235 468,305 210,640
899,088 914,584 122,925 135,361 30,774 17,718

— — (179,855) (7,675) — —

899,088 914,584 (56,930) 127,686 30,774 17,718

2,365,529 2,449,104 1,150,574 1,184,836 212,577 214,979
385,772 346,296 — 46,398 7,974 7,283

250/628
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OooooOodd
(b)
P.T.
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
) ( 4,524,039 4,889,112 1,347,235 1,505,609 210,640 216,047 6,081,914 6,610,768
— — — — 251,472 — 251,472 —
899,088 914,584 122,925 135,361 30,774 17,718 1,052,787 1,067,663
— —  (179,855)  (7.675) — —  (179.855)  (7,675)
115,027 (290,240) (34,268) (147,560) 1,795 1,040 82,554  (436,760)
(1,102,205) (989,417) —  (138,500) (26,376) (24,165)(1,128,581)(1,152,082)
20 ) ( 4,435,949 4,524,039 1,256,037 1,347,235 468,305 210,640 6,160,291 6,081,914
35.00 35.00 33.50 33.50 50.03 30.07
1,552,582 1,583,414 420,772 451,324 234,293 63,339 2,207,647 2,098,077
— — — — 15,154 14,496 15,154 14,496
1,552,582 1,583,414 420,772 451,324 249,447 77,835 2,222,801 2,112,573
38,511,000 (2018 37,853,000 )
358,364,000 (2018 162,942,000
) 78,040,000 (2018
7,062,000 )
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2019 2018
265,363 82,216
2,209 68,807
(3,388) (3,388)
264,184 147,635
2019 2018
49.02 —
32.63  32.63
24.84 2431
24.84 2431
24.84 2431
27.61  27.02
16.57 16.21



@

2019 2018 2019 2018
6,484,153 3,852,191 3,251 2,481
31,528 91,520 354,220 262,396
(5,731,014) (3.332,662) — —
(578,558) (551,804) (125,313) (123,353)
206,109 59,245 232,158 141,524
(20,135) (7,044) 107,234 89,411
(198,096) 31,680 — —
(218,231) 24,636 107,234 89,411
_ — 475,499 440,500
— — 9,278 —
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(b)
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
( ) 59,245 (12,441) 141,524 56,261 200,769 43,820
* 362,924 — — — 362,924 —
« ) (20,135) (7,044) 107,234 89,411 87,099 82,367
¢ ) (198,096) 31,680 — — (198,096) 31,680
— (20,094) — — — (20,094)
— 67,044 — — — 67,044
2,171 100 4,017 (4,148) 6,188 (4,048)
_ — (20,617) — (20,617) —
( 30 ) 206,109 59,245 232,158 141,524 438,267 200,769
45.0 45.0 45.0 45.0
92,749 26,660 104,471 63,686 197,220 90,346
362.9
67.0 (2018  57.0
) 7.7 (2018 6.0
81.4 (2018  20.2
)
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17
2019 2018 2019 2018
17(a) — 346,708 — 42,186
17(b) 346,510 790,067 34,968 —
17(c) 63,461 — 9,477 —
409,971 1,136,775 44,445 42,186
17(b) 2,352,947 2,650,117 797,277 766,448
@
2019 2018 2019 2018
— 15,585 — 5,292
— 29,839 — 7,294
— 30,657 — 29,600
— 270,627 — —
— 346,708 — 42,186
— 21,333 — 10,780
— (1,907) — (958)
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(b)
2019 2018 2019 2018
*
631,707 1,883,669 — —
859,158 786,234 — —
5,976 — 5,976 —
326,391 — 18,489 —
4,155 — 4,155 —
6,348 — 6,348 —
3,640 3,833 — —
862,082 766,448 797,277 766,448
2,699,457 3,440,184 832,245 766,448
() 62,507 (27,382) 1,288 —
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2019 2018 2019 2018
10,833 — 4 —
31,239 — 1 —
21,343 — 9,472 —

46 — — —
63,461 — 9,477 —
(11,712) — 277 —
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18
2019
(FRS) 137,385 5,922,469 421,412 6,481,266
MFRS 15 — — (359,098) (359,098)
(MFRS) 137,385 5,922,469 62,314 6,122,168
4,215 — — 4,215
— 1,776,586 27,783 1,804,369
2,395 261,205 (228) 263,372
143,995 7,960,260 89,869 8,194,124
(FRS) (17,281) (117,021) (360,078) (494,380)
MFRS 15 — — 348,087 348,087
(MFRS) (17,281) (117,021) (11,991) (146,293)
— — (10,523) (10,523)
(7,283) — (3,523) (10,806)
(156) (3,146) — (3,302)
(24,720) (120,167) (26,037) (170,924)
2019 30 119,275 7,840,093 63,832 8,023,200
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(FRS)
MFRS 15

(MFRS)
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(FRS)
MFRS 15

(VMFRS)

2018 30

141,158 6,289,568 403,699 6,834,425
— — (342,011) (342,011)
141,158 6,289,568 61,688 6,492,414
4,618 — 2,000 6,618
— 40,307 — 40,307

— (1,035) — (1,035)
(8,391) (406,371) (1,374) (416,136)
137,385 5,922,469 62,314 6,122,168
(11,823) (118,874) (317,694) (448,391)
— — 309,017 309,017
(11,823) (118,874) (8,677) (139,374)
(6,251) — (3,314) (9,565)
— 1,035 — 1,035

— (960) — (960)

793 1,778 — 2,571
(17,281) (117,021) (11,991) (146,293)
120,104 5,805,448 50,323 5,975,875
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Ogoooood
( oe]l]
2019 2018
5,454,797 5,202,309
1,895,968 123,651
298,444 288,545
96,231 96,231
69,174 69,233
25,479 25,479
7,840,093 5,805,448

cGU

cGu

15 15
CGU
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(2018
( )
U A
U B
U D
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OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)

OooooOodd
45
)( A ) 820 (2018 : 820
)( B ) ( C )
298 (2018 :288 )
( D ) 16
)
2019 2018
B C D A B C
6.3 4.4 5.0 11.3 5.9 6.3 6.2
2.0 0.1 6.5 2.1 2.0 0.1 6.5
4.0 2.7 2.0 — 6.0 2.7 2.0
cGU
ol
ol
OFWAT
10
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OooooOodd
®
( )
CGU
2019 2018
A B c D A B c
( ) 7.7 21.0 6.6 12.1 7.3 18.3 7.1
0.3 1.2 7.4 1.0 0.2 0.8) 7.0
2.0 2.0 1.2 — 3.7 (29.5) 1.6
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19

2019 2018 2019 2018
43,669 429 — _

11,556 9,279 — —

(2,544) (2,485) — _

C D 9,012 6,794 — _
591 1,311 — _

13,888 14,982 — _

220,208 229,362 — —

Q 871,752 714,988 — —
1,159,120 967,866 — —

2,732,974 2,197,888 — —

67,103 49,632 — —

2,800,077 2,247,520 — —

(491,117) (328,846) — —

« ) 2,308,960 1,918,674 — —
o 696,467 438,675 14,420 11,366
(158,036) (4,859) (1,765) —

« ) 538,431 433,816 12,655 11,366
966,050 876,892 — —

304,699 286,674 363 366

80,593 78,348 327 327

4,198,733 3,594,404 13,345 12,059
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OooooOodd
2030 10
13.25
Q ( APCO )
APCO
554 APCO
( NEPCO ) 30 (3.5
) NEPCO ( )40
2020
15.00
** 2015
2017 2018 11
2019 2019 30 70.7
(23.4 )
55.7 (2018 43.0 )
34.5 (2018 25.2 )
2018
( )

1,155,331
90 394,691
01 120 51,596
121 317,056
763,343
328,846
2,247,520
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36(d)
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2018

319,986
75,986
(1,258)

(53,163)

(12,705)

328,846

2018

8,391
173
(1,214)

©)

7,344




20

2019

2018

EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)
oOoOooodn

248,265 (54,125) 194,140
710 @37 673
(171,635) (61,326) (232,961)
6,404 (2.119) 4,285
83,744 (117,607) (33,863)
65,753 (172,780) (107,027)
190,778 113,748 304,526
(8,266) 4,907 (3,359)
248,265 (54,125) 194,140
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2019

1,657,600 74,701 47,972
1,869,378 7,433 10,320
2,931,554 — 49,533
112,538 665 —
273,138 657 4,942
213,439 288 1,507

* 1,656,800 — 3,333
83,744 117,607

65,022 63,491

18,722 54,116

83,744 117,607
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2018

1,617,924 219,059 9,836

1,122,018 21,129 8,479

3,850,006 6,275 13,695

1,180 — 240

61,100 1,802 3,296

* 1,615,400 — 18,579
248,265 54,125

198,405 19,817

49,860 34,308

248,265 54,125
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)
2019
2019 -
1,573,146 27,329 1,600,475 (1,600,475) Las0 0
(HSFO)
84,454 (600) 83,854  (83,854) 281.9 22329 o
(LNG)
4.1
2019 .
1,830,909  (3,819) 1,827,000 (1,827,090) o
1.00
*
@
20 (2018 37 )
(V)

31

(2018 43 )
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©

)
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2019 2018

24,297 21,850

258,487 112,460

207,225 214,675

1,679,118 2,116,006
234,562 113,304

355,823 217,735

24,211 12,686

2,783,723 2,808,716

1,595,960,000 (2018 :1,931,815,000 )
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22

2019

76,461 84,050 206,521 367,032

— 1,875 97,421 99,296

12 23,225 — — 23,225
13(a) — 3,073 915 3,988
13(b) — — 83,131 83,131
(387) — 3,075 2,688

99,299 88,998 391,063 579,360

(17,423)

(17,423)

561,937

2721628
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2018
1,331,981 131,917 1,754,504 3,218,402
— — 187,516 187,516
(1,205,090) — (1,001,732)  (2,206,822)
13(a) — — 537 537
(15,019) (47,867) (713,711) (776,597)
(35,411) — (20,593) (56,004)
76,461 84,050 206,521 367,032
(743,188)
(33,409)
776,597
367,032
12,463,000
(2018 :10,344,000 )
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EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)
oOoOooodn

2019 2018
2,486 1,472
3,130 4,653

(26,264) (6,618)
205,932 89,843
33,592 34,700
(996, 420) (461,686)
2019 2018
208,418 91,315
(1,022,684) (468,304)
(814,266) (376,989)
36,722 39,353
(155, 487) (243,925)
(208, 850) (70,175)
(411,767) (40,816)
(36,765) (22,073)
(1,397) —
(814,266) (376,989)




@
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oOoOooodn

2019 2018
78,171 157,629
(76,495) (160, 285)
157,263 80,861

15 (34)

(388) —
158,566 78,171
322,096 291,701
(319,806) (280, 365)
314,635 325,515
(2,872) (14,755)
314,053 322,096




(

(

)

)
2019 30

15
30

MFRS 15

EDINETOOOO

OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)

oOoOooodn
2019 2018
36,155 32,682
11,569 21,119
26,688 23,597
382.6
MFRS 15 2018
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ooooooo
(b)
2019 2018

(70,175) 43,252

481,203 330,443

(619,988) (443,434)

110 (436)

(208,850) (70,175)

39,456 2,706

(248,306) (72,881)

(208,850) (70,175)

()
51,579,000

2020 30

MFRS 15 C 2018 30 2017

2771628



©

(

)

(2018 6,727,000

MFRS 15

C
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oOoOooodn

2019 2018
(40,816) 9,573
1,219,499 386,466
(43) (1,078)
(1,590, 407) (435,777)
(411,767) (40,816)
7,590,000
67.5
2018 30 2017



(D

©)
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2019 2018

36,765 22,073

2019

20,714

169,248

2019

1,397
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OooooOodd
24
2019 2018 2019 2018
@
38 23 — —
— — 1,011,391 1,178,463
13,831 10,553 2,987 2,465
17,238 25,606 57 59
24 72 — —
31,131 36,254 1,014,435 1,180,987
)
— — 5,496 127,156
8,661 2,750 50 68
531 384 — —
6,814 5,971 — —
16,006 9,105 5,546 127,224
©
5.4 (2018 4.7 ) 18.0
(2018 15.0 )
() 38

280/628
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OooooOodd
25
2019 2018 2019 2018
10,635,496 10,619,683 198,360 511,616
1,171,006 1,014,971 122,948 3,502
11,806,502 11,634,654 321,308 515,118
30 (42,675) (33,011) — —
11,763,827 11,601,643 321,308 515,118
1966 ( ) A 8,882,000
(2018 16,981,000 )
2019 2018 2019 2018
0.25-3.95 0.05-4.25 1.60-3.50 1.05-3.85
365 (2018 365 )
4,167,000 (2018 3,057,000 )

30

RAM
P1

281/628
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(2018 232,831,818 )

(
(
@
2018 12 12
)
127
2019 30
341,862,418 (2018
472,793,189
(b)
2011

EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)

232,831,818 )
(2018

(ESOS)
2010 11 30

OooooOodd
2019 2018 2019 2018
10,910,560 10,910,560 3,340,111 3,340,111
10,910,559,429 (2018  10,910,559,429 ) 341,862,418
2019 30
) 10,568,697,011 (2018  10,677,727,611 )
)
109,030,600 (2018 68,180,400 )
1.24 (2018  1.11
2016

10,910,559,429 (2018 10,910,559,429 )

337,141,797

282/628
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ESOS
( )ESOS 10 2011
( )ESOS ESOS
15

) ( ) ( )
ESOS

(a) 18
()
©
3.1C )

( )ESOS

10

) 13

10 11

)
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2019 30

2012 16 2021 31 1.71* 125,895 — (4,995) 120,900

2018 14 2021 31 1.26 259,483 — (7,189) 252,294
385,378 — (12,184) 373,194

2018 30

2012 16 2021 31 1.71% 129,580 — (3,685) 125,895

2018 14 2021 31 1.26 — 267,996 (8,513) 259,483
129,580 267,996 (12,198) 385,378

* 1.75 1.71

2012 16 2015 16 2018 14
2021 14
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OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)

oOoOooodn

2012 16 2018 14
23.6 22.1
4.5 3.6
) 3.1 3.4
2019 2018 2019 2018
16,680 5,046 16,680 5,046
5,353 1,612 — —
— — (10,000) (3,111)
(13) — (13) —
22,020 6,658 6,667 1,935
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27
@
IcULS
1
2019
(FRS) 97,427 73,848 628,850 75,627 18,554 19,823 — 95,517 1,009,646
MFRS 15 — — 139 — — — — — 139
( ) 97,427 73,848 628,989 75,627 18,554 19,823 — 95,517 1,009,785
MFRS — — — — —  (19,823)  (18,085) —  (37,908)
2018
(IFRS) 97,427 73,848 628,989 75,627 18,554 —  (18,085) 95,517 971,877
— — — — — —  (11,713) (198,713) (210,426)
— — 128,361 — — — — — 128,361
(
) — — 128,361 — — —  (11,713) (198,713)  (82,065)
— — — 19,635 — — — — 19,635
— — — (1,748) — — — — (1,748)
— — — (633) — — — — (633)
(110) — (7,975) — 488 — — 7,597 —
97,317 73,848 749,375 92,881 19,042 —  (29,798)  (95,599) 907,066
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EDINETOOOO

OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)

oOoOooodn

2018
102,309 73,848 1,334,763 71,379 19,733 (1,510)  (76,963) 1,523,559
— — — — — 21,333 171,143 192,476
— —  (705,387) — — — —  (705,387)
« ) — —  (705,387) — — 21,333 171,143 (512,911)
— — (226) — — — — (226)
— — — 5,916 — — — 5,916
— — — (1,290) — — — (1,290)
— — — (378) — — — (378)
(4,885) — — — — — — (4,885)
3 — (161) — (1,179) — 1,337 —
97,427 73,848 628,989 75,627 18,554 19,823 95,517 1,009,785
2019
(FRS) 49,109 12,327 — 61,436
— (12,327) 2,359 (9,968)
(MFRS) 49,109 — 2,359 51,468
— — 277 277
16,679 — — 16,679
(1,748) — — (1,748)
64,040 — 2,636 66,676
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2018

EDINETOOOO

OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)

oOoOooodn

45,353 1,547 — 46,900
— 11,533 — 11,533
5,046 — — 5,046
— (753) — (753)
(1,290) — — (1,290)
49,109 12,327 — 61,436
2019 2018
958,774 671,522
123,517 93,505
116,365 113,457
32,763 23,029
1,231,419 901,513

288/628
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OooooOodd
29

2019 2018 2019 2018
29(a) 510,024 2,708,701 — 500,000
10,000 — 10,000 —
520,024 2,708,701 10,000 500,000
29(a) 10,373,669 8,976,599 2,500,000 2,000,000
3.52 29(b) 422,492 411,533 — —
5.75 29(c) 1,818,003 1,839,201 — —
5.375 29(d) 1,043,000 1,053,734 — —
1.75 29(e) 1,136,539 1,107,059 — —
1.369 1.374 29(F) 1,136,539 1,107,059 — —
1.489  1.495 1.499 H9¢0) 1,074,176 1,049,568 — —
2039 2.186 29(h) 349,611 344,367 — —
4.0 29(i) 1,582,157 1,599,926 — —
20(§) 25,480 23,900 — —
18,961,666 17,512,946 2,500,000 2,000,000
19,481,690 20,221,647 2,510,000 2,500,000
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2019 2018 2019 2018
520,024 2,708,701 10,000 500,000
6,090,388 5,717,455 — 1,000,000
12,871,278 11,795,491 2,500,000 1,000,000
19,481,690 20,221,647 2,510,000 2,500,000

2019 2018 2019 2018
2.21 2.88 4.47 4.66
4.82 4.95 3.60 —

290/628
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OOooOoOoOoo
2019 2018 2019 2018
3.52 301,271 313,436 — _
5.75 2,661,429 2,538,182 — _
5.375 1,335,425 1,313,751 — _
1.75 1,728,881 1,668,760 — _
1.369 1.374 1,737,755 1,753,143 — _
1.489  1.495 1.499 1,730,838 1,746,270 _ _
2039 2.186 424,696 398,759 — _
4.0 1,671,827 1,708,469 — _
8,704,698 11,670,455 2,366,078 2,479,533
25,480 23,900 — _
20,322,300 23,135,125 2,366,078 2,479,533
@ ( MTN )
() MTN
€)) ( cpP ) ( MTN )
2019 17 50
500.0 cP (
)
2019 25 500 MTN
500 MTN MTN 4.60
(2018 4.47 ) MTN 2034 23
10 cP cP
3.60 2019 25
(b) 2013 26 20
MTN
2013 25 4.38 (2018  4.38 )
1,000,000, 000 MTN MTN

2023 25

291/628
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OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)

OooooOodd
2016 11 11 5.15 (2018 5.15 )
500,000,000 MTN MTN
2036 11 11
2016 11 11 4.63 (2018  4.63 )
500,000,000 MTN MTN
2026 11 11
() ( YTLPI )
MTN
(a) 2011 11 MTN 5,000,000, 000
4.35 4.95
(2018  4.35 4.95 )
2018 24 YTLPI MTN 500,000,000
4.65 4.99 2,200,000,000 MTN
(b) YTLPI MTN 2017 20 (
) ( ) ( )
2,500,000,000
5.05 (2018 :5.05 )
() REIT( SGREIT ) MTN
@) MTN( 002 )
2014 20 MTN
002 100 MTN(2021 )
( 002 ) 002 3.50
BBB+
(b) MTN( 003 )
2015 20 MTN
003 125 MTN(2023 )
( 003 ) 003 3.40

BBB+

292/628



(

EDINETOOOO

OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)

©) MTN( 004 )
2016 10 20
004 70 10
( 004 ) 004
BBB+
(d) MTN
SGREIT 325
) MTN 4.48
2019 30 329.8 (107.80
:328.9 (111.2 )
2021
) REIT MTN
MTN 2016 11
1,650 MTN
4.70 5.10 (2018 :4.95 5.23 )
1 12
(a) 2016 25 821.8
10 MTN
24 10 MTN
MTN 2022 23
(b) 2017 23
65
MTN MTN 2022 23
(c) 2017 11 REIT
385 MTN

2024 11

293/628
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MTN(2026 10 )

3.14

330

MTN
2019

MTN

)[2018
2019

2019
24
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(d) 2017 11 23 REIT
MTN MTN 2022 11 23
(e) 2019 6 28 W
85 MTN MTN 2023
) ( YTL
2016
( LCSB ) 500,000,000
(
LCSB
LCSB
2017 13 LCSB  LCSB
( ) ( )
2018
2017 13 2017 12 13  LCSB  LCSB
( ) ( )
180,000,000 100,000,000
2020 12
4.80  5.00
(b) 3.52 ( RPIG )
30 30 3.52
2019 30 6.71 (2018  7.40 ) RPIG
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ooooood
265

28

) MTN

100,000,000
4.40

2020 12 12

RPIG

2023 30



) 5.75
2003 10 15
(

( 5.75 GU

(2018 347,274,542

5.375 GU

5.75 GU
(d) 5.375
2005 10
(
(
5.375
198,964,188
) 1.75
2006 31
)
)
( ILG
ILG

EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)

OooooOodd
350,000,000 2033 5.75
5.75 GU 2003 10 15
350,000,000 346,358,915
) 2019 30
10 14 2033 10 14
200,000,000 2028
) 5.375 GU 2005 10
200,000,000 198,708,230 (2018
) 2019 30
10 2028 10
(
(
75,000,000 1.75
ILG 2006 31
1.75

4.94 (2018 5.63 )
31 2051 31
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() 1.369 1.374
2007 31 (
) ( )
2057 75,000,000 1.369
75,000,000 1.374 ( ILG
) ILG 2007 31
ILG 31 31 1.369 1.374
2019 30 4.56 (2018 5.25 )
2057 31
(g) 1.489  1.495 1.499
2007 28 (
) ( )
2058 50,000,000 1.489
50,000,000 1.495 50,000,000
1.499 ( ILG ) ILG
2007 28
ILG 11 29 29 1.489  1.495 1.499
2019 30 3.93 (2018
4.83 ) ILG 2058 11 29
(h) 2.186
2009 (
) ( )
50,000,000 2039 2.186 ( ILG
) ILG 2009
ILG 12 2.186
2019 30 2.54 (2018  3.35 ) ILG

2039
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(i) 4.0
2012 24
(
(
4.00 (
199,400,879 (2018
ell
2012 30
(
(
4.00 (
102,025,593 (2018
ell
4.00
2021 24

200,000,000

@

30 2021

678 (8.4

(SGREIT

GU

199,134,603

GU

102,960,481

GU

TMK)

GU
)(

GU
)(

24

100,000,000

REIT
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200,000,000
) 2019
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2012 24

SGREIT  TMK
(8.5

24

30

30

30

2021
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2019 2018 2019 2018
30(a) 24,347 3,855 — —
30(b) 42,675 33,011 — —
30(c) — 52,538 — —
30(d) 30,265 77,675 565 807
30(e) 15,609 19,826 — —
30(F) 3,354,043 2,079,207 1,266,855 1,266,854
30(g) 11,370,304 1,263,393 200,000 —

14,837,243 3,529,505 1,467,420 1,267,661
30(c) — 2,648 — —
30(d) 17,489 45,317 550 172
30(e) — 4,969 — —
30(F) 565,935 381,781 — —
30(g) 11,177,431 17,600,645 — 200,000

11,760,855 18,035,360 550 200,172
30(a) 24,347 3,855 — —
30(b) 42,675 33,011 — —
30(c) — 55,186 — —
30(d) 47,754 122,992 1,115 979
30(e) 15,609 24,795 — —
30(F) 3,919,978 2,460,988 1,266,855 1,266,854
30(g) 22,547,735 18,864,038 200,000 200,000

26,598,098 21,564,865 1,467,970 1,467,833
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2019 30
24,347 — — 24,347
42,675 — — 42,675
30,265 17,489 — 47,754
ICULS 15,609 — — 15,609
3,354,043 425,935 140,000 3,919,978
11,370,304 9,555,068 1,622,363 22,547,735
14,837,243 9,998,492 1,762,363 26,598,098
2018 30
3,855 — — 3,855
33,011 — — 33,011
52,538 2,648 — 55,186
77,675 45,317 — 122,992
ICULS 19,826 4,969 — 24,795
2,079,207 221,781 160,000 2,460,988
1,263,393 16,433,097 1,167,548 18,864,038
3,529,505 16,707,812 1,327,548 21,564,865
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2019 30
565 550 — 1,115
1,266,855 — — 1,266,855
200,000 — — 200,000
1,467,420 550 — 1,467,970

2018 30
807 172 — 979
1,266,854 — — 1,266,854
— 200,000 — 200,000
1,267,661 200,172 — 1,467,833

2019 2018 2019 2018
3.11 2.63 4.34 4.34
4.10 1.49 3.90 4.17
— 2.20 — —
1CULS 7.49 7.50 — —
3.05 2.68 — —
2.89 1.53 — —
1.60 1.72 2.40 2.40
@
()
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OooooOodd
2019 2018 2019 2018
31,721 81,250 599 834
17,702 46,556 566 175
53 — — —

49,476 127,806 1,165 1,009

(1,722) (4,814) (50) (30)

47,754 122,992 1,115 979

( ICULS )
2011 2021 ICULS
2011 10 31
( YTL ) 10 2021 10 31
( ) ICULS 0.50 992,378,023
2011 2021 ICULS
( )2011 2021 ICULS (
3.0 4.5
2011 2021 ICULS 6.0
( )2011 2021 ICULS YTL
1.32
0.99
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( )2011 2021 ICULS
( )2011 2021 ICULS

YTL
2011 2021 ICULS

®
180,000,000

@
()

(a) 393,667,500
75,000,000

1.05

(b) 741,454,000

(c) 1,049,780,000

200,000,000

50,000,000

1.42 (2018 0.95

2015
50,000,000
1.21 1.49 )
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OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)

OooooOodd
2011 2021 ICULS
( 14 )
(2018 200,000,000 )
75,000,000 (2018 397,207,500
1.50 (2018  0.90 1.05 ) 2021 22
140,000,000
0.91 1.08 (2018  0.57 0.91 )
200,000,000 (2018 1,059,220,000
)
2015 30 2.16 (2018  2.16 )
50,000,000 2015 1.15
1.15 ) 50,000,000
1.9 (2018  1.99 )
2016 25 1.49 1.77 (2018

2025 30 25
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OooooOodd
(d) 734,846,000 [140,000,000 ]
728,262,084
[138,745,658 1( ) 2019 30
1.83 2.03 2026 31 60
40 2021 31
()
(a) 828,400,000 200,000,000 (2018 807,700,000
200,000,000 )
( YTLPI ) 2015 28 2020 28
3.63 4.04 (2018  2.77 3.63 )
(b) 828,400,000 200,000,000 (2018 807,700,000
200,000,000 ) YTLPI 2015 12 17
2020 12 17 3.36 3.74 (2018  2.63 3.45 )
(c) 1,035,500,000 250,000,000 (2018 1,009,625,000
250,000,000 ) YTLPI 2017 31
1,025,841,237 247,668,001 (2018 996,946,206
246,860,519 ( ) 2019 30
3.27 3.72 (2018  2.43 3.29 ) 2022
31
(d) 942,305,000 227,500,000 (2018 979,336,000
242,500,000 ) ( )
7.5
2016 16 2020 16 220
3.74 (2018  2.29 )

)
1,996,313,000

(2018
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OooooOodd
)
() 6,038,721,474 1,973,180,458 (2018
5,890,592,790 1,990,804,958 )
2017 14
2022 12 2.83 3.44 (2018
2.27 2.79 )
2019 30
2019 13
2019
30 2019 30
(b) 1,123,423,000 367,084,000 (2018 1,149,725,000
388,565,000 )
( YTLW )
3.79 3.84 (2018  2.65 3.56 )
YTLW
()
)

(vi)
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2019 2018
548,493 547,775
(1,124) (29,775)
(15,973) (20,100)
29,432 50,593
560,828 548,493
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32
2019 2018 2019 2018
(FRS) 2,073,201 2,068,379 113 113
MFRS 15 70,766 82,513 — —
(MFRS) 2,143,967 2,150,892 113 113
9,395 3,774 — —
22,386 (5,137) _ _
(750) (12,290) _ _
589 (1,476) _ _
4,360 33,480 _ _
(1,131) (1,338) — —
(5,591) (17,705) — —
(8,989) 1,929 — —
(1,479) 6,311 — —
(3.,778) (96,750) _ _
(68,497) 55,747 — —
) L (7,943) 30,518 _ _
2,073,144 2,144,181 113 113
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2019 2018 2019 2018
(115,428) (63,653) — _
(133,293) (116,542) — _
(231,316) (27,458) — _

(16,406) (5,911) — o
(20,637) (16,510) — _
(517,080) (230,074) — _
517,080 230,074 — _
2,530,401 2,308,708 113 113
37,892 40,599 — _
21,931 24,948 — _
2,590,224 2,374,255 113 113
(517,080) (230,074) — o
2,073,144 2,144,181 113 113
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33(a)

33(h)
33(c)

33(d)
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2019 2018
1,681,878 1,355,652
2,251,985 2,052,474
77,406 60,776
(1,188,767) (1,092,660)
2,822,502 2,376,242
2019
2019 2018 12 31
2019 2018 2019 2018
4,874 4,677 305 273
55,346 — — —
687,950 671,629 — —
16,350 13,880 — —
759,646 685,509 — —
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ooooooo
@
Q)
)
)
2019
2019
5.1
5.0
0.5 C ) 2,373,490 2,598,869
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2019

54,816

530

55,346

2019

55,346

2019

54,816

304

226

55,346

310/628



©

(

(

)

)

2020
2021
2022
2023
2024
2025
2026

34

(15

160.9

31
31
31
31
31
31
31

20

11
12
12
12
12

13

.77
.04
.32
.60
.90
13.
.50

19

(844.5

17

(61.78
(63.20
(64.67
(66.14
(67.71
(69.23
(70.86
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oOoOooodn
2019
304
226
530
2016 30
2016 30
2019 30
49
(25 ) (25 )
2016 30
)

N W S\



(

)

2019

11.77

EDINETOOOO
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OooooOodd
2026 31
30
21.7
7.3 2020 30
(61.78 )
(
)
)
GMP )
GMP
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30
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2019 2018
671,629 1,099,962
80,526 (98,524)
(110, 159) (107,008)
(6,355) (44,454)
52,309 (178,347)
687,950 671,629
2019 2018
4,081,555 3,922,374
(3,393,605) (3,250,745)
687,950 671,629
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2019 2018
3,922,374 4,416,568
(38,238) (222,810)
111,022 113,593
56,506 67,202
1,068 1,098
2,669 (197,006)
(147,852) (130,056)
(146, 250) —
327,729 (162,982)
(7,473) 36,767
4,081,555 3,922,374
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2019 2018
3,250,745 3,316,606
(31,883) (178,356)
92,340 85,606
110,159 107,008
1,068 1,098
(147,852) (130,056)
(2,669) (3,293)
121,697 52,132
3,393,605 3,250,745
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2019 2018
56,506 67,202

18,682 27,987
( y* 2,669 (197,006)
2,669 3,293
( ) 80,526 (98,524)

2020 ( RPI )
CPI ) 180.5 (32.9
MFRS 119
16.5 3.0 )
197.0 (35.9 ) 197.0 (35.9
33.5 (6.1 )
163.5 (29.8 )
2019 2018

46,383 (94,883)
15,461 (31,628)

18,682 27,987
( ) 80,526 (98,524)
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2019 2018
2.80
1.90-3.00 2.20-3.10
1.80-3.20
RPI 3.20
CPI 2.20
2019 2019 2018 2018
60 26.2 28.3 27.1 29.2
40 27.4 29.5 28.3 30.4

CM12018
1.0

S2P(M/F)A 95
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MFRS 119
22 ) 0.1 2.3 78,734 4,081,555 4,160,289 687,942 766,676
0.1 (CPI
2.1 2.2 RPI 67,711 4,081,555 4,149,266 687,942 755,653
3.1 3.2 )
160,616 4,081,555 4,242,171 687,942 848,558
2019 2018
1,335,845 39.4 1,347,856 41.5
1,802,472 53.1 1,626,432 50.0
191,585 5.6 205,489 6.3
63,711 1.9 70,968 2.2
3,393,613 100.0 3,250,745 100.0
2019 2018
214,037 137,738
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2019

2018

14,021

2,329

11,916

1,964

16,350

13,880

2019 30

14

2019

2018

11,916
1,689

(537)
220

733

13,251
1,656

(666)

(1,530)

(795)

14,021

11,916
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2019

2018

14,021

11,916

2019

2018

11,916
220
911
778

(537)

C ) 779

«c ) (46)

13,251

(1,530)
823
833

(666)

(1,098)

303

30 14,021

11,916

2019

2018

778

911

833

823

1,689

1,656
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)

2019 2018
2,329 1,964

2019 2018
1,964 2,299
636 359
(311) (429)
40 (265)
2,329 1,964

2019 2018
1,964 2,299
40 (265)
636 359
(311) (429)
2,329 1,964




322/628

EDINETOOOO

OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)

oOoOooodn

2019 2018
636 359

2019 2018
7.3 8.0
9.0 9.0
923 1,029
1,339 1,224




34
2019
(FRS)
MFRS 15
(MFRS)
2018
(FRS)
MFRS 15
(MFRS)
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oOoOooodn

@ ) © @
40,331 8,132 35,382 102,491 186,336
(40,331) — — — (40,331)
— 8,132 35,382 102,491 146,005
— 134 (79) 165 220
— — 8,219 (699) 7,520
— (1,738) (3,619) (775) (6,132)
— 6,528 39,903 101,182 147,613
— 6,528 39,903 101,182 147,613

@ ) © @
40,331 5,828 35,035 107,155 188,349
(40,331) — — — (40,331)
— 5,828 35,035 107,155 148,018
— (268) (12) (4,328) (4,608)
— 3,600 1,981 1 5,582
— (1,028) (1,622) (337) (2,987)
— 8,132 35,382 102,491 146,005
— 8,132 35,382 102,491 146,005
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©
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2019 2018 2019 2018
2,011,355 1,201,202 — —
633,442 495,244 720 18,520
10,491 135,227 — —
112,510 130,863 — —
917,254 887,231 16,768 16,469
3,685,052 2,849,767 17,488 34,989
30 180 (2018 30 180
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2019 2018 2019 2018
20,188,682 20,800,281 2,510,000 2,500,000
11,497,578 11,386,131 995,637 1,278,064
25,891,106 20,986,231 1,467,970 1,467,833
37,388,684 32,372,362 2,463,607 2,745,897
50
129.5
(2018 104.9 ) 7.3
7.3 )
10
11.5 (2018  11.4 )
(2018 1.3 )
©
1,542,868,000 (2018  2,715,327,000
10,503,000 (2018 12,586,000
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2019
647,391 10 64,739
895,477 10 89,548
2018
1,899,254 10 189,925
816,073 10 81,607
2019
4,155 10 416
6,348 10 635
2018
5,292 10 529
7,294 10 729
( )
(CST180 )
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(D

ECL
MFRS ECL

13

( GDP )
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2019 30 (MFRS
90 91 120 120
2019
1,794,997 327,834 16,322 660,924 2,800,077
208,806 — — — 208,806
2,003,803 327,834 16,322 660,924 3,008,883
(66,343) (15,971) (5.824) (402,979) (491,117)
(388) — — — (388)
(66,731) (15,971) (5.824) (402,979) (491,505)
1,937,012 311,863 10,498 257,945 2,517,378
90.3 (2018 68.2 )
MFRS
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ECL
ECL
ECL
12 ECL
90 ECL
365 ECL
12 ECL ECL PDx LGDx EAD
PD( )
LGD( )
EAD( )

PD LGD

330/628



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)
oOoOooodn

2019
20;8 ( 328,846 — — 7,344 336, 190
MFRS 161,163 445 — 76,765 238,373
2018 ( ) 490,009 445 — 84,100 574,563
6,625 — — — 6,625
89,128 — 34 76,001 165,163
(9,605) 67 — (390) (10,052)
(80,916) — — — (80,916)
(4,124) — — 860 (3,264)
2019 30 491,117 388 34 160,580 652,119
2019
2018 ( ) _ _ _
MFRS 116,859 1,765 118,624
2018 ( ) 116,859 1,765 118,624
2019 30 116,859 1,765 118,624
©)
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2019

3,674,378 272,645 — 3,947,023

16,906,218 19,411,741 26,676,237 62,994,196

16,007 — — 16,007

20,596,603 19,684,386 26,676,237 66,957,226

19,182 17,559 — 36,741

39 13,501 771 14,311

9,633 1,885 309 11,827

668 2,665 — 3,333

29,522 35,610 1,080 66,212
2019

17,488 — — 17,488

4,105,268 2,911,767 2,053,777 9,070,812

5,546 — — 5,546

4,128,302 2,911,767 2,053,777 9,093,846
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2018

2,819,581 229,991 — 3,049,572
7,396,418 24,003,969 29,297,566 60,697,953
9,105 — — 9,105
10,225,104 24,233,960 29,297,566 63,756,630
8,733 9,569 — 18,302
10,076 — — 10,076
6,045 2,498 — 8,543
24,854 12,067 — 36,921
2018
34,989 — — 34,989
1,882,730 1,569,077 1,428,650 4,880,457
127,224 — — 127,224
2,044,943 1,569,077 1,428,650 5,042,670
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MFRS 2019 30
2019

17 —_ 346,510 — 63,461 409,971
19 273,480 871,752 — — 1,145,232
20 — — 18,722 — 18,722
17 — 2,352,947 — — 2,352,947
20 — 945 64,077 — 65,022
19 2,927,984 —_ — — 2,927,984
24 31,131 — — — 31,131
25 10,635,496 — — — 10,635,496
25 1,171,006 — — — 1,171,006

15,039,097 3,572,154 82,799 63,461 18,757,511
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2019

28 — — 272,645 272,645
29 — — 18,961,666 18,961,666
30 — — 11,760,855 11,760,855
20 9,782 44,334 — 54,116
35 — — 3,674,561 3,674,561
20 — 63,491 — 63,491
24 — — 16,006 16,006
29 — —_ 520,024 520,024
30 — — 14,837,243 14,837,243

9,782 107,825 50,043,000 50,160,607
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2019

17 — 34,968 9,477 44,445
19 12,982 —_ — 12,982
24 1,014,435 — — 1,014,435
17 — 797,277 — 797,277
25 198,360 — — 198,360
25 122,948 — — 122,948

1,348,725 832,245 9,477 2,190,447
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2019

29 2,500,000 2,500,000
30 550 550
35 17,488 17,488
24 5,546 5,546
29 10,000 10,000
30 1,467,420 1,467,420

4,001,004 4,001,004
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MFRS 139 2018 30
2018

17 — 790,067 — 346,708 1,136,775
19 952,884 — — — 952,884
20 — — 49,860 — 49,860
17 766,448 1,883,669 — — 2,650,117
20 — 1,802 196,603 — 198,405
19 2,430,838 — — — 2,430,838
24 36,254 — — — 36,254
25 10,619,683 — — — 10,619,683
25 1,014,971 — — — 1,014,971

15,821,078 2,675,538 246,463 346,708 19,089,787
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2018

28 — — 229,991 229,991
29 — — 17,512,946 17,512,946
30 — — 18,035,360 18,035,360
20 22,115 12,193 — 34,308
35 — —_ 2,714,540 2,714,540
20 — 19,817 — 19,817
24 — — 9,105 9,105
29 — —_ 2,708,701 2,708,701
30 — — 3,529,505 3,529,505

22,115 32,010 44,740,148 44,794,273
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2018
17 — 42,186 42,186
19 11,693 — 11,693
24 1,180,987 — 1,180,987
17 766,448 — 766,448
25 511,616 — 511,616
25 3,502 — 3,502
2,474,246 42,186 2,516,432
2018
29 2,000,000 2,000,000
30 200,172 200,172
35 34,989 34,989
24 127,224 127,224
29 500,000 500,000
30 1,267,661 1,267,661
4,130,046 4,130,046
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(b)
) ( )
) ( ) (
)
) ( )
2019
_ 945 — 945
— 2,377,412 307,902 2,685,314
10,503 3,640 — 14,143
— — 871,752 871,752
— 82,799 — 82,799
42,072 45 21,344 63,461
52,575 2,464,841 1,200,998 3,718,414
3,333 — — 3,333
— 6,449 — 6,449
— 107,825 — 107,825
3,333 114,274 — 117,607
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2018

— 1,802 — 1,802
— 2,669,903 — 2,669,903
— 3,833 — 3,833
— 246,463 — 246,463
45,424 — 301,284 346,708
45,424 2,922,001 301,284 3,268,709
18,579 — — 18,579
— 3,536 — 3,536
— 32,010 — 32,010
18,579 35,546 — 54,125

342/628



EDINETOOOO

OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)

38

2019

2018

10,503 24,465 34,968

5 9,472 9,477
10,508 33,937 44,445
12,586 29,600 42,186
12,586 29,600 42,186
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2019 2018
1,225 1,234

6,300 6,300

2,735 2,850

3,025 5,254
26,577 30,662
21,626 21,626
3,647 3,934

7,975 8,156

— 6,226
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2019 2018
8,820 8,820
2,754 6,892
2,173 2,389
5,529 —
4,475 5,325

IT

42,093 37,158
_ 3,646

2019 2018
_ 1,336
_ 912
ICULS 21,511 17,618
1,290 1,219
705 2,080
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()

2019 2018

43,602 25,403
(b)
( )

2019 2018 2019 2018
76,373 98,975 997 723
6,334 8,920 12 —
772 961 — —
7,909 2,308 4,735 1,381
91,388 111,164 5,744 2,104
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©
24
2019 2018 2019 2018
— 5,236 — —
39
@
2019 2018
795,078 647,493
2,517,419 1,267,913
2019 2018 2019 2018
72,880 101,807 — —
(b)
)
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2019 2018
193,993 158,557
366,051 384,489
473,658 289,802
1,033,702 832,848

2019 2018
594,941 603,917
1,525,156 1,664,321
672,479 1,059,893
2,792,576 3,328,131

33 (2018
)
15
334
(2018 781 )
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@
)
©
(D
©
®
()]

CODM

CODM

EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)

OooooOodd
(PPA)
2019 2018
60,779 60,747
65,821 117,936
( CODM )
(
MFRS
CODM
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CODM
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1,360,876 84,375 1,239,796 2,681,555
(141,377) (80,553) (16,415) (7,303)
1,219,499 3,822 1,223,381 2,674,252
9,536 8,431 1,691 27,410
(16) — (23,943) (78,097)
— — 7,326 14,799
80,497 2,560 93,851 145,473
— — 40,777 487,495
1,082,207 102,704 2,607,860 9,485,356
15,259 — 799,770 4,884,144
791,269 5,742 364,346 1,191,630
33,716 163 150,087 118,949
— 81 (203) 6,290
9,877 660 84,682 236,554
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737,473 1,343,209 11,381,864 18,829,148
(281,427) (239,913) (14,632) (781,620)
456,046 1,103,296 11,367,232 18,047,528
20,657 11,080 7,911 86,716
(641,134) (291,481) (712,828) (1,747,499)
(12,424) 854 400,540 411,095
14,887 73,900 625,339 1,036,507
92,052 28,047 2,196,978 2,845,349
13,442,398 16,568,410 30,592,809 73,881,744
14,943,993 7,766,445 17,670,177 46,079,788
766,283 596,667 6,036,827 9,752,764
35,682 753,064 1,569,080 2,660,741
1,020 2,470 149,856 159,514
17,195 99,211 1,067,802 1,515,981
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613,471 84,482 1,110,855 2,628,339
(227,004) (80,021) (13,562) (9,641)
386,467 4,461 1,007,293 2,618,608

5,363 7,341 2,885 25,548
an — (20,518) (54,684)
— — 6,248 4,104
40,291 2,201 7,221 174,150
— — 34,463 90,883
556,807 156,888 2,159,794 5,341,138
175 — 845,055 1,181,288
252,390 3,502 202,478 603,268
18,213 469 196,753 103,463
— 898 42) 3,115
10,041 671 60,861 245,684
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779,258 1,228,867 10,305, 462 16,750,734
(277,635) (236,720) (16,004) (860,587)
501,623 992,147 10,289,458 15,890,147
13,170 13,300 8,408 76,015
(640,071) (278,327) (650, 956) (1,644,573)
(17,682) 1,960 404,244 398,874
(284,246) 341,297 1,054,736 1,335,740
104,093 47,742 2,145,969 2,423,150
14,885,103 15,916,251 29,905,249 68,921,230
15,258,451 7,303,511 17,198,032 41,786,512
629,522 539,002 5,767,179 7,997,431
43,696 147,205 1,858,652 2,368,451
958 18,071 13,949 36,949

17,280 100,024 1,120,440 1,555,001
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@

(

(

(

)

)

)

2019 2018 2019 2018
5,764,796 4,782,616 10,608,467 10,373,318
3,648,577 3,567,561 17,934,854 17,172,606
7,447,068 6,375,068 17,718,828 16,902,856
1,187,087 1,164,902 3,865,355 769,608

18,047,528 15,890,147 50,127,504 45,218,388
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2019 2018
30,759,493 28,111,233
10,217,573 10,003,889
1,127,238 1,127,391
8,023,200 5,975,875
50,127,504 45,218,388
®
10
2019 2018
3,184,498 2,883,229

355/628



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)
oOoOooodn

41

29

30

25

)

40
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2019 2018 2019 2018
19,481,690 20,221,647 2,510,000 2,500,000
26,598,098 21,564,865 1,467,970 1,467,833
46,079,788 41,786,512 3,977,970 3,967,833

(11,806,502) (11,634,654) (321,308) (515,118)
34,273,286 30,151,858 3,656,662 3,452,715
13,262,686 14,041,932 6,228,889 6,807,396
47,535,972 44,193,790 9,885,551 10,260,111

72 68 37 34
17/2005
) 25



42
(a)2018 12
) KKH
( SPA )
¢ ) SOL HTL
1.00 548,000
() SOL HTL

220 (

14.7180 1,038

SOL HTL
200 ( )
28013
2879 195
Obra Social y Monte de Piedad de Madrid

) ¢ B)
28013
280

)
( )SPA

SPA

(b)2019 13
1B )
YTL )

( YTL ) 1.14
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2016
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S.L.U.( )

S.L.U.( SOL HTL )

2018 12

SPA

Fundacién

56,167

56,167

SPA
) 2020 12 31



)

)
ICULS

0.28 (

( 1CULS

2019 20 2019 24

)

©(@) 6.06(1)

)

2019
2019

24

2019
27
20

30

2019
2019
IB

43
(a) 2015

2018 11

YTL

3.0

YTL

0.32

2019

6.0
ICULS

YTL

ICULS

1B

20

2019
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YTL

0.32

1CULS(

( )( YTL
0.50
2011 2021
) YTL
0.36
ICULS )
ICULS
ICULS
2019 30
2019 17
2019 10 (
2017

2019 11
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10
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2018 12 31 70.5
(23.4 )
(b) 2017
( SPYTL ) SPYTL
(
)( )
SPYTL 75,005,764 75  (75,005,764.75 )
2017 24
2017 12
(
) SPYTL 2018
(
) 2019 21
©
2018 25 ( SIAC )
( ) 2018

SIAC ( )
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44
(a) MFRS
(b) 2019 30
MFRS MFRS MFRS
MFRS
2017 MFRS
MFRS 15 2019 30 MFRS
2018 30 FRS
2018
MFRS MFRS 15 MFRS
( ) MFRS
a)
2017 MFRS
2017
MFRS 10 FRS
b)
MFRS MFRS
c) MERS
MFRS
FRS 139 FRS
FRS 139 MFRS
2018
MFRS '®)
d) MFRS 15
2017

MFRS MFRS 15 44@a) )

e)

MFRS IFRS
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)
MFRS MFRS 123 MFRS 123
2017
FRS
MFRS 123
FRS
2017 MFRS
( ) MFRS ( MFRS )
MFRS MFRS 139 () ()
( DMFRS 139
MFRS
a)
MFRS
2018 346.7
2018 342.9
14.6

MFRS
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MFRS
b)
MFRS ECL MFRS
12 ECL
2018 225.8
2.2
c)
MFRS MFRS
( ) MFRS 15 ( MFRS 15
MFRS 15
MFRS 15

@ )
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MFRS 15

MFRS 15

44(a) Ha) )

MFRS 15

MFRS 15

44
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b)

c)

)
)
)
(
MFRS 15
FRSIC 17

(
FRSIC 17

FRSIC 17

MFRS 15

MIA

MFRS
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MFRS 15

MFRS 15

) FRSIC 17

2018 MIA



()

51.0

(3.8

2018

335.4
2014
10.4

(9.1

2002
2017
)
2017
2.5
31.8
2017

30

365/628

EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)

OooooOodd
(60.0 )
2017
(1.9 )
2017
)
21.0
34.3 (6.1
2017
(0.5 ) 2017
(5.6 )
34.3 (6.1
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2018 30
2018 2018
FRS %RS % MFRS
(VFRS (MFRS
) )
2018 30
28,087,322 — 23,911 28,111,233 — 28,111,233
1,161,417 (34,026) — 1,127,391 — 1,127,301
2,275,515 — — 2,275,515 (18) 2,275,497
151,646 (4,011) — 147,635 — 147,635
5,986,886 (11,011) — 5,975,875 — 5,975,875
1,136,775 — — 1,136,775 (27,753) 1,109,022
— 4,653 — 4,653 — 4,653
— 1,472 — 1,472 — 1,472
2,838,059 (29,343) — 2,808,716 — 2,808,716
3,456,646 137,758 — 3,594,404 (237,928) 3,356,476
299,683 (299,683) — — — —
— 89,843 — 89,843 (445) 89,398
— 34,700 — 34,700 — 34,700
10,123,292 (68,128) (25,986) 10,029,178 (225,802) 9,803,376
7,540,331 284 (22,110) 7,518,505 (2,220) 7,516,285
1,009,646 139 — 1,009,785 (37,908) 971,877
908,127 (6,614) — 901,513 — 901,513
— 6,618 — 6,618 — 6,618
2,073,201 (1,027) 72,007 2,144,181 (214) 2,143,967
7,077 (7,077) — — — —
3,187,256 (337,489) — 2,849,767 — 2,849,767
124,135 (124,135) — — — —
— 461,686 — 461,686 — 461,686
179,259 (33,254) — 146,005 — 146,005
186,403 (651) — 185,752 — 185,752
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MFRS
FRS 1 MFRS
2017
28,518,586 — 23,911 28,542,497
1,060,293 (34,026) — 1,026,267
78,432 (2,141) — 76,291
6,386,034 (32,994) — 6,353,040
— 1,969 — 1,969
— 712 — 712
799,825 (37,380) — 762,445
2,475,214 47,100 — 2,522,314
3,392,338 58,295 — 3,450,633
423,857 (423,857) — —
— 286,053 — 286,053
— 56,501 — 56,501
10,606,817 (47,206) (25,755) 10,533,856
8,051,734 11,631 (22,341) 8,041,024
932,394 (1,964) — 930,430
— 1,964 — 1,964
2,068,379 10,506 72,007 2,150,892
7,077 (7,077) — _
3,304,385 (291,635) — 3,012,750
— 349,837 — 349,837
72,078 (72,078) _
181,272 (33,254) — 148,018
210,474 (492) — 209,982
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2018

2018

(EPS)
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30
FRS ﬁgRS MFRS
30
15,904,731 (14,584) 15,890,147
(11,374,507) (28,759) (11,403, 266)
4,530,224 (43,343) 4,486,881
275,872 (1,210) 274,662
(358,615) — (358,615)
(1,363,894) 6,998 (1,356,896)
(464,593) — (464,593)
(1,640,005) (4,568) (1,644,573)
400,745 (1,871) 398,874
1,379,734 (43,994) 1,335,740
(376,593) 11,725 (364,868)
1,003,141 (32,269) 970,872
362,217 (21,218) 340,999
640,924 (11,051) 629,873
1,003,141 (32,269) 970,872
3.44 3.24
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2018
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30
MFRS
FRS 1 MFRS

30

1,003,141 (32,269) 970,872
« )

150,319 — 150,319
(700,783) — (700,783)
13,383 — 13,383
317,664 — 317,664
(705, 388) — (705, 388)
¢ ) (924,805) — (924,805)
78,336 (32,269) 46,067
(69,476) (21,218) (90,694)
147,812 (11,051) 136,761
78,336 (32,269) 46,067
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2018
2018 2018 30 2018
MFRS P
@
2018
2,359,000
®
2018
9,968,000
©
219,247,000
)

MFRS
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MFRS MFRS
()
%ﬁégs 30 N 8,172,710 1,180,987 12,059 -
_ _ — 9,200
(219,247) — — —
— (116,859) (1,765) -
iﬁégs ) 7,953,463 1,064,128 10,294 9,200
%ﬁégs 30 N — 42,186 12,327 — 3,742,991
35,345 (35,345) (12,327) — 12,327
— (6,841) — 2,359 —
219,247 — — — —
(219,247) — — — (337,871)
iﬁégs ) 35,345 — — 2,359 3,417,447
45

2019 26
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ANNUAL REPORT 2019

Income Statements

for the financial year ended 30 june 2019

Group Company
2019 2018 2019 2018
Note RMOOD RMOOO RM'O00 RM'000
Revenue [ 18,047,528 15,690,147 548,616 530422
Cost of sales 5 (13.940.465) (11,403, 266) - -
Gross profit 4,107,063 4,486,581 548,616 530,422
Oiher operating Income 403,255 274,662 6.210 1810
Selling and distribution costs (405.168) (308,615} - -
Adminstration expenses (1,233,690 [1.356,B96) {63,626) (Ba 384
Other Sperating expenses (398,549) (A6 525) - .
Finance costs B (1,747 .499) {LEe44.573) (175,950) {174,320)
Share of results of associated companies and
joint ventures, mat of tax 411,085 398874 - -
Prafit befare tax 7 1,036,507 1335, 740 315,250 293,628
Income tax expense a (315.152) {364,B6E) {16.802) {l6.212)
Profit for the year 721,355 970,872 298.448 277416
Attributable to:-
Chwmier of the parent 242,589 240,999 298,448 277416
Man-controling interests 478,766 629,873 =
721,355 aro.e72 298,448 277416
Eafnings per share (3an)
Basicidiluted EFS (sen) 9 2.30 24
[Diickendl pae ardinaey Shanss {oon) 10 4,00 S0

The accaompanying accounting pelicees and explanatory notes form an integral part of the finandal statemeants

117
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YTL CORPORATION BERHAD

Statements of Comprehensive Income

for the financial year ended 30 June 2010

Group Company
2019 2018 2019 2018
RMDOO0 RM OO0 RMOOD RMO00
Profit for the year 721,355 ginare 298.448 2rrdle
Other comprehensive (loss)/income:
ltems that will not be reclassified subsequently to
o stiatement
- fe-megsurement of post-employment benefin (50, 743) 150319 - -
obligations
= thanges i the Fair wilue of eguity ivestinents (20.987) - 277 -
at fair value through other comprehensive Income
= T CUrancy ranslatinn 184,661 (M08 =
Items that will be reclassified subseguantly to
moome statement:
rehilabie-Tor-Sale financial assets
- fair value changes - 13,383 - 115313
- reclassification - - - (53]
= Ll Doy hidges {353,606 L7664 - -
= fareign currency Transiation 128,360 [M05.388) - -
Other comprehensive (loss)/fincome for the year.,
net of tax {112,315) {924,805) 277 10,780
Total comprehensive income for the year 608,040 46,067 298,725 288,196
Total comprehensive income/{loss)
attributable to:-
Dwrier of the parent 132,512 (S0.E94) 298,725 268,196
hpn-controling Interests 476,528 136,761 - :
609,040 dn, 6! 298,725 #BH,196

The accompanying accounting poficies and explanatory notes form an integral part of the financial statements
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Statements of Financial Position

as at 30 June 2019

Group
2019 Z01a 2017
Note RM'DO0D RMDDO RM GO0
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment n 30,759,493 2H11.£33 2H. 542,497
Investment properties 12 10,217,573 10003883 10517010
Development expenditunes 13 1,127,238 1,127,391 LOZ26.267
Investment in associated companes 15 2,581,165 22TEE1S 2,401,951
InESTmEnt in joint vantures 1B 264,184 147635 76,291
Investments 17 409,971 136775 B45,165
Intangible assets 18 B8.023.200 5975875 B6.3¥53,040
Trade and athar recelvables 19 1,159,120 567,865 906,439
Contract assels &3 5,616 B125 26681
Desivative financial mstruments 0 18.722 A9BR1 14624
54,566,282 49802164 30,766,570
Current assets
Imvantories 21 2,783,723 2,808,716 To2 A5
Property develooment costs 22 561,937 I&T032 2522314
Trade and other recelvables 18 4,198,733 3.594.404 1450633
Contract assets £3 239,524 124543 342,554
Desivative linancial instumenls i} 65,022 158,405 52124
Incame tax A5seTs 121.292 128,051 BOL1E
Amounts due from related parties Fo 31.131 36.254 7497
Investments 17 2.352.947 2650117 3241812
Fixed deposits 25 10,635,496 10,619,683 12,145,557
Cash aref bank balances 25 1,171,006 1014971 1174691
22,160,811 21,542 216 23859,743
TOTAL ASSETS 76,727,093 71,344,380 T4626,713

The accompianying accounting poides and explanatory notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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Statements of Financial Position

as at 30 june 2019
Group
2019 2018 2017
Note RM'00D RM"ODOD RM'O0D
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity attributable to owners of the parant
Share capital e 3,340,111 1,340,111 4.340.011
Other resarves 2Na) 907,066 1,008,785 1,523 5850
Retained eamings 9,488,302 00#e178 10,533.856
Treasary shares, a1 cost 2B} {-1:':,755} (337.142] {596,577
13,262,686 14,041,232 14,800,245
Non-conmtrolling interest 7.631,855 7.518,505 B.041.024
Total Equity 20,854,541 21560437 22,841,973
Hon-current liabilities
Long term payables 28 1,231,419 anl 513 930 430
Contract liabskties 23 26264 b.elB 1,564
Bands 29 18,961,666 17512946 15,966,528
Borrowlings 30 11,760,855 18,035,360 14,165,285
Granits and contribations 3l 560.828 fap 493 S4T. 775
Deferred tax labilities 32 2,073,144 2144181 2,150,892
Post-employment benedil ciligations. 33 759,646 BE5.509 L1l15512

Derivative financlal Instruments 20 54,116 34,308 44,008
35.427.938 39868928 38,923,404

Current Habilities
Trade and other payables 35 3,685,052 2,848,767 3012750
Contract liabilities 23 996,420 481,685 349,837
Derivateee Tnancial insthements 20 63,491 19817 128,772
Armounts due 1o related partes 24 16,006 9105 B.486
Bands 29 520,024 2,708,711 -
Barrowings 30 14,837,243 3,529,505 8,996,806
Prowislon for Babiktles and charges 34 147,613 146005 148,018
Post-employment benefit chiigations 33 4.874 4677 b.BHS
Incodmip 1ax liahiines 133.891 1B, S05.5982
20,404,614 9915015 12861336
TOTAL LIABILITIES 55,832,552 40,783.943 51784740
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 76,727,053 71344300 74.626,713

The accompanying accounting poficies and explanatory notes form an integral part of the financial statements
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Statements of Financial Position
as at 30 june 2019

Company
2019 Zo1a 2017
HNote RM'D00 RM'DOD RMOO0
ASSETS
Mon-current assets
Prapedty, plant and equipment n 4,474 4005 5363
Inwestment in subsidiaries 14 7.807.515 B.172.710 B.172.188
Imeastment in assodiate 15 205,241 205,241 205.241
Ivastments I7 44, 445 42185 31565
B.061.675 Bdad143 8,414,957
Current assets
Trade and other receivables 19 13,345 12,053 11486
IPeame 1oy assets 22,271 }.072 118
Amounts due from related parties 24 1,014,435 Lig0oar L4a71n
Irmvestments 17 147,277 766,448 73g.a0l
Floed deposits £5 198,360 511615 853,088
Cash and bank balances 25 122,948 3502 2,329
2. 168,636 2,513,685 2,791,998
TOTAL ASSETS 10,230,311 10937828 15206955

The accompanying accounting poides and explanatory notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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Statements of Financial Position

as at 30 june 2019
Company
2019 2018 2017
Note RM DOD RM OOD RM'O00
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity attributable to owners of the parent
Shara capital ) 3,340,111 3,340,111 33400111
Other reserves 273 BE6,676 BL435 46,900
Retained eamings 3.294.895 3.742.49491 4325927
Treasury shares, at cost 26(a) (472,793} (337.142] {556.577)
Tatal Equity 6,228,889 G.EO7 305 7116361
Non-current liabilities
Bands 29 2,500,000 2. 000,000 2,500,000
Barrowings 30 550 20C.172 978
Deferred tax fiabilities 32 113 113 113
2,500,663 2,200,285 2,501,081
Current Habilities
Trada and ather payahies # 17.488 44,9453 1231
Amounts due to related parties 24 5.546 L&7.224 101593
Bands 29 10,000 500,000 -
Barrowings 30 1467420 1267661 LAGE,058
Post-employment benefit chiigations 13 305 273 481
1,500,759 L930.147 1,589,503
TOTAL LIABILITIES 4,001,422 4,130,432 4,090,594
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 10,230,311 10,937 828 11,206,955

The accomparying accounting poficies and explanatory notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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Statements of Changes in Equity

for the financial year ended 30 June 2018

Artributable to Owners of the Parent
Nan-distributable Distributable
Share Daher Treasury Moa-
capital TESETVES Retained shares cenbroliing Total
{Note 28] (Noee 27(al) earnings (Mote 26[a)) Tetal Interests ity
Graup - 2019 RH00 RM'D00 AMO0 RMDOD RM'00D RMODD RW 000
A1 30 jure 2026 [FRE) 3,340,111 LO0A646  10.123.292 [337.142) 14,135,907 7540331 2675238
Efects of adopting MFRS 15 - 139 |&8.128) - (67,589 284 |&7.705)
Amuisition arcoung and
ponsoiidation elimingtion
IS TATErREnTS = = (25.98€) > {5.086) f2zu10 (
A1 30 e 2036, restaed 3,340.111 Lo09Fes 10029178 (337.142) 1404193 1518505  ZL.560.437
Effecrs of adogtng MFRS 9 - [37.908) (225.802) - (263,710) f2.220) [265.930)
AL 1 July 2018 (MFRS) 3340111 571,877 9.B03.376 [(337.142] 13T7E.EE2 TEI6.285 21294507
Profit For ihe yes - - 242,585 - 242,589 478,766 721355 |
Oty CompreEnenshi loss for [
the g - [B2,065) (28,012) - {110,077) [2.238) n2.315)
Tl comprehersie (iskinoome
for e year x (82,063) 245M ] 132512 476,524 E049.040
Transactions with owmers
Changes in comyposition of the Goup - - (109,7497) - [105,757] 133,640 23,843
Coviderds pasd - E [422.748) - [422,748) (494,558) (907,346}
Share option expenses - 19,635 - - 18,635 - 18,635
Share option lapsad - [L.748) 1748 - - - -
Subridiary's share aption Lirsad - [633) L1486 = 513 - 513
Tregsury dhuires - - . (135,851) [136,651) - [135,681)
AL 30 June 2019 3,340,111 907,066 9,468,302 (472.793) 13262686 7631855 20,894,541
The accompanying accouniing pelices and explanatory notes form an integral part of the financial statements
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Attributable to Gwmers of the Parent
Han-distributable Distributable
Share Other Treasury Han-
apital TRSENES Aetained shares controlling Tetal
[Wete 26)  (Wete Z7(a)} camings [Wote 2B{a]) Tatal inteneits equity
Geowp - 2018 RM'000 RM 00O RH000 RM000 RMD0O RH'000 RH000
AL by 2007 [FRS) EEL TN 1523559 10606AI7 [S9R5TT) 14 E73410 BASLTM 22925544
Ettats of adoprrg MFRS 15 . . {47008 . {07.206) 1LE3 (#5575
Aoguisition acooiting and
romsolidation efmination
restatemnty =) 125735} (22341) (48,006
Ar 1 july 2007 (MFRS) iam 1523559 10533856 (596577} 14800349 BO4L024 2241973
Profit for the year 34009 240000 B2ET AR |
Otk comgrahianse foss
For the yoar [S12.411) ELNE [43LEST} (493112 [d24 5
Tetal comprehenshie loss)ircome
for the year 1241l 4227 [BEEM) 136761 Lh0ET
Transactions with oisners
Changes in comprdton of the Goug [226) {67,243) (57,454 (57602] 25071
Divadencs puid - [Em A {526,761} | BO0.&THE] (1178435
Shane dividend - {334.5611 Hagal . . -
‘hare fition agersas 54tk - - LAtk LUk
Share option Ligrad [L.£30) L0 : .
Suhsidanys share optien lapsed [378) bini] L a3
Share of resarve of 3 jnt ventue 4,885] - [#E85) EES
Trmasury shares . [FEA4E) (T2445) (FRAE
At 30 june 2008 334000 1009.785 (RiTer.rih:] 3748 14041032 1518505 21560437

The accompanying accounting policies and explanatory notes fomm an integral part of the fimancial statements.
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Statements of Changes in Equity
for the financial year ended 30 june 2018

Attributable to Owners of the Parent

HNon-distributable Distributable
Share Other Treasury
capital resernves Retained shares

[(Mote 26) [Mote 27(a)) earnings  [Mote 26{a)) Total
Company - 2019 RM'ODO RMODO RM'DDD RMO0O RM OO0
At 1 July 2018 [FRS) 3,340,111 61.436 3.742.,991 ({337,142) &.807.396
Effects of adopting MFRS 9 - (9,968 [325.544) - [335.512)
At 1 july 2018 (MFRS) 3,340,111 51468  3.417.447 (337.142) 6.471.884
Profit for the year - - 298,448 = 288,448 |
Cthar comprahanshg fmoama - 277 - - 277 |
Total comprebensive income - 277 298,448 - 298,725
Transactions with owners
Dividends paid - - |422,748) - [422,748)
Share oplion espenses - 16,679 - - 16.679
Snare option bpsed - (1.748) 1,748 - -
Treasury shares - - - (135.651) [135.651)
At 30 June 2019 3,340,111 66,676 3,294,885 (472,793) 6,228,889
Company - 2018
AL L July 20017 3340111 45,900 4325927 (396,577] 7116,361
Prefit for the year 277,415 277416
Other comprahensive intome 10,780 ) =8 10,780
Tatal comprahensive income 10,780 277,416 288,196
Transactions with owners
Dividends paid - [52E.T6L) (526,761)
Snare dwidend - [334.881) 334,881 .
Snare option expenses L6 . - L0468
Shara gption lapsed (1.250) L290 - -
Troasury shanes - {75.446) (75, 846)
Ar 30 june 2018 3340111 B1A35 3,742,901 {337,142 BJA0T, 308
The accompanying acouming polices and explanatory notes form an integeal part of the finandal statements.
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Statements of Cash Flows

for the financial year ended 30 June 2019

Group Company
2019 2018 2019 zo1a
RMDOO0 RMODOD RMOOD RM'OO0O
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before tax 1,036,507 1,335,740 315,250 293628
Adjustrraenis fos
Adjustment on fair value of investmeant propartiss 13,172) 42,770 - -
Amaortssation of contract costs 11,569 21115 - -
Amartization of deferred mcame 4.579) {3.96E) - -
Amorisation of grants and contributions (15.973) {20.100% - -
Amortisation of intanglble assets 10,806 9565 - -
Bad debis recovened (4.187) [L204) - -
Bad debts wntten oft 5,552 505 - :
Depreciation of property. plant and equipment 1,497,585 153809 BEI 1435
Dividend income (29.411) [36,766) (487.269) [460.997)
Fair wilug changes of dervatives 19,981 5181 = =
Fair value changes of investments {62.507) 27382 {1.288)
Gain on disposal of investments - (=84} - {580)
Gain on disposal of investment properties (2.709) {3.484) - -
Gain/{loss) on disposal of property, plant and
equlpment {4.820) [20.613) 7z -
fmpairment losses - net 158,514 36,949 - 9ty
Ierest expense 1.747.499 LEA4.573 175,950 174320
Irtirest incoms (311,520) {220.253) (61.056) (B9.141)
Irwentonses written down - net 77662 119,200 - -
Liguidated assot damages income - [a111) -
Loss on disposal of imaestment in subsiciary - . - 78
Property. plant and equipment written off 26,793 o291 - -
Prospective expenditure written off 3,849 - - -
Prowiseon for posT-employment banefil G4.699 [124,456) - -
Broviskon for liabllives and charges 7.520 5582 - .
Shane oplion exparses 22.020 6558 6.667 1935
Share of results of associsted companies and
joi vontunos (411.095) (298.874) - -
Unreaised gain on forelgn exchange - net {109,570) [Fadj - -
Operating profit/(loss) before changes
in working capital 3,721,013 315951273 (50.785) (58,364)

The accompanysng accounting policies and explanatory rotes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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Statements of Cash Flows

for the

financial year ended 30 jJune 2019

Group Company
2019 2018 2019 2018
RM'000 RM'DDOD RM'DDO RM OO0
Changes In working capital:
Irentaries 389,591 {72.857) - -
Properry dessiopment 00515 (57.401) (B2,551) - .
Recenvabies (B75,753) (231,204 {2,043 3.758
Contract assets (79.135) 124 5Bh - -
Contract iabdities 354,963 37,851 - -
Payables 451648 {2580,323) (3.394) (2127
Related parties balances (12.024) S1.BG3 84,010 {5075
Cash flow generated frem/(used in} operations 4,092,802 3,500,559 26,782 (61.B808)
Dwvidends received 438,742 446,466 487,269 460,997
Interest paid (1.659,978) (1,488,448} (175.950) (156,785)
Intierest received 316,368 318,510 61,056 G4.812
Paymet to posi-efmgloyment benelit obligations (111,214) {108,103} - -
Income tax paid (350,349) (425,732} - {15,310)
Income tax refunded 43,794 54M - L]
Het cash flow from operating activities 2,770,265 2751764 399,157 291050
Cash flows from investing activities
Acquisition of additional sharas in existing subsidiasies (35) (27.838) (35)
Acguisition of nw subsdiaries (ret of cash acquired) (2.596.753) [OL156) -
Additional investment In associated companles
and faint wenture {367.340) (79.335) -
Development expenditune inturmed (132.686) 163,077} -
Grants recelved in respect of infrastruciure assers 29,432 50,593 -
Maturities of income funds 1,285,382 385,045 - -
Proceeds from dispasal of investiment properties 13,837 18843 -
Procends fram disposal of property, pant and equipment 20,039 24, 5H5 1]
Proceeds from disposal of land/property - 43,639 - -
Proceeds from disposal af investments 11.806 2969 11,806 2965
Pubthase of mtangibie ssets (4.215) {6.518) -
Purchase of imiestment properties (43,496) (B8.213) - -
Purchase of property, plant and equipment {2.412,100) [2/073.482) {292} {78)
Purchase of mwestments [192,641) {100, 360) (55,047) [30.838)
Shareholder loans {“,#} (E9.683) - -
Met cash flow used in investing activities [4.449,075) {2.162.983) (43,510) {£7.945)
The accompanying accounting posoes and explanatory notes form an integral part of the financeal statements.
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Statements of Cash Flows
for the financial year ended 30 june 2019

Group Company
2019 2018 2019 zo1a
RMDOO0 RMODOD RMOOD RM'OO0O
Cash flows from financing activities
Dowdends paid [422.748) |526.761) [422.748) &&86,761)
Dividands paid 1o non=-contralling intorests by
subsidinies (494,598) [BDLB7E) - -
Repurchase of man shares by the company (at net) {135,651} (75, 446) (135.651) {75,446)
Repurchase of subsidaries’ shares by subsidiaries (198.625) {&6,03L) - -
Proceeds from bonds 510,000 - 510,000 -
Procesds from bormowings 6,657,542 9,224,800 - 200,000
Proceeds Trom s of shares in subsidiades o
nan-tontrolling interasts - 17.224 - -
Repayments of bonds (S00.000) - (500,000) -
Repaymant of bamowings (3,763,118) (B,966,353) {1.058) (201.201)
Repaymant of loans owing ta former shareholder - {192.996) - -
Upfrant fees and detounis on barmawings {1,850) 5 - =
Met cash flaw fromi{used in) financing activities 1,650,852 (1.207.841) (549,457) (B03,408)
MNet decrease In cash and cash equivalents {27.958) (1.113,055) {193,810} {340.303]
Effects of exchange rate changes 190,142 (B602,140) - -
Cazh and cash equivalents at beginning of year 11,601,542 13,316,838 515,118 B55.421
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year
[Mote 25) 11.763,827 11600643 321.308 515,119

The accompanying accounting policies and esplanatcry rotes form an integral part of the financial statements.

128

383/628



EDINETOOOO
Oo0O0000000000000000000000(eo05821)
Oooooooa

ANNUAL REPORT 2019

Statements of Cash Flows
for the financial year ended 30 june 2019

MOTE TO THE STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Analysis of atquisitien af proparty, plant and equipmant:-

Group Company
2019 2018 2019 2018
RM'000 RM'ODD RM'ODO RM 000
Cazh 2412100 2073482 282 Fis)
Finance lease arrargamant 2,210 AR 1,195 -
interest expense pasd/payable 8,348 13,803 -
Transfer of assets from customers 56,766 - - -
Payabiles 5135 392 -
2,484,559 2119161 1487 7B
Reconciliation of liabdities awing Tam Gnancing
dlvilias:-
ALy 41,786,512 43120629 3,967,833 3,060,034
Other changes af barrowings
Procesds from bormowings 6,657,542 5,224,800 - 200,000
Repayment from bomowings (3,763,118) {8.966,953) {1.058) [201.201)
Upfrant fees on bomowngs {1.950) - - -
Procesis from bongs 510,000 - 510,000
Rapayment from bonds {500,.000) - (500.000)
Changes fram financing cash flow
Acquisition of subsidaries 1,001,103 - -
Amortisation of ssuance cost/uwinding of premium 117,621 123,545 -
Bank overdrafts {12,295) joue48 -
Cagitalisatian of issuance cost (44.430) 2 = .
Finance costs capitaksad in property development costs 12,463 10,344 - -
Finance |eases 1,195 aB4 1195
Frregn pechange movememt 315,145 (1,766 #H5) -
At 30 June 46,079,788 41,785,512 3,977,970 3067833

The accompanying arcoueleng poidies and explanatory notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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YTL CORPORATION BERHAD

Notes to the Financial Statements

= 30 |une 2019

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION

The principal attivities of the Company ahe those of an inestmant holding and management campany, Tha principal activities
af thee subsidiaries are ser oul i Note 14 1o the findncial statements.

The Company is a lmited liskility company, moorporatad and domiciled in Malaysia and Fsted on the Main Market of Burza
Malaysia Securities Berhad and the foseign section of the Tokyo Stock Exchange.

Thie adidress ol the megistered office and principas’ ploce of Dusimess of thee Company is as Tolow:-

111h Flner, Yeah Tieng Lay Plaza
55 Jalan Bukit Biritang
SR100 Kualy Lusrpur

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(a) Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Greup and the Company have been prepares undar historical cost convantion [unless stated
otherwise in the significant accounting palicies below) and in sccordance with Maaysan Finaacial Reporting Standards
{MFRS"), Internatienal Financial Reperting Standands (TFRST) and the requirements of the Companies Act 2015 in Malaysia

The financial statements of the Growp and the Cormpany for the finsnclal year ended 30 June 2019 are the Tirst set of
financial statements prepared In accordande with MFRS, inCluding MFRS 1 First-time Adoption of Malaysian Financkal
Reparting Standands”, Aside from the Shor-Teem exemprion on firstTime application of MERS 9 Fanancial instruments”
and certaln transitlon elections as dstlosed in Note 44, the Group and the Company have consistently applied the same
accounting pelicies in thair epaning MERS statemants of financial positian a5 at 1 july 2017, being the transition date, and
throughout all years presented, as if these policies had ahvays been in effect, The impact of the wansition to MFRS on the
Group's reported financlal position, financlal perfermance and cash flows, are disclosed In Note 44,

The preparation of financial S@atements in confomity with the MFRS and the Companies At 2016 requires the Directors
o make estimates and assumptions that atfect the repartad amounts af assets and Habilities and dsclosues of contingent
assets and Rabilities a1 the date of the financial statements and e reported amaunts of revenue and expenvses during
the reported pericd. It alsa requires the Diectors to excrcise thelr judgements in the orocess of applying the Group's
accounting palicies. Although these estimates and judgements are based on Directors” best knowledge of current events
and actions, actual results may differ.

The AEas rmoiving & higher degrae of (UpEEment of Complexity, 0F ArBas WIE ASSUMPIIONS and astmates are significant
to the financial statements are deciosed in Mote 3 to the financial statements.

The finanpcal statements are presented in Ringgit Malaysia (kM) and all vatues e rounded to the rearest thousand (RED00)
except as othenaise indicated.
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Motes to the Financial Statements
- 30 june 2019

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D.)
(] Malaysian Financlal Reporting Standards ["MFRS™) Framework

On 19 November 2001, the Malaysian Accounting Standards Board [MASE) ssued 3 new MASE approved accounting
framewwark, the MFRS Framewark

The MFRS Framework is to be applied by o Entities Other Than Private Entities for armsal periods beginning on or after
1 Jonwiary 2002, with the exception of enfities that are within the scope of MFRS 141 Agriculture [MFRS 141) and IC
Ired pretation 15 Agreerments for Comstruction of Reasl Estate (IC15]), wluding its parent, sigrilicant investon and werfurer
(hesein caled Transitioning Entites’y

Trarsationing Entitses will be allowed to defer adoption of the new MFRS Framework. The adoption will be mandatory far
Trafsitionng Entities for anfmal penods beginneng on of after 1 January 20180 The Group and the Compasy talls wither
the stope of Transitioning Entities and has opted to deler adopton of the new MPRS Framewade Accordingly, the Groug
and the Company il be requred 1o prepare financlal statements wsing the MPRS Framework 0 its Tirst MFRS financial
statements for the financial year ended 30 une 2019,

In presanting |is first MFES financial statements. the Group and the Company will be required to adjust the comparative
firaancinl Statemmnts 1o ameunts reflecting the appication of MFRS Framewod. The majority of the afustments requined
on framsition will be made, retrospectvely, against opening retained profits, The comsalidated financlal statements for the
finsncial years ended 30 |une 2017 and 2010 s expected 1o b ditferent i prepared under the MRS Framewark.

{c) Standards lssued but not yet effective

The standaeds and aTermeetanons thar ane issued bur not yet effective up 1o the date of ssuance of the Group's and the
Company's financlal statements are disclosed below. The Group and the Company Intend 1o adept these standasds, |f
applicadlo, whan they become affoctive.

Effective for annual
' perieds beginning en
Annual imarovements o MFRSs 2015 - 2017 cycle
- Amendments to MFRS 2 Business Combsnations 1 january 2015
- Amendments to MFRS 11: oint Arrangemenis 1 january 2019
- Amendments to MFRS 112 income Taxes 1 January 2019
- Amsendments 1o MFRS 123: Bomowing Costs 1 January 2019
MFRS L6 Leases 1 january 2019
Amandments to MFRS O Prepayment Faatures with Negative Compansation 1 January 2019
Amendments to MFRS 115: Flan amendment. curtailmant or settlement 1 January 2015
Amendments to MFRS 128! Long-term Interests in Associates and oint Mentures 1 January 2019
IC Intespretation 23 Uncortasnty over ncome Tax Treatmaonis 1 January 2019
Amendments (0 MFRS 2 Share-Based Paymant 1 january 2020
Amendments to MFRS 3: Definition of a Businass 1 january 2020
Amendments 1o MFRS 101 Presentation of Finsncial Statements 1 january 2020
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D.)
[t} Standards issued but not yet effective (cont"d.)

Etfective for annual
Description periods beginning an
Amendments to MFRS 108 Accounting Policles. Changes in Accoamtng Estimates
and Errors 1 January A0
Amendmants to MFRS 134; Interim Financial Reporting 1 January 2020
Amengments to MFR 137: Provsons, Centingent Liabilities and Cantingant Assets 1 |anuary 2020
MFRS 17! inswrance Contracts I january 2021
MFRS 10 Consofidated Financial Statements and MFRS 128 Investment in Associates and
Joint Ventures. Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or To be announced
Jaint Vertures (Amendments to MFRS 10 and MFRS 128) ey MASE

MFRS 16: Leases
MFRS 16 Laases (affective from 1 January 2019) supersades MERS 117 Leases and the related interprefations

Urdar MFRS 16, a laase is a contract {or part of a contract) that conveys the right to control the uge of an identified asset
for & period of time in exchange for consideration

MFRS 16 eliminates U Cassilication of leases by Uhe lessee g either linaoce ledses (on balscs sheel) or operating leases
{off bolance sheet], MFRS 16 requines a lesses 1o recognise a “right-of-use” of the undierly ] assel and @ lease lability
reflacring futune lease payments tar mast lemses

The right-af-wse asset is depreciated in accordance with the principle in MFRS 116 Property, Plant and Equipment’ and the
loase latelty = sccreted ower tme with interest expende recognised m the intome statamant.

For lessors, MFRS 16 retains most of thie requirements in MFRS 117, Lessors continue 10 classify ail leases as sither cperating
Iaases of finance leases and account for them differently,

The Croup will apply MERS 16 by using the madified retrespective approach, tharefore the comparative infermation will
ot be restatod and continues (o be reported under MFRS 117 Leases ("MFRS 1177 and IC Interpretation 4 Determining
Whether an Atrangement Contain a Lease (1C 4L The retrospecthoe impact of applying MFRS 16 for the leasing contracts
assessied 10 b relevant 1o MRS 16 as al 1 July 2019 shall be adjusted o the Group's ietalined esmags a5 8 1 [uy 2019

The purenases and wiles of rghts 1o access and rghts 1o use licenses af intellectual property are excluded from the scope
of MFRS 16

As a lessee. the Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a leass lability &t the lease commencement date. The right-of-
use a5se s initinky measured at cost. which camprises the Initial amount of The lease hability adjusted for any lease
payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any indial direct costs Incurred and an estimate of oost 1o
desmantle ang remoVE Thie Undirying 35508 oF 10 festore the underlying asset of he site on which it 5 located, s any
lease incentives receivid
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D.)
{e) Standards issued but not yet effective (cont'd.)

The leasa Rability (s initaally measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencemant
date, decountted using the iaterest rate implicit in the lbase or, if that rate cannat be readily determaned, the Group's
incremental borrewang rate. Generally, the Group uses its mtremental borrowing rate as the discount rate, Subtequently,
the lease labdty is messured at amortsed cost using the efective interest rate method, re-measured when there s a
change in the Group's estimates of future lease payments arsing from changes in circumstances relating ta the contractor
il ihe Group changes its assessment ol whether it will exercise o purchase, exdersion o Termination cglions,

In suth fe-measurements, 4 corresponding adjustmant is made to the carrying amount of the nght-to-use asset, or is
et gaded i Income staterment B the canmying value of the ight-of-use asset has been feduced 0 2o,

The Group has elected 1o not recognise rght-of-use assets and lease linbilities for short-torm leases that hove & ke
term af 12 manths or less at mcegtion or at nital apglication of MFRS 16 and kaw-value assets. The Group would recognne
thie keasie payments assoclated with thise leases a5 an expense on a straghl-line bass over the lease term

Thie Growp seticipate:

(i) In future, depreciation and interest expense wil be recognised insteod of lerng expermes, which will imdrove Eamings
befone Intenest, Tax, Depreciation and Amartisation (EBITDA™).

fiiy Payment obligaticns for operating leases will be separmely reporied as right-of -use assots and loase kabllities. Hence,
thiere will be moderate increase In ot assets and labiktes on the firse-tme sdoption due 1o the capiialsaton of
right-of-use 5515 and the recogniton of ease iakities. The increase i lease Sabdities will lead 1o & comesponding
Increase in gross borrowings.

filly  Met cash flaw s not impacted by MFRS 16, both net cash inflows from operating activities and payments classiied
within cash ficw from financing activites will increase, a5 payments made ar lease ineption of subsequently will be
characterised @ a repayment of lease kabilities,

fivl ©If balance sheel vperating leases commitments dsclosed in Note 39 under MFRS 117 will be recugnised as assets
and liabllities on the statements of financial positian,

{d) Revenue recognition

Revanue |s recognised to the extent that It is probable that the ecanomic benetits wil flow to the Group and the revenue
ran be rellatly measured The specific recognition criteria for revenue are a5 foliows: -

(I} Rewenue from contracts with customers

Revenue which represents Income arising in the cowrse of the Group’s ordinary actiwiies s recognsed by reference
to each distinct performance abligation promised in the contract with customer, Revenus from contracts with customears
is measaed at its transacticn peice, being the amount of (onskderation which the Group expects 1o be entitled in
exchange for transferring promised goods o services 1o @ customer, net of goods and service (ax, retums, rebates
and discounis. Transaction price is allocated to each performance obligation on the basis of the relative stand-alone
sellng prices of each distinct good or services promised in the contract. Depending an the substances of the respective
contract with the oustomer, revenue s recognised when the performance obligation is satisfied, which may be at a
paoint in time or over time.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D.)
{d} Revenue recoghition (cont'd.)
(i) Revenue from confracts with customers (cont'd.)
fal  Sale of electricity

The Group's electricity is genefated and sold into national electricity company or market in the respective countries
in which the Goup operates.

Reveriue (rom sale of elecrbily is recogiised over tme upon delivery of the electicity 10 the oustomess 41
single paint within the electricity grid.

Revenue are presented, net of gaods and service tax, penalties, rebates and dscounts Collection of the contract
consideration from custamers is considered probable. Mo elemant of financing is deamed presant a5 the sales
are made with spedified credt temms

Electricity revenue mchudes an estimated value of the esectngity consumed by customes from the date of the
fast meter reading avadable and reporting pericd end. Accrued unbdled revenue is recognised as Contract assers
and i5 reversod the falleweng month when actual billings socur,

b} Sale of clean water and the treatment ond disposal of waste water

The Group, uader the lieense gratted by the United Kingoom ("LIK") Gevernment. has the right 1o supply water
and seworage sanvices o oustomars, Togither with an chligation to maintain and dovelod the network and
ansure its continued availabilitg,

The natuie of the water industry in 1he United Kingdom (UKT) is such thal revenus recogrition s subed 1o a
degree of estmation. The assessment of water sales o (ustomers i based onintmal data where final settlement
data is not yor availaie. AT the ond of each pariod. amounts of water goivored 1o Customess ane estimated and
the corresponding billed and wnbilled revenue (s assessed and recorded in revemus, For the purpese of the
judgemant. varlous factars ase conskdered such as seasonality, historle billing profiles, leakage data and general
econemic condinions.

For metered astomens, revenue is determined by the meter reading. For unmetered (ustomers, the amount to
which The Growp has a right 1o recelve is devermined by The passage of Time durng which The (UsTOmes cougies
a peoperty within the Group's leenced reginn

Developer sereces related to the obligation undes statute to alow property deselopers to establish an authorised
connection to the water and/or sewerage network, In obtalning the connection the developer may require the
Group to wndertake cne o more of the of the following:

(] Conmections and meter nstalation in exchanga for payment;
(il Reguisitions of water mans. in exchange for payment: and
(i) Adoptions of water and wasie water mains.

The developer ks also required to pay infrasiructure changas being a contribution to netwark reinforcement.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES [CONT'D.)
{d) Revenue recognition (cont'd.)
{I} Revenue from contracts with customers (cont'd.)
) Sale of clean water and the treatment ond dsposal of waste woter {coni'al)
These activities are not sepaable nor dstinct and instead form a bundle of activities necessary to establish an
authorsed connettion from which the retwork adcess can be sbtarad. Alsa, the Group has 0 additianal obligation
unsder statute to keep the connectian in place far all current ard future accupiers and facilitate ongoing access
Lo the network Tor as long a5 thie propeity reguins sesvice provision, Comeguently, revenos Trom dewe loper

sepviees will be deferred awver the shorter of expected period of service provicion of the need to replace the
A550TS A1 thee pnd of their usetul kte (Typically in e moge B0 T 175 years),

Wo element of financing & deemed present for devaloper sorvices as the timing diffarence does not arise as a
result of the provision of finance. but rather comes a5 a consequence of the nitene of T regulitony ervirenment.

Unbilled receivables a%e considered 1o be a variable corsidararion wiich 5 not consiraines as 17 Group Consders
it to be highly prabable that a significant amauns will not be reversed after year end, Unbllled receivabies and
thie variable cordidaration are estmated using e most likely sutoome approach.

fe)  Soleof coment ond rekted producrs

Riverwse from sale af cement and related products is recagnised at the point in tsme when contral of the goods
& transferrad to the customer,

A contract with customer gxists when the contract has commercial substance, the Gioup and their customens
Pave approved thie contract and intend 1o perform their respective odligations, the Group’s ard the customer’s
rights regarding the goods or services to be ransierred and the payment terms tan be identified, and It Is
prabanie that the Graup will collact T consdaration 1 which it will be entitled i exchange of thete goods or
SEVLES

In detarrminion the transaction prce for the sale of cement and related products, the Group considers the effects
of variable consideration.

If the consideraron in a conTract includes  variable amount, the Group and the Comaany estimare 1ha amaount
at ronsideration to which they will e entitled In eechange for transteering the goods to the oustomer, The
variable constderation is estimated at contract inception and canstrained until it is highly probable that a significant
revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recegnised wil not oCcur when the assodiated uncertainty
with the varable consideration is subsequently resolved. Some contracts for the sale of cement and related
products provide customers with prompt payment rebates and volume rebates. The early payment rebates,
prampt payment redates and volume rebates ghe rise 1o variable consideration.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTD.)
{d} Revenue recoghition (cont'd.)
{f}  Revenude from contracts with customers (contd.)
{d) Hate! opevations
The Group generates revenue mainly from praviding the service of roam rentals to tenants within the hatel and

rentadl of spaces for functions and banguets. The Group also generiates revenue Bhom the sale of senvces such as
food and beverage. a5 well a5 mmor sendices such a3 teedommurstabion, lundry, intemet and other minor services.

Revenue & recopnised when the terms of & conract have been satistiad, which ocows whan contiol has been
TrArARTE T Customens and gestomand @ cbligations. are satrfod. For mom revenme, this 00rurs eenty thoaghour
the duration of 1he terant's use on a straight-ne basis. For hunctions and banquets, revenue is recognised at a
point in time when the performance obiigation & satshied, generally a1 the provision of the space.

fe)  Construction contracts

Under such contracts, the Group i engaged 19 construct binkdengs 5nd related infrastructurs and W cartain
instances 10 supply enegments. These cantracts may include multiple promises 1o the customers and theretore
accourted for as sepasate performance obligations, In this case, the tramsaction price will be allocated based on
ridative stand-akone selling price of the onsiderations of esth of e separate peformance oblgations. Whien
These are not directly abservabse, they ane estimared based on expected cost plus margin

Revenue from construction contracts is masured at the fixed transaction price agraec under thi agreament.

The Group detemmines the trarsaction price of a contract after contidering the effect of vaiable consideration,
convsIraining estimates of vanable consideration, etfect of sgnificant financing companent, nan-cash conmaderation
and consideration payabde 1o customer,

‘When the fair value of variable corideration is uncartain, the Group estmates the amownt of consideraton by
using the most lkely amount method and anly recegnises 1o the exient that i highly probable that a significant
revarsal in cumulative revenue will not ocour,

Revenue is recognised as and when control of 1he asset & nansfermed 1o the tustomer and It is poobable that
The Group weadd callect the consideration to which it will be entilied in exchange for the asset Tat would e
transiermed to the customer. Depending on the temms of the contract and the laws that apply 1o the contrart,
contral of the asset may tramsfer over time or at a point In time. Contrel of the asset ks mansferred over time if
the performance of the Growp does not create an asset with an allermnative use to the Group and the Group nas
an enforceable right to payment for perfermance completed to date.

if contrel of the asset transiers over Tme, revenue is recognised over the period of the conract by reference
to the pregress towards comolete saisfaction of that performance obligation ising the input mathod, wivich is
based on the total actua! construction cost incurred to date as compared o the total budgeted costs for the
respective construction projects.

i contral of the asset transfers at a paint in time, revenes is recognised at a point in fime when the customer
obains control of the asset.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES [CONT'D.)
{d) Revenue recognition (cont'd.)
{i} Revenue from contracts with custemers (cont'd.)
f}  Broodbdand ond telecommunicotions
The Group genefates revenue from providing telecommunecation services. such as access to the network, artme

wEage, messaging and inlernet services as wel as brom sales of products. Products and services may be sold
separatedy or in bundled packages. The tyoical length af o contract for bunded pacdkages is 11 months to 24 months.

For bundied packages. the Graup accounts. for individual preducts and sarvices sepacatedy [T they are distinct, |e.
it product or service s separately identifiable fram other e in the Bunded package and IF a austomer can
benetit trom i, The consideration is allacated between sesanate products and sarvices | a bundle based on their
Retative Startalons Selling Prices (R55F7). The R55P are determined bated on the St pricas at which tha Group
sells the preducts and telecommunication Services. RSP are based on cbservable sales prices however, whene
RSSP ane nat directly obsendable, estimates will be made maximising the use of observable nputs

i} Tekecommunication sendces

Telecommunication revenue from postpaid and prepeld services provided by the Greup |s recognised over
L, e the Denefis of telecommunication services e simullansgsty receivid and consurmed by the
CLSTOME,

Revenua from prepaid serices is recogrised when Sendces ana rencensd. STarter packs with a sim card and
redoad voucher is accounted for as & single performance obligation as the sim cand can only be used t1ogether
with the servces provided by e Group. Prepad credits ade recognised as contract Rability in the statements
of finanaal postion, Reverne & recognised when 1he credits are utilised or up to the point of customer
tharn or wpon expary, whichever is earlier,

Postpald services are provided in pestpaid packages which consist of various services (Le call minures,
et data sms and eic.). These posipasd packages have beon assessed to meet the definltion of a sertes
of distinct services that ase substantially the same and have the same partem of transfer and as such the
Group treats these packages as 3 single perfermance cligation.

Fostpald packages are either 5ok separately or Bundied togethes with the sak of device 10 (USTOmEr, AS
postpaid parkages and device ae rapanie ot being distinee and separately identitiahle, thees are twe
performande obligathons within a bundled transaction. Accordingly, the Group allocates the transaction price
based on the ASSP of the postpais packages and device.

(8] Devices
Devices may be sold sepasately or in bundled packages. The Group recognises revenue when control of the
device has ransfemed to the customer upon delivery and acceptance of the device at the point of sale.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTD.)
{d) Revenue recognition (cont'd.)
(i) Revenue from confracts with customers (cont'd.)
{f) Broodband and fefecommunications (confd.)
{ili  Devices {ront'd,)
For devices sold separately. the consideration is recehed i full ot the paint of sike, For devioes soid in buondled
packages, thi (USTEMBr wsualy offersd 10 Ay 18 dasaunted price on the divice. The smount of e

recaqgrirsed for devices sold in bundled packages is measured a1 the allacated consideration based on the A55P
a5 explained previausly.

Dewices thist the Group promises. to transfer as part of the bundled package with network service plans ane
corsidensd distino and thus accounted far as 3 separate performance abligation. Devices that &e transemed
s part of 2 fixed line telecommunication services bundied package wiuch can only be used together with the
services provided by the Group, are comsidered a5 a single perfarmance abligation in telecommunications
SErvite PEvBTLg.

A contract asset Is recognised when the Group celivers the devices belore the payment is due, If the payment
hagipenss before thee delivery of divice, thisn a contract Fability is recognised. Contract asses and contract
liablities @ presented in the statements of tinancial positicn

The Group ganerites ivenu e from tescommunication infrasind une businges. Teloommuncation infrastiure
business revenun 18 generated from the leasing of spato on the Croup's telecommunication towers, whare
thie eLstimers retal and raintan ther indiddusl communication netwonk eguipmeant. The feveaus & reogised
on & straghi-ling basis over the fixed and ron-canceBable term of the lease agreement. imespective of when
PaymMENT are duse.

g} Property dovelopmant projects
Contracts with customers may include multiple promises (0 customens and herefore acountad o as sepam@ie
performance chiigations The trensaction price will be allecated o each perlormance obligation based on the
standaions seling prices. When thase ane noT directy observabie, thoy a estimated hased on expecied osT-plus
mangn.

The revenue from property development is measuned at fixed transaction price agreed under the sale and purchase
agreement.

Rivenue from property deveopment is recognised #s and when the control of the ssset is transfermed 1 the
customes and It & probable that the Group will collect the consideration to which it will be entitled in exchange fior
the asset thas will be transferred to the oustomer. Depending on the terms of the contract and the laws that apply
1o the contract, control of the asset may transfer over time or at a point in time. Control of the asset is ransfemed
over time if the Group's performance does not create an asset with an altemative use ta the Group and the Group
hars an enforceable right o payment for periormance completed 1o cate,
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D.
{d] Revenue recognition (cont'd.)
(i} Revenue from contracts with custemers (cont'd.)
@} Property development projects foonfd)
The promised properties are specifically identified by its lot and unit number and its attributes (such as its size and
locaton] in the sale and purchase agreements and the attathed Layout plan, The purchasers could enforce its rights
to 1he promised proparties if the Group seeks 1o sel the unit To anather purchaser. The contractudl restriction on
e Group’s gbility 1o direct thie promsed poopeity lor danathir Use & subrsntive Use 1o the Groos, Thie Group is

entithed 1o continue 1o transfer i the customer the development units promised and has the dahes to complete
e camstnETon of the praperies and enforce its rights 1o hull payment

I the- control of the assat transfiors over time, revenue is recognised aver the pericd of the contract by reference
b the progress towarnds complete satisfaction of that performande obigation. Otherwise, revenue is recognised at
B point in tirme when the custome® oblains contngl of the assel.

Thi Ceoup recogresed revenue over tme using the Input methad, which is based on the actual cost mcurmd o
date on tha proparty devalapment projects o comparod o tha tatal budgated cost for recpactive developmant
projects.

Thie Growp Mscoghised saies.at s point i trne for the sale of completed properties, when the conteel of the properties
Inas been wansfered fo the purchasers, belng when the mopertes have been completed and delvered to the
custamers and It ts probable that the Group will collect the considerations 1o which it will e entited 1o in exchange
foe Whe assers sold

Thi Growp has cetarmined that it has 3 significant fimancing comgonent related 10 the salis of IS prapory units
being developed under the deferred payment scheme, A5 a result of this the amount of the promised consideration
s adjusted lor the significant financing component and the related interest income i recognised using the effectve
itevest method over the term of the deferment

{h)  Soleaf steom
The Group's sale of steam i mainly derived from whaolesale market customers. Reverue from sales of steam s

reCognised a5 and when the Croup's CUSTomers Simulianapusly recesve and consume the benetits (L.e. The customers
are abie tooutikse the steam for thelr benetit &5 and when the steam (5 being supplied) adsing from the Groop

performing its oblgations based on the tenms of the contracts with the customers. Accordingly, revenue fram the
supply of steam is recogrvsed over time; Le, as and when the steam supplied is consumed by the oustomers.
Mo element of financing is deemed present as the sales are made with specified oedit terms.

il (thers
Other Income eamed by the Group and the Company is recognised as the following bases:
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D.)
{d} Revenue recoghition (cont'd.)
(i) Revenue from confracts with customers (cont'd.)
fi}  Dthers fcont'd)
il Sabe of fusl oll

Sade of Tuel ol 5 recognied when contral of the products has transfesred, being when the products are
delviared ta thes custamear and thiefa 15 na unfulliled abligation that could aftect the custamers acoaptande
of the preducts. Delvery occurs wihen the products hive baen transported to the specific location, the risks
of absolestonce and boss have been transfered 1o the customer, and elther the customer has accepted
the products in stcordatde with the sales contract, the scteptance provisions have lapsed. or the Group
hivs abjective evidence that all eriteria for acceptance have been satisfied

Fevenue from nese sakes < recognised based on the price specified in The contract and nevenue is oniy
recognised to the extent that it is highly prosatle that a sigrificant reversal will not oocur. No element of
fiaancing |5 deamad presant &4 the tales sre made with spacified credil torm

A recevable is recognised when the qocds ate delivired 25 this is the polnt in thne that the consideration
it Livegnditional becouse ondy the passage of e s regured before the payment |s dus,

i) Saleof nptuwial gas

Revenue fiven sake of natural gas ks recognised a5 and when the Gloup's customers sinwltansously recelve
#ndf consume the benefits (Le. the customers are able 1o unikse the gas for their benefit as and when the
s s being supplied) arising from The Groog performng 15 ohigatins based on the terms of the contras
with thie fustemers. Accordingly, reveras from the supply of Gas 5 recognised over timi: Lo, a5 and when
the gas supplied ks consumed by the cwstomess. Mo slemant of financing is deemed prosent as the sales
ate made with specified oredit tenms,

{iii] Operation and maintenance lees
Management fees is recognised over the pericd in whikch the services are rendered.

{iw} Tank leasng fees
Tank leasing fees from operating leases are recognsed on 3 strasght line basis over the loase term

(il Revenue from other sources
Specific reyvense recognition criteria for other revenue and income earmed by the Group and the company are as

folows:-

fa}  Interest income
Interest income (s recognised as the interest Income accrues, taking into account the effective yheld on the asset.

by Dt fcome
Dividend income is recognised whan the nght to roceive the payment ks established.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D.
{d] Revenue recognition [cont'd.)
{iiy Revenus from other sources (cont'd,)

fc) Rentol income

Rental incoeme from operating leases (net of any Incenthves gréen to the lessees) is recognised on the straight-
e basis gver the laate term

{e] Employee benefits
(i} Short term employee benefits
Wages, sataries, socal security contrisutions, paid annuald leave, pasd ick lewve, bonuses and non-monetary banefits
are recognised as an expensa In the financlal year when employees have rendened thelr services 1o the Group and
the Company.

Bormrses ane recogrised o o experee whien thebeis a present, legal or coiestne tee obiligation o make such payiments,
a5 & result of past evants @nd whsn o rebabie estimate can be made of the amount of the abdigation,

iy Post-employment benefits
This Group as vakms post-emgloyment benalit sChisnes in acordance with kocal conditions and practices in the
IndusTries in which iT operates.

Thise benefit plans are ethar defined contribution o defined benefit plans.

fa)  Defined contribution plen
A detined contribution plan |s a pension plan under which the Croup and the Company pays fixed contrifiutions
nto a separate entity (a fund) and will have no legal or constructive obiigations to pay further contributions [
thi fund does not hold sufficient assets 1o pay all employees benhefits relating to emglayee sordce in the curmnt
and prior perkads.

Thie Gooup's and the Compary's contributions tw a defired contribwtion plan are changed to the profit or less in
the period 1o which they refats,

{b)  Defined benafit pon
A defined benefit plan Is a pension plan that defines an amount of pension benefit to be provided. usually as a
function of one or more factors swch as age, years of senace or Compensation.

The Eability In respect of a defined benefit plan is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the
regorting date minus the falr valee of plan assets

The defined benefit obigation is calculated annaally by independant actuaries using the projected unit credit
method The present value of the defined benefit obligation Is determined by discounting the estimated futune
zash outflows using interest rates of high-qualty corporate bonds that are denominated in the cumency in which
the benafits will be paid, and that have terms to maturity approximating to the terms of the related pension
ohligation
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D.)
(e} Employes benefits [cont'd.)
(i} Post-employment benefits (cont'd.)
(b} Defined benefit plan (cont'd,)

Re-maasurement gairs and losses of post-employment benelit obligations are retognmsed in Difer Comprahensive
ncome

Past-service costs are fecognised mmmediately in the Income Statement.

{ifl) Share-based compensation
Ther Company and certan subsidiones operate equity-settied, thare-based componsation plan for the emplayoes of
the Groug, The fair wakse of the employee services received in eochange for the grant of the shate options = recognied
a5 an expense in the peofit of loss over the yesting periods of the grant with a corresponding ingreass in eguty.

The 1014l aMount 1o be expentad over the vesting perlod s determined by reference to the fair value of the thare
aptnons granted and thie nuembes of shive aptions 1o be vested by vesting date. AT each reporting date, the Graup
nivises its estimates of the number of share options that ane expected o wast it recogalzes the impact of the revsion
of erigingl estimates, if any, in the prafit or less, with 3 comespanding sdustment ta equity. For eptions granted by
thi Company 1o its subsdianies’ emplayees, the expense will be recogrised In the subsidiares’ financil statements
aver the vesting periods of the grant,

The procesds recenved net of any directly atridutable ransaction costs ane credited 1o shafe capitad whan the options
are evercsed.

{f} Berrowing costs

Borrowing costs are capitadeed a5 part of the cost of o quaifying asset if they are dircctly antribatable 1o the acquisition,
cornition of produttion of that asset, Borrowing costs are capitalised until the assets are substantlaly completed for
their ntended use or sale.

All other bamrowing costs are recognised in peofit or loss In the period they are incurred. Bonowing costs consist of Interest
and other costs that the Group and the Company imurmed in connection with the bermowing of funds.

{a) Inceme tax and deferred tax

Income tax on the profit or less for the financial year comprises current and ceferred tax,

Current 1ax Is the expected amount of income axes payable In respect of the taxable profit for the fsanclal year and |s
measured using the tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reparting date.

Defered tax ts recognised in full using the liabllity methoc. on temporary ditferences arising between the amounts
attributable to assets and Habilities for tax purposes and their camying amounts in the financlal statements. However,

defiemed tax is mot acoounted for if it ances from ndtial recognition of an asset or fability in a transaction that at the time
of the ransaction affects nelther accounting nor taxeble profit or loss.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D.
(@) Incoime tax and deferred tax (cont'd.)

Deferred tax avsels are recogrisad anly to the extent That it 15 probable that taxable profit will be avidable against which
the deductible temporsy dilferentes of unused ta lrses can be uticed,

Deferred tax s determined wsing tax mtes (and ta lawes) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reparting
date and are expected to soply when the related deferred tad aaset is realised or the deferred tax lability is settled,

{h} Property. plant and equipment, and depreciation

Profserty, plant and squipment exceqt for cortain froshold nd and takdings (s sTated a1 oost ess accumulated depseciation
and accurmulated impairment losses, Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acguisition of the items.
Cost also includes borrowing costs inturned for property. plant and equipment undar construction. The cost of cortan
property. plant and equipment intlude the costs of denantling, removal and restaration, the obligation of which was
incurred 0% 4 consequence of instaling the asset

Subrsequent costs are included in the asser's c@rrying amaunt oF recognised a5 3 SEparatt Assel. 35 appropriate, anly when
i1 s probabda that future econamic benafits ascocatod with the item will fiow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured relaaly, The carying amount of the replaced part s devecognised All other repairs and maintenance ae
charged o the profit or loss during the linancial year in which they are incured,

Certain frisshald lamd and bulldings were revalued by the Directors in 963 based on vahuations canied out by indeperdent
professional valuers on the open market basks. In accordance with the transidonal provisions ssued by MFRS 116 Property,
PlanT anid Equipment’, 1he yaluanion of These properes, plant and suipmant have nar been apadated and Ty conTime
1o b stated at thelr previously revalued ameounits less deproclation and Impamment lbsses.

Property, plant and equipment retred from active use and held for disposal are stated at The lower of net book value and
net realisable vahus,

Fresefald nd and freehold ofl palm plantation are net amortised,
Asse1s under construction ane stated ar cosT and are not depreciated. Upon completion, assets under constmuction are

transformed to categories of property. plant and equipment depending on natwie of assets and depreclation commences
when they are ready for their intended use.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D.)
{h) Property, plant and equipment, and depreciation (cont'd.)

Depreciation oh all other propety, plant and egupment is calulated on the straight line bass 31 rates reguined 10 wilte
off thia cost of the plogeny, plant and equipment over ther esumatsd useful life

The principal annual rates of depreciation used are a5 follows:-

¥

Buildings 1-10
Leasehaold Band 1-3
infrastructure & site facllities 08 - 20
Plant & machinery 4 - 20
Furnitue, ligtures & eguipment 10 - 50
Wehicles 10 - 33k
Tefecommunication equigment 4 -

Residual value, useful lite and depreciation methad of assets are reviewed atr each financial year and to ensure that the
amount. method and pesied of depretiation are consstent with previcuws estmates and the expected pattern of consumatian
of the fulie sconbimes benelits embodied i the items ol propasty, plant and equeprient

Conrs and lasses on disposals are determingd by comparing net dispesal procecds with net carrying amount and are
regognised in the profit or loss,

{i)  Investment properties

Irvestment properties inchude those portions of buildings that are held tor long Term rental yields and/or for capital
Appreciation and treehold nd andioe land under opecaiting leases that is bl far Iong-teem capltal appeciation of for a
curTently inSOTOrming i ue. Imastment properties include properties that are being constructed of davelopad for future
B @ irestment propedtios,

Irvestment properties are measured initially a1 cost and subsequently a1 fair value with ary change therein recagnised in
profit o kess for the perod in which they arse. Where thie lair vabe of the vestment pooperty under comtruction s not
rafably determinabie, the EWesTment Jro0ety undir tonstruction is measured ar cost until either its fair value becomes
refiably oeterminabie or construction is complete, whichever & earier

Cost incluced expenditfuee that = directly attributabde o the acquisiton of the investmant proparty. The cost of self-
constructed investment praperty inciudes the cost of materiale and direct labour, any other costs directly attributable to
benging the investmem roperty 1o 8 working candition for thes Inended use and capitalised borrowing costs.

An westment property |5 derecognised on ts dispasal, or wiven it s permanently withdrawn from use and no futere

econgmic benefits are expected from s cispasal, The difference betwesn the net dsposal proceeds and the camying
amount Is recagnised in protit of loss in the period in which e item s derecognised.

144

399/628



EDINETOOOO
Oo0O0000000000000000000000(eo05821)
Oooooooa

ANNUAL REPORT 2019

Motes to the Financial Statements
- 30 june 2019

2. SUMMARY OF SIGMIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D.)
{} Devalopment expenditure
{i} Land held for property development
Land hedd 1or propery dewsiopment consists of land wihena no developmant activities hove baen caeried out of whise

developmeant actiites are not expected to be completed within the normal cperating cycle. Swch land is classified
within non-gumant assets and & stated at the lower of cest and net realisable value.

Cost comprisies cost of land amd all relsbed costs ioumed on sctivities nelessary 10 prepare the Lind Toe s intended
e

Land held far property development ks reclassified as geoparty development costs and included under current assets
whon development activitizs have commenced and where it can be demonstrated that the dovelopment activities
can be completed within the normal cperating cypde.

{iiy Project development expenditure
Deiopmient expenditune INCurred i capitalised when it mests certain mitena That indicate that it is probatee mat
thie costs will give rise to future economic benetits and e amortsed over the penad of The projects. Thiy are writien
down 1o thelr recoverable ameunts when there is insufliclert certainty that futwe economic benefits will flow 1o the
enterpeee.

Development costs previously recognsed as an expeime are not recognised @ an asset I subsequint perods.
Capitalsed development pxpendiiure & stated al cost iess accumulated amp isation and impasment osses,

{k) Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determing whether there is any Indication af
impairment. IF any such indication exsts, an asset’s recoverable amount is estimated (o determing the amount of impasment
logs

An impainment koss s recognisad for the amount by which the camying amomnt of the asset exeeds its recoverble amount.
The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less cost of dsposal and valee |n use, For the purpeses of
#53055iNg impakrment, assais are grouped at the lowest kevels for which there are separately idenitfiable cash flows (cash-
genarating units). Man-financlal assets other than goodwill that suffered impainnent are reviewed for possible reversal of
the impairment at each reporting date.

An impairment Inss & charged to the profit or loss immediately, wnless the aset s camied at revalued amount, Amy
Impalment loss of a revalued asset ks treated as a revaluation decrease to the extent of previcusly recognised revaluatson
surplus for the same asset.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D.)
(ki Impairment of nen-financial assets (oont'd.)

Impairment losses on goadwill are not reversed. In respect of other assels, any subsequent increase in the recoverable
amaiunt of an adat 15 traxed as rovarsal of the previois impaimment bss and i§ recognised 1o the extent ol the cafrying
amount of the asset that would have been datermined (net of amortsation and deprediation) had na imparment loss been
recognised. The reversal is recognised in the profit or foss immediately, unless the asset is cormed at revalued amount, A
reversal of an impairment loss on 4 revalued asset is credited directly 1o revaluation surplus. However, 1o the extent that
an impasieent loss on the same revakeed assel was peneuesty ecognised as o expermse o e prolit on foss, o reversal
af that iImpainment loss is recognised as ncome in the prafit or less

{1} Basiz of conzalidation

The contalidated linanial statements comprise the financial statements of the Company and its subsidianos a5 a1 The
reporting cate. The financial statements of the subsidisres used in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements
are prepared for the e reperting date as the Comparny, Cantrol i acheeved whin the Group ls exposed, o has rights,
o varable repurns from s invoheement swith the investee and has the ablity 1o atfect those e thioug? (s power
ovid the Investae,

Thix Growp controls an nwestes I and only if the Group has all the felowing:

+  Powoer over the investes (12, extsting nignts that give it the curment ability to diect the relevant activities of the investeal
+  Exposure, of nghts, to varashk returns fram i1s investment with the swestes; ard

»  The abiity 1o use its powes ovar the imester 1o affect its reums

When the Group has less than a majority of e vating rights of an investes, the Growp considers the follawing in assessing
whether ar nat the Group's wating rights in an irvestee are sufficient to give [t power over the investas,-

= The contraciual arrargement(s) with the ether vote holders of the investes;

+ Hights arising fram othier contractual arrangemenis:

= The Group's voting rights and potentlal voting rights.

The Group re-assesses whether o not it confrots an investes if T500s and cincumstances indicate that These ane changes
toanie ar mare af the thres slements ot contral Consaldtation of a subskdiary begins whan the Group ohfans contrel aver
the subsdiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the subsiciary. Assets, Babilities, income and expenses of a
sutsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date the
Group gans control until the date the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Frofit or Ioss and each component of OO are atoributed o the equity hoklers of the parent of the Grown and to the non-
controling interssts, even if this results in the nan-controlling interests having a ceficit balance, When necessary. adustments.
are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring thelr accounting policles into line weth the Group's accounting
policles. Al intra-group assets and Babilities. eguity, intome, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between
members of the Growp ate eliminated in full on consalidation
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D.)
{1} Basis of conselidation {cont'd.)

A change in the ownershio interest of a subsidiary, without 4 less of control is sccounted for as e equity ransaction. If
tha Group lases contrel over a subsidiary, it
+  derecognises the assets fincluding goodwill] and liabilities of the subsidiary;
+  derecognises the carrying amount of any non-consralling interests
+  derecognises the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity;
+  recognizes the fair value of the consideration received:
= recogrises the Tair value of any investrment retsned:
*  recognises any surplus or deficit in profit of boss;
+  reclassifies the parent's share of COMPONents Dreviously recognised in other comprebensive income 1o profit of 1055 of

retained earnings, as appropriate, x5 would be regured it the Group had directly disposed of the related assets ar
liaifitioes

Acquisitions of subsidlaries ace accounted for by applying the purchase methed |dentifiable assets acquired and liabdives
and contingent ialities assumed n a business combination are messuned initially at their far values ot the acquisitkon
date. Adjusiments 1o those fair values relating 1o previcwsy Feld interests are treated &5 a revaluation and recognisad in
OLREr COMprEnBrEve ncoma

The cost of & usiness combinatsen o measunsd 35 the .ij].r‘ﬂgﬁ‘l‘! aof the fair walues, at e l‘lﬂ!#ﬁl‘m‘l‘lﬂl‘lgﬁ Al The asseis
given, liabilithes incurred or 2ssumed, and equity inctruments issued. plus any costs directly anributable to the business
combination, Any excess of the cost of business combination over the Group's share in the net fair vaue of the acquined
subsidiary's Identifiable assets, Rabilities and contingent liabilities & recorded as goodwdll in the staterments of financial
position. The accourting policy for goodwill is se1out in Mote 2(q) 1o the financil statements. Any eccess of The Group's
shade i the net fawr value of the acguned subsiiany’s Identifiable msets Ralbdities and contingent Rablities over the cost
of business combination is recognised as Income in profit or loss on the date of acqustion, When the Group acqulres a
business, embedoed dervatives separated from thie host contract by The acquiree are reassessed on acquision unless the
business combination results in a change in the terms of the cantract that significantly modifies the cash fows that would
otherwise be required under the contract

{m) Transactlens with non-controlling interest

The Croup Treats Tansaciaans with non-comtrodling interests as transactons with equity awners of the Group, For purchases
from non-controling interests. the difference between any consideration paid and the relevant shares acquired of the
carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary i recorded In equity, Gains or fosses on disposals 1o non-confrolling Interests
are ko recorded i aguity.

{m} Investment in subsidiaries
A subsidary = an entity over which the Growp has all the following:-
*  Prower over the investes (e existing rights that gee it the current abdity to direct the relevant acthities of the investes)
= Exposure. ar rights. to vadable retums from its investment with the investee: and
= The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returms
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D.)
(A} Investment in subsidiaries (cont'd.)

In the Company's separste Tinandal statements, imestments in subsdiafies are accounted Tor at cost less accumuiated
impairment losses On dispodal ol svestments in subsidunes, the ditferende bstwean deposal proteads and the cafrying
amounts of the iwestments are recagnised in profit o oss.

(o) Investment in associated companies

Assoulated companies ehe entities nowhich e Group s in 9 pasition to exercise significant influsnege but which is neither
2 Subsidiary noe 2 MBS in & jaint venture. Significant influence s the pawer 1o participate In the financial and operating
policy decisions, Hut nat contiol over their pases. The existence and offect of potential voming ights that are curently
exarcrsable or convertible are comsidared when assassing whether the Croup has significant influence aver anather eniity.
Irvestments in associatod companses e accounted for in the consolidated Tirancial statements wiang the equity method
of accounting and are initialy recognised &1 cost. Tha Group's investment in associated companies imcludes goodwil identitied
an acuisiion, net of any atcumidated impairment loss

In applying the equity method of accounting, the Group's shame of 115 assoclated companies’ post-acquisition profits or
Ireses are recognicod n profit of loss and its share of post-SCqUsition MOVEMenTs (1 rewerves |5 recognizad In othar
comprehieraa income, The cumulative post-acquisition mavements ard distributions received from the dssocated companss
are adjusted against the carrying amount of the imvestment. When ihe Group’s share of losses in an assediated company
equalts or exceeds (s interest in the associated company, inciuding any othser unsecured obiigations, the Group does not
regognise further losses, unkess it has obilgations. or as made payments on behal] of the sssodated company,

Thiee mirst recent available sudred financial starements ol 1he assonated companees are used by the Group in appeying the
aquity mithod. Whare the dates of the awdted tinanclal statements used are not coterminous with thase ol the Cooup,
thie shaee of reswlts is avved a1 from the Lis: audited financial statements satable and managemaent financial statemaents
1o the end of the atcounting pericd. Whene necessary, adjiusTments are made to the finangial statements of assocated
companies 1o ensure conststency of accounting policles with theae of the Group.

Urrealised gains on transactions between the Group and Its associated comganies are efiminated 1o the extent of the
Groug's interest in the associated companies. Unrealised losses are also plemnatad unkess this transaction provides svidende
of an impalrment of the asset rarsfenrmed

Gains and losses arising from partial dispesats or dilutions ks investments in associated companies are recognised in profit
or loss.

IMVESTMENES. N 35500106 COMPANies a6 GRMECOgnISed wWhien The Caoug loses ssgnificant influence. Any retaned interest
in the entity & remeaswed at its falr value. The difference between the carrying amount of the retained investment at
the date when significant influence i< lost and its falr value is recognised in profit or loss.

In the Company's separate financial statements, investments In associated companies ane stated at cost less accumufated

Impalrment kesses, On disposal of iwestments in associated companies, the cifference between dispesal praceeds and the
camying amounts of the investments are recognised in profit or loss
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGMIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D.)

{g) Jeint arrangements

A joint arrangement s an arrangement of which there is contraciually agreed shasing of control by the Group with one ar
matia parties, whine decisiong about the rebawvan! activities falating to the jant arangamant raquite unanimous consant
of the parties shasng contrel The dassification of a joint arrangement &5 a joint oparation or a joint venture depends upon
the rights and chiigations of the parties to the arrangement. A joint venture i a joint arrangement whereby the joint
venturers have rights to the net astets of the arangement. A joint operation & a jaint armangement whereby the joint
operators hive fights to the assets and cbiigations foe the Labilities, relating to the arrangement,

Thir Croufys intefests in Kin? wentunes are aeountisd far by the squity methed of aceounting based on the auckted tinancisl
statements of the joint ventures made up to the end of the firancial year,

Equity accaunting irvohes recognising in the profit or loss the Group's share of the results of jont ventunes for the fmancial
year, The Gioup's investments in joint ventures ane cared in the Statements of Fnancial Position a1 an amount that
reflects ins share af thie et assers of the jaint vertures and ndudes goodwill on Jcguisition

Unfealised galns on transactions betwesn the Group and 1S jeint ventires are eliminated to the extent of the Group's
innerst in e it ventures: unrealised losses are also elminated Lnless the TFANSHCEON provides avidance on (mpairmant
of the mset tronaderred, Whene necessany, in applying the equity methad, adjustmants are made to the financial staterments
af [t vistunes 1o ensure cansistency of stcounting palicles with thase af the Group

In the Company's separate financial statements, investments in joint ventees ae stated at cost less impaimment losses.

On disposal of sudh invistments, the difference between mit disposal proceeds and Their cirying amounts s inthaded in
profic or loss.

{a) Intangible assets
{i} Contract rights

Cantract rights comprise acquired contracts and rights to confracts from business combmation. These are amonised
ower thie cantractual perad on a straght fine hasss and are Assessed at each reporting date whether thers is any
infication that the contract rights may be impalred. See accounting policy Mote 2(k) 1o the fimancial staterments on
impairment of non-financial assots

(i) Goodwill
Goodwill is initlally measures at cost. Following the Inital recogrition, goodwill s measured at cost less accumulated
Impairment losses

Far the purpose of impaioment testing, goodwill acquired s alfacated. from the acquisition date, to each of the Group's
rash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTD.)
{a) Intangible assets (cont'd.)
{ii) Goodwill [cont'd.)

Thse cagh=gericating unit o which goodwill s bean aliocated is tested tor impairmaent annually and whanever thare
Fs an indication that the cash-generating unit may be mpaied, by comparing the carmying amount of the cash-generating
unit, inthuding the allacated goodwill, with the recoverable amount af the ¢ash-generatng unit. Whene the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit is kess than the camying amaunt. an impasment loss is recognised in profit or
Fans Impaitment lossies recoghised for puodwill ane ot reversed in subseguent. peods

Where gootwill foms part of a cash-generating wnit and pat af the apecaton within that cash-generating unit s

disposed of, the goodwll associated with the oparation drposed of & inchuded = the carrying amowent of the operation

whan determining the gain or lass on deposal of the epesation, Gaodwill disposed of in this circumstance is moasurad

based on the relative Fair values of the operations dispesed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.
(iil) Others

fa}  Customer ists

Customer fists are amartised over 11e contraciua period oo a straight line basis and are assessed at aach reponing
date whethe: there k& any Indicaticn that the ather intangdle assets may be impaiied. See accounting pokcy
Hoto 2{k) 1o the financial sttements on impairmaent of nen financial sssets

[t Quarry ghis
Quary rights are amortised on 1he stralght-line bass over the lease term less Impalrment |osses

fc}  Emission rights
The emission rights that ane acquined by the Group &o measuned 3t cost less any accumulated impasmant ksses.

The policy for the recogndtion and measwement of impairment losses is In accordance with Nate 2(k).

(r} Financial assets
(i) Initial recognitien and measurement

Financial assets ae recognised in the Statements of Financial Pesition when and only when, the Group and the
Company become a party 1o the contracfual provisions of the instrumant.

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition. and subsequently measured at amartised cost. fair value through
ather comprefensive income (007, or fakr valug through profit o loss.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D.)
{r} Financial assats (cont'd.)
{i} Initial recognition and measurement (cont'd.)

The classifcation of tinancind assets at initial recognition degands on the tinancial assel’s contraciudl cash fow
tharactenstics and the Group's and the Company™s business model For managing them. With the exteption of trade
receidables thal do net contain a significant financing companent ar for which the Group and the Company have
applied the practical expedient. the Group and the Company initinly measure a financial assat at its fair value plus.
i the casee of @ finotial asset not ot Tos valuse Dhwough prolit or loss, transection wosts. Trade ieceivalbiles that do
not contan a significant Tinancing componant o far which the Group and the Comipary have applied the practical
expeduent are measured at the ransactan pace determinesd onder MERS Th,

In erder for a financial asser to be cassitied and measuned at amomticed cost or FYOCL, it needs to give riso 1o cash
flows that are sclely payments of principal and interest ["SPP) on the princizal amount cutstanding, This assessment
15 relerfid as the SPP teit and B perfarmed a8 an instrurment level.

Thi Group's and the Company's business moded for managing financial assers refers 1o how It manages Its fmancial
As5e1s in ander to gensrate cash flaws, The business moadel doteimings whether cash Tiows vl result frem coliesting
contractual cash flows, sefing the financal assets, or bath,

Purchases. or wabes. of linencial a5sets that require delivery of assers within a time frame established by reguiation or
correenion it market place (reguiar wiy trades) aie recognised on the trade date, Le., the date that the Group
ang the Company comimits 1o purchase of sell the asset.

{liy Subsequent measurement
For purpeses of subtequent measurement. financial assers ang classified in four categones:
+  Fanancil assets at amoetised cost (debl instruments);
+  Fnanclal assets at falr viatue through OC1 with recycling of cumulatve gains and losses (debt mstruments):

+  Finannal assets designated an fair value theeagh OO with ro recyding of cumulanve gans and losses wpon
derecagnition {equity instrumems); and
«  Fmancial assets an fair valse through profit or ioss,

fo)  Fingnclal ossets at omotised cost (debr instruments)
This category is the most relevant to the Group and the Company. The Croup and the Company measwes financial
assets at amortised cost If bath of the folowing conditions are met:
= The finantial asset is held within a business moded with the objective to hold financial assets in onder 10
codect contractual cash flows: and

= The contractual terms of the financlal asset give rise on specified dates to cash tlows that are solely paymenits
of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D.)
{1 Financial assets [cant'd.)
{ii} Subsequent measurement (cont'd.)
fa)  Financiol assets of amontised cost {debt Mrtruments) feontd,)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsaquently maasured using the effective interest rate [ERT) method
and afp subject 10 impairment. Gains and lossos are recognised in profit of loss whan the asset is derecognesed,
modified o impained.

The Group's and the Company's Tinandial assers ar amortised cost inchude receivabios and amounts due from
Assorkates and joint ventures meluded under other noen-ogrent Hinaneksl assers.

b Financiol assees designoted of fair wolse though 00 fegquity instraments)

Uptn inétinl recognition. thie Group and the Company can elect to chdly irevocably its eguity investments as
eguity instruments designated at fair value throwgh OC when They meet the defirton of equity under MFRS
132 Financial Wstruments Presentation and are not held for trading, The classiication is determined on an
InSIFEmenT-by=inswument basis,

Galrs and losses on these financial 352015 Se nowvi recyeled 1o profit or ks Dhidends e recognised o other
incame in e statement of profin or loss when 1e right of payment has been cstablishod, except when the
Group and the Company benefits from such proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of the finandal asset, in
which case, such gains are recorded in OCL Eguity instruments designated at Tain value through 00 are not
subject to impairment assassment,

T Ceoup and the Company elected to cBssify imsorably its non- isted squiny imestmaents under this category.

e} Flnancinl assets ar folr vele through profit or loess

Financial assets at falr value through profit or less include financial assets held for trading, financial assets
desigmated upon initial recognition at fai value theough profit or loss, or financlal assets mandataey reguired 1o
b measured a1 fair value, Financial assers are classified as held for trading If they are aoquired for this penpose
of selling or repurchasing iy the near term, Dervatves, incdudng separated embedded derivatives, ane alsa
classified s held for tradng unbess. they are designated as effective hedging instrumants. Finandial assets with
cash flows that are not salely payments of prncipa and interest are classified and measured at fair value through
profit or loss, imespective of the business model Natwithstanding the critenra for debt instruments to be dassified
at amortised cost or at fair value through OO, as described above, debt instruments may be designated at fair
wvalye through profit or kass on inftial recognition if doing 5o eliminates, or significantly reduces, an accounting
mismanch.

Financial assets at far value through profit or loss are camied n thie statement of financial position at falr value
with net changes in fair value recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

This category nchudes dervative instruments and listed equity Investments which the Gioaup and the Compaiy
had nat irmevocably elected to classify at fair valee through OCL Dividends on equity Investments are also
recogrised as ather income in the statement of pratit or kss when the right of payment has heen established.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGMIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D.)
{r) Financial assats (cont’d.)
{ii} Subsequent measurement [cont'd.)
fe)  Finneial pasets at fair vilue theough profit or loss (eontd,)

A derivative embadded in a hybrid contract, with 2 tinancial liability or mon-financial hast, is separated from the
hast and accounted for a5 a separate derivative it the econemic characteristcs ond risks are not closely related
to the host a separate Instrument with the same terms as the embedded desvative would meet the definition
ol & derivative and the hybrid contract is not measened at Lair value through pofit or loss, Bmbaddiad derivatives
are measured at Taer value with chisges in fair valee recogrised in profit or loss. Reassessment only oocurs if
there is erher 3 change in the teems af the contract that significantly mndities the cash flaws that would
atherwise be required or a reclassification of a finascial asset outof the far valua through predit or loss categony,

A derivative embedded within o hybrid contract comtalnirg a financkal asset best s not sccounted for separately.
The financial asset host together with the embedded desivative is requined to be classified in it entirety s a
financial assat a1 fair value theaugh profic o loss,

{iii} Derocognition

A tinpngial asset (oF, whie applicabile, 5 part of o financial asset o part of & group of samilyr financial asats) B

primarily derecoegnised (i.e. removed from the statemems of finandal position) whern

= The righs v recene cash Tiows Trom Thi 35581 heve sxprned; oF

= The Group and the Company have transterned its nghts 1o receive cash Tlows from the asset or has assumed an
oblgation to pay the recelved cash flows in full without material delay 1o 3 third pary wnder a ‘pass-through’
arangeent; and sither (4} the Group and the Company haye transtecrad substantinlly S the rigks and rowands
of the asset. of [b) the Group and the Comgany have nesther trarvfomad nor retaned substantially all the risks
@l rewards of the asset, but hes transferred control of the asset.

When the Croup and the Company have ransterred (15 rights 1o receive cash flows from an asset or has emered imo
A pass-through arrangement, [t evaluates i, and 10 what extent, i has retained the iisks and rewards ef ownershige
When it has nelther wansferred nar retained substantizéy all of the risks and rewards of the asser, nor ranstered
ot of the asset, the Group and the Company continues 1o recognise the transtemred asset 1o the eatent of s
contiwing imvebsemaent, In that case, the Group and the Company also recognises an associated habilty. The transfermed
asset and the assodated Kabilty are measured on a basls that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group and
the Company have retained.

Continuing Imalvement mat takes e form of a guarentes over the rans’emed assel s meassed at the lowar af
thie origenal carrying amoant of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group and the Company
could be required o repay,
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£. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D.)

{3} Impairment of financial assets

The Group and the Company recagnise an alowance for expected credit losses ("ECLST) for all dett instruments not held
at s v thisiagh prafit oF less. ECLS a6 baced on this dif ferends betwenn thie contractual cash thows due in aeordance
with the cortract and all thecath fiows that the Group @nd the Company expect to receive, discounted at an approximation
of the odginal effective interest rate. The expected cash flows wil incude cash flows from the sale of collateral held or
ather credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.

ECLs are recognised In bwo stages. For credit exposeres. foe which there has net been a significant crease in credit rlsk
since indtial recagnition, ECLS ane provided for credit iosees. that resudt frem default events that are passible within the
rext 12-manths ("a 12-menth ECL) For those credit exposures for wihich thare has been a significant increase in credit
fik since initial recognition, & loss alkswance is requited Tof credit losses expected over the remaining [e of the expesura,
irreapective of the tming of the defaul (" ifetime ECLY).

For trade receivables and contracl assets, the Group and the Company appses 4 simplified appreach in caloutating ECLS.
Thevefore, the Group and the Company does not track changes in credit nsk, but instead recognises a kss allowance based
on lifeteme ECLs at each reportng date. The Group and the Company has establshed a provision matrx that s based on
its hestarical credt loss exporionce, adjustod for forward-4eoking faciors specific to the debiors and the economic evironment.

Thie Graup and the Campany consiiders o Ninancial 5481 in default when contractual payments are 90 days past due.
Howewer, in certain cases, the Group and e Company may alsa comsider a linancial #5561 10 De in delault when inteimal
or extemal Information indicates that the Group and the Company is uniiely to recelve the outstanding conractua amounts
i FLill befare 1aking inta Aocount amy crait anhaneamants nold By the Graup and the Company. A financial Asset i< wriren
oft whon there & no reasonable expectation of moovaring the contraciual cash flows

Further disciosunss relating o impasment of financial assets ane also provided in the following notes:

Mote
Trade and othar receivables 19
Financial risk maragemaent objectives and policies 36

{t} Contract cost assets

The Croup capitalises sa%s Commissions as costs o obtain @ contract with a customer when they are incremental and
expected ta be recovered over mare than a year. The Group expects to recover these costs in the future thraugh
telecommunication services revenue eamed from the customer, The Growg also capitalises the expenditure on assets such
@5 WalEr MainG/Sewers of New [oNnecTions reating to contracts &5 they ae inqurred 1o fulfil the contract &nd ane expected
to e received over move than one year.

fales commissions ae amortised an 2 stralght-line basis over the tenm of the specific contract to which the cost refates
to. Amartisation of contract costs are Included as part of direct cost within “Cost of sales” in the incoma Statement. While,
the espenditure on as5e1s are reated as cost of sales when the contracs 15 complete
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D.)
{t) Contract cost assets (cont'd.)

An imparrmient loss % recoghised to orofit or loss o the extent that the carrying amount of the contract cost asset
repegrsed extpids the iempning smount of conslderation 1hat thi Group oxpects 16 mecshe fof the spesilic coRtract Mhat
the cost relates to kess additionad costs regured to completa the spacific contract

{u) Contract asscts and liabilities

Contract assid & the vight (o comaderdtion in exchange Tor giods and senaces that e Group has rasleried Lo ostoimer©
IF the Group transfiers goods oF Services 1o 4 customes befone The customes pays consideration or bafere payment is due,
M CONIFACT @550 T i% recogmed for hie eamed considemian hat 5 condinanal. Contrdt A5sets ane subject To mpairmant
aesessmant based on the BIL modal,

Contract lishility |3 the unsatistied chligation by the Group 10 transler goods o services to a customer for which 1he Croup
hirs recelved eonsideration (or an ameunt ol consideration i3 due) from the customer. If & customer pays consideration
before the Gioup ransiers goods o SEMVICES 1o (e custemer, a contract iability is reccgnised when the payment is made
or the payment is due (whichever is earber), Contract Fabilites ane recognised as revenue when the Group perfarms under
tha emracy

(v} Derivatives financial instruments and hedging activities

Dertvatives ane initially recognised at fair value on the date o dervative contract & éntered into and ane subseguentiy
me-medied af thes fak value. The methed of recognising the resuliing gain or loss depends on whether the derivative
I5 deslgnatec as a hedging instrument, and if so, the nature of the item being Redged. The Group deslgnates cerain
derivaties as either:

i) Hedges of the fair vilug of recogniced assors or liabdtios or & firm commetment (Eair walue hedge): or

fily  Hedges of a particular risk associated with a recognised asset or kability or a highly probable forecast transaction
feash flow hecga):

The Croup documents at the meption of the tramsaction the relationship betwesn hedging instruments and hedged items,
a5 well a5 its risk managemant objectives and strategy for undertakang various hedging vansactions. The Group also
documents (15 Assesament, both at hedge inception and on an ongoing hask, af whether the detvatives that ane used in
hiedging transactiors are highly effective in offsetting changes in fair values or cash flaws of hedged tems

The far values of varlous dervative irstruments used for hedging purposes are disclaosed in Note 20, Movements on the
hedging resarve in other comprenensive ingome are shown in Note 27, The full fair value of a hedging derivative is dassified
@ @ non-(ument asset o lability when the remaining hedged item s mare than 12 months, and 35 3 CUment asset or
lianility when the remaming maturity of the hedged item Is less than 12 months Trading derwatives ane classified as a
curreent asset or Hability.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D.)
(vl Derivatives financlal lstruments and hedging activities (cont'd.)

(i) Fair value hedge

Chanagis in the Fair value ol dervatives that are designoted and guality &% fair value hedQes ane recosdiad in the pealit
ar kass, together with any changes in the fair value of the hedged asset or liablity that are attributab’e to the hedged
risk. The Group arly applies fair value hedge accounting for hedging fued interest rsk on borrowings. The gain or
fass relating 1o the effective partion of interest rate swaps hedging fixed rate borrowings & recogrised in profit or
Fass walhin Tananoe costs. Thee gain or loss redating o thie BwelTeclive poroan & ecognisied in profit of less within
‘athEr gaine/[losees) - met. Changes in the fair value of the hedge fied rate Borrowings STtrbutalie 1o INterest rane
fisk ari Eecognsed N pratt of [oss within ‘Tnance coses

Il the hedga no longer meats the oriteria for hedge atcounting, the adjustment to the carrying amount of a hedged
iterm for which the effective interest method is used is amortised to profit or loss over the perod to maturity,

{ii} cCash flow hedge

T Falr wabuia changies on the affective poetion of the dervatives that ane destgrated and guality a5 cash o hedges
ara recognised In other comprahersiva income. The gan or [oss relating 1o tha inaffective partion is recognised
immediately in prafit or loss.

Amounts acowmtated in equity ane reclassilied to prafit or loss in the financial perieds when the hedged item atfects
prodit or bess [for example, when the forecist sale that is hedged tabes place). When the forecast transaction that s
nedged results In thea recognition of a non-financial asset (for exampole, imventory or fixed assets). the gains and losses
praviaushy defermed in eguity Ao rarstered fram enulty and ncluded in the inital measurement of the cost of the
st The deterrad amounts ane ultirately mdagaked [ cast of goods dald in the case of irventany o (R deproziation
in the case of property. plant and equipment.

When a hedging Instrument expires of is sobd, or whin a hedge no lenger mests the criterla for hedge accounting,
any cumulative gain or 1o5s existng in eguity at that time remains in equity and is recognised when (he forecast
transaction s ultimately recognised In the profit o loss. 'When o lorecast ransaction s no lnger expected To oocur,
the cumulative gain o loss thit was reported in pguity s immediately Transferred to profit or loss
{w] Inventories
Imventories are stated at the: lower af cost and net realisable value.

Cos1 5 determings on the weighted average or first in, first our basis and includes the cost of purchase and osher costs
Incurmed in bringing the Inventories to thelr gresent location and condition.

The oost of fineshed goods and work-in-progress conslsts of raw materials, direct labour, other direct charges and an
approgriate proportion of production overheads (based on nosmal operating capacity).

Fuel angd diesel ol held for genesation of eleciicily are not wiitten down below cost il the electricty generated is expected
to obtain a gross margin at or abowe cost. Cost for this purpasa Includes the applicable costs required to enabée the fual
and dhesel oll to be used tor the generation ot electricity
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D.)
{w) Inventories (cont'd.)

Irvefitorsss for oil trading are acquired with the purpaose of sefiing i the néar future and generating 4 prafit frem fuctuations
I price. Thedae are at lair value l24g costs 19 sell, with changes in Fai value less cetts 16 sel mecaghred in the Intome
Statement in the peviod of changa.

The cost of developed properties comprises costs assotiated with the acguisition of land. direct costs and appropriate
progoriss of coemmoen costs.

Mot realisable value is the ectimated selling price in he ordinary course of business, [ess the costs of complation and
applicatle varable selling expenses

{x] Property development costs

Propenty develspment cests comarise all eosts that are directly srtributable 1o devielopment actiities or that can be sBocated
on @ reasonable Dasis 1o such sClvities, Fropery development Costs e recogised wisen inounned

Whan tha financial outcoma of the development activity can be reliably estimated and the sl of The develspment unit
is atfected, property development revenue and expenses are recognised in profit or loss by reference 1o the stage of
complition of development actwities at the reperting dote In accerdance with MFRS 15: Revenue from Contracts with
Customers. The stage of completon is determined by the proportion that property development Costs intumed for work
performed 1o cate to the estmated total property development costs,

Winera the finpncial outcame of i development Actsaty cannot be relably estimated, property deselopment revenue is
recognised only 1o the extent of preperty development costs Incurred that ks probable will be recoverable, ard property
dovelapment cotls on proparties sold are recognised as an espanse in the pared in which they ane incurmed.

Any expected loss on 3 development project, Including costs 10 be Incurred over the defects Halibty perled, Is recognised
&5 @ expense immediately

Property fovalopment costs not recognised as an dxpense are recognised a5 an aset, which is measured at thee lower af
cost and net realisable vaiue,

Whera revenue recognised in the profit o loss excead billings to purchasers, the balande s shown s contract assels
fwithin current assets), Whers biings to purchasers excesd revenue recagnised in the profit or loss, the balance Is shown
& contract lablliges fwithin current llabties).

{y¥] Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivaients consist of cash and bank oalances, bank cverdrafis, deposits held at call with financial instifebicns
and highly liguid investrments whiach hive an insigniticant risk of changes in value For the purpose of the Statements af
Cash Fiows. cash and cash eguivalents are presented net of bank overdrafts.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D.)
{z) Share capital

Ordiruaiy shares are eduity mstruments and recorded at the proceeds recenved, net of diecily atmributable incremental
Trafsartion Los1s,

Dradends on ordinary shares are accounted for in shareholders equity a5 an appropriation of retaned samings and acorued
a5 liahility in the financial year in which the obiigation to pay is established.

{aa) Treasury shares

Whesre thee Comgarty purchases (s own shares, the consideranion paid, incluckng any directly atrbutable neremental costs,
net of tax 5 deducted from equity attrbutable 1o the owners of the Company as treasury shares unt® the shares are
cancelled, reissued,

Should such shisves be cancelled, the costs of the teasury dhares ane spplied n the reduction of the pralits otherwise
available for diswiution & dvicends. Should such shares ane subseguently reissusd, any consideration receved. net of
any directly attrbutable incremental ransaction costs and the related tax effects, is included in equity atributaoke 1o the
owners of the Campany.

Where the trexary shares are subsequently dissrbuted as dividends to shareholders. ihe costs of the treasury shares on
the origind purchase are applied in the reduction of the funds othenwise available for distribution s dividends,

{ab) irredeemable Convertible Unsecured Loan Stocks ("ICULS")

The KULS are regarded 4 compeund @siruments, consisting af a liabiity companent and an equity companent. At the
date of lssup, thie fair value af th latslity compsnant B estimated uvsng the phivalling market intenost rate far & similsr
instrumant, The ditferance batween the procesds of issue of the ICULS and th fair vatue #ssagnod o the habilitg companent,
representing the conversion option |5 included in eguity, The llabilty component is subsequently stated a1 amontised cost
using the effective interest rate methed until extingushed on conversion or canceliation, whist the walue of the equity
companent is nol adjusted in subsequent perods, Atiributable tramsaction cosis are apportoned and deducied cinectly
from the Bablity and eouity companents based on their carrying amouns at the date of s

Under the effective interest rate method, the interest expense on the kabillicy companent is calculated by applying the
prevalling market interest rate for @ similar non-comartibe instrument at the date of issue. The didference between this
amaunt and the interest paid is added 1o the arrying amount of The ICULS

The vaise of the conversion option is nat adiusted in subsequent periods. except In times of ICULS convers.on nto ondinary

shares, Upon conversion of the instrement infe ordinary shares, the amount credited to share capital is e aggregate of

the amounts classifed within kability and equity at the time of conversion. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.
{ac) Deferred income

The deferred income s in relation to assets transferred from customers in respect of services which are yet to be provided.
Such amounis are recorded a5 Rabdities i the Statements of Finanelsl Position and are amonised (o ihe Income Stalemesnts
ower the expected useful economic lives of the related assats
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D.)
{ad) Bonds and barfawings

Bonds and bosrowings ae initialy redognised based on the proceeds recehved, net of transaction costs inturred Subseguenthy,
bonds and bomoimings are stated At amortisad cost using the alfectve yield mathod; any ditfefence batween procesds
(net of transaction costs) and the redemption value is recognised in the profit or lass owver the periad of the bonds and
borravargs,

Intefest relating (o o firandal instrument dessified s o Bability i oeported within Tinaoce oost in U income Statement,

Honds and borowings ace classifiog as current llabikiies uniscs 1he Group and the Company have an unconditional right
to defer senbement of the Rability for at least 12 manths after the reporting date

Borrowing cost incurred to finatce the construction of proserty, slant and equipment that meets the definition of quasfying
aset ate capitalised as part of the cost of the assets during the pericd of time that is required 10 get ready the sset far
ins Intended use

{I} Finance leases - the Group as lessee
Leases of property, plant and egupmant whene the Group assumes substantally all rsks and rewards. incidental 1o

ewnership ol the lemed adsets ore classified o35 finance leases.

The leased asets and e coniespanding lease labilities (ret of finance charges) under inamce leases ane recognised
on the balance sheet as plant and equipment and borrosings respactivaly, at the Inception of the leases based on
thie inser of Thee fair value of the leased AsseTs and The present vl of The mirimim Base [aymems.

Each hease payment i5 apporticnad babween the finance sxpense and the reduction of tha autstanding lease Babilicy.
The finance expense is recogrased in profit o loss on a tasis that reflects a constant penicdic rate of interest on the
finance lease labillty.

{liy Operating leases - the Group as lessee

Lieasps whore substantiady all raes and rwadds inCidantal to pwnership ae retaingd by the Bssors e Classited as
cperating beases. Payments made under operating eases (natof any incantivees received from the lessors) are recognised
in prafit er loss on a stralght-ling basis ever the pericd of the lease.

{ill} operating leases - the Group as lessor
Leases of Invesiment propermies whene ihe Group retains substarmially all rsks and rewards incdental 1o ownesship
are dassified as operating IFases. Rental iIncome from operating leases (net of any ncentives given to e lessees)
Is recognized In profit or loss on a stralght-Ene basis over the lease term
{af) Grants and contributions

Grants and contributions are benefits recelved in respect of specific qualifying expendimure, and imestment tax credits and
tan benefits In respect of gualifying property, plant and eguipment. These are released to the pofit o loss ower the
expected economi useful kves of the related asats.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D.)
{aq) Provisions

The Graup recagnises provsaans when it has a present legal or constructive obligation arising & a result of a past event,
and It 15 prabable that an outflow ol econtimic besedits will e mequired 1o settle the obligaion snd a reliable es1emite can
be made. The recording of provisions reguires the agplication of judgements abaut the ultimate resolution of thase
obligations. As & result, provisions afe reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the Group's current best
estimate,
{ah} Financial llabilities
(i) Inmitial recognition and measurement
Finarcial liabilities are classified. at initial recognition, as finandial labilities at fair value throogh profit or kass or at
amartised cost, as approgriate,

The Groups and the Company's financial lisbilities include trade and ather payables. amounts due o refated parties,
bonids and borrowings and defivative Tinancial instaments.

(ii} Subsequent measurement
The messuremant of finandial lablites depends on ther classibeation. as descrbod beloew:

fa) Freancial fobiities of foi volue throwgh prefit er less
Financial haodties at fair value theough prafit or loss include financial liabilites held for trading and financial
labdirles designated wpan inktlal recognition as at falr value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities are classified as hede for trading If they are incuried for The purpese of repurchasing in the
near torm. This category also includes dorlvative finandial instruments entend inte by the Company that are not
designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as cefined by MFRS 9. Separated embeddes derbvthves
are alse classified as hetd for rrading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments,

Gains or fesses on lisbiives held for wading are recognised in the profit or loss.

Financial llabilities dessgnated upon initlal recognition at falr value theoamgh profit or loss are designated at the
initial date of recognition, and ondy if the criteria in MFRS 9 are satisfied. The Groug and the Company have not
designatad any financial liability as at fair value throwgh profit or loss.

) Flnancil fabifities o omorsed cost

This. 15 th CATEROrY MoST relevant to the Group and the Company, After initiz recogniton, all financal Kablities
are subsaquently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gairs and losses are recognised in profit
or lzss when the labiities are derecognised as well &5 throwgh the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is caloulated by taking into accownt any discount or premium on acguisiton and fees o costs
that are an integral part of the EIR. The ER amorisation i included as Ninance costs in the of pofit o loss.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D.)
{ah) Financlal liabilities (cont'd.)
{ili) Derecognition

A Tingncial Rability is darecognisad whan the abfigation undaer the lability & discharged or cancefiad o expires, When
an axisting financial liability is replaced by anather from the same lendar on substantialy different termes, o the terms
of an existing lishility are substantially maeditied, such an exchange or meditication is treated as the derecognition of
the original liability and the retogniton of a new Kability. The ditference in the respectve canying amows is recognised
it e profit or loss

{al} Foreign currency
{i} Functional and presentation currency
items Included in the Tinancial statements of the Group are mexsured using Tha currency of the primary economic

emviranment in wihith the entity operates (the “functioral curmency”). The consolidated fnancial Statements ane
presanted i Ranggit Malaysia which is also the Company's functional and presentation currendy,

(i) Forelgn currency transactions

Fargign cumency transactions are tramsted into the funcrional cutrency uting the exchange rates pravailing a1 the
dates of the tranwictions. Fareign exchange gaing and losses reslting frem the settlement of such ransactions and
fram the transatsen a1 year-end oechange rates of monetary assets and labilinies denominated in farcign curmences
are recagnised in the peallt or loss

(i} Group companles

The results and financial position of al the Group entives (none of which has the cumency of a hypenntlateonary
economy) that have & functlonal cumercy ditferent from the presentiation currency are translaied into presentation
currency as follows:

+ rsets and labilitles for each statement of financial position presented are transiated at the cigsng rate at the
date of that statement of fimancia position:

+ Incomi and expenses for each income statements ane translated at average exchange rates: and
+ &l resulting exchange differences are recognised as separate components of other comprehensive income.

Dn consohcaton, exchange differences arising from the translation of the net nvestment in foresgn aperations ane
talen to sharcholders equity. When a foreign operation i partially disposed of or sold, exchange differences that
were recorded in equity are recognised in the profit or loss as part of the gain or loss on disposal.

Goodwill ard Fair value adpstments arising on the scquesition of a foreign entity on or after 1 july 2011 are treated
a5 assets and liabilities of the foreign entity and transiated at the dosing rate. For acguisition of forelgn entitles
comipleted prior to 1 |uly 2011, goodwill and fair value adjustments continued to be recorded at the exchange rate at
the respective date of acquisitions. This & in accordance 1o the adoption of MFRS 1.
{aj) Segment reporting
Operating segments are reported In a manner consistent with the intermal reparting provided to the chisf cperating
deckon-maker wha is responsible for allecating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D.)
{ak) Financial guarantee

Fmancial guarantee contracts are contracts that require the Group and the Compay to make specified payments 1o
ramlirsn thie halder foe & loss it ncues because a spacifiad debitor tads 1o make payments when dus, @ cardance with
the tesms of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantes contracts ane recognised a8 4 financlal lEsbifity at the time the guarantee is issued, The liability is initialy
masured o lar value and subseguently of the higher of e anoel detenmined insccordance wilh e expected credit
lirss model under MFRS 9 Financia Instruments' and the amount nitially recognised less cumulative amount of incame
roanised in aceoriance with the principles of MFRS 15 Reverie Bm conirs s with oustomers, whens Approfreans,

The falf value ol finangial guarantees is determined a5 the present valua of the dilference in net cash Mows batween the
contractual payments under the debt instrument o the payments that would be required without the guarantes, or the
estimated amount that would bie payabilie to 4 third party fior assuming the obigations.

Where financial guarantees in relation to loans of payables of sutsadianes ane proviced by he Comgany Tor no compensation,
the falr values are accounted for a5 contributions and recognised as part of the cost of investment in subsidiares

[al} Comtingent liabilities and contingent assets

The Gooup 2nd the Company da Not recognise a contingent liability but disciose it existence in the financial statements,
expepl in @ business combination

A cenringent liahsity is 4 mossible ohliganon that adses from past events whirse pxistence will be confirmed by wnceran
future events beyond the control of the Group and the Company or a present obligation hat is not recognised because it
is nat probable that an outfiaw of recources will be required 1o settie the ciligaticn Whan a change in the pobabesty of
an cutflow of economic fesources accurs and the outflow s probabile. it will then be recognised as a provision.

A tontingent asset is 3 possible asset that arses from past events whose exstence will be confirmed by ungertain future
events beyond the control of e Croup and the Compary. The Group and the Company do DO Fecopnise contingeant assets
but disclose ther peistence whers inflows of econamic benefits are probable, but nat virually certain. When inflow af
ECONCMIC MeSaUrTes is viriually certain, the asset |5 recagnised.

In the acquisition of subsidiaries by the Group under a business combénation, the contingent lisbilities assumed are measured
initially at thelr fair value at the acquisition date, Imespective of the extent of any non-controlling interests.

The Lroup recognises separately. 1he contingent labilities of the acquerees as part of glocating the cost of @ business
combination where the falr values can be measured refiably. Where the fasr values cannot be measured reliably, the resulting
effect will be reflected in the goodwill ancing from the acquisitions.

(am) Offsetting financial instruments

Fimancial assets and liabilives are ofiset and the ner amount presented in the Statements of Finangial Positon when there
Is a legally enforceable right 1o offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basls, or realise
the asset and setile the liability simultaneously. The legaly erforceable night must not be contingent on futre events
and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankuptcy.
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3. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and she based on histodcs expatience and ather factors, ncdirfg axpectations
of future evants that are believed 1o be reasanable under The circumstantes.

Tha Group and the Company make estimates and assumptions conceming the future, The resulting accounting estimates wall,
by definitson, rarely egual the related actual results, The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a
materal adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilites within the next financial year are drecussed befow:-

(a) Fair value estimates for investment properties

Ths Cifcum CATTiies FWesTmant propsress ot fair vaiue, which mquines permnsive use of M0ounting es1amates and judgemants,
while sgnificant companents of fair value measurement were determined usang verifisble cbiective evidence, the amount
of changes i far value weuld differ if the Group uses different valuaticn mathodalogies. Any changes in fair value af
these ivestment properties wauld affect income statement.

{b) Estimated assessment of goodwill

Thee Group tests goodwill for mmpsimment annually, in accordance with its accounting pelicy, The recoverable amounts. of
cash generating units have been detarmined based on ainhor value-in-use of fair value loss cos1s to sell calculations. These
caculations require the use of esTimates as st out in Note 18 1o The financial statements,

(¢} Capitalisation policy of property, plant and equipment on infrastructure assets

Thee Infrastructure assets of the water and seweTage segment comprised cost aowred (o meel the devsoprent and
regulatory reqguiremant of the business and this includes employes and cvprhaad (0515 that are dinectly amrbomable 1o the
ranstructian of the asset,

Estimates and judgaments are involved in determining whather cost incureed, specitically employes and overhead costs.
meet the relevant criterla for capitalisation of property, plant and egupment.

{d] Estimated impairment of property, plant and equipment

Determining whethar the property, plant and eguipment e Fngaired requines an estimation of valkese in use of the proparty.
plant and equipment. The value in use caliulation requires the management to estimate the tuture cash flows and an
2ppropriate discount rate in order to caloulate the present value of future cash flows The management has evaluated
such estimates and Is confident that no allowance for iImpairment is necessany.

The Growp management follows its acoounting policy set cut in Note 2(k) In determining when property, plant and equipment
are considerad Impaired.

Impainment s recognised when events and circumstances indicate that these assets may be impaired and the carmying
amount of these assets exceeds the recoverable amounts. In determining the recoverable amount of these assets, certain
estimates regarding the cash flows of these assets are made.

163

418/628



EDINETOOOO
Oo0O0000000000000000000000(eo05821)
Oooooooa

YTL CORPORATION BERHAD

Notes to the Financial Statements
= 30 June 2019

3. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS (CONT'D.}
{e) Estimated useful lives of property, plant and egquipmant

The Group reviews the weelul Ives af its property, plant and equipment &t each reportng date and afy adjustments are
ulche Of & protpective Bass 45 changas in sccounting estimates. The vsaful lves o the plant and machinery afe sseded
periodicalty bazed on the conditions of 1ha plant and machinery, market conditions and other requlatosy requirements.
During the finantial year, the Group has revewed the operational conditions of the power gererators in multi utilites
business segment and revised the estimated useful lives of these plant and machinery from 25 ta 30 years with effect
Trom 1 puty 2018 1o better reflect e economic wselhul ves, This change s aryo msEre with ndustry standaods in Singapoe.

(1} Assessment of lower of cost and net realisable value

The Group recognises mventorizs at bower of cost and net realisable value

Significant udgement ts required in determining the net realisable vslue which & the estimated selling price in ordinary
course of business less the estimated cost 1o sale,

(g} Assumptiens used in determining the pest-employment benefit obligations

The present value of the post-employment benett obligations depends on a rumber of factoms that are determined on
an actusiial basls using a number of assumptions. The assumptians used in determining the net costincoma are gisclosed
in Note 33 1o the fmancial statements. Any changes in these assumptions will Bnpact the carrying amount of pension
obligations.

{h} Assessment on allowance for impalrment of trade receivables of water and sewerage

At each rapoeting dite, the Group assesses whether thens 15 ahjective evidence that trade receivabiles of the Group hove
boon mpaired. Impairment kess is calousated By appiying a porcontage 085 e based on historical cash collection trands
and economi trends and farward looiong forecasts assumptions, whch ane subjective in nature. Such provisons ane adusted
periodically to reflact the actual and anticipated Impairment.

{iy Consolidation of entlties in which the group holds less than 50%

Management corsders that the Group has de facto control of Starhill Global REIT even though it has less than S50% of
thie voting rights. The Sroup is the magaeity shareholder of Stamill Glabal REIT with 3 36.46% (2018 36.46%) rquity

interest, while all other sharehciders individually owm less than 5% of its equity shames except a sharehelder holds 7.54%
{2018 7.58%.) There is no history of other shareholders forming a group 1o exercse their votes collectively.

{l) Construction contracts

The Croup has sgnificant engaing constructlon contracts: For these construction confracts. revenue is recognised over
fime by reference to the Group's ogress towards compieting the constraction. The measure of progress is dememaned
based on the proportion of contract costs incurred to date to the estimated tof@ contract costs {input methoc™).

Management has (o estimate the mofal contract costs 1o complete, which ase used in the input method to determene the
Group's recognition of construction revenue. When it is probable that the total contract costs will exceed the total construction
ievenue, a provision for onerous contracts is recognised immediately,
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS (CONT'D.)
([} Construction contracts (cant'd.)

Sigriticant judgement is used 10 estimale these tatal contract costs o camplete, In making these eslimates, managament
Ras pelied an The expertice of tha intermal experts to determine the progress of the condtructan and alka on past exparente
of complated projecis

{k] Revenue recognition from acerued income

Thie widilled oo sorsal from melened water services of e waler and sewerdge segment reguines an @dimalion of
thi amewnt of unbilled charges a1 the pediad end, This S calculated using sysoem penerated information Dased on Mewous
CUSTOMET VLT L,

REVENUE
Group Company
2019 2018 2019 2018
RM'000 RM'000 RM'D00 RM'O00
Rewenue comprise the folowing:
Feemaeeriue fioain coentracts with custiomers 17,153,373 14,865446 291 84
Fevenue from other souTces 894,149 G4, 701 548,325 520,138
Total evenue 18,047,528 15,890,147 548,616 G30.422

{a) Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers and other sources:

Group Company
2019 2018 2019 2018
RM'O00 RM'DDOD RM'D00 RMOO00
Utilities
Sale ol efeciriginy 6,705,782 5783116 -
Eate of clean water, treatment and disposal 3,432,281 3,350,384 -
of wasie wator
Sale of steam 211,048 190,121 -
Broadband and telecommunicatlions reverue 863,289 TGA534 -
Others 154,832 187.303 -
11,367,232 10,268,458 - =
Cement manufacturing & trading
Sale of cemant and related products 2.655.217 2595,830 -
DOthers 19,035 21858 -
2,674,252 2618658 -
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4. REVENUE (CONT'D.)
{a) Disaggregation of pevenus from contracts with customers and other sources: (cont'd.)

Group Company
2019 2018 2019 2018
RMODO RMODD RM OO0 RM'O0O
Construction
Construction contracts revenue 1,219.499 386,467 - -
Hotel operations
Hotel room and food and beverages 1,195,859 1087765 - -
Others 27.292 9,334 -
1,223,151 1,097,099 - -
Property
Property developrrend and sale of completed
proprTies 435,872 98,973 =
Lale of land held for property development 9,050 230,385 -
Othars 19,546 18838 - -
464,468 348,190 - -
Information technology & e-commerce
related business
Media and advertizsing services 3.669 A4.363 - -
Oihers 153 a8 - -
3822 A,46% - -
Management services & others
Opefation and maintenance services 159,562 191810 = -
Foid arm Dievisrages operationg 21,632 20,804 - -
Othars 19,761 8453 291 284
200.955 221067 291 2684
17,153,379 14,965 446 291 ]
Revenue from other sources
Rental income 639,938 B44.374 - -
Interes] ncome 224,804 244,238 G61.056 B 141
Dividends incame 29,407 36,089 4B87.269 AR0.897
694,149 Q24,701 548,325 LEIRE |
Total revenue 18.047.528 15890147 548,616 530422
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4. REVENUE (CONTD.)
(b} Timing of revenue recognition for revenua from contracts with customers:
Group Company
2019 2018 2019 2018
RM'OOD RM'DOD RM'DDD RM 000
- @t a point in time 8,681,719 7.214 BO7 - -
- over time B.471.660 7750639 291 284
17,153,379 14,565,446 291 284
5. COST OF SALES
Included in cost of sales are the fallowing:-
Graup
2019 2018
RM'O00 RM'OOO
Cost of iventonies £2.043,891 1.579,741
Compslruttion contracts costs 1,027,401 JaL4TE
Enegy {0515 6,748, 448 5522534
Property develcoment costs 17.423 33409
6. FINAMNCE COSTS
Group Company
2019 2018 2019 2018
Naote RM'O00 RM'000 RM'000 RMOO0O
Interest Experse
- Bonds B96.991 935,065 115.070 15040
= Borrewings 852,637 NoE24 60, BED 59,280
Post-employment benafits obligations 18,682 27947 -
1.768.310 LE77.676 175,950 174,320
Less Amaunts captaled s
- Property development cosis 22 [12.463) [10,344) -
- Progeery, (ant and equipmant 11 (B.348) [22.759) =
Interest expense of Tinancial
liabilities carried at amortised cost 1,747,499 1644573 175,950 174,320
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7. PROFIT BEFORE TAX

Group Company
2019 2018 2019 2018
Hote RMO00 RHMDOD RH"OOO RM'00D
Profit before tax Is stated after
charging {other than those disclosed
in Mote 5 & 6 to the
Financial Statements):-
Amaortsation of contract costs 23 11,569 21113 -
Amartesatian of intangible assets 18 10,806 0565 - -
Auditors’ remuneration
- statutory audid
= Current femancial year 10,098 9,780 244 240
- under provision in prior firancial year S | a4 -
- others 727 1,777 14 14
Bad dedirs written off
- re¢eivables 5.552 5082 - -
Cepreclation of property, plant and eguipment 11 1,497,585 1538709 BES 1435
Directars’ remuneration
= Simolurnents 73,297 9L990 4,896 1413
- fees 2.206 2817 848 665
- benefits in kind 587 606 - -
Hiring of plaat ard machingy 15,059 11.221 - :
Impairrent losses on
- amount due from related parties 34 - - -
= gevelopment expenditure 13 1,080 6,249 - -
= goadwill 18 - f=[c4] - -
- recejwables - nat of reversal 19 155,134 73,687 - -
- investments 17 - 1,307 - 958
- IMVESIMENT in as50ciates - A28 - -
- investment in joint veniuwe 16 - 3.388 - -
- property, plant and equipment 1n 4,347 5582 - -
Imveniories wiitten down 77662 na9.299 = -
Loss on dispesal ot investment in subsidlany - - - TH
Loss on foreign exchange - net
= realised 23,620 12893 - 2622
- unrealised 12,360 120,725 - .
ket fair walue loss on defvatives 36,074 - - -
Property, plant and equipment written off 1 26,793 52891 - -
Provision for kabiities and charges 34 7.520 5582 - -
Rental of land and bullgings 188,442 180,419 931 a57
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PROFIT BEFORE TAX [CONTD.
Group Company
2019 2018 2019 2018
Hote RM'000 RM'000 RM'O00 RM OO0
And crediting {other than those
disclosed in Mote 4 to the
Financial Statements):-
Adiustment an fair value of vestment
popertios 12 13172 (#2700 -
Aaroetisatven of deferred inceme 4,579 3888 -
Amoctisation of grants and contributions n 15.973 20,100 -
Bad debts recoverad 4,187 1204 -
Gain'{loss) on dsposal of
- Investments - net - S84 - 580
- imvestment properties 3,709 4484 - -
- property, plnt and eqepment 4,820 20E13 (72)
Cain on foreign exchange - net
- realizad 6,868 10,397 1,983
- unrealized 121,930 121459 -
Gross dividend from queted investmenis
- within Malaysia 4 677 -
Hirirg incommse Trom plant, mehinery and
Equipment 29,916 32932 -

Interest income from firancia assets
measured at amortised cost

- fiwed depasits Be. 582 72,920 -
- others 4,134 3.095 -
Liguidated assats gamages nooms 29,243 8,11 -
Met fair value gainf{lossh on derivatives 16,093 15181} -
Net fair value gain/{lassh on investments 17 G2.507 [27.382) 1.288
Rental imcome

- other properties 11,657 22541 -
Write back of Impairment koss on

- progerty, phant and equepment 1 1,024 55,252 -
- CONMTECT A5sels 57 - -

Direct operating expenses from imeestment properties in respect of income and non-income generating properties of the Group
dwing the firancial year amounted 1o RM116. 825,000 (2016 RM1156,755,000) and RM201.4732,000 (20158; R82.000], respectively,
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7. PROFIT BEFORE TAX (CONT'D.)
Directors’ remuneration

Cedails of the total remuneration of each Deector of the Company recehed Trom YTL Corparation Berhad Group of Companies,
categorisad into Appropniatg companants e a8 Tokows

Estimated
Defined Share meney value
cantribution based of beselits
Fees  Salaries Banus plan  payments Others i i Total
RHD0O RM000 RM000 RMQ00 RM000 RM000 RM000 RM'000
Group - 2019
Executive Directoss
Tan 5 Dt {06 Frangs Yeoh Sock Ping.

CBE PCE 06 14,265 2471 1486 L4 2 184 19834
Oarr’ Yeoh Seck Klan 193 6,987 L5 024 L4 i u3 10,856
Dt Y¥eoh Soo Min - 5341 Li4d 746 1114 1 43 6485
Datz’ ¥ieoh Seck Hog - 5,685 L 758 1114 1 ] 8,538
Dasg’ 56 Michas Weoh Sexk Siong = 5822 LR a2 1114 2 54 2,056
Batel Yieoh Soo Keng = 4844 Laz2 7 1114 4 i 7.934
D’ Mok Yieoh Seok Ksh - 5,089 1184 T 1114 3 b E 8123
Sredd Abdultah Bin Sped Abd Cacki - 648 120 42 b LA 1 B LooZ
Mon-Executive Ditectors
Eu Peng Meng & Lesiie Eu 647 . . - 3 E] - 677
[t (hong Kieap Thal @ Cheorg Kiap Ta 440 - - = e 29 = 469
Diatic’ Ahwmiadd Fuzad Bin Mohd Dabalan 410 - - - 24 - 434
Fid i 5hk 210 - - - - a - 218

2,206 48,635 10,361 6,225 7.909 107 587 75,090
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PROFIT BEFORE TAX [CONTD.)
Directors’ remuneration (cont'd.]
Estimated
Defined Share mency value
contributien based  of benelits
Fees  Salaries Bonus plan - payments In idnd Others Tatal
RH000 RHGOD AMO00D RM000 RHD00 RMO0D RM'000 RHDOD
Company - 2019
Executive Directors
Tan Sei ke (O} Francss Yioh 5ok Ping - - - G&7 - - GET
(BE. FLE

Drfrr” vieoh Seok Kian - 100 12 66T - - 78
Darte’ Yeh 5o Min - - - - &7 - - 667
Dt Yieoh Sk Horg - - - - &7 - - &7
Dt S kel Yol Sock Sy T - = - B67 = = 667
Dt Yieoh 500 Keng - - > % 667 + 5 667
Diste’ Mtk Wzoh Seck Kah . - - BET = " 667
Snd Kbt Bin Syl Abel Kade s - = 66 23 £ BE
Non-Execitive Directors
it P Mena) @ Leshe Eu e . - . - e 3 21
[Datn' Chory) Eeap Thal @ Choong Ceap Tal Fral - - 5 = o 15 235
Do’ Ahmad [Fisad Bin Mohd Dishatan 10 - - 13 223
Faaiz Bin Ishak 210 - - = - = a 218

B4a 100 - 12 4,735 - 43 5,744
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7. PROFIT BEFORE TAX (CONT'D.)
Directors' remuneration (cont'd.)

Estimated
Defined Share meney value
vontribution based of bemeliis
Fees Salaries Banus plan  payments Others I kind Tedal
AMD00 RMO00 RHDOD RMO0D RM000 REDOD RMO0D RH00D
Group - 2018
Executive Directors
The Lt Tan 5 Donef Sen (T} Yaoh Tiong Lay 4 E : - E : & B9
Tan S Datef (Dr) Francs Yeoh Sock Pirg,

CBE FCE Al 1200 LEE ] 2,080 15 l 178 HB0E
[iase ¥eoh Seok Kian LEH BSES 4563 L83 5 4 13 136M
Oats’ Yinoh Sea Hin 100 5369 4 1045 15 1 Lri] 10051
{ato Yeoh Senk Horg L 5666 3802 L1g a5 1 3 11348
Dt 5i Hichee! Yok Sock Siong 24l 5837 1815 L7 5 3 56 1.3
Da Yieoh Soo Keng 1% 4 BB 4548 1163 15 ] ] 11434
Diate’ Mark eoh Seot Kzh 24 S0 1552 985 5 i bE} oS
Sy Adwhullsh Bin Syed Abd (ade 1 ] (Fl L] 1 1 15 Logs
Hon-Executive Directors
Eu Peng Meng & Lithe Eu 180 a P
Dabs’ Chong Keap Trai @ Cheang Keap T2 200 n &0
[lzbe’ Abmad Fusad Bin Mohd Dakalan 240 a il
Fasi B lsnaik F.] 19 135

FA WA ESA Ll ] LEhik 2| 2308 \ar &0 9513
Estmaled
Defined Share maney value
wontribution based  of benefits
Fess  Salaries Benus plan  payments  inkind  Others Tetal
AMD0D 000 RH000 RMO00 RM000 RHDO0 RM000 RM'000
Company - 2018
Executive Directors
The late Tan 54 Banc” S { T} Yeoh Tiong Lay £ . L
Tan 5 Dutar {Dr] Frands Yeoh Sock P 5 15 45

CBE RCE
sty ¥eoh Seok Kan 50 155 - - 245
Dsr’ Yeoh Son Hin 50 155 - - 245
(s’ Yooh Seck Hang 5 1% . . 248
Datg’ S Michael aoh Sock Siong 50 154 - - 244
e’ Yech Soa Keng 50 134 . - 284
Dhis' Mk Yish S8t Kah ] 1 ELL]
Syed Abculizh Bin Sped Abd. Kade 5 19 . . i3
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Notes to the Financial Statements
- 30 June 2019

FROFIT BEFORE TAX [CONT'D.]

Directors’ ramuneration [cont'd.]

Defined Share meney value

contributien based of bemelits
Fees  Salaries Bonus plan payments in idnd Others Tatal
RH'000 RM'DOD RM'O0D RM 000 RH'DOD RMD0D RM'000 RHDOC

Compasy - 2018 [contd.)

Non-Executive Directors
Er Py M) @ Lesie Eu m . . B L
Dty Cher Keap Thal i Dheong Kesg Ta m - - - . - 13 E
Dt Ahmiad Fissad Sin Mohd Dshalan i . - . . - 11 Bl
Faalp Ben shax BO B =]
BES - - - L1381 - ;] 2104
Employee benefits expenses
Group Company
2019 Zola 2019 2018
RM'000 RM'0D0D RM'OOD RHOO0
Empioyees compernsation {excluding Drectors
remuneration)
Wages, salares and bonus 1.166.520 1,148,381 18.188 18.3%9¢
Defined contribution plan 79.857 106439 2.117 &17E
Defined benefit plan 64,699 (124,495) - -
Share option experses 14,944 3608 1932 n54
Qther benefits 28,907 EEAVES 1,190 L45e
1,354,937 1,168,045 23,427 22578
173
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Notes to the Financial Statements
- 30 June 2019

8. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Group Company
2019 2018 2019 2018
Hate RM'O00 RMO0D RHOOD RM'000
Cwrrent income tax
= Maloysian income tax 159,742 1460497 16.802 16,212
- Forelgn income: tax 146,015 214,997 - -
Cefemed tax 2 9,395 3774 - -
315152 364,868 16.802 16,212
Cugrent income tax
- Ciwrant financial year 307,876 350,304 18,980 18,393
Qwer pravision in prior fingsdal years (2.119) (20,210} (2.178) {2.181)
Ceferred tax
- Reloting fo arignation and reversal 9,395 3774 -
of tempoary diflenpnges
315,152 364,868 16,802 16,212

A reconciiation of income tax expense applicable to profit before tax at the statutory Income tax rate to iIncome tax expanse
at the effective income tax rate of the Group and the Company is as follows:

Group Company
2019 2018 2019 2018
RMOOD RMO0D RMOO0 RM'OOD

Profit belore tax 1.036.507 1335740 315,250 293,628
Taxation at Malaysian stauiory tax rate of 24% 248.762 320578 75,660 70471

(2018 245
hon-deductible expenses 340,440 498,235 58,031 449,952
Ineoami not subpect 1o 1ax (165.548) (280145} (114,711} {102.030)
Cifferent tax rabes in other countries nckding (20.647) (38,568%) - .

re-measuring of deferred tax®
Couble deductible expenses {3.467) [457) - -
Cwer provision in grior yems (2.119) (29.210) {2.178) {2.181)
Toax effect on shane of prafits of associatesd tﬂm] 9.1 ?‘C,I:- - -

COMPanses and joint ventures
Tax eifect of over provision of deferred tax 2,036 (A0} - -
Tan elfect ol uvecogrmed deferred tag msae® £4.358 [4.437) - -
Litilisatizn of rermvestment allowanges - (4.893) -
Income tax expense recognised

in profit or loss 315,152 364,868 16,802 16,212
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8. INCOME TAX EXPENSE ICONT'D.]

*  The fe-moosunomers of defevnodd ha in previous fisgnckal yeor of BMPES milion s due [0 0 reduction & Iie Lated Kingdom copanmiion bax rone
Jrom 18% te TP faffective from 1 Aned 20203 wes sobEmntieedy anocred on £ Sepramder A0TE This reduciion will redure M sussidarys futine
ERMTEI [t Chavpe orcorcingdy. TTe cefired e folvity of 30 june 2007 his been ooftusared bosed on T fone of 17% sl iovsively enacied o the
firancial peoy orded 30 fune 2017 Mo further cfwiged io the UK Corporalion Tax ratt sy andiunied o sulrsfoninaoly enactod i (he yoor [ 30
e 203

A SISy Of [0 CROU WS (RRniT RONeEr STOTUS fior @ pend of 10 years commencing havemoer S010 The tox &Tems of eneendy diTerences
nal reognised f shown bk in respec of this subkidiony, & axpacrad o be meverssd dunng the pioness peniod

9. EARMNINGS PER SHARE ("EPS™)
Basic/dilited EFS

Basic EPS of the Group is calculated by dividing 1ha profit for the year attributable to owners of the parent by the weighted
sverage nurnber of ordinary shores in ssue during the financal year.

Group
2019 2018
Prafit for the financial year attributable 1o owners of the parent (RMDOD 242,589 340,959
Welghted average number of ordinary shares in lssue for baskc EPS (000} 10,569,956 10,528.520
Basicdiluted EFS (sen) 2.30 124

120,000,000 [2018: 125,805,000) share options granted to employess under BSOS have not been incheded in the calculaticn
of dilutes earnangs per share because they are ant-dhutive.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
= 30 June 2019

10. DIVIDENDS

Group/Company
2019 2018
Gross Amount of Gross Amount of
dividend dividend, dividend dividend,
per share net of tax per share net of tax
[sen) RMODO |sen) RM'O00

Dividend paid in respect of financial year
ended 30 june 2018:

- Imterim dvidend of 4 sen per ordinasy dhare paid 4.0 422,748 - -
on 13 Mewember 2018

Dividend paid in respect of financial year
ended 30 june 20017
- Interim dvidend of & sen par ondrary shane pakd
on 10 November 2017 - - 50 L6761

Dividend recognised as distribution to
ordinary equity holders of the Company 4.0 422,748 =18 ] 526,61

Subsequent to the financial year ended 30 june 2019, the Cinectors of the Company had on 29 August 2019 declared on interim
dividend 4 sen per ordinary shame, with the total amourting to apgroxmately RM417.511 000 cormputed based on the total
msued ard pa'd-up share capitsl of 10,437,766,240 oidinary shares of the Company, excheding treaswy shaes, In respect ol
the financial year ended 30 june 2009, The financial statements for the curent Ninancial year do nat refiect these dividends,
This chivehent will b accounted Tor in aguity a5 an appropeatian of etsred eamings during the financal yeas ending 30 fune
2019

Thee Directors da not propase any final divdend m respect af the linanolal yeat ended 30 [une 2019
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11. PROPERTY. PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Infra-
structure Furniture, Telecom- Rssets
Land & & site Plant b fictures & munbcation under
bullding®  facllities machinery equipment  Vehdtles equipment construction Total
Grewp - 2019 Mote  RM'000 RE000 RMO0G RM000 RH 000 MO0 RM000 RE000
Cost/Vabaatien
AL 172016, a6 previously reporied 10232886 6226469 19072492 1932357  G20.060 2789089 2072452 44,946,612
Adustments® - 2,504 - - - - - 2,504
Ar | 72008, restaied 10232886 B.220.973 15077492 1932357 G0.060 2789896 2072457 44949116
Argussivon of subaiianies 604,297 = 4231549 74,687 19,862 = 1B415 5048810
Additions 495187 316914  B7TEOS 426625 104504 14588 447136 2.484.558
Diapss (T14) [Z5.220)  (3094)  (41.367) = = (90.395)
Written ofl [&0,747) [426) (1p0138)  (22.381) (660) (10,044}  (l4.40%) (208,805
Reersal of impasment | LO24 . - - - 5 .- 1024
Trarsfer on commimsioning 405,689 17,848  [309.660) B3,680 323,000  (520.557) -
Timale from developsean
EperdowEs 6900 . - = = - 5,900
Cumency ranslation dfferences 0549  (78.300) 96,070 Fail 1,108 - 7.5 [7.1209
At 3062019 1L673.973 BA4GNAG0 23970206 2080562  7E0.280 3117440 2085460 5L.184.089
Acoumulated depreciation and
impairment
Az 17, 208E, 2 prevousdy reported A0MB13E  EI7.449 1005209 879412 4179 B3AIW - 16,853,290
Aduyimmais® - 21,407} - - - - - (21.487)
A )7 2008 restaied 3016,136 616,042 11052098  @79.412 437,798  B34,397 - 16,837,883
Acpuiston of subsiciaies 54,028 «  L.B64.896 B2.355 17,135 - - 3,303.414
Crarge for The Financial yeae 222,614 75960  @29.45% 107,594 V6517 152,034 L505,175
Drsposal {125} . [2L725)  (18.4B0) (34845 - - (75,176
Written cff (54.630] (426) (88117 (18455 53) (8331 - (162,002
mjaarmment o 7 - - 4,347 - = = = 4347
Transfer an commissining 425 - [E3541) (45847 B4ES3 - 7
Cmengy Fanslation dithensnoes (B.216) (5410 46,826 {4.519) 2,284 - - 30,965
A 3062019 354042  EBE1GE 14614240 100L980 563088 1.018.100 = 21424596
Net boak value
Ar 3062018 8132931 7780934 9355966 L079.602 226200 2099340 Z0B5460 30759433

T B P Fekiin] B e Ocsastion Sorouiind ol [ookionsn slien Eamemests & 5ciasd i Aete 40T]

432/628

177

oOoOooodn



EDINETOOOO
Oo0O0000000000000000000000(eo05821)
Oooooooa

YTL CORPORATION BERHAD

Motes to the Financial Statements
- 30 June 2019

11. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT ICONT'D.)

Infra-
structure Farmiture, Telecom- Assaty
Land B Esite  PamE  liures B munication unier

buliding*  facllities machimery equipment  Wehicles equipment constrction Total
Group - 2008 Note  RMOODO0  RMOO0  RMDO0  EMODO  RMO0D  RMOO0  RMOOO  RMOO0
Castvaluation
At 172017, 2 previously repoeted I03AMI06  AMEDSS 19452071 1AMOSE G300 REESOIG  LMMI3I  dAESISIE
KU LT 2017, a6 reszated IDEAMISE  BA9459 19452871 DAMOGL 630577 2ERA0NE LMMAM3  MAESADNE
Aoguhition of sutrsidioriss 03 - LEX BT - . A4
hiditiom BL52E 32E4E a0 171563 a7 TET)  14EBOE3  RIIRIR
Drsperal {458) . (#1439 @B o [E] {330 B51
Writien off {41,451 (eLeFnr R T [B55H (45 (M8 (45830  (2BLEE
Imeasment koss 7 {5588 . - . . - . 5388
Transier o commissioning 127 M M4 T 478 130437 @easE -
Cunency ranskation $ferences. [4DLIGS] (443208  (TLESES) [RILE] {BBIN + (E07L  [LS05E
At 30EINE 1MEEE  A2ROTY 1907R4W 0 19937 BNIDSD  2PRAEGS 202450  LASAOHLE
Accumulated depreciation and

impairment

R L7017, & previously reported 2042872 BOZIN 10E6HER 83 HLET GERAT 41326 1R13GE
Adusimenls* . [2LAIT) . - - . [F1407)
AL L7 2017, 45 reszaned 254281 SBOTE  106HAE IR UET GRS 43326  IRMASIS
Charge for e finenoal year aini BEOA ag7.8d7 =T 51656 161,673 = L545436
Daperal {344 - (L2220 12358 {2h150) - - 4108
Writters off [#5624) = (552 B4 (16T ] - [0S
Bavera of impaiment 7 = - . i) frz ) (L5335 4332 (55,252
Transfer on commzsionig [R09%) - A 589 59 = * =
Cumency ranshation dffeenes 04380  ERED (B0 (0D [5.245) GIAIE
At 30EH0A IMENE  GlGC4Z  LLOGA0AE AMRALZ 430798 O - 16BITESR
Het book valug
At 3062018 TEAIS0  TaliTAl  ame0iM 1052045 182260 LSER4mI 2072452 B2

= T 5 EEON [ 1% OSSN0 O0T0UNAY N (DFGON0N PEmOGON SETOTRmENG (1 Shisal b Mol Sl
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11. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONT'D.}

Land & buildings of the Group are as Tallows:-

Bullding on Building on
Lomg term  5Shori term Bwilding en  Jong term  short term  Factory &
Freshold  leasehold  leasehold  freehold  leasehold  leaseheld other
land land land fand land End  buildings Total
Group - 2019 RM'OO0  RMWOO00  RMOO0D RMOO0  AMYUO0D  RMOO00  AMOO0  RMTOO
Cost/Vakaztion
M 172008
Al st 1033325 472594 166383 695361 LOBT.B24 507458 2635 10223937
A waluation 621 oo - 2418 - - - a.948
L029.596 470,804 166383 G956,006 LOBT.B24 507458 2635 10,232,886
Az puscivion of subsianes ILB62 48963 126743 - - 38709 - B04297
Addtions 667 73568 - 162883 247340 10728 - 495167
Depona (189) S e - S -
Written of| . = (60.747) . - = (60,747}
Resyersal o impasiment - - - 1024 - - - 1,024
Transfars (23.262) a.022 18314 316020  BO.09S 5.500 = 405589
Tt er Irom development expendines - - - - . 6,500 . 6900
Conprey irarmbon ditteences 12,367 [LA&Z} 5894  (3|0S5)  (5.287) 163 - [10.549)
Ar 3062012 LOGLD4Z  BOLSES  3I7ETD 7330221 L409972  M364E 2635 1L673.973
Represeating::
AL oot 1054959 GOL3BS 31FE70 73743 L409972 43648 2635 11665212
Af valuation 6,083 200 - 2478 - - - 8,761
A 3062019 LOGLD42 EOLSES  3ITETD 7330221 L409.972  M43edE 2635 11673971
Acrumutated depreciation and impairment
A 17408
AL o1 - 55,553 TRE0 2407449 374083 105385 2106 3,017,406
Al LA Don - 30 Too s - s 730
= 55,563 72,830 2408149 374,083 105388 2106 3,008,136
Acqursiton of submidianes 40 15776 92,880 - - 50,332 - 359,028
Crairge For the Fnarcisl pear - 6218 11056 162,504 25,380 16,318 37 24
Disposa - {34) - - 3 - [1z3]
Written of| - - - [54,630) - - - [54.630)
Transers - 1456 - [4.757) B.336 510 - 4235
LCompncy trarmdation ditfenences - 13 2546 (13.,364) 3 3441 . [@.218)
Ar 3062018 40 TIESE 179218 2497402 408,428 375,965 2143 3541042
Mat book valug
AR gt 1054919 523561 1380652 4,830,089 LO0OLS44  5ET.653 492 B.124.950
Arvaluation 6,043 168 - 173 . - * r.0481
Az 3062019 LOGLO0Z 523729 138,652 40839819 LOOLS44 567,653 482 8,132,931
179
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11. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT ICONT'D.)
* Land & bulldings of the Group ahe a5 Toliows:-

Building on Building on
Long tesm  Short term Buibding on  leng term  short term Factory &
Freeheld leasehold leasehold  freshold leaseheld  feasehold ather
Land land lamd land land land  baildings Todal
Growp - 2018 AMDO0  RMO00 AMOO0  RMOOD  AMODD  RM'DO0 AMODDO  RMOOD
Cost/¥aluation
ALLT 20T
At cost LOIBERS 457810 188705 TO3leEE  LLI0SS54 05,581 2535 103247
Al vabtion 6471 200 - 2478 - - - AME
LO2SI4T 458010 186705 TO34lE4  LIDASSE  SOEE 2635 103x01E
Aoquigton of subsdiaries. 24 - - 1575 - - ’ 250322
Addlon 1Th7l 1561 - 5514 1106 FhEX . H19%E
Deporal . (L] - & - * ; [45€)
Wiristen off . . - AL - ) - L)
impusiment s . . - (5 . . . (3548
Transfers 487 = TBat) 4338 L7059} 8801 - 37
Cumency ranslation differences {32917} 338 1352y EEae 1T 2430 - (A0ES
AL IDEAE L0355 AT2EH 166383 A0950056  LOBT.E24 S5 2635 IMf3lEEE
Representing:-
AL cost 1033325 ATZE 16383 6553618 LOG7H24 S0n.458 FI R R 2
AL vakention 6271 20 . 2478 - - : e
AL 30E20LE 1,099.5% 4T2EM 16h389 G95R0%  LO0GT.E24 Sor4sa 26T MBS
Bgcumulated degresiation and impaitment
A LTA0LT
AL tost - 49475 ET457 ZMEES = NETSH 2000 2W2lss
AL valstien W E : Al : # g &
- 449513 BidAY  AidhWR WO e AN 2GR
(Charga lor the hnanciil e . Bag? 1230 153522 24,540 185962 3 ganr
Depral J 180y r b (154 v - 344
‘Written off . - - [3835) - [2L.765) - (2562)
Trarsher e caTmtsonng 280 : (3055} i ’ {BOEE)
Curency franslation differenves - (i3] (45T BT 2975} [BL.EZT) - I
At 3062019 - 1 12830 2408149 4,083 105,355 26 I0LBLE
Het book walwe:
At cost 1031355 417041 [ELLE ] ETERL ] &02.073 4 120651
Al vabgation h7L hil - 18 - - . BAS
At 3082018 1039536 41730 03983 4TI an enaoh L= s
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11. PROPERTY,. PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONT'D.}
Furniture,
fittings &
equipment Vehicles Tatal
Mote RMHO00 RM'000 RM'O00
Company - 2019
Cost
At 1L7.2008 7,055 8,417 15.472
Additions 153 1,334 1.487
Disposal - (459) (459)
At 2062019 7.208 9,292 16,500
Accumulated depreciation
AL L7208 6,305 5161 11,466
Charge for the tinancial year 7 396 493 a8g
Disposal - {329) (329)
At 3062019 6,701 5,325 12,026
Het book value
At 3062009 507 3.967 4,474
Company - 2018
Cost
At 172007 B277 B,417 15,394
Additians 7H - Fi|
At 306.2018 7,055 B.AL7 15,472
Accumulated depreciation
AL 172007 5024 4107 10,031
Charge for the fnancial year ! 381 LO%4 L1435
AL 2062018 5,305 5161 11.466
HNet book value
At 2062018 750 3,256 4,006
181
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11. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT ICONT'D.}

f)

]

fc)

(gl

lBz2

Depreciation chame lof the nancial year is allotated a5 Follows:

EDINETOOOO
Oo0O0000000000000000000000(eo05821)
Oooooooa

Group Company
2019 2018 2019 2018
Note RMO00D RM'00D RMODD RM'000
Frofit o fnss 7 1.497,585 1538709 BE9 1.435
Amount due from contracl customens 7.580 6,727 = -
1,505,175 1545436 aea 1435

ASSELS UnCer finange ease

The net book value of the property, plant and equipment as at reporting date held under finance leases are as follows:-

p s—
2019 2018 2019 2018
RMOD0 RM 00O RMODO RM'O00
Flant and machenery 04,987 2713215 -
Vehicles 4,302 4,225 2,528 2119
99,289 27T A40 2.528 2119

Security

The net book velue of the Groug's propedty, plant and equipment that hove been pledged o8 security Tor the bank facilities

and bands by way of lixed and floates) charges ane a5 follows:-

Lanid
Bunlings

Group
2019 2018
RM'000 RM'DDO
164,166 1468502
1,381,634 L4i7am
1.545.800 1,566,478

Bomowing cost

437/628
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11. PROPERTY. PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONT'D.}
The Group has revised the useful lives of ceftain progerty, plafit and equipment during the finandal year, The revisicn was
accounted Tor as a change in accounting estimate and as a result, the depredation charge far the financia’ yeas ended 30 June
2009 has decroased appreximately by AME3.4 million,
Impairment assessment for property, plant and equipment [“"PPE”) of a subsidiary

The redisérablde amounts of (e PPE are determined based on the Lair valee ess costs of disposal caloulation

Thia Tallming ae the key rasmations applien in e fair v |eos cost of dispecal caletation for snpatmment assacsment of
PPE of a subsidiary in the mobile broadband network segment:

2019 2018
[Ciscount rate B.2% 10.8%
Average revanue growth rate 21.4% 124%

The discoamt rate apphed to the cash flow profections are derived from the cost of capital &t the date of the assessment of
the FPE

The cash flow projections wsed in the FYLCD calculation were based on approved financal budgets and forecastscoveninga s
year period. Cash fiows beyond the 5 year period were extrapolated a further 12 years representing the average wseful ves of
the PPE of the subsiclary, using the estimated inflation rate of 2.5% (2018: 25%).

The circumstances where a changs in ksy assumptions will result in the recoverable amounts of PPE of the subsidiary to equal
the cormesponding camying amounts asswming no change in the ather variables are as follows:

2019 2018
Distount rate 10.7% 11:9%
AVEIIGE MEvenUE growth rate 20.4%: 120%

Thia subsidiary complated its key contract durdng the financil yaar. The subsidisy will participate in any futuhe lenders in this
anga once details of the next development phase are released, If thie contract valkse changes by 33.4%. the recoverable amourits
of the PPE will be equal to the corresponding carrysng amoanis

Thie carrying value of the PPE is RMZ.2 bdion (2018 RM2.3 billion]. Bo wnpsament charge for PPE of the sulsadiay was recognised
5 The recoverable value was in mocess of its carying value,

183
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12. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Long term
Frechold leasehold
land & land &
buildings bulldings Total
Hote RM OO0 RM OO0 RMO00
Group - 2019
At baginning of the financial year 2,902,048 7.101.841 10,003,889
Acquisition of subsidiary 2,304 2,163 4,467
Additions 40,574 2,922 43,496
Change in far value recognised in profit or loss 7 79,932 {66.760) 13,172
Currency translabion differences (34.799) 216,501 181,702
Disposal (10,128} - i10.128)
Tramsfer 1o property oeselopment Josts 22 [23.225) - 23.225)
Tramgler from inventony 19,382 - 19,382
Transfor to proporty, plant and equigmant [15.182) - (15.182)
At end of the finandial year 2,960,906 7.256.667 10,217,573
Group - 2018
At beginning of the financial year 3.068.253 7,448,757 10517010
Additions TE.544 13662 86,213
Change in fair valus recognised In profit or loss 7 (&8.187) {14,583) (42,7700
Cumrancy translation differences [195.187) (345 002) (541 105)
[ispasal {15.985) - [15,365)
At end of the financial year 2902 048 TI0LEAl 10,003,589

Investment propefties with carrying amaunt af RMZ.455 million (2018: RMZ 636 milkon) are changed &% seturity for a borhowing
granted to the Group a5 disclesed in Note 29 and Nate 30 10 tha finandial statements

lB4
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12. INVESTHMENT PROPERTIES (CONT'D.}
Level 1 Lovel 2 Level 3 Total
RM'O00 RM'000 RM'OOD RH OO0
Group - 2019
Recurring fair value maasulsments:
Inwesiment praperties
- Commereial praperties - - 8,947,689 8,947 6HI
- Hoted propeties - - BET, 000 667,000
- Other properties - 34,592 568,292 502,884
Total - 34,592 10.182.981 10.217.573
Group - 2018
rring fadr wal ur
Investment propertiss
= Commencial propaies . - aainem B.HIO.ETE
- Hoted propeties - - /50 100 BAO.O00
- Dther properties - 41.553 So1.413 543,011
Total - 41,558 096229] 100003889

Investment properties are stated at fair value based on valuations performed by independent professional valuers hasing
approprizte recognised professional gualifications and recent experience in the location and category of property being valued.

In determining the fair value, the valuers have wsed valuation techrigues which imaolve certain estimates. bn relying on the
waluathon reports. 1he Croup has exercised its judgement and is satisfied that the valuation methods and estimates are reflective
of current markst conditiors. The valustion reports are prepared in accordance with recognised appraisal and valuation standands.
The estimates underlying the valuation techregues in the next financial year may difter from current estimates, which may
result in valuations that may be materialy ditferent from the valustions as ar reprrting dete

Thiz valuers have considered the capitalisation approach andfor discounted cash flows In amiving at the open madet wlue as
at the reporting date. The capitalisation approach capitalises an income stream into a present value using single-year capitalsation
rates. The income stream wsed is adpsted to market rentals cumently being achieved within compasable investment properties
and recent leasing transactions achleved within the invastment property. The discounted cash flow method iveolves the estimation
ard projection of an intome stream over 3 peried ard discounting the income stream with an internal rate of retum to arrvw
at the market value. The discounted cash How method requires the valuer 1o assums a rental growth rate indicative of market
ard the selection of a target intemnal rate of return consistent with curment market requirements.

{a) Fair value information

The Growp's investmesit properties are vaued based on-sale comparison approath and unobsenvabile inputs and classified
In Lavel 2 and Leved 3 respectively of the far value higrarchy. The ditferent lzvels of the fae value hierarchy ane defined
in Wate 37[b) 10 the financial stamants

Dwring the turrent financial year, there wemne no transfers betwesn Lewel L Level 2 and Level 3 fair value measwemant=
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12. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONT'D.)
{B) Valuatien techniques used to derive Level 2 falr values

Level 2 Tair vahues of the Lroup's properties have been genesally derrved vsng the sales comparison approach, Sales prices
ol comparable proparties in clode prontimity are adjusted for diferances in key Jttrbutes seth & propery size. Tha most
signifacant input inta this vauation approach i salling price per square meter.

(e} Fair value measurements using significant unabservable inputs [Level 3)
Thee lollowirg falie showes the vahiallon techniguiss dsed in U determington ol Tain valuses within Level 3, a5 well g the

significant unobsenable inputs used in the valuatian models,

{i} Commercial proparties.

Inter-relationship between

signiticant unobservable inputs
Valuation technique Significant unobservable inputs  and fair value measurement
Discounted cash flow method s the  Discount rate of 350% o B.50% Thee higher the discount rate. the
total of discounted income stream (2018 from 360%: 1o B.25%) lower the fair value

and present vahue of the groperties’ _ o
anticipated sae value |0 aTiving at Capitafization rate of 3,700 10 6 B8% The higher the capitalisation rate,

the tatal present market vals, (2016 from 3.75% 1o 7.00%) the fower the fair value,

(ii} Hotel properties

Inter-relationship between

significant unobservable inputs
Valuation technigue Significant unobservable inputs  and fair value measurement
Indcme approach which capitalise Digcourt rate of 50% 10 75% (2018  The higher the dscount rate, the
the estimate rental income stream,  7.0% to 7.5%) fowevet thee Tair value

net projected oparating (osts, wmng
3 dicount rate derved from maikey CApitalfsation rate of 6.0%: 10 7.5% The higher the capitalisation rate,
yiekd [2018: 5.25% to 7.5%) the lower the falr value.

(iii) Other properties - UK

Waluation technigue Significant unobservable inputs  Range
Estimated rental value per sn-f per F175. £22E
OCF method annum
Vold perinds 12 maomtts
Transaction prices Umit density per acre 18 - 28
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12. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONT'D.)
{e] Fair value measuremants using significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) (cont'd.)
Key unshservable inputs cofrespand 1o
= Capitaisation rates derived from specialised pullications from the raloted markets and compasabile Transactiong.
= Discount rate, which are largely based on the risk-free rate of government in the relevant market. adjusted for a risk
premium 10 refiect both the increased risk of investing in the asset diss.

This linvestinent progerties aie valued wing the incoime capitalaation method, where o property's Lar value is estimated
based an the nofmalised ner coemting iNcome generated by the progerty, wiich iS divided by tie capitalisation (gsoount)
rate Based an current market-detved yield tites which reflect the experted retuem of ime<iments commersasate with
tha risk exposure asociated o the asset

The significant urebservable input & 1he adjustment for factors specific to the hatel properties. The extent and disection
al this adjustment depands on the number and characterstics of the cbservabie markel FANSACTIoNS in SImilar properes

that are usid as the starting paint Tor valuation Although this input & a suljective Redgement, management Comeders
that thie overall valuation would not be materially atfectied by reasonably possible alemarve assumpions.
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13. DEVELOFPMENT EXPENDITURES

Thi mewarment in deweiopment expenditures of the Group duting the finandal year 5 a5 lollows:

Frashold Leasehold Development

land land costs Total
Group - 2019 MNote RM'000 RM'000 RE'O00 RM'000
{a}) Land held for property development cost
Cost
Al beginning of the fmancial year (FRS) 411,576 235,425 267,815 914,816
Effects of adoption of MFRS 15 - - {34.026) (34.026)
A end of the finandal year (MFRS) 411,576 235,425 233,789 Ba0,790
AOHLons - - 12,244 12,244
Reclassitication made during the year 1,380 B2 {1.442) =
Dispozal - (11} {1.123) {1134)
Written off - - [457) (457)
Transfer 1o progarty development codts 22 - (2.073) (915) [3,988)
At end of the financial year 412,956 232,403 242,096 BE7,455
Accumulated impairment losses
AL besgiriing of e Fmancial yiear - (27.315) (382) (27.657)
Impalrment I0sses 7 (530) (452) (98) (1.080)
At end of the financial year (530) (27.767) {480) [28.777)
Total land held for property development 412,426 204,636 241,616 B58.678
(b) Project dewelopment expenditure
At beginning of the fmancial year - 159,144 115,154 274,298
Apditions - 13,772 106,670 120,442
Charge ta profit o loss - - (3,392) (3.392)
Currency translation ditference - 4,141 3.180 7321
Transfer fram invantory = = (40.078) HII.IIJ'H]
Transfer o progearty deveinpment cosrs Fid - - [(B3,131) [83,131)
Transfer to proparty, plant equipment n - - (6.900) (6.900)
Ar end for the financal year - 177.057 91,503 268,560
Total development expenditure 412,426 381,693 333.119 1.127.238
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13. DEVELOPMENT EXPENDITURES (CONT'D.)
Tha movament in develsoment expanditufes of the Group during the linanclal yaar &5 a5 Tollows:- (cont’d)
Freehold Leasehold Development
land land costs Tatal
Group - 2018 Hote RMO0D RM0DD RM'000D RM'000
{a) Land held for property development cost
Cast
At beginning of the financial year [FRS) 383118 £34,793 2B8.196 306113
Effects of agoption of MFRS 15 - {34,088) (34.0£8)
Al end of the fEnancial year (MFRS) 383118 234,799 254170 B72.087
Addinions 40,250 B2G 12,003 5£8M9
Disposal {11.794) - (ILB4T) (43,639}
Transfes 1o propery developmant oosts 22 - - (537) (537)
At end of the financial year 411,576 235,475 243,789 A#A0, 780
Accumulated impaimment losses
At beginning of the financial year - {2L.06E) (382} {2L.448)
Impairment lasses 7 - [6.245] - [G,249)
At end of the financial year - (27.315) 382} [2T.607)
Total land hald for property development 411,576 20B.110 233,407 B53.0493
(b] Project development expenditure
At baginning of the financizl year - 140476 35,152 175628
Additions - ZFETL Bez.gz2r 110,198
Currency translation diffenende - [BEDI) [2925) {11.528)
At end of the financial year - 150,144 115154 274,258
Total development expenditure 411576 367,254 348,561 1127391

Daring the financial year, the impairment review has led 1o the recognition of impairment foss amounting to RMLOB0,000 (2018
RME,249000) due 1o uncertainty in the recoverability of development cost

Land held tor propany develapment with carmang amaunt of RM182 580,000 (2018 RMIBE1.121.000) are charged as seturity
for bormowing granted to the Group as disclosed in Note 30 to the financial statements.
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13. DEVELOPMENT EXPENDITURES (CONT'D.)

Intluded in praject development axpanditure, land acquisition costs relating to the construction of the pawer plant by P.T.
Tangung lati Fower Company under a 30-year power purchase agreamant with PT PLN [Persero), indonesia’s stale-owned
elecinic utility company, a second amended and restated version of which was execuied in March 2018, The project s currently
i the development stage and progress i urderway tawards achieving financial closa,

14. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES

Company

2019 2018
RM OO0 RM'000
Quoted sharas, at cost 3.972.483 3.5972.484
Linquated shares, at cost 3,449,919 31863185
Quoded ICULS, at cost * 391,502 31502
Less: Accumulated impaimment losses (6.389) (54,461)
7.807.515 B.172710

Market value
= Qe shares 4,701,802 5,353,099
= Guoted IKULS 238,816 340,606

4,940,618 5503705

*  Quoted ICULS. at cost
These me related to ten (10} years ICULS msuved by YTL Land & Development Berhad, a subsidiany of the Groug, on 31
Dctober 2011 These ICULS bear a step-up coupon rate ranging from 3% to 6% péar annum until its matudity date, The
Interest m payable semi-annualy, The conversion price af the ICULS = fixed at 4 steg-dawn bass in the Test four (4) years,
the corvarsion price is 3t RML 32 for one (1) ordinary share in YTL Land & Developmient Berhad, after which it is at RMO.S9
in the next three (3) wears and at RMOEG for the remaining theee [3) years,

The KULS are quoted on Bursa Securities.

190

445/628



EDINETOOOO
Oo0O0000000000000000000000(eo05821)
Oooooooa

ANNUAL REPORT 2019

Notes to the Financial Statements

- 30 june 2019
14. INVESTHMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONT'D.)
Cetaits of the subsidianies e as Tolows:
Effective Equity
Interest
Flace of 2013 2018
Name of Company Incorporation  Principal Activities % %%
Held by the Company:
Arah Asas Sdn, Bhd, Malaysia Property developrment 100,00 100,00
Business & BudgeT Hotals Sdn. Bhd. Malaysla Management & investment Folding 100,00 10000
Cane Creations Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia Iwestmert haiding 100000 10000
Courerstone Crest Sdn, Bhd Malaysia kwestiment holding 10000 10000
Civine Wiew Sdn, Bhd Malaysia Commaercial wading. proparty cealing & 10000 10000
Invesiment halding
Intellectual Mission Sdn. Bhd Malaysla Education E training using advanced 10000 10000
technoiogy
Prisma Tulin Sdn, Bhd Malaysia Hotel operator 100,00 100,00
Spedtdcular Comer Sdr. Bl Malaysia Dormait 10000 100,00
Starhill Clobal Real Estate Investment  Singapore lwestmert in prime real estate 36.46 3646
Trust ["SGREM*
Syarikat Pernbenaan Yeoh Tiong Lay Malaysia Crvil engpnees v works, Cormssuction, 10000 10000
Safin. Bhel. property develiopment & eal estate
Imestment, investment halding & relatad
SErCES
Tithwangss Deve‘opment Sdn Bhd. Malaysia Inactive 10000 100.00
Y¥TL Cayman Limited ! Cayman kslands  bwestment halding, swnership & 160,06 10000
cthartering of yachts & vessels
YTL Cement Berhad Malayia Iestment holding, management company 9803 9793
& hiring of vehicley
YTL Charters Sdn. Bhd. Malaysla Chartesing of d@rorafts, helicopters, ships & 10000 10000
vehicles
YTL Corporation (LK) Pic * England & Wales active 10000 10000
YL Corp Finanoe {Cayman) Limited | Caymnan kdands  bactive 10000 10000
¥TL Corp Finance (Labuan) Limited | Malaysia Special purpose vehicdle for issuance of 100,00 100.00
securities & investment holding
YTL e-Solutons Barhad Malayzia Fvestment hokding, provision and 10000 100,00
maintenance of infomation technology
hardvwawe and software systems. nebeornic
and internet compectvity nfrastruciune,
weh hosting services, content desalopmant,
provison ol e-Commane Syslems,
hareware sa'es and ather related serices
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14. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES ICONT'D.}

Effective Equity
Interest
Place of 2019 2018
Name of Company Incorporation  Principal Activities % %a
Held by the Company: [cont’d.)
¥TL Energy Sdn Bhd Malkaysaa Investrment halding 100.00 10000
¥TL (CGuemsay] Limited Casmrnsey Invesiment & property hokling 10000 10000
¥TL Haspitality REIT ("YTLREIT™) Malaysia Management of real estate investment 56.95 Se92
trusts
¥TL Hotel Management Saint Troper Franca Hotal cparator & management senvices 100.00 10000
SARL Y
YTL Hotels & Properties Sdn. Bhd, Makaysiy Investment halding & maragement 100.00 10000
SETYICES
¥TL Industries Herhad Malaysaa Investment halding. propety development 100000, 100,00
and proparty investment
¥TL Land 5dn. Bhd Milayia Property investmen?, property and propsct 100.00 10000
mariaer
¥TL Land & Development Berhad * Malaysia Imrestment halding & provision of 6526 6526
managemsent, financial, treasury &
secretarial seriges
¥TL Power imerratianal Bernad Madaysia Imvestrnent halding & provision of 55.21 403
{™YTL Power’) * administrative & tachnical suppart
SEVICES
¥TL Singapore Pre, Ltd. * Singapore Investment halding & management 100,00 10000
romipany
¥TL-5W Carbon Sdn. Bhd Malaysia Providing consultanty services 9000 5000
Held through Business & Budget
Hotels Sdn. Bhd.:
Business & Budget Hotels (Penang) Malaysia Hotal oparator 51.00 5100
Sdn, Bhd
Business & Budget Hotels (Seberang Malaysia Inattive 51.00 5L00
|aya) Sdn. Bhd
Held through Cane Creations
Sdn. Bhd.:
Cane Craations (Marketing) Sdn. Bhd Mallaysia Trading in cane furniture, local handicrafts, 100000 10000
accessories b rakaled sanices
Katural Adventure Sdn. Bhd, Markaysaa Inasctive 100.00 10000
hiche Retalling Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia Retalling of fashlon apparels and related 100.00 10000
ACCEssOnes
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14. INVESTHMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONT'D.)
Effactive Equity
Interast
Place of 2019 2018
Mame of Company Incorporation  Principal Activities B L
Held through Cane Creations
Sdn. Bhd.: {cont'd.)
Prestige Lifestyles & Living Sdn. Bhd Malaysin Trading of fumiture and acoessories 10000 10000
Star Hill Living Com Sdn. Bhd, Malaysia Fropect maragement sendcas, trading of 100,00 10000
paintings, fumiture, accessories & related
SErvicEs
Trendy Retailing Sdn, B Malaysia Retaifing of ready to wear 100000 10000
Held throwgh Divine View
Sdn. Bhd.:
SC1 ¥TL Hotels Saint Tropez Franoe Acquisition, management, renting & 10000 10000
administration and/or resale of real
estate
Held through Starhill Global Real
Estate Investment Trust
{"SGREIT"):
Ara Bintang Berhad * Malaysia Property investment 36.46 3646
Chiengdu Xin Hosg Management Co The Pecpie’s Property invesiment 36.46 IE46
Lid. (formerty known a% Renbe Spring  Republic of
Dapartment Stere Co. Lid) * China
SG REIT (M) Pre, Lid. * S apone Ivwpstmert halding 3646 4B
50 REIT (wWaA) Pre L * Sngapore Imestment holding 36.46 I 4B
50 REIT (WA) Trust * Australia Property investment 36.46 oAb
50 REIT {wA) Sub-Trustl * Australia Property investment 26,46 0 AB
S0 REIT (54) Sub-Tmsed * Australia Froperty investment 36.46 AL
Starhill Clabal REIT fapan Sngapora Iwestment halding 36.456 £
SPC One Pre, Lid *
Starnill Clobal REIT japan SUAROTe bwpstment noiding 3646 Eib
SPL Two Pe Ltd.
Starhill Global REIT MTH Pre. Ltd * Sangapore Iezuser of notes under the Medium Term 36.46 46
Note Programme
Starhill Global REIT One TME * [apan Property invesiment 36.46 E
Searhill Clobal ML K \apan Master lessee of japan propenies 36,46 304G
Top Sexe Investmant Lid * Horig Kong Iwestmert halding 36.46 #db
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14. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES ICONT'D.}

Effective Equity
Interest
Place of 2019 2018
Name of Company Incorporation  Principal Activities % %a
Held through Syarikat Pembenaan
Yeoh Tieng Lay Sdn. Bhd.:
Aurstasia Metal Sdn. Bhd, * Makaysia Irsctivie 100.00 10000
Austasia Temers Malaysia Sdn, Bhd. Malaysa Inactive 100.00 100000
Builders Briccworks Sdn, Bha Malaysia Inactive 93.8B0 0380
Construction Lease (M) Sdn. Bhd Malaysla Leasing. hire punchase & cradit 100.00 10000
Dayang Bay Development Sén Bhd, Malaysia Property Investment and developmient 100,00 10000
Cayang Buting Resarts Sdn. Bhd, Malaysea Propéerty investment and development 10000 10000
Cynamic Markating Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia Trading of budding & construction 100.00 10000
matesials
Hate 25 Sui. Bhd, Makiysia Hotil upratis 100,00 10000
Frst Commercial Development Sdn Bhd. Malaysia Property Investmant 100000 10000
Kamgung Tigrg Development Sdn. Bhd, Malaisia Praperty development Jo.00 Y000
Lay Serd Oil Palm Plantations. Sdn, Bhd,  Malnysiy Cultivation af ol paims 100,00 10000
horthwastern Development Sdn Bhd,  Malaysia Property investment and development 100.00 10000
Permzi Properly Management Sdn Bhd, Mataysia Inastive 10000 10000
P.T. YTL Construttion Makmr = Indenesia Dasmant - Br.00
Suri Travel B Tows Sdn. Bhi Malaysia Rental of motor wehicles, alr ticketing & loo.00 10000
other related senices
Tramsporiable Camps Sdn. Bhd, Miataysea Trading & rental of transportable cabms & 1000000 10000
wood based products
Yap Yew Hup Brickworks (Perak) Sdn. Malnysia Inactive 9380 5380
Bl
Yeoh Tiong Lay Realty Sdn. Bhd. Madaysea Realty, Investment & management 10000 10000
SETVICES
¥TL Construction Intarmational (Cayman) Cayman lslands  Investment halding In construction related 100000 10000
Limited ! activities
¥TL Comstruction (5 Pre, Lud, * Singagare Comstruction related activities & nea 10000 10000
estate deveoper
¥TL Chwl Engineering Sdn. Bho Malaysia Civil engineering works & construction 90.00 9000
¥TL Developrment Sdn. Bhd, Marlaysia Inasctive Jo.00 7000
¥TL Project Management Services Son, Malaysa Prowsion of managament services for 100,00 10000
B construction projects
¥TL Technologses Sdn Bhd, Malaysea Savicing & hiring of equipmest 99.21 a819
¥TL THP [V Sdn. Bhd. Mataysia Inactiva 7000 7000
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14. INVESTHMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONT'D.)
Effective Equity
Interest
Place of 2019 2018
Mame of Company Incorporation  Principal Activities Y e
Held throwgh YTL Cayman Limited:
|ust Heritage Sdn. Bhd, * Malaysia Inwestment ihalding 100,00 100.00
Starhill Giobal REIT kmeestments Cayman klands  bwestmert haiding 100000 10000
Lirnited *
Searhill Global REIT Management Cayman tslands  bwestment halding 10000 100,00
Lirtites !
YTL Construction (Thadand) Limited *  Thailand Construction activities 7489 T4ED
TTL Power Services Sdn. Bhd Malaysia Operaten B mantenance of power station 10000 100,00
YL Propearty westments Limited Cayman ksdands  bwestment halding 10000 100,00
¥TL Startiiil Glolal Propesty Sangjapre Property management sivicis 10000 100,00
Management Pra. Lid. *
YTL Starhill Global REIT Managemant  Singapore Inwestmert holding 10000 100,00
Holdings Pte. Lid. *
YTL Starhél Global REIT Management Sangapore InnestminT advisar, phoperty Turd 10000 10000
Lirmited * FAAMYEMANT Sorvees and 10 0T A% the
Marager of SGREIT
Held through YTL Cement Berhad:
Adsociated Pan Malaysis Cement Malaysla Mt sctune and sale of clinkes and 7546 -
Sdn Bhd, ** CeEmel
Batu Tiga Quarmy Sdn. Bhd “alaysia Quarny usiness. i trading of granite 98.03 q9704
apgregates
Batu Tiga Quarry (59. Bulch) 5dn. Bhd,  Malaysia Quarry business & related services 98.03 57499
Beijing Dama Sinosourca Trading The Peopie's Trading of machanizal, ¢hectrical 98.03 9799
Cou L ™ Republic of egupmant and parts, and technology
China transfor, cevelapment Jnd consultancy
Bentara Gemiiang Industries Sdn. Bhd,  Malaysia Quarry business & related services 49.02 48599
Busldoon-Cimaco Concrete Sdn. Bhd, Malaysia Manufacture & sabe of ready -miked 98.03 97.99
concrete
Buildeon Concrete Enterprise Sdn, Bhd,  Malaysia Iwvestment hokding 98.03 5799
Buildoon Concrete Sdn. Bhd Malaysia Marufacture & safe of ready -mived 98.03 597449
Conrete
Buildeon Concrete (KL} Sdn, Bhd Malaysia nactive 98.0 97499
L. Quarrying & Marketing Sdn. End. Malaysia Quarry business & related services 98.03 9799
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14. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES ICONT'D.}

Effective Equity
Interest
Flace of 2019 2018
Mame of Company Incorporation  Princlpal Activities 0 %
Held through YTL Cement Berhad:
{ront'd.)
Cl. Readyrmin Sdr. Bhd, Makaysia Manufacture B sabe of ready-mixed 9803 9799
COnrete
(MCM Perniagaan Sdn Bhd. *# Malaysea Trading of cement and other buliding 75.46
matesials
Competent Teamwork Sdn. Bhd. Madaysia Investrment halding 9803 9799
Concrate Industries Pra Lid * Singagare Darmiant q8.03 argq
Concrete Star Limiged * Cayman lslands  Investment halding 9803 9799
Equiity Corporation Sdn. Bhd Malaysaa Quarry husiness & related sarvces 98.03 aray
Gemilang Fintar Sdn, Bhd Maaysia Marieating & trading of quarry products GAG2 GHSD
Geneyrle Envirgnmantal Senices Mataysia WasTE Management in Cement 75.46
Sein, Bha e manLdACTLRnG ATAites
Geocycle Mafaysia Sdn. Bhd, ** Malaysia Trading of any type of cementitious 75.46 -
materials for cement or concrete use
Grepn Enahile Techanlagies Son, Bhd Madiysia Ceradtancy sendre in relation to the q8.03 Qre4
promeation af the gasifization of
municipal solikl water far dispasal in
cement kil
Hangzhou Dama Kal Tong Enviranmenial  The Peogle’s Dormant = arss
Technology Co, Lid * Repubie of
Chima
Hedcam (Malaysaa) Sdn. Bhad *# Midkaysaa Manitacturing and sale of cemant 75.46 -
Hodcem (Singapore) Limited *# Singapore Investment halding, iImporters, dealers of BR.99

ready-mibx concrete, dry-mix mortar
products, business of owners of storage
terminal facilities & sales of cement
Simen Utama Marketing Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia Darmant T5.46 -
{formerly known as Holcim Marketing
{Malaysiay Sdn. Bhd) *#

Hopelinld Enterprines, L bed * Hong Kong Irnvestriend halding 98.03 9r.e9
Intiustrind Procuroment Limited ! Cayman Islands  Investmant halding q98.03 arag
Jak=a Quarry Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia Quarry business & ralated services 9803 9rag
Jumesvah Shpping Sdn. Bhid *# Malryiia Shipping of bulk cement and chartering of  75.46
veisely
Kiethah Cement Holdings Berhad ** Mataysa Investment halding 75.46 -
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14. INVESTHMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONT'D.)
Effective Equity
Interest
Place of 2019 2018
Hame of Company Incorporation  Principal Activities Y e
Held through YTL Cement Berhad:
{cont'd.}
Kedah Cement |etty Sdn. Ohd, ** Malaysin Maragement and aoeration of a jeity 7546 -
Kenneson Covstruction Matenals Malaysia nactive S8.032 497499
Sidn Bhd.
Kenneison Northern Quarry Sdn. Bhd,  Malaysia Manutacturing, selling & distribution of 98.03 57.99
premix products, construction & buikding
materlals
Lofarge Aggregatas (Kata Tenggl) Malaysia Quarrying and trading of granite and 75.46 -
Sdin. Bhd, ** quarry preducts
Lafarge Apgregates (Famtai Remis) Malaysia Producer and supplier of aggregates and 7546 -
in Hhd. ** related products
Lafarge Aggregates Sdn, Bhd, *# Malaysia Iwestment halding, trading and quarrying 75.46 -
of aggregates snd related products
Latarge Cement Sdn, Bhd "= Malaysia Manufacture and sale of clinker and 75.46 -
cement
Lafarge Cement Sngapaore Pie. Ltd, **  Singapore Bulk import and sale of cement and 7546 -
tradirg of other building materiats
Ladarge Contrete (East Malaysia) Malaysia Dormiant 70.38 -
Sidin. Bhd. {In members’ vokantary
liguidlation] *®
Latarge Concrete (Malaysia) Malaysia Marufacture and sake of ready-mix J0.38 -
Sdin. Bhd. ** CONTELE
Lafarge Contrete Industries Malaysia Manufacture and sale of ready-mix 70.38 -
Sdin. Bhd, ** conoete
Latarge Drymax Sdn. Bha, *# Malaysia Marutacture and sale of Cement and 7546 -
drymis! products
Malayan Cement Berhad (formerty Malaysia Iwestment haiding 75.46 -
known as Lafarge Malaysla Berhad) **
Latarge Marketing Fre. Lid *# Sargapore Iwvestmert halding 7546 -
Lalarge Shared Services Sdn, Bl **  Malaysia Accownting shared services. and 7546 -
management consulting sesvices
LCS Shipping Pre. Lid, ** Sangapore Shipping of bulk cemant and chartermg of 7546 -
wessels
LMCB Holdings Pre, Lid *® Singapore Investment halding 75.46 -
Madah Seloka Sdn Bhd. Malaysia Quarry busingss B related senvices 98.03 4749
M-Cement Sdn, Bhd. ** Malaysla Investment holding 75.46 -
197

452/628



EDINETOOOO
Oo0O0000000000000000000000(eo05821)
Oooooooa

YTL CORPORATION BERHAD

Notes to the Financial Statements
= 30 June 2019

14. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES ICONT'D.}

Effective Equity
Interest
Flace of 2019 2018
Mame of Company Incorporation  Princlpal Activitles %o W
Held through YTL Cement Berhad:
{ront'd.)
Mini-Mix 5dn. Bhd, Madaysia Manufacture & sale of ready.mix concrete 9803 5799
Bt huiring of vehickes
Meobljack Sea Sdn. Bhd Malaysea Quarry business & related services 9803 arog
Mutual Prospect Sdn. Bhd. Mataysia Quarry business & related sarvices 8603 9799
hanyang Cement Pra. Ltd * Singapare Cernent terminal oparatinn, buls breaking 98.02 qr99
activities and trading n camant
Casis Visian Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia Production, selling & distriouticn of 3500 3490
corsstruction & building materlals
PT. ¥TL Semen Indonasia * Indonesis Manutacture & sale of ordinary portiand 9803 G790
cement & ready-mixed concrete
Patiang Ceingnt Marketing Sdn, Bal Makysiy Iriat vt 98.03 9790
Pahang Cement Sdn. Bhd Malaysia Manufacture & sale of cedinary portiand 9803 97490
cement. clinker & redated products
Perak-Hanjoong Simen Sdr. Shid, Mataysia Manufacture & sale of ondinary portind 9803 9799
cement. clinker & refated products
Pramedalan Hitee Sdn. Bhd Matyysia Quarry business & refatod sorvices 9803 9rog
PHS Trading Sdn. Bhd Malaysia Management of plant 9803 9rag
PMICIWS Enterprises Pte. Ltd, *# Singapaore Investment halding 75.456 -
Proburlders. Centre Sdn. Bhd, Mikaysan Trading of cement ard other buiding 75.46 .
{in members voluntary Bquidatien) *= matetlals
RC Aggeerates Sdn. Bhd Malaysia Handiing of construction waste materials 9803 oroo
and sales of the recycled concrate
aggregates
Siney Mobile and Heavy Equipment Makaysla Trading & maintenance of trucks & parts 88.03 9759
5dn. Bhd ks heawy equipment
Slag Cement S8n Ohd, Mgy Manutacture & sale of codinary portand 98.03 S799
cement & blended cemant
Siag Cemant (Southern] Sdn Bhd Malaysia Manifacture & sale of ordinary portiand 9803 974
cement & blended cemant
ML Mix Sdn, Bhd Mikaysin Irsctivee 98.03 9793
‘Sofaris Concept Sdn. Bhd Malaysaa Production, selling & distribution of Sp.00 40407
coritruction & billding materais
Straits Cement Sdn. Bhd, Mataysia Manufacture & sale of ordinary portiand 9803 9ran
cement. clinker and relatad products
Tugas Sefahtera Sdn. Bhd. Maliysia Investment halding 9803 G799
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Effective Equity
Interest
Place of 2019 2018
Hame of Company Incorporation  Principal Activities Y e
Held through YTL Cement Berhad:
{cont'd.}
Supermix Concrate Pre. Lid, *# Singapore Iwestment holding 7546 -
YTL Cement (Camiodia) Holdings PTe Lid®  Sngapone Dormant S8.032 97499
YTL Cemant Enterperse Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia Iwestment hoiding 9803 9799
YTL Cement (Hohg Kong) Lemited * Hong Konhg Iwestment holding 98.03 97.99
¥TL Cement Marketing Sdn. Bhd, Malaysia Sale & marketing of cementitous products 9803 9799
YTL Cement Marketng Sngapore Singapore Sale & marketing of cement, cementitious 98,03 59799
Pie. Lid. * products & other related comstruciion
products
YTL Cemant Myarmar Company Myanmar Manutacture & sale of ordinary portland 98.03 97.99
Lirnited * cement & refated products
YTL Coment (Myanmar] Haldings Ao Inwpstmient holding 9803 4974949
Pte. Lid. *
YTL Cemant (Philippines) Haoldings Singapore Dormant 98.03 57499
Pte. Led. *
¥TL Comant (Sabah) Sdn Bhd Malaysia Imdgstment holding §803 9793
¥TL Cament Singapone Pre, Lid, * Singapare Iwestment holding, general importers & 9803 9799
exporters of constmection matariats
YTL Cemant Terminal Services Singapore Operaticn of port terminal & handling of 98.03 97993
Pte, Lid. * cementitious products
YTL Cement (Vietnam) Pre. Lid * Shngapone Ivgstmit hokding 88.03 9799
YTL Concrete (5] Pre, Lid, * Singapore Manufacture of ready-mixed concrete, 98.03 g97.045
wholesale of structura’ clay & concrote
products & mixed construction activities
YTL Premix Sdn. Bhd. Malay=ia Trading of building materials & related 98.03 97.99
sarvices
Zhejiang Hagzhou Dama Cement The People's Manufaciune & sate of ordinary portland 98.03 9793
Co. Lid * Republic af cement, dirker and relaed products
China
hajiang ¥TL Cement Marketing The Pecple’s Sale & marketing of cementitious products 9808 9799
Co, L1d * Republic of
China
Held thraugh ¥TL Charters Sdn. Bhd.
Island Adr Sdn. Bhd Malaysia Chartening of sroratts 80.00 8000
Nusantara Sakti Sdn. Bhd, Maldysla Cartiage of passengers & air carmiers 80.00 B0O00
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Effective Equity
Interest
Place of 2019 2018
Mame of Company Incorporation  Principal Activities Y %
Held through YTL e-Solutions
Berhad:
Airzed Servites Sdn. Bhd, Makaysia Irsctivie 5600 SGOD
Alrred Hroadband San. Bhd M ysea Frowiding sered né b wirsless broadband J0.00 000
imternet access sendoes & developing
producing. marketing, sefing &
maintainng seftware applications,
research & development, consultancy &
redaled senvies
Bizsurf MS5C Sdn. Bl Malaysea Inattive 6000  EO00
Infascrien Networks Lid, * England & Wales Investment halding 100.00 10000
PropertyMetAsia [Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd Malaywaa Inative 100000 10000
¥TL Info Screen Sdn. Bhd Malaysia Creatng, providing & advertising content, 100000 10000
media, weld media & up to date
Information via electronic media
¥Max Sdn, Brd. Matnysia inactive 100.00 10000
¥-Max Netwarks Sdn. Bhd. Madaysia Providing computer natworking & related 6000 5000
Information technology senvices
¥-Max Sclutions Holdings Sdnc Bhd Mataysia Imvestment halding 100.00 10000
Held through ¥TL (Guernsey)
Limited:
¥TL Construction (54) (Proprietasy) Lid! South Africa Inactive 100.00 10000
Held through YTL Hospitality
REIT (“YTL REIT"):
Starhil Hospitakty (Australia) Pry. Lid. *  Austrafia Trustee company 56.95 LeO2
Stawhil Hospitakity REIT (Australia) Mrstrafia Real estate irvestment 56.95 S92
Trurst*
Starhil Hospitakty REIT [Brishana) Australia Real estate irvestment 5695 BE02
Trust *
Stashil Hospitality REIT (Melbourme) Austratia Real estale investment 56.95 Sha2
Trust *
Starhil Hotpitakty REIT (Sydney) Austrafia Real estate irmvestmant 56.95 56492
Trurst *
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Effective Equity
Interest
Place of 2019 2018
Hame of Company Incorporatien  Principal Activities k0 %
Held through YTL Hospitality
REIT ["¥TL REIT"): {cont'd.)
Searhill Hospitality REIT {fhustrafa) Malaysin Investment holding 5695 5692
Sabn, Bhd
Starhill Hotel (Australia) Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia Iwestmernt holding 56.95 SR O2
Starhill Hotel {Brisbane) Pty Ltd, * Australia Hatal operataor 56.95 56482
Searhill Hatal (Maltourne) Py, Lid. ® Aistralia Hatal nparator 56.95 Sh452
Srarhill Hotel (Sydney) Pry, Lid * Auistralia Hatel operatar 56,05 5692
Starnill REIT (Austrafia) Pty. Ltd. ® Australia Trustes company 56.95 56.92
Starhill REIT Hiseko GK. * lapan Purchase. possession, dispesal, lease and 56.95 56,92
management of real properties
¥TL REIT MTN Sdr. B, Malaysla To undertake the issuance of madium 56.95 5692
T Nones
Held through YTL Hotels &
Properties Sdn. Bhd.:
Autodiome S Bhd Malaysia Operator of food & beverage outkels & 100,00 100,00
sub-letting of premises
Bath Hotel & SPA BY, * Netherlands Inwestment halding 100.00 10000
Bath Hotel and SPA Ltd. * Englard b Wales Hotel developer and aperatad 100.00 10000
Barneo Cosmeceatical Sdn Bhd, Malaysia Developmant of holiday resorts 90.00 9000
Bomeo istand Villas Sdn. Bhd Malaysia Dormant B0.00 S000
Comeron Highlands Resart Sdn, B, Malaysia Hatel B resort operato 10000 100,00
Ciamand Retioe Sdn. Bhd, Maliysia Operator of food & beversge outket 5100 5100
Cainsborough Hotel (Bath) Limded * England & Wales Hotel operatians 100,00 100.00
Classhouse Hotel {Cayman) Limited * Cayman klands  kwestment halding 10000 10000
Classhouss Hatel Limited * Englard & Wales kwastmert holding 100,00 100.00
Happy Steamboat St Bhd, Malaysia artive 100,00 10000
Magna Boundary Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia Hotel & resoet operator 90.00 0000
Martile Valley Sdn, Bhi Malaysia Maragement & investment Ralding 80.00 BOODO
Marhile Valley Twwn S, Bhd Malaysila Haovd operator 64.00 £400
M Hote! Management Pie. Lid. * Singapore Hotlel maragement sarvices 51.00 51.00
Moricey ldand Progartias Limied * England & Wales Investmert & praperty holding 10000 100:00
Nesw Architecture ([BEray) Limited © Englard & Wales Hatel operator 100,00 10000
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Effective Equity
Interest
Flace of 2019 2018
Name of Company Incorporation  Principal Activities % %a
Held through YTL Hotels &
Properties Sdn. Bhd.: (cont'd.)
hisadoo Village KK. ! Japan Chwining. managing. maintaining and 100.00 10000
demveloping the Niseko Village Resort
hizeleo Village (5) Pte_ Ltd, * Singapare Investment halding 10000 10000
KW, Land GK. 1 |apan Construction, development, sale & 100u00 10000
purchase of rea properties
P.T. jepun Bali ' Indanesia Managag & operating o hotel 100,00 10000
Restaran Kisap Sdn, Bnd. Makaysia Inactive 100.00 10000
Rw Cower Street Limited * England & Waes Hotal cperatinms 100.00 10000
RW Greenside Place Limied® England & Wales Hotal cperations 100.00 10000
RW Thimatnaeclke Street Limited * England & Wates Horel operations 100.00 10000
‘Samui Hotel 2 Ca, Ltd. * Theaitand Hotel cperator 100.00 10000
Seitul Park Koi Centre Sdn, Bhd Mulaysia Breeders, wholesaes, retoers & 100.00 10000
distributons of kol fsh
Starhil Hotel (Perth) Pty. Lid, ! Australiy Trustee coeampany 100.00
Starhil Hotel (Perth) Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia Investment halding 100.00 -
Starhil Hotel (Perth) Trust * Austrafia Raal estata imvestmant 100.00 -
Staehil Hotel Operstor (Perth) Pry. Lie®  Austratia Hatel cperators 100.00 .
Starhil Office (Perth) Pty Lid ! Australia Trustee cofmpany 1o00.00
Starhil Offace (Perth) Trust ' Arstrafia Real estate irvestment 100.00 -
Starhil Retail [Ferth) Py, Ld, ! Austrafia Trustes company 100.00
Starhil Retall [Feorth) Trust Australia Real estats irvestment 100.00
Star Hill Hotel Sdn. Bhd Malaysia Hotel cperatoy 100.00 10000
Thenmae Davelopment Company Englond & Wales Licence 1o operate the Thermae Bath Spa 100000 10000
Limited * tompiex
Threadneedles Hoted Limfed * England & Wales Invesiment halding 100.00 10000
¥TL Heritage Hotels Sdn. Bhd. Mataysia Dormant 100,00 100,00
YTL Hotwels BY. ! Meathe lands Investrmaent halding 100.00 10000
¥TL Hotels (Cayman) Limined ! Cayman Islands  Hotel cperater & hatal management 100.00 10000
SEVICES
¥TL Hotels Cenifral Sendices Sdn. Bhd.,  Malaysia Digrmant 10000 10000
YTL ICHM Sdn. Bhd. (formarly known as  Mataysia Praviding professional & commarial Jo.on 7000
TTL Hotel Management Sandges education & training m hospitakly
Sdn, Bhd]
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Effective Equity
Interest
Place of 2019 2018
Mame of Company Incorporation  Principal Activities B L
Held through YTL Hotels &
Properties Sdn. Bhd_: {cont'd.)
YTL Hotels {Singapore) Pre, Lid, * Singapore Travel and hespitality related business 10000 10000
YTL Majestic Hote Sdn. Bhd Malaysia Hot# operator 10000 10000
Held throwgh YTL Industries
Barhad:
Yeah Tiong Lay Brickworks Sdn Bnd.  Malaysia Inactive 100,00 10000
Yeoh Ting Lay Management Sdn Bhd.  Malaysia Dormant 10000 10000
Held throwgh YTL Land Sdn. Bhd.:
Katagreen Developmeant Sdn. Bhd. Malayzia Property lexsing and management 10000 10000
Pintar Projek Sdn. Brd. Malaysia Management of real estate imestment 70.00 Fitili]
trust funds, licensing of rademarks &
brand managerment
Puncak Serunding Sdn Bhd, Malaysin Darmant 10000 10000
Heritags |ourney Sdn. Bhd Malaysia Operator of food and beverage 10000 10000
YTL Design Services Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia Dormant 10000 10000
Held throwgh YTL Land &
Development Berhad:
Amanresorts Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia Domant 65.26 65.26
Eayurnaju Developeent Sdn, Bhd Malyysin Proparny deelopmaent B5.26 B5.26
Budaya Bersatu Son. Bhd. Malaysia Propemy development 6526 06520
Emerald Hectares Sdn. Bhd. “alaysia Dormant 4568  4LbH
Lakefront Pe Lid * Sngapore Real estate development 65.26 B5.26
Lot Ten Security Sdn. Bhd. * Malaysia Inactive 65.26 B5.26
Mayang Sari Sdn Bhd. * Malaysia Inactive B5.26 B5.26
oo ivaisa Sdn. Bhl Malaysia Dormant B5.26 G5.26
Fakatan Perakbing Sdn. Bhd Malaysin Fropery devilopmant 6526 0526
Pinnacke Trend Sdn, B Malaysia Propery development 65.260 656
PY¥P Sendinan Berhad Malaysia Property development 65.26 E5.26
Sandy Island Pre. Lid. * Sngapane Real estate developrent B526 G526
Satria Sewira Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia Dormant B5.26 B5.26
Sentul Raya Sdn. Bhd. * Malaysia Froperty development and property B65.26 B5.26
Investment
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Effective Equity
Interest
Place of 2019 2018
Name of Company Incorporation  Principal Activities % %a
Held through YTL Land &
Development Berhad: (cont'd.)
Sentul Raya Golf Ol Barhad * Makaysia Irsctivie 6526 656
Sentul Raya Oty Sdn. Bhd. ® Malaysa Property desslopment 6526 Bhdh
Sentul Park Management Sdn. Bhd. * Malaysa Park managament 65.26 6526
SR Progerty Management Sdn. Bhd *  Matayshs Provision of groperty managemenit G526 G506
atvites
Synrikat Kemajuan Perumahan Makyysia Property development 6526 G586
Megara Sdn. Bhd.
Trend Actes Sdn. Bhd Malaysaa Property dedelopment 65.26 hh.Ah
Lidapakat Bing Sdn. Bh, Matnysia Property development B526 G526
¥TL Land & Davelopment (MMEH) Mataysia Dgrmant B526 6526
Sdn, Bhd. *
¥TL Land & Development Management  Singapare Prowision of financial and management 6526 BL.2E
Pte. Led * coresultancy services
¥TL Weshwood Propemies Pre, Lid, * Singapone Fieal estate devolopment BS2E  hah
Held through YTL Power
International Berhad ["¥TL
Power”):
Altvion Water Limited * England & Wales Water supply and waste waler Sefvices 26.16 E7.56
Bel Air Den Haag Beneer BY, * Metharlands Inviestment halding 55.21 5403
BV, Hotel Bel Air Den Haag * Metherlands Hotal business 5521 5403
Celluldr Structures Sdn, Bh. * Makaysla Inactive 3313 3z42
Entorpritg Laundry Servioes Limited * England & Wakes Laundry sefvices E521 5403
Extiva Communications Sdn. Bhd Malaysia Inactive 33.13 x4
Fapper Limited * England & Wases Litility switching senaces 35.89 3512
FrogAsia Sdn. Bhd, Mk Licene vesaller ToLused on peoviding 55.21 54.03
virual kearning educatian plaform
Frag Eduscation Limited * England & Wales Safes Into the education market and 38.06 3690
further development of the web
environment product
Frag Education Groun Lamitad * England kb Wales Investrmant halding 3806 650
Frag Education Sdn, Bhd Makyysia License resaller facused on previding 3IB06 G550
virtual ksarning educatanal plattarm
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Effective Equity
Interest
Place of 2019 2018
Hame of Company Incorporation  Principal Activities Y e
Held through YTL Power
International Berhad ["YTL
Power”): [cont'd.)
Geneco EV (5] Pie, Lid, [Tomedy known Saxjapone Treanamission, destribution and sale of 55.21 54,03
a5 YTL Warter (Singapare) Pre, Lud)* electricity
Geneco Limited * England & Wales Food waste treatment 55.21 L4.03
Ceneco (South West) Limited* England & Wales Food waste eatrment 55.21 54.03
Global Infrastruture Assers Sdn Bhd ' Malaysia Dormant 55.21 -
Granite Investments (Cayman (slands) Cayman lands Dormant 55.21 5403
Lirnited *
K|S Alunan Sdn. Bhd. * Malaysia Investment halding 23.19 3242
Konsortium Jaringan Salanger Sdi. Bhd, * Malaysia Planning. implementation aw mantenance 3313 Fe42
of teleccrmmunitation towers and
lelacamimunication related services
PetroSeraya Pre. Ld. * Singapore il fraging k& odl t2nk leasing 55.21 4.0
P.T. ¥TL |awa Timur * TRlOnET Construction managenenl. consultany 55.21 54.03
zemvices and power station operation
senices
P.T, YTL Pawes Services Indonesia ' Indanesia Consultandy senioes and power Station 52.45 -
operalion senices
P.T. Tanjung jati Power Company * Indonesa Design and construction of a coal-fired 4417 4322
porwer generating facilty
Seraya Energy and msestment Sngapore Imvestment holding 55.21 54,03
Pre, Ltd, *
Seraya Energy e Ltd. * Singapore Sale of electricity E5.21 403
5C Technology Deutschland GmbH * Gemmarny Waste treatment 55.21 S4.03
SC Technology GmbH * Swatzerland Iwestmert halding 55.21 5403
5C Technology Mederinds 0. * Neatherlands Waste treatment 5521 5403
5IFP Power Sdn. Bnd, Malaysia Dormant 3865 372
Swond Bideo Holdings) Limited *2 Englard & Wales Dormant 55.21 5403
Sword Bideo Limered Englard & Wales Darmant 55.21 5403
Sword Haldings Limited Cayman hdands  Dormant 55.21 5404
Sword Midoo Limited @ Englard & Wales Dormant 55.21 54.03
Warer 2 Business Limited * England & Wales Non-houselhohd water retailes 38.65 ez
Wessex Concierge Limited * England & Wales bwestment halding 55.21 54,03
Wessex Flectricity Utilities Limited * Englard K Wales Dormant 55.21 4.0
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Held through YTL Power
International Berhad ["¥TL
Power”): (cont'd.)
Wessex Engineering & Corstruction England & Wakes  Enginesring senaces 55.21 54.03
Services Limimed *
Wiessex Logistics Limited @ England & Wales Dormant 5521 S4.03
Wessex Promotions Lid. @ England & Waes Dormant 55.21 S403
Wesseyw Property Senvices Limited * England £ Wales Dorman 5521 5403
Wessex Spring Water Limsted * England & Wales Donmant 5521 5403
Wessex Watar Lommercial Limited ¥ England & Waies Darmant 5521 5403
Wessex Water Engineering Services England & Wales Dormant 55.21 Z4.03
Limited !
Wiessex Warer Entemecses Limioed * England & Waes Power generanan and waste rearment 5521 5404
Wessex Water Intermational Limited ! Cayman Islands Dormant 55.21 2403
Wessex Watar Limited * England & Wales Imvestrnent halding 5521 T4.03
Wessex Water Porsian Scheme England £ Wales Dormant 5521 5403
Trustes Limited *
Wessex Water Services Finance Fic * England & Waes Issue of bonds 55.21 403
Wessex Water Sendices Limited * England & Wales Water supply and wasts water sefvices 55.2_1 3403
Wessed Water Trustee Company England & Wales Dosmant 5521 5403
Limived
Wiassex Utility Solutions Limited ® England & Wales Engineering senaces 55.21 403
Yakin Telesed Sdn. Bhd. * Mikaysia Planring. dewspment, implementation 16.23 342
and management of teletommunicatians
infrastructure and mformation
comimumication technologles services
Yesline Sdr Bhd Malaysia Providing solution & sevvices relating 1o 33313 3242
Imterrvet of Things (l0T) insiative
¥TL Broadband Sdn. Bhd Malaysea Provision of wired line and wirgless 26.50 2593
broadband access and other related
SETVICES
¥TL Communications International Cayman Islands  Investmant halding 33.13 Er )
Litmited ¢
¥TL Communications Scn. Bhd, Malaysia Provision of wired line and wireless 3313 Frag
lwmadband scoess and other related
SETYICES
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Effective Equity
Interest
Place of 2019 2018
Hame of Company Incorporation  Principal Activities Y e
Held through YTL Power
International Berhad ["YTL
Power™): [cont'd.)
YTL Comawmnications (5) Pre, L1d, * Sawjapone Computer systems integraton &lvilies 3313 3242
el system integration services
YTL Development (UK) Limited * Englard & Wales Housing devalopment 55.21 54.03
YTL Digital Sdn. Bhe. Malaysia Retad and matketing of telecommunication 3313 242
devices. Company hat ceased operation
during the finantial year
YTL Education (LK) Limited * England & Wales Providing advisacy and management 55.21 5403
services 1o educational institutions in the
Uk and abrosd
YTL Energy Holdings Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia Invastment holding 55.21 L4003
YTL Engineering Limited * England & Wales Dormant 55.21 54.03
YTL Events Limited * England & Wales Concert promotion 55.21 5403
YTL Global Metwarks Limited * Cayman kslands  Dormant 33.13 3242
¥TL Homes Ltd * England & Wales Housing development 55.21 5403
YTL Infrastructure Haldings Sdn. Bhd. ' Malaysia Darmant 55.21
YTL Infrastructure Limived ¥ Cayman ksands  bwestment holding 55.21 5403
YTL Jawa Enengy B.V. Matherlands Iwestmert hafding and financing activities  S§5.21 S4.03
YTL jawa 0 & M Haldings BV, “etherlands Ivestment holding 55.21 54.03
YTL fawa O & M Holdings Limited * Cypnus bvvastment halding 5521 S403
YTL jawa Pawer BV, “patherlands Imestment haiding 31.55 30.87
YTL Jawa Power Finance Limited ! Cayman kdands  Finarcial services 55.21 54,03
YTL Jowa Power Moldings BA, setharlands Iaspstmert halding 3155 3087
YTL jawa Power Hodings Limited * Cyprus Iwestment holding & financing activities 55.21 L4 03
YTL Jawa Power Services BLY, *5 Metherlands Imestment hoiding - 54.03
YTL Jordan Power Hodings Limited * Cyprue Ewestment Dodding & linancing aclivites 55.21 5403
YTL jordan Services Holdings Limited *  Cyprus kwestmert holding 5521 Ld D3
¥TL jordan Services Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia Dormant 55.21 £4.03
YL Land & Propesty (L) Lrd. England & Wales bwestment halding 5521 403
¥TL Places Limited ! Englard & 'Wales Dormant 5521 5403
YL Power Australz Limited ! Cayman islands  kwestment hoiding 55.21 5403
YTL Power Finance {Cayman) Limited '  Cayman klands  Dormant 55.21 54.03
¥TL Powvitr Geniration Sdi. Bhd, * Malaysia Duevizkoping, constructing, complanng, 5521 5403
maintanng and Goerating power plants
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Held through YTL Power
International Barhad [“¥YTL
Power”): (cont'd.)
YL Pawer Haldings Sdn, Bhd Miskirysia Barman 55.21 5403
¥TL Power Investments Limited Cayman Islands  Investment halding 5521 5403
¥TL Power International Haldings Cayman Islands  Investment halding 55.21 S403
Limited !
¥TL PowerSeraya Pre, Limited, * Singagore Cwin and operate energy facilives and 5521  S403
services (Tl value cham ol electricity
generatioh including 1rading of physical
fuels and fuel related desivative
lastruments, Tank asing & tntes e
saia aof by-produdts trom the alectricity
generation prooess)
¥TL Power (Thalland) Limited ¥ Cayman Islands  Dormant 55.21 S4.03
¥TL Pawer Trading (Labuan] Limited Malaysia Datmant 55.21 5403
¥TL Property Holdings (LK) Limited *  England & Wales Housing developrment 55.21 S4.03
¥TL Seray Limited ! Cayman Islangs  Invesimant halding S521 5403
¥TL Senices Limited * England & Wates Dormant 55.21 5403
¥TL SIPP Power Haldings Sdn. Bhd, Miskaysia Investment halding 38,65 aree
WTL Unsithes Limined ! Cayman islands  Investment halding 5521 s4.03
¥TL Utdities Finance Limited ! Cayman Islands  Financial senices 55.21 S4.03
¥TL Lniities Finance £ Limited ! Cayman Islants  Investiment halding 55.21 5403
YTL Uniitiess Finamoe 3 Limited ! Coyman Islands  Finoncial sensons 55.21 5403
¥TL Utkines Finance & Limited ¥ Cayman Islands Inactive 55.21 5403
¥TL Utiities Finance 5 Limited ! Cayman lslands  Inattive 55.21 403
WL LtFithes Finonge B Limetsd * Coviman ok Finarckal sensies 55.21 5403
¥TL Undities Finance 7 Limitec ! Cayman Islands  Inactive 5821 5403
YTL UtFities Holdings Limited Cayman Islands  Investment haolding 55.21 5403
¥TL Lndities Holdings (5) Ple. Limited *  Singapore Investmant halding 55.21 5403
¥TL Uriiies (5) Fre. Limived * Singagare Investment halding 8521 5403
¥TL Uniites (LK) Limited * England & Wates Invesiment haolding 55.21 403
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14. INVESTHMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTD.)
Effective Equity
Interest
Flace of 2019 2018
Hame of Company Incorperation  Principal Activities % L
Held through ¥TL Power Services
Sdn. Bhd.:
YTL Power Services (Cayman) Lid ! Caymman lslands  Inactive 10000 10000
YTL Power Serdices (Lieh) SARL = Lebanon Operanon b mantenance of power staton 10000 100,00
YTL Power Services (5) Pte Ltd, * Singapare Operation & mantenance of power staton | 100000 100,00
Held through YTL Singapaore
Pte. Ltd:
Cuangehou Autodome Food B Beverage The Peopias Catering management & hatel 10000 10000
Management Co, Lid » Republic af management
China
Shanghai Autcdome Food & Beverage The Peopie's Catering. sale of beverage. wine, 10000 100,00
Co, Lid * Republic of labieware, sourvenic & artwire
China
Shanghal ¥TL Hotels Management Co. The Peopla's Hotel managesment sendzes, hatel 10000 10000
Ld * Republic of development, design advisory services B
China other refatad services

Sehpichormes nat codted by HLB Lev Lum

Dxssoivied dunng rhe finoncidl yeor

Enfines arp mbher punmypted or Nk stonwoniy requied 1o be outitod

Companes Wil finanoal year anged J1 Decomber S018

First codted ook shatements in 2050

Da-rmgisternd from the Natherdands (homber of Commerte Busines: Register o3 from | Feoraary 2009 fofowing i mengsr into YTL fowa O6M Holdngs
av

Entities ore mesmying from the rguirmment of 00 andt ond dewfed wittequent the finonoiol peor

O W= @

{a) Acquisition of subsidiaries
{} Acquisition of Lafarge Malaysia Berhad ("LMB")

Om 2 May 2018, ¥YTL Cemeant Berhac ("YTL Cement”) entered into a sale and purchase of shares agreement with
Associated Intemational Cement Limitad for the acguisition of 433,344,693 ordinary shares in Lafarge Malaysia Berhad
["LME"). represanting approximately 510% of the issued share capital of LMB for a total cash consideration of
RM1625,042,538,75 or RM37S per LMB Share LMB Accuisition™)

The LME Acguésition was completed on 17 May 2019 and, accordinghy, LMB bacame a subsidiary of ¥TL Cement. Fobowing
the LMEB Acquisition, ¥TL Cament launched an unconditional mandatory general offer {"MG07) for the remaining shares
m LUMB not already owned by ¥TL Cement at an offer price of RM3.75 per LMB share. At the dlosing of the MGD on 13
Juniz 2019, acceptance of the offer haye been received for 220,754,635 shares with a total cash consideration of
RMBZ 7 HE7 381, As a result, ¥TL Cemant owned a 1otal of 76958%, of the issued share capital of LMB
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14. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES ICONT'D.)
{a) Acquisition of subsidiaries (cont'd.)
(i) Acquisition of Latarge Malaysia Berhad {"LMB")
Details of the corsidaration transtednsd ara

RM'O00

Purchase considesation 2,452,910
Lesy: shafe of nelt assets aoquired

Fair valug of net assets acquined 2,466,070

Share goodwill Lo nos-controling interest {248,360)

2,217,710

Prowisional goodwil 235 200

The provisicnally determned carmydng amount of the assets and liabiitles as at the date of acguisivon are as folows:

Carrying

amount

RM'O00
Property. plant and equipment 1,677.633
Irepstiment properties 4. 467
Intangible assets 1,404,349
mvestment in faint wentures 22,332
Qi irvestments 4,107
Oeferred 1ax assets 72,027
Imeentories 353,639
Recaivables 398.351
nCOMe 3K A5581S 42,970
Cash and cash equivatents 48,938
Payables and actrued expenses {571,838)
Boetgwdngs (2249,835)
Retirement benefits (54.0816)
Derivative financial nstruments 160
MNar=controlling ilerest (6.414)
entlable net assets aoguired 2,466,070
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14. INVESTHMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONT'D.)
{i} Acquisition of Lalarge Malaysia Berhad ["LMB™) (cont'd.}
Details of cash Now arising foom the s0quesition ane a5 Tolows:
RM OO0
Purchase consideration 2,452,910
Less: gash and tash equivalents (48.938)
Nt eash sttlow an acqulsitian 2,403,972

(i) Holcim (Singapore) Limited ("Holcim®)

0019 une 2015, YTL Cement Singapore Pre. Ltd (Y TL Cement Singapone’), a wholly-saned subsidiany of YTL Cement
Berhad, acquired S0.78% of the fssued share capisal of Holom (Singapane) Limited ("HSL"), comorising 40,236,655
erdnary shares. at a total cash consideration of SGD65,988,114 20, As a result, H5L became & subsidrary of ¥TL
Cemont Singapere and an indirect subsidiary of the Groug.

Details of the consideratian transferred are:

RM OO0
Purchase consideration 201,950
Less: share of net assers acquited
Falr value of net assets acquired 17,090
Non-cortrolling interest [1.576)
15,514
Provisional goodwill 186,436

The provisionally determined carrying amount of the assets and labilities as at the date of atguisition are as follows:

Fair value

RH 00D

Praperty, plant and equpment BB.597

irventories 5,387

Recewables 16,008

Cash and cash equivalents B.650
Payables and accrued expenses (34,586)
Borrewsings [48,966)

Idantifiable met assets acquired 17,090
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14. INVESTHENT IN SUBSIDIARIES ICONT'D.)
{a) Acquisition of subsidiaries [cont'd.)
(i} Holcim [Singapere) Limited ("Holcim™) [cont'd.)
Deraiis of csh Tiow Mising from the acquisition ire o5 follows:

RM'O00
Purthase considesation 201.950
Less: cash and cash equivalents (B.650)
Mot eash outflow on acquisition 193,300

Thee purchase price allocation of the acquisiton of Latarge Malaysia Berhad and Holcim (Sasgapore) Lid in the fimancial
year ended 30 june 2019 were provisional as the Group is 51l In the process to ascerain the falr value of the
elentifiable not wsots

(i) Aequisition of Bel Alr Den Haag B, (“Bel Alr™)

On 28 june 2008, YTL jawa Enargy BLY, ["YTLIE™, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group acguited entire
isaused and cutstanding shares of Bel A

Detais of 1he conskleration transferred are;

RMOO0

Cash consideratian BT 432
Loans owing 1o former sharaholder [192,995]
Purchase cansideraton exeluding TTARNSICTON Cosis 9 446
Fair valu= ol net assets acquired (19.834)
Prowisional goodwil 74602
Share to non-controlling interest (34,285)
40307

Thae previsionally determined fair vaioes of the assets and labilines as at the date of acqusition ane as Tollows:

Fair value

RM'O00

Property. plant and equipment 268,400
Recaivables. depasits and prepayments 45616
Cash and cash equivalenis 1036
Payables ard scowed expenses [L1.484)
Loans payable [192,99E)
Deferred taxation (55.747)
Hentifiable net assets acguired 19.834
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14. INVESTHMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONT'D.)
{a) Acquisition of subsidiaries [cont'd.)
(i} Acquisithon of Bel Alr Den Haag B.V. ["Bel Air”) (cont'd.)
Details of cash Now arising hrom the soquisition sne i Tolows:
Fair value
RH OO0
Purchase consideration excluding transaction costs 94,436
Trorwsaction cost icurred 3,756
Less: cash and cash eguivalents {7.03E}
Final purchasze consideration including trarsaction costs aL1568
Lo owing to formes shameholdes 1582996
Nt cash outllow on acguisition 24,152
{b) Hon-contrelling Interests in subsidiaries
The Growp's subisidiakes that have material non-controlling interest [NC) are as follows:-
other
Lafarge  individually
YTL Power SCREIT ¥TL REIT Malaysia  immaterial
(Group Growmp Group Berhiad  smbsidiaries Total
Growp - 2009 RM000 RH'000 RH'G00 RHO00 RM 000 RH000
Tl i fo ot éncraty movesst T 635% 4305% 2205
Camying amourt of K1 ZA1L526 3741188 ThB. 437 257.625 505073  7.63LBSS
Profit allccased te MCI 115,329 150,445 46,275 [3.445) 118,925 476,526
Srrngrsid Bradial il pimdion beloe e -LOmpDay e
As at 30 June 2019
Ron-qauniet dasety 34,168,822 4379.7E2 4681459 3432128
Cumeni 35581 12,104,156 235,535 183318 LD0ET43
Hon-corrent kzbdiges [23,275.311) (3.208.684) (LOL7,356)  [323,255)
Ciserant Rahilties [10,127.005)  (S00.398) (L110.321) (L.573.537)
Het mseets 12870662 590663  R7ILI00 2544079
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14, INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES ICONT'D.)
{b} Mon-contralling interests in subsidiaries {cont'd.)

The Group's subsidiaries that have materal mon-controlling inferest ("NCT) are a5 Tollows- (contd.]

Oiber
Latarge  Individually
1L SCREIT YTL REIT Malaysia  immaterial
Graiip Grolip Groiip Berhad  subsidiaries Tatal
Group - 2019 RM'DO0 RH000 RM000 RM'0O0 RM'0C0 RM'000
Year ended 30 june 2019
Fovene 11,732,716 623,355 490,905 162,022
FrfigTiera) lor the yeir 613528 158,282 104673 17.294)
Total compriftenig Bomeki) 414,374 2310 152,743 (17,155)
LCarshy fow fromyTused in] ooerating acthites 1.248.400 293,749 221676 9.355)
Carsh fiow Framy{izsed ) investing activits 137 412 (23.202)  (347.693) (2.365)
Cath Moy [ il tnom tranding acthities Iu,ﬂa {H?,ﬂﬂ 120,382 =
Nl changes in cath and cath equivalenty 118.250 231,313 15.635] {1720
Devidend paid 1o NO 17875 183,222 56,005 -
[
individuaily
YTL Powesr SCREIT YTLREIT  immatetial
Group Graup Group  subsidiaries Total
Group - 2018 M 000 RM'00D RH'000 RM'000 RH'000
N0 effertve sty inferess 45507 £354% 4306%
Carrying amount of HO 25T 17595 18318 87027 15IR5E
ProfT alocated o N0 102,715 184,155 &ab0d i=r 136l
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14. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONT'D.)
{b] MWoen-controlling interasts in subsidiaries (cont'd.)
sumnmarsed flinancal inlormaton belore inter-oompany el minatian
Other
individually
YTL Pewer SGREM YILREIT  Immatedial
Group Growp Group  sebsidleies Tatal
RHDOO RHG00 RHOO00 RH'00 RH00O0
As 3t 30 fure 2018
hn-{urenl #hety ELSEAE LY 9332 TH5 431471
CLimeni assets FALIAE] 2i0STE 15T
Hon-cument [abities WEATe3l)  (@A2RE20  (LGERSEN
Curent fatalities [RAHR1TT (3445 1104558
Kt annets. 13074,215 50,007 LTIREY
Year ended 30 june 2018
B 16,605,850 G34.168 500853
Frofit for the year Fil: kv PR AeE 236559
Tolad Comprehenshe omefios} 75,605 (B5490) 32LEST
v Hhowy Brovs gt Al Baed LR Pz g ] 7R
Cash flow usad in investing actiities (L119347) [Z2.7R5) [13.057]
Cash flow Lsed financiny actvities [L=4L239) (303557 [Z03445)
Nt changes in Cash and cash equislonts [LI7z780) Fedrell 28119
Dwvidored usmd iy I 1B0.E53 190293 SET4
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Group Company
2019 2018 2013 2018
RM'O00 RM'000 RM'000 RM'0D0
Unquoted ordinary shares, at cost 1.743.643 1,355,513 205,241 205,241
Share of past-acquisition resares 902.538 583489 = -
Aliawance for impalmeant [65.016) {BALAHH - -
2,581,165 2,275,515 205.241 205,241
Details of the associate ae as follows:
Effective Equity
Interest
Place of 2019 2018
Hame of Company Incorporation Principal Activities W e
Held by the Company:
Express Rail Link 5Sdr. Bhd, * Malaysia Operation & mantenance of the Express 45.00 4500
Rail Link redbaay system bebween Kuals
Lumpur Intérmational Alrport and Kuala
Lurmpor Intermational Alipart 2 in Sepang
with Kiuala Lumpur Soateal Station
Trans-Pacific Resars Sdn. Bhd, Malaysia Inactive 50.00 5000
Held through Business & Budget
Hotels Sdn, Bhd.:
Business & Budget Hotels (Kuantan}  Malaysia Hotel operator 50.00 S0.00
5dn, Bhid
Hald through Syarikat Pambanaan
Yeoh Tiong Lay Sdn. Bhd.:
Narth South Devclopment Sdn. Bhd.  Malaysia Realty. mwestment & management services 49.00 4900
Held through YTL
Cayman Limited:
¥TL (Thailand) Limited * Thallang nvestment halding 4990 4990
Held through YTL Cement Berhad;
Comantitious Prodiscts Pto. LEd, #* SEu]apoie Conoral wholesale trade [mcluding goneral 49.01 4B 59
importers and expories]
Fico Tay Minh Cemert joint Stock Vietnam Manufacture & sale of crdinary portland 49.04 2946
Company °* cement & blanded cement
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15. INVESTMENT IN ASS0CIATE (CONTD.)
Effective Equity
Interest
Place of 2012 2018
Hame of Company Incorporation Principal Activities %% L

Held through YTL Cement Berbhad:

Hargzhou Linan Harun Constmsction The People's Quaarry business & relared senvices 29.40 29359
Materats Co, Ltd (farmerly knows a5 Republic of
Liman Herun Construction Materials China

Co. L) =
Mhu Anh Investment joint Stock Watnam Investment holding 49.01
Company *
Superb Aggregates Sdn. Bhd, Malaysia Extraction. removal, prodessing & sale of 49.01 48599
sand
Held through YTL e-Solution
Berhad:
Endiess Momentum Sdn. Bhd? Malaysia Imnvestment holding 30.00 0,00
Held through YTL Hotels &
Properties Sdn. Bhd.:
Earsteim & Oriental Express Lid™ Barmuda Cwmership & management of the luory train - 3200 J200
serdies known a8 the 'Eastern & Criental
Express
Surin Bay Company Lid. Thailand Histe apesator 49.00 4900
Trans-Pacific Hotels Sdn. Bhd Malaysia Inactive 50.00 5000
Held through YTL Power
International Berhad:
ElectraMit Pry. Ltd. ** Aurstralia Principal electricity transmission 18.50 1810
Enefit jordan BV, * Netherlands Investment holding 16.56 1621
P.T. i P ** Indonesia Operate a coal-fined thermal power statian 11.04 om

Componies ror auaited by LR Ler Lum
O Componecs wdihl financial yeor ond of 71 Devemoer
ENies fe einher exermted o noT STOAoAly fequived fo De oudired
+  The Group's ceect itsest i Beciroes Py, Ll ond T, Jowi Power ore 33.5%6 ondd 35 0% respectvidly

A irdicared above, the financll year end of certain Jssociated companies are pot co-terminaus with that of the Group, Far
the purnose af appiving the pauty methad of accounting, these comparies ursdited timancial SEatements made ug to 30 june
wire used in conjunction with their audited financial statements for the fnancial yoar endad 31 Decembar a5 the case may be
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15. INVESTHMENT IN ASS0CIATE (CONT'D.)
{a) Acquisition of new assoclated company

0 19 Novernber Z01E. YTL Cement Vietnam Pie, Lid {YTL Cement Vietham'}, a wholy-owned subsidiay of YTL Cement
Berbnd, acquired & total of S0% of msuld and aaid-up share cagital of Nhw S Insestment Joint Stock Cempany [TNhi
Anh") comprsing 115,000 ordinary share of VND10,000 each for & 1o0tal cash consideration of WNDE22,139.074.830, Asa
reswlt. Nhu Anh became an associated company af YTL Cement Vetnam

Orv 13 Decemnbier 2006, Mo Ardy subscnibed for thee right ssue o 99,775,074 shaees in Fice Tay Ninh Cement joint Stode
Company {"Fica Tay Ninh Cement”). As a result, Fico Tay Ninh Cemrent became 2 39.51% associated company af Nhu Anh
and theretoe increasied the stfscTive aquity inTarest of thie Company in Fico Tay Minh Cemant,

O the Lama day, Nhu Arh gsued In aggregate 4 printpal ameunt of YMNDL, 015,000,000 camertible bonds to the follawing
eSO
i ¥TL Cement Vietnarm with principal amaun? of YNOS06,000,000.000
{5} Concrete Star Limived with principal amaunt of YND304,000.000.000
(5] Indlusirial Procuremant Limited with principal amount of ViWD202,.000,000,000
N Ak had subsedquently subscribed an addiigamal 10,000 shares in Fico Tay Nenh Cornant on 13 February 2009 with the
perceniage of sharcholdngs remains a1 39.91%.
(b} Additienal investment in associated company

0n 13 December 2018, Induswlal Procurement Limited [industrial Procurement™) subscribed for the right ssue of 42,924.826
ahares in Fea Tay Ninh Cement Joint Stock Comaany (Fica Tay Ninh Comant™), The equity interest af Industrial Procurement
in Fico Tay Minh Cement remasns unchanged
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15. INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATE (CONT™D.)

Tha summarised financial information of material aseaciates adusted for any differentes in accounting policias batwesn the
Group and the assatiates mnd reconcliation 1o ™e camying amount of the Group's interes] in the associates ane a5 Toliows:-

{a) Summarised financial information:

Fioo Tay Nink Cement
P.T. |awa Power Electrabiet Pry, Ltd. Jeint Stock Company
2019 2014 209 Fislfi] 2019 2018
R 000 RMO0D RH 000 RM000 RMO00 RH' D00
Non-current asets 4,446,818 4463505 9,670,335 9144 064 EEL ) 04430
Current a55ets 1074 410 LOOLES 12712 118,787 162,045 142225
Kor-gurrent Lzt [B15,962) (BEZEIT) (2,087,638) {aEga8an (900} (151360
Cument Habilfies (26:9.317) (EATES) [LAS3TTH) (22267249 {B6,557) (5455
Nt ety 4,435,548 4524059 L256.037 1347295 458,305 e
Profit Far the Fnanclal yeo E99,088 614,584 122,925 135361 30,774 178
[ther comprebemive bois. - - (179,855) [T.67S) - ]
Total comprehensie infomes B99,008 914504 |56,930) 127686 20,774 1778
Included in the total comprehenshie
intome is:
Ry 2,365,529 LA45104 1,150,574 LiBLEs 2577 491
Dither infarmation:
[rterds tecamed from
500t 3|5.772 5205 - ] 7.974 1283
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15. INVESTMENT IN ASS0CIATE (CONTD.}

The summarsed finantlal infermation of mataral as<ociates adjusted far any dilferences in scounting policies betwean the
Group and the assotates and reconciliabion o the carrymg amount of the Group's interest in the assaciales are a5 followe-
[eont'd )

{b) Reconciliation of net assots to carrying amount:

Fica Tay Ninh Cesent
P.T, [awa Pawer ElectraNet Pry. Ltd,  [oint Stock Company Tetal

208 200 29 208 28 Wl@ 0 2019 0 A
RMDOS  RMOO0  ANDOO  RH'0O0  AMDOO  RMUOOD  RMOOO  RWOOD

Openng ret aset 1 july 4524038 4B30: L3738 1505509 210,640 216047 GOELA1M  GELOTEE
RIEdse in pgURy - y g - 2547 < 2EL4TR .

Profia for e financal yesr B99.088  Gl45E1 122908 13536] 0,774 1LNE LOS27Ey  LOS7ESE
{ther comgrehensive Iow - - [179,855) (7RIS - - [179.855) (TR
Fotesgn eachange df e 115027  [290240)  [34.268)  [1473ED) 1795 Lo40 B2554  [IETED)
Dhvidend pad (1102.205)  G8%417 = (13007 (63ITE) (24155 (L12ESBY) (L15208
Diosirg inet asspts. 30 june AA5948 1500 LISEDIT  1A472F 4BE 308 H0E4D BAB0EL  A0SLENM

Wit b st it el

i By subsickany F.00% 0% - 3150% 5 S0.03% 00T

Interest i atsatise LS52582 ¢ 1583414 420072 4513 2. B3H 20067 20T

Goodwi - - - - 15,154 1L 15,154 144

Carrying amoent 1552582 15834l 4207 A5138 248,447 TIEI R22MOL  ZMIEGTE

Goodwil amounting to RM 38,511,000 {20018 RM37,853,000) wes included in the cGrmying amount of investment in associated
CoETpanies

The individually Frematerial associate's carmypes] amount (5 RM358,364,000 (2018: AM1E2.942.000) and the Group's share
of total comprehensive incoms is RM7E.040,000 (2018 total comprehensive |oss is RM7.0G2,000)
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16. INVESTHMENT IN JOINT VENTURES
Group
2019 2018
RM OO0 RH OO0
Unguated ordinary shares, at cost 265,363 82216
Shiwe of post-dcquisition resenves 2,209 B8.807
Alpwance for impaimmem ﬂ,!lﬂ] [3.358)
264,184 147,635
Details of the joint ventures are as follows:
Effective Equity
Interest
Place of 2019 2018
Hame of Company Incorperatien Principal Activities Ha e
Held through ¥TL Cement Berhad:
Allance Concrete Singepare Pte. Ltd.  Singapore Production and sale of ready-mix concrate 49.02 -
Held throwgh YTL Land &
Development Berhad:
Shorefront Development Sdn. Bhd Malaysia Property devalapment 32.63 263
Held through ¥TL Power
International Berhad:
Attarat Mining Compary B, Metherands Mimng & supply of ail shale £4.84 2431
Artarat Operatian and Maintenancs Netharlands Dperation & maintenance of Powar Plant 24,84 2441
Comgany BV
Attarat Power Holding Company BV,  Metherlands Investment holding and financing activities 24.84 2491
Bristol Wessex Billng Services Limited England & Wales Billing services 27.61 2702
¥changing Malaysia Sdn, Bhd, Malaysia Mabile ntemet and cloud-based technalogy 1B6.57 1621
solutons
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16. INVESTMENT IN JOINT VENTURES (CONT'D.)

The summarised financial information of material oint ventures adusted for any differences in atcounting policies between
the Group and The joint ventures and recanciliation 10 the carying amount of the Growm's mlenest in The josil ventures #e as
Tallorvs-

{a) Summarised financial information:

Artarat Power Holding Artarat Mining
Company BV, Campany B,
2019 2018 2019 2018
RM'O0OD RM DOOD RMODO RM'O00
MNan-curment assets 6,484,153 3,852,191 3.251 2481
Current assets 31,528 91520 354,220 262,396
Hen-curment llabilities (5.731,014) (1,332, 668) - -
Current liabilities (578,558) {551,804) (125,313) {123,353
MNel assels 206,109 59,245 232,158 141524
{Lossl'Profit for the financial year (20.135) [r.O44) 107.234 H29.411
Dther comprehensive (loss)intome (198.096) JL&80 - -
Total comprehansive flossiineme (218.231) 24636 107.234 B9.411
Included in the total comprehensive
income is:
Feviemss - - #475,.499 440, 500
Other infarmation:
Dividends received from joint wentures - - 8.278 -
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16. INVESTMENT IN JOINT VENTURES (CONT'D.)

The surmmarised financial information of materal joint ventures adjusted for any differences in actounting palicies between
e Group and the jaint ventures &d reconciation to the carmying amaunt of the Group’s imterest in The joint ventures &8 a5
follonws - [Cont'd.)

{b) Reconciliation of net assets to carrying amount;

Amarat Power Holdings
Company B.V. Attarat Mining Company BLV. Tatal
2019 2018 209 2018 2019 2018
RH000 AM00D RH'DOD RM'DO0 AMO0D RHBO0
Opering net assets | juby 56,245 2441} 141,524 55 26] 200,769 43820
e in gty ! 362,504 ; - . 362,524 5
LSSkt for wo finani yise (20,135) (04 107.234 B241 87,093 B2367
Dther comprehensve {oss)iroome {198,096) 11680 - - [196.1095) 1= ]
Capital resenves - [ratis ] - - (et
Retassification of recehebie from joint
wenmune - BI0LE - - E04L
Foreign enhange cifferences in 100 4,007 (45460 6,164 (4.0
Divieterd paid = - [20.617) * {20.617) 4
Choning rel assets, 30 e 206,109 55245 b2 AL 1415 430,267 ZTES
ftafest in rnd vartures diect Fokd by
subsidiary 450% 450 45.0% £50%
Camying amours 92,749 ZE/E50) 104,471 53 B85 197.220 S034E

Duringy i finononl peor, foint veahee shonsholders of Attood Power Holding Corpory BV mooe shore prossim contrition on £3 shores in
Artarat Power Holding Compony 8V for considerotion of AM2625 milkon; seiterment by wiry of offustting off laons oaing fo e reggoctie
JoénT winEune Shanefoiders

The individually immatarial joint ventures’ carmping amount s RME7.0 mllon (2018: RMS57.0 million), Group's share of peofits
Is AM7.7 million {2018: RME.0 milan) and the Group's share of total comprehensive loss Is RMELA million (2018: tatal
comprehensive income of RM20.2 millicn),
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17. INVESTMENTS

Group Company
2019 2018 2019 2018
Mote RM'O00 RM'000 RM'000 RM' 000
Mon-current assets
Awailatde-for-sale financial assels IFE] - 345.708 = 42,186
Fanancial assets an falr va'we through profit
or loss ] 346,510 750,067 34,968 -
Ferancial ass2ts at fair vaue through other
comprehensive income 17(e) 63,461 - 5.477 =
409,971 LI3BITS 44,445 42188
Current assets
Fimancial ass=ts at fair vaiue through profit
or loss ] 2,352,947 2,650,117 T97.277 TE6. 448
{a)} Awailable-for-sale financial assets
Thir imeestmients are in relation to the Tolowing:
Group Company
2019 2018 2019 2018
RM'O00 RM'000 RM'000 RM' 00O
Quoted eqguity investments
= Within Malaysia - 15585 - T
- Outside Mataysia - £9H3Y - r2a4
Unquatied eguity imestmints
- Within Malaysia - 30,657 - 29,600
- Outside Malayzia - 270627 - -
- 346,708 - 42186
Fair value gain recognised in other
comprehenshie income during the financial
year - 21333 - 10,780
Impairment loss # [L.907) - (958)
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17. INVESTMENTS (CONT'D.}Y
(b} Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Thee Fwestments are in relation 1o the fallowing:-
Group Company
2019 2018 2019 2018
RH'OOO RM'O00 RM'OD0D RM'DOD
Income funds *
Wittin Malaysla &3, 707 1.BB3, 659 -
- Qutside Malaysia 859,158 7HE,234 - -
Equity funds
- Witnin Malaysia 5,976 : 5,976 -
- Dutside Malaysia 326,391 * 18,489 -
Qucted equity investmants
- Within Malaysia 4,155 . 4,155
- Outside Malaysia 6,348 ; 6,348
Uingqueated equity meesTments
- Dutside Malaysia 3,640 3833 - -
Unquoted prefengnce shares
- Within Malaysia - . F :
Unquoted wmt trusts
- Within Malaysia BE2,082 TEE, 448 793,277 766 448
2,699,457 3440184 B32,245 Teb 448

Net far walue gatn'({loss) on avestments 62,507 [27.382) 1,288 -

Financin! ousars ar ol wahse thiooah pralit of i conusT of inwesirmen n fcome fime poced with Soanssd findnciol istimubions The bn ome
Jurds & Molajand ore Mghl Bouid od readily Do Tt bo cmi
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17. INVESTMENTS ICONT'D.]
(e} Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

The investments &e in reldlsan o the fallowng:

Group Company
2019 2018 2019 2018
RM'00D AM'000 RM OO0 RM'OO0
Quoted equity mwestments
Within Malaysia 10,833 4
- Qutside Malays:a 31,239 - 1
Urguoted equity imestments
= within Malaysia 21,343 9.472
- Qutside Malaysa 46 - - -
B3.461 - 9.477 -
Met fair value (losshigain on investments (11.712) - 277

18. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

The details of intangible xssets are as follows-

Contract  Goodwill on

rights consalidation Others Total
Group - 2019 Note RMOODD RMO00 RHM"OOO RM'OD0
AL cost
At baginning of the financial year (FRS) 137,385 5.922,469 421,412 6.481.266
Adoption of MFRS 15 - - (359, 0498) (359,098)
A1 bagnneng ol the financial year (MFRS) 137,385 5,922,469 52,314 6,122,168
Additians 4,215 - - 4.215
Acquisition of subsidiaries - 1,776,586 27,783 1,804,369
Currency translation differences 2.395 261,205 (228) 263,372
At end of the financlal year 143,995 7,960,260 B9,B69 8,194,124
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1B. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONT'D.)
The details of intangible assets are as follows:- (cont'd )
Contract  Goodwill on
rights consolidation Others Tatal
Group - 2019 Nate RM'O0D RM'000 RM'O00 RMO00
Accumulated amartisation and.
impalrment
At baginning of the financial year (FRS) (17.281) {117.021) (360.078) (494,.380)
Adaption of MFRS 15 - - 348,087 348,087
At beginning of the financial year [MFRS) [17.281) {117.021) {11.991) (146,293)
Acquisition of subsidiaries - - {10,523) (10,523)
Ameortisation for the year ¥ {7.283) - (3.523) {10, BOG)
Currency tramslation diffenenoes (156} {3.145) - (3.302)
At end of the financial year {24.720) (120,167) (26,037) (170.924)
Net carrying amount
At 30 June 2019 119,275 7.840,092 63,832 B.023.200
Croup - 2018
At cost
At beginning of the financial year (FRS) 141,158 6,269,563 403,699 B6,834,425
Adaption of MFRS 15 - . [342.001) (34001}
At beginning of the financial year, (MFRS) 141,150 B 269,568 GlEeaa G.892.414
Additions 4,618 - 2.000 B61B
Acguisition of submsidiaries - 40,307 - 40,307
LCispasal - {L035) - (1035
Currendy translation differentes (B.391) (#0537 {LIT4Y (416,135)
At end of the financial year 137.385 S922.463 B62.314 B1EZ. 168
Accumulated amortisation and.
Impalrment
At beginning of the financial year (FRS) {1.823) {118.874) [F17.604) (448,391}
Adaption of MFRS 15 - 309017 300,017
At baginning of the financial year (MFRS) {1823) {11B.874) {8677} (139,374}
Amertisation for the year 7 [6.251) - (3,314} [9,565)
Diispasal - 1035 - 1,035
Impaiment ioss T - {960) - [960)
Currency tramsdation difensnoes 793 1.7/ - 2571
At end of the financlal year (17.281) {117.0E1) (L9380 (146,2%3)
Ket carrying amaint
AT 30 June 2018 120,104 5 BOE 448 50,323 5975875
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18. INTANGIBLE ASSETS ICONT'D.)

Goodwill only afises in business cambinations. The amount of goodwill initially recogrized |5 dapendant an the alacation of tha
purthase price 1o 1he fair value of e dentifiable pssats acouired and The lateltes assumed, The determination of the fair
vlue of thi assats and labilites i Based, 10 a consideérable axlent, on management |udgermant.

For the purposes of imgairment testing, goodwill = aflocated to the Groug's cash-generating units {TTGUST) identified according
to the following business segments:-

Group

2019 2018

RHMOOOD RM'000

Lrilities 5,454,797 5202309
Camant mamulacturing B trading 1,895,968 123651
Management services 298,444 288 545
Property investment & development 96.231 95,231
Hoteld & restaurant operations 69,174 63,233
COthers 25.479 25478

7,840,093 5605448

Goodwil is tested for impairment on an anrual bass by comparing the camying amaunt with the recoverable amount of the
oLk

The recoverable amound of these ChUs wies determined based on value-in-use cakoulations. Cash low projectons wed in these
caltulations were based on financial budgets approved by management covering a lifteen-year period Casn Hows beyord the
fifteen-year periad were exfrapalated using the estimated groeth rate, The growth rate dild nat exeead the lsng-tern average
growth rate for the segment business in which the [GUs operates.

{a) Key assumption used in the value-in-use calculation

The folowing assumption has been applied in the value-in-use caloulation for the two of the major goodwall n wtilities
seqment amounting 1o AM4.5 blon (2008; RM4.3 hilkon) (A7) and RMB20 million (2018: AMB2D millian) (787), respa Lvely,
arie of the major goodwill n management sefvices (") segment and one of 1he maor goodwill in cement manulacturing
& trading [T") segment amounting ta RM298 million (2018 AM2B88 millien) and RMLE billion (2018: NIL). respectively.

2019 2018
A 8 c 1] A a C
W % % % % L2 Y
Pre-tax discounts 6.3 4.4 50 113 59 6.3 B2
Terminal growth rate 2.0 0.1 6.5 2. 20 o1 GBS
Rsvienue groweth 4.0 27 2.0 - (78] 27 20
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18. INTANGIBLE AS5ETS (CONT'D.)
{a) Key assumnption used in the value-in-use caleulation (cont'd.)

The discount rates used ane pre-tax and reflect spedific ssis relating to the COUL The dscount rates applied 1o the cash
flaiw projections are derived Iram the cost of capital plus a reasanable sk premium at the date of thes assessment of the
respective COLL

For TOU “A7, cash flow projections used in the value-in-use calculation wers based o approved financal budgets and
orecastys covering o Mve-yedr pebod, o oonlonm with the remasinesg contract penod of e gas supply agreemments. Cish
flows beyand the flve-year perlod wene extrapelated using the estimated growth rates stared abova, The grawth rate ded
nOE excend Thee Kng=Term sermge gfowin mie in which the CGL oparates

The terminal growth rate indicatés the expacted growih of cash fows after the farecast pariod of fve yaars.

The revenue growth rate s cakulated using the Compound Anmual Growth Rate method and applled on the curent year's
sais Thgures ower the foreCast perod.

For COL "B, cash fiow projeciions wsed in the value-in-use caloulation wera based on approved financial budgets and
forecasts covering a two year peniod, 1o coalonm the final determinations agproved by OFWAT, tha ecanomic requlator of
thi water sector in England and Wales.

For CGU D7, cash flow progections used in the value-in-use calculation wene based on approved fimancial budgets and
forecasts covering five to ten year periad.

Tha tesminal grewth rate indcates the expectod growth of cash flows after the forecast pariod of five years.

{b) Sensitivity to change in key assumptions

Changing the assumptions selected by management. in partcular the dscaunt rate and growth rate assumptions used in
the cash flow progections, could significantly affect ihe Croup's results. The Group's resdew includes. the key assumplions
related 1o sensitvity In the cash tlow projections

Thee cincumstances wiherg a change in key assumptions will result in the recoverable amounts of goodwill on the CGUs 10
equal the corresponding carmying amounts assuming na change in the other vanables ane as follows:

2019 2018
A B c D A B [
% L] % %% % S0 LT
Prie-tax discoums 7.7 21.0 6.6 121 73 153 71
Terminal growith ate 0.3 1.2 74 1.0 0z (.8 10
Rewanue growth 2.0 2.0 12 - 37 {29.5) 1B
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19. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Group Company
2019 2018 2019 2018
RMO00O RH'000D RMOOO RM'O0O
Mon-current
Trade receivables 43.669 229 - -
Crther recefvablas 11.556 9279 - -
Less: Allcwance for impainment [2.544) [2.4B5) - ’
Other receivables (net) a.012 5,794 - -
Deposts 591 1311 -
Pregayments 13,888 14882 - -
Receivabies from associate company ™ 220,208 228,362 - -
Recesvables from a jont verure U B71,752 Fl4,988 - -
1,159,120 967866 -
Group Company
2019 2018 2019 2018
RMO0D RMO00 REOOO RM'O00
Current
Trade receivables 2,732,974 2,197,588 - -
Sharchedder amounts held by salicitars B67,103 40,632 -
Z.800,077 2247520 - :
Less: Allwance for impairment (491,117} (3£8,845) - -
Trade receivables {net) 2,308,960 1L918.674 - -
Cther receivables ** 696,467 438,675 14,420 11366 |
Less: Allwance for impairment (158,036) {4.859) {1.765) -
Other recetyabias (net) 538,431 433816 12,655 11.366
Unbiilled receivalies 966,050 BreH92 - -
Pregayments 304,699 2BE.ET 363 366
Ceposits B0.593 TE.348 327 37
4,198,733 3504 404 13,345 12,059
230
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19. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONT'D.)

#  Receivables from assotisle compise thiee laan foled 0 an assacate The potes have been istusd by an associate in
accordance to o loan nate facility agreement. These receivables will mature in October 2030, Contingent inferests ane
recewvable on loan notes 1o the extent that these is suffizient avallabie cash, In the event that cash is Insutticent. Interest
will be accrued. The interest rate of the lean mates averages at 13.25% per annum,

o Receivables fram a jont venture comprise shareholder loans to Attarat Power Holding Company BV, who wholly own
Altaial Power Compasny (CAPCDT), APCD is developing a 354 medawatll oil shale Teed power genaration project in the
Hashamite Kngdom of jordan. APCD has signed 4 30-yeds power purchase agreement (including construction pediad af
A5 yiars] with T Mational Electme Power Domgany (NEPOD"), [ordan's state-caned itility, o2 the satee slactrical rapacity
and energy of the power plant, with an opticn for SEPCO o extend the powes purchase agreement to 40 years [from the
commercial operation date of the project’s second unit), Construction has commendced on the project, with operations
scheduled to cammence mid-2020, The sharehalder |sans and sccrued interest are repayable on demand. Thee inberest
rate o the snarehalder loans is ot 15.00% per annum, The sharehoider lean includes a converson option 1o equity. The
loan is measured at FYTFL

**n 015, 4 forelgn subsiciary of the Group has recognised other receivables, arisng from Bguidated damages for garly
tarmination af thies alectricity ratall cortracts based on the eafanteable nghts stipulated in the respective contracts. The
trial was meard at the end of 2017 folowed by a further heasng in November 2018 An allowance for empairment of
receivables of RM70.7 million (300234 million) s recognised in the finandial year ended 30 june 2019 based on the declsion
of the High Cowrt on 2 January 2015

e vables amounting to AMSS.Y milllon (2018: RMA9.0 mikon) are secured by Hinancial guarantess geven by banks and AM34.5
million {S018: AM25.2 milon) are secured by cash colateral

The fair value of recelvalies agproximates thesr carmyng ameounts

The ageing analysis of 1he Group's and the Company's trade receivables are as follows

Groug

2018

RM'O00

Restated

Neither past dua nos impaired 1185331
1 1o 90 days past due nat impaired J94691 |
51 to 120 days past due nat impaired 51596 |
More than 121 days past dug nat impatred 17,056 |

763,343

Impaired 328,846

2247520
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19. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES ICONT™D.)

Balantes past doi but not impaired ralyte o a number of customars with no recent histary of default

Recenables without external rating reflect the ecanomic prosperity ef the commercial and domastic counterparties across thelr
respactve regions. These receivablas ane genarally cus from counterpartias with good credit standing,

Movements on the Group's allowance lor impairment of receivables are as follows:

Group

2018
RM'000
Restated

Trade receivables
At beginnang of the financial year 319.986
Charge fior the year 75,986
Rewversal of impairment losses (1.258)
Bad debins written off [53.163)
Cumrency translation differences {12,705}
At end of the financial year 306,846

GCroup

2018
RM'000

Other receivables
At beginneng of the financial year B39l
Charge for the yea 173
Reversal of impairment losses {L.214)
Cusrancy transiation differences 1]
At enid of the finandial year fAd4q

The impaired receaivables are fiom counterparties in financial difficulties. These receivables are not secured by tollateral or oedit
enhancements

Cuerrant year's Expected Credit Loss (ECLT) mevament analysis is disclosed under Mobe 36(d) 12 the financal statements.
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20. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Assets Liabilities Total
RM'000 RM'D00 RM'OO00
Group - 2019
At beginning af the finsmdal yedr 248,265 [54,125) 194,140
Acquisition af subsidianes 710 {an 673
Movement during the year [171.635) {61,326) (232.961)
Currendgy translation ditfenenoes 6,404 (2.119) 4,285
At end of the fnancla year B3,744 (117.607) {33.863)
Group - 2018
At beginning of the financial year 65,753 (172,780} {107.027)
Movement during the yeai 190,778 113,748 304,526
Currendcy tranmsiation differentes (B,266] 4907 {3,359)
At end of the financlal year 2d8.265 (54.125) 194,140
The Group's derivative financial instruments are analysed as follows-
Contract/ Fair values
notional o
amount Assels Liabilities
RM'000 RM'O00 RM OO0
Group - 20019
Cash-flow hedges
ol oil swaps 1.657.600 74,701 47,872
currenty fonwards 1,869,378 7.433 10,320
- Interest rame swaps 2,931,554 = 49,533
- 0SS CLUTENCY SwWaps 112,538 665 -
Fair value through profit or loss
- h®l oil swaps 273,138 657 4.942
- currency forwards 213,439 288 1,507
= EurrBnCy options coniract * 1,656,800 - 3,333
83,744 117,607
Current portion 65,022 63,491
Mon-current portion 18,722 54,116
B3.744 117,607
233
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Group - 2018
Cash-flow hedges
= Tuel ol swaps

- qunmency forwards

- interest rale swaps

Falr value through profit or lass
- fuel il swags

= furrency torwards

= CLIMTnCy OORONS ConiTaeT *

Current portion
ko current partion

Contract/
notional
amount

1617924
1122018
3,850,006

L1BO
B1.100
LE15.400

Fair values
Assels Liabilities
RMOOD RM'O00
219.059 9836
£L122 B.ATS
6275 13605
- 240
1802 3.296
- 16,573
S48, 2E5 Sa145
158,405 19817
40,880 34,308
248,265 58125

*  During the previous financial year, the Group entered into cumrency options contracts to enfoy interest rate reduction in
redated borrowings with an acceptable risk profile. The fair value is determined using the spot rate, interest rate. basis
curve and volatility of the related currencies ard time to maturity of the contracts
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20. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT'D.)
Hedging instruments used in the Gloup's hadging stratagy-
Changes in Fair value vsed
fer cabculating hedge
Carfylag amaisst Inefactiveniis
Hedge
Financial Inseffectiveness
Centractual statement recogrised  Weighted
nutlonal RAssets | line Hidging Hedged i pradit or wemge
ameunt  Lizbilites) item  Instrument item loss'  hedged raie Haterity daie

Growp - 2019 RM000 RM000 RM'000 RM000 RM000 M 000 RM000 R000
Cash flow hedge
Fuael el o rak
- Fusd of 5w 10 medge Derbvative July 2008 -

Fighly probatie financial RML425.0 per  Novembsr

trarvsactions (HSR) 1573146 27,329 instruments  LG00475  (L600.475) = metric ton 2021
- Fuel ol s 1o "erige Derivative July 2015 -

Fighly probabie Tinancial RM2B19  Decembser

Tt [LYGT) B4454 [620] instruments BB |B3,854) = per bbl 2015
Forssgn enchange sk
- Forwand comtracts o Derbvative

Fedge highty probablle Timancial RM4L:  July 2009 -

trarsachons 1.830.90% (3819) instruments  LB27.090  [LB27.090) . USDLDOD fansary

All hadge inalfectveness and costs of hadging are recognined in Incoma Statemant
Perind when the cath fiowes on cash flow hedgas ame expected 1o ocowr or affect the Income Statement:-

{al Fuel oil swaps

Fusd ol swaps ate entarad into 1o hedge highly prabable farecast fue parchases that are expacied to GOCUF A1 Vnious
cates wathin 2% manths (2008: 37 manths] tram tinanciad year end The fuel ail Ssaps have maturity dntes that match e
expeted ocoumenca of thete rarmsactots. Gand and lotses recognesed bn 1he hodging reserve prior 10 the accurrence of
these transactions ane trancferred [o the imentony of Tues upon acquisition or cost of Sales uwpon consumption of natural
gas, The gains and losses relating to fuel oil inventory are subsequently recognised in the Income Statement upan
comsuigrtion of the underbyng fuels.

The tair walue of fuel oil Swaps & determined using A Benchmark tusl prce ndes a1 the reporming date
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20. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS ICONT'D.)
(b) Currency forwards

Currency forwards are entered into to hedge highly probatie forecast ransactions dencminated in fofeign durrency expected
ta GROUF 31 varkaus dates within 3] manths [20168: 43 manths) from financial year end. The cetfency forwards have matusity
dates that match the expected ooowmence of these transac iors.

Gains and losses relating to nighly probable forecast fuel payments are recognized in the hedging reserve pror to the
weowmrerne of these (ramsac s ond are transtered to the irventory of fuels upon sogusition or cost of sabes wpon
consumgtion of natural gas, The gans and losses relating to fuel o inventory are subrsequently Tansfarred 1o intome
Sraterment upon consumprion of the undedying fusis

For those currency forwards used to hedge highy probable lorecast foreign currency pawments of praperty. planl and
equipment, the gains and losses ane included in the cost of the assers and recognised i prodit or loss over their estimated
vl lives a5 part of deprecation expene,

For those cumency fonwands used 1o hedge highly probable forecast foregn cumency ransactons 10r manienance conTacs,
the gains and losses are included in payments and recagnised in prodit or loss over the penod of the contracts.

Thie fair vahses of forwand currenty contracts are determined using sctively quoted formard cufrency e

(€] Interest rate swaps

Thiz Group entened inTo INGErest rate swap ConrFacts to manage 155 intenest rate risk arlsing primzsy from interest-bearing
Dewevengs. Borrowings At FoaT i rane expose e Groun 1o fair ke interest ates and the derivare Bnarcial instrumenrs
minkmise the fluctuation of cash flow due 1o changas in the market interest rates, The derivative financlal instrumants are
oxegutod with cradit-warthy financial institutions which are goveened by appropriate pelicies and procadures with & vinw
1o Eat the credit fisk exposune of the Group.

The derlvative financial instruments-are staied at far valoe based on banks' guotes. The fair value changes on the effective
portion 6f the dervatives that are designated and quality as cash flow hedges are recognised in other comgrehensie
incoma. The gan or loss relating 1o the ineffective partion < recognsed immedately in incoma statement.

{d} Cross-currency swap
The Group had entered ito 8 Cross CWTency Swap coniract 1o exchange nierest payments and principal denominated in
two different currencies to hedge against the expasure of its borrowings to Interest rate nsk amd forelgn exchange risk.

The cnanges in the fair value of these oross cumency Swap Contracts that are designated as hedges are included as hedging
resenve in equity and cantinuously released to the income statements untl the repayment of the bank bomowings ar
maturity of oross currency swap contracts whicheser is easier, For the cross cumency swap confracts that are not designated
as hedges, the changes in the fair value are recognised as other intome or other experse In the Income statements.
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2l. INVENTORIES
Group
2019 2018
RHM'O00 RHOO0
Comsumable staras 24,297 21.850
Finished goods 258,487 Z460
Fiisd 207,225 14 BT
Property held for sales 1.679.118 2116006
Raw matarials 234,562 113,304
Sparg parts 355,823 217,735
Waork-In-progess 24,211 12686
£.763.723 2,008,716

During thi financial year, inclided in the inventories off the Groug with camying vaue of RMLSSS, 580,000 (2018 RM1,931815.000)
pledged as security for & borrowing granted to the Group

22. PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT COSTS

Freehold Leaseheld Development

land land costs Total
Group - 2019 Note RM'000 RM'000 RMTOOD RHOOD
Cumulative property development
Costs-
At haginning of the financial year 76,461 84,050 206,521 AT 032
Cost ingurved during tha financial yoar = 1.875 97.421 59,256
Transfer from investment properties 12 23,225 - - 23,225
Trarsfer from land held for property 13{a) - 3,073 815 3,968
davelopment
Trarmfer from development expenditure 13k = = 83,131 83131
Cumency tramiation differences {287) - 3,075 2,688
At end of the financlal year 99,299 88,998 391,063 579,360
Cumulative cost recognised in profit
or loss:-
At beginning of the finandal year -
Recognised during the financial year 1 (17.423)
At end of the fmanclad year (17, 423)
Property development costs at end of The
linancial year 561,937
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2. PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT COSTS (CONT'D.}

Froohold Leasehold  Development

land land costs Total

Group - 2018 Hote RMO00 RMO00 RM 000 RM0O00
Cumulative praperty development

Costs!-
At baginning of the financial year 13319681 131817 1,754,504 3.218.402
Cost Incurred during the financlsl year - 187,516 187.516
Transfer 1o inventanes (1.205.0c0) - (1L.O0L.732) (2,206,822
Transfer from kand held for property

davelopment 13(a} - - 537 537
Riwersal of completed projects [15.019) {47.BET) {F13,711) {776,597)
Cumrency translation differences {35.411) - {20,593) (56,004)
At end af the financial yea 76,461 B4,050 206,521 367,032
Cumulative cost recognised in

profit or loss:-
At beginning of the financial year (743,188)
Recognised during the financil year 5 {33.409)
Rewversal of completed projects 776,597
At end of the financial year -
Property development costs at end of the

tinancial wear 367032

Inthudhed in preperty divelopment casts of the Group & interest capitaleed during the finencial year armounting to RMLZ463,000
(2018 AM10.344.000).

£3. CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT LIABILITIES

Group
2019 2018
RMOOO RM'O00
Mon-Currant
Contract assets 2,486 Lave
Contract cost assats 3,130 4,653
Contract liabilities (26.264) [6,618)
Current
Contract assels 205,932 B9.843
Comtfact cost assas 33,592 34,700
Contract lizbilities [996,420) (461,686)
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23. CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT LIABILITIES (CONT'D.)}
Group
2019 2018
RHM'O00 RHOO0
Representing:
ContricT assers 208,418 91315
Comtract lahliities (1,022 684) [4BE, 304)
{B14.266) {376,965
Contract cost assets 36,722 39,353
Representing:
Utilities [155.487) (£243.925)
Property development (208.850) (175
Construction {411.767) (40816}
Hatel (36,765) (22.073)
Others (1.387) -
(814,2585) (376,909)
(@) Urilities

Mot of coniract msets and contrasct Habllities in palation 10 elecammunicaton 5 anadysed a5 follows

Group
2019 2018
RMTOOD RMOODO
Contract assets
At beginning of the financlal year 78,171 157,628
Transfer to trade receivables (76,495) {160,285)
Addition dus to revenue recognised during the year 157,263 80851
Cumeny trarsdation dif ferenges 15 (L]
Less: Allawance for Impalrment [EL:1:4) -
At end of the financial year 158,566 TR
Contract liabilities
At beginning of the financial year 322,096 201,701
Revanue recognsed that was included in the contract Fability balance at the (219.806) (280,365}
beginning af the yeas
Increases due 10 cash received, excluding amounts recognised as revenue during 314,635 325,515
the year
Cummency translation dif ferencas (2.872) {14, 755)
Ar end of the financinl year 314,053 322096
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23. CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT LIABILITIES (CONT'D.)
{a) Utilities feont'd.)
(i) Assets recognised from costs to obtain or fultil a contract

The Group capitahses cosis 1o abtam or hullll a contract which nckide salet commissions when they are intremantal
and expected to be recovered aver more than a year. The Group also capitalises the expenditure on assets suth as
waber mainsfsewers of new cannections relating to contracts a5 they are incurred to fulhil the contract This is
presented within contract cost assats within contract assets m the statements of financial position.

Group
2019 2018
RMODO RM'OO00
Contract cost assets
Assets recognised from costs Incurred 1o obtain or fulfil & contract 36,155 32682
Amortisation recognised during the financal year 11,569 21,119
Coniract assers charged 1o (ost of saes 26,688 23,597

(ii} Unsatisfied performance obligations
As at 30 june 2019, the aggregate amaunt of the transaction price allocated to unsatisfied performance obigations
resubting from contracts with customers is RM382.6 million This will be recognised as revenue as the services are
pravided to customer, which Is expected 10 ocour over the next | to 15 years. As permitied under the transktional
pravisian of MFRS 15, the transaction price sllocated to unsatisfied performance obligations as at 30 juna 2018 is not
disclosed

The Crowp applied the practical expedient in MFRS 15 and did not disclose information about unsatisfied performance
abligatian for certain contracts, where the transaction price cosmesponds directly with the Group's level of performance
in the futur=,
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23. CONTRALT ASSETS AND CONTRACT LIABILITIES (CONT'D.}
(b] Property development

Mevernienl of contract dssels and contract Habilities in relation wo properly development 15 analysed o Tolkows,

Group
2019 2018
RM 000 RMO00
At beginning of the financial year [7D.175) 43252
Revanie racognsed dusing the lnancial year 481,203 330,443
Progeess billings during the financial year (619,988) (443.434)
Consideration payahle to customer 110 (43E)
At end of the financial year (208.850) [FO.AT5)

Represanting

Contract assiets 39,456 2,706
Contract liabdities {248,306) (72,881}
(208,850) [70.175)

Rewvanue from property develapment activities is recognised aver time using the input method, which is based on the actual
cost nowred to date on the property development project as compared 1o the total budgeted cost for the respective
development projects.

{i} Unsatizfied performance obligations

The aggregate amount of the transaction price allocated to the performance obligations that ahe unsatisfied or partially
sdlisfied as at the reporting date was approkimately RM5L579,000, of which the Group expects to be recognised as
revenue in financial year ending 30 june 2050,

The Group hat applied expedient in parsgraph £5 o MFRS 15 whereby tramsaction prce allecated to unsatslied or
partially satisfied parformance abligations as at 30 Juse 2028 and 1 july 2017 were not disclosed
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23. CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT LIABILITIES (CONT'D.)
(e} Construction
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HMovemsnt of cofitracl assets and costract liabeities in relation to coistruction & analysed o5 lollows

At begeming of the financial year

Revemnue recognised during the financial year

Cost incurred for project yet to recognised ravende
Progress billngs during the finandial year

Group
2019 2018
RM DDO RM'O00
40,816) 9573
1,219,499 186,465
[43) {1.078)

{1,590,407) [435,777)

At the end of the financial year

{411,767) {40,816)

Construction contracls represent th g dillerences n reveree necognilion ond the milestone Wilngs, The miestone
bifings are Struciured andfor neqgotiated with customers to reflect physical completon of the contracs.

Contract assets ang transfomed 10 roceivabies whan tha rights 1o economic benafits bixome uncondtional. This usualy
accars wien the Group isues billng to the customer, Contract llabilties are recognised a5 revenue when performance

abligations afe satisfied.

These weere no saglicant :h.‘l‘q!} in thit contract assets and liabilives dunrg the linancal year,

Inchudied in aggregate C05Ts ncuImed 10 date of e Group |s depreclation capmalised durng the tinancal year amounting

o RM7.SS0.000 (2018 AME,727,.000),

(i} Unsatisfied performance abligations

The apgregate amount of the transaction price allocated to the performance ebligations that are ursatisfied or partally
satislhed a5 at the reporting date was approximately RMEG.?5 biflon, of which the Group éxpects 1o be reccgnised as

fegniug in the linandial statements in (he next thiee years

Tha Growip has appbed expedient in paagraph C5 of MERS 15 whanshy transaction price Allocaten to ensatistied or
partiztly satsfied performance obiigations as a1 30 june 2018 and 1 fuly 2017 were ot disclosed.

{dj Hotel operatlons

The Company recognise contract labdities when a custemer pays consideration, ar Is contractually required to pay
conslderation, belfore the Comgany recognese the related revenue, The conract Rabilitles are expected to be recognsed

a5 revenus within a year
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£3. CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT LIABILITIES (CONT'D.}
{d] Hotel operations (cont'd.)
Group
2019 2018
RMO00 RMCODD
Contract liabiities 36,765 22073
Group

2019
RM'O00

Significant changes to contract llabilities batances during the period are as follows:
Contract habiities as at the beginning of the period recognised as revenue dunng the year 20,714
Advances recehved during the year 169,248

]

Customer depasits represent advance payment by customers for future booking of hotel room, food and beverages.
fransport.

Cement manufacturing & trading
Group
2019
RM 000
Amaouni recelved in advance of delvery of goods 1,397

Revenue is recognised when the control af the goods s transfermed to the customer, being at the paint the goods ae
dalivered 1o the customer. When the customer indtizlly pachases the goods, the transaction price recelved at that paint
by the Groun is recognised as contract liabidty until the goods have been delivered o the oustomser
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4. AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO RELATED PARTIES

Group Company
2019 2018 2019 2018
RMO00 RM 000 RHOOO RM'000
[a) Amounts doee from related parties
Amounts dee From
- Helding tomgany 38 &3 - -
- Subsidiarias - = 1.011.391 L.178.463
- Retated companies 13,831 10553 2.9a87 2465
= ACEACATA TS 17,238 Pt 511 Y &7 EE
- joant ventures 24 T2 - -
31,131 36,254 1,014,435 11800987
]  Amounts dee to related parties
Amounts duee b
= Subsidissies - - 5,496 127,156
- Retated paities 8,661 2.750 50 Ed
- Associated companies 531 384 - -
= joint veniures G814 55971 = -
16,006 q.10% 5.546 127.224

(¢} The amounts due from/to related parmees pertain masnly 1o race receivables/payables, acvances and payments on bebhalf,
The outstanding amownts are unsecurad, intenest free and payable on demand except for advances given to subsidiaries
amounting BMIE0 milllan (2018: RM15.0 million) which bear iterest rate of S4% per annum (2018: 4.7% per annum),

{d] The significant related parties’ transactions of the Group and of the Company are disclosed in Note 38 to the financial
statements

£5. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Group Company

2019 2018 2019 2018

Note RM'O00 RM'0DO RM'ODO RMODO

Deposit with a licensed bank 10,635,496 10619683 198,360 51L.616

[Cash and bank balances 1,171,006 Lol4am 122,948 3502

11,806,502 11634654 321.308 515,118

Bank overdrafis an (42,675) {33.011) - =
Cash and cash equivalents as per

statements of cash flows 11,763,827 11,601 h44 321.308 515,118
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£3. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (CONTD.I

Cash and Bank batanees of the Group ndluded amaunts 1talling AMBUBEZ.000 [20018; RM1E6,581.000) held pursuant 1o Sectien
TA af the Howsing Developers (Contnol and Licersa]] Act 1966, Those amounts were restricied from wee inather operations.

Tha range of nterest rates of deposits that were effective at the reporting date were as follows:-

Group Company
2019 2018 2019 2018
b e b %
Depasits with licensed banks 0.25-3.95 0.05%-4.25 1.60-3.50 105-385

Depasits of the Group and of the Company have maturities ranging from 1 day to 355 days (2018: 1 day to 365 days) Bank
balances are deposits hald at call with banks

Included in the deposits with licensed banks amounting 10 RM4.167.000 (2018 RM2.057.000} s pledged a5 a security for a
baifoaing o disclosed in Nate 30

The Group and of the Company seek 1o Invest cash and cash equivalents safely and profitably wih creditworthy local and

oftshare licensed banks. The credit guality of the local 3nd offshore Beensed bankes are P1 a5 rated by RAM Rating Services Bhd
ard Moody's Investors Senice, Inc. respectively,

26. SHARE CAPITAL

Group/Company
Number of shares Amount
2019 2018 2019 2018
‘ooo ‘000 RM'D00 REO00
Izsued and fully pald:
At beginning and cnd of the financial year 10,910,560 10,910,560 3,340,111 3340111

Ot of a total of 10,910.559.429 (2018 10,910,559,429) ordinary shares issued and Tully paid-up ordinany shares, the Compary
holds 341862418 {2018: #342,B3LB1H] ordinary shares as treasury shares. As at 30 jJune 2019, the number of ordinary shares
in issue and fully paid net of treasury shares are 10/568,697 011 (2018: 10,677.727.611).

The holders of ardinary shares (except treasury shares) are entitled to receive dividends as and when declared by the Company.
All ordinary shares carry ane vote per share and rank egually with regard to the Comipany's residual assets
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6. SHARE CAPITAL (CONT'D.)

{a) Treasury shares

The shareholders of the Company granted a mandate 1o the Company to repurchase it own shares o1 1he Annual General
HEEHI'IG Ml & 1.2 December 2018, The Dirsctors of the Campany ane committag to enhancd the vaue of the Company
ta its shareholders and believe that the repurchase plan can be applied in the best imterest of the Company and its
shareholders,

During the Tnancial year, the Company repurchased 105,030,600 (2018: 68,280.400) ordinary shares of its meued share
capital from the open market. The averdge price paid for the shates repurchased wis RMLZ24 (2018 RM111) per share,
T repuichass TRARSACTIONS wine Tinancod by intemally generaned funds. The shanes mpurchased ans haing Dol a5 Termey
shares in accordance with Secticn 12A(6) of the Companies Act 2016

As ot 30 jene 2009, the Comparry held as treasury shares a total of 341662418 (20168 £32.631,818) of i13 10.910.559.429
(2018 10,910.559,429) lssued ardinary shares, Such teasury shares are held at a carmying amount of RM472.733,169
{2018 AM3ST.141.797)

ib] Employees’ Share Option Scheme ["ES0S7)
On 1 April 2011, the Comgpany smpiemented a new shone issuince sthame known s the Employees Share Option Scharme
wihich was approved by the sharehalders of the Company at an Extracrdinary Genesal Meeting held on 30 November 2010,
the ES05 is for eligible employess and drectors of the Company andier its subsidiaries who meet the criteria of eligiliny
for participation as set out in the by-liws of the ES05 {By-Lans’),

Thiee sybient Tenmes of e ESOS ane is Tolows: .
(i Tha BSOS shall bie i force for a porkad of ten (10} years, effective fram 1 Aprl 2011

{8} Thir masimum number of sharas to be alforred and issued pursuant 1o the exercise of the options which may ba
granted under the ES0S shall not excead fittean per cent (15%) of the total issued and paid-up shars capital of the
Compary af the paint of fime throughout the duration of the E505.

(&) Ary employee (including the direcions) of the Group shall be eligible 1o pantcigate in the E505 if, & at the date of
atfer of an aprion ("Offer DaEte’), the person:-

{3)  has artained e age of sightesn (18) years:
{b) & adirector or an emgloyee employed by and on payroll of 3 company within the Group: and

{c) In the case of employees, has been in the employment of the Group for a period of at least one (1) year of
continuous service priof to and up to the Offer Date, including service during the probation period, and Is corfirmed
in service. The options committee may, at its discretion, nominate any employee (Including directors) of the
Group 1o be an eligivie employee despite the elgibiliny olterla under Clause 3106 of the By-Laws not being
met. 3t ary time and from tme 1o time.

() The subscrption price for shares under the ES05 shall be determined by the Board wpon recommendaton of the
optians committes and shall be fived based on the weighted average market proe of shares, as quoted on Bursa
Securities, for the five {5) market days immediately preceding the Offer Date of the options with a discount of not
mare than ten per cent (10%), if deemed appropriate, or such lower ar higher mit in accordance with any prevaling
guldetines issued by Bursa Securities o any other relevant authorities as amended from tme o time,
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26. SHARE CAPITAL (CONTD.)
{b] Employees’ Share Option Scheme ("ESDS") (cont'd.)
Thee =alient terms of the ESOS are a4 Tollews:- (cont’d )

(v) Subject 1o Clause 13 of tha By -Laws, 1he oprichs commities may. a7 sy Time bnd from time 1o time, belose o after
an option s granted, limit the exencise of the option 10 a madimum number of new ordinary shares of the Company
andfar such parcantage of the total ordinary shares of the (ompany comarisad in the options during such period(s}
within the option peviad and Impose any otfer 1@rms and/or cordition deemed appropriate by the optons committes
in its sale dscretion ncluding amendingvarying ary tertms and conditons imposed eadier. Notedthatancing the above,
and subject 1o Clauses 10 and 11 of the By-Lows, ™ options can only be exerdised by the grantes no eatlier than
three (3] years alfter the fer Date or such other peciod as may be determined by the optiors committee at its
abisolute discration, by notice inwriting 1o the options comemimes, provided hawever 1hat the options committea may
A its discration of upon The request in writhng by the granies alicw the oprions 1o be exercised a0 any sarfier or o1har
perod

(vil A grantoe shad be prohibited from disposing ol the new crdinary shares ol the Company allatted and issuad 1o him
for & period of one (1] year from the date on which the option is exercised or such other period as may be determined
by the aptiaons committes at it$ abbalute discretion

Thae mdweenen1s during the Tnancial year in the number of shahe options ol the Chamdaiy are o5 lolows:

Financial year ended 20 june 2019
Number of share options over ordinary shares
At
beginning
of the At end of
Exercise financial the financial
Expiry price year Granted Lapsed yoar
Grant date date RM/share ‘000 ‘000 ‘000 el
Sehigms
1E07,2012 31032021 1.7 125,895 = {4,995) 120,900
14.03.2018 J1.03.20:21 126 259,483 = {7.183) 252,204
385,378 - {12,184 373,194
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26. SHARE CAPITAL (CONT'D.)
(b} Employees’ Share Dptien Scheme ("ES0S") [cont'd.)
Financial year ended 30 June 2018

Number of share options over erdinary shares

At
beginning

of the At end of

Exercise financial the financial

Explry price year Granted Lapsed year

Grant date date RMIshare ‘ooo ‘00 ‘o0o ‘000
Schame

16072012 31.03.2021 L= 129,580 - (3.683] 125895

14.03.2018 31.03.2021 126 - 267,996 [B,513) 255,483

129580 267,996 {12.198) 385378

* e fdrtip pce AMETT wat onted from RMLTS

The options granted to employees on 16 july 2012 vested on 16 July 2015, while the options granted to employ=es on 14
March 2018 will vest on 14 March 2021

The fair value of options granted far which MFRS 2 applies, was determined using the Trinomial Valuation model. The
significant inputs in the model are as follows:-

Share options Share options
granted on granted on
16.07.2012 14.03.2016

Valuaton assumptions:-

Expected volatility 23a% S&1%
Expetted dvidend yiald 4.55h 3.6%
Expecied option life 3 = 4 yoars 3 - 4 yoars
Risk-free interest rate per annum {based on Malaysia sequritles bonds) 210 3.4%

The expected volatility reflects the assumgtion that the historical volatlity is indicative of future trends. which may not
necessarly be the actual cutcoms
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26. SHARE CAPITAL (CONT'D.)
{b] Employees’ Share Option Scheme ("ESDS") (cont'd.)
Walue of employes ssnvces received for issue of share opticers:
Group Company
2019 2018 2019 2018
RM'O0O RM'O00 RM'OOD RM OO0
Share option expenses

by the Campany 16.680 5045 16,680 %046
by the subsidiary 5,353 L&l L .
Allocation 1o subsdiaries - - {10,000) (3111}
Allocation 1o related comganies {13) - 13) -
Toual share option expenses 22,020 6,658 6,667 1935

27. NON-DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

{a) Other reserves

Foreign
Equity cumency Share Avallable- Total
Capital component translation  opliens Statutory  for-sale Hedging other
reserve  of ULS  reserve  reserve  reserve!  reserse FUod  reserve  reseqves
RM'OO0 EBMOOO RMOD0 RMOO0 AMUODO RMODO  RMOO0 RAMODG RMO00
Growp - 2019
At heginning of the francal yer (FRE) OF 427 738480 628850 ¢ 75627 16554 10823 - 95517 1,000,646
Mdoption of MFE 15 - - 139 s e - - = 138
At ey of the liaandal yeur,

i T laed 97417 73848 62ESEI  TREIT 1858 1982 = 35517 1009785
Kedoption of MFRS 4 - . 3 z - (19,823) [18,085) - [37,508)
At | july LB {HFRS) 904287 73848 GXE5E9 TG 185 - [l8,085 95517 STLEMT
Changes in fair vae - . . . [1L713) [196.713) (710,426)
Behamge differences - 18,381 i - = - imEel
Tenal comprehonsne nvomefloys]

e he yeu . - . - - (713 (198713 (82.065)
there pplian sxpeTEs - = = 19,635 s - 5 " 19,635
Share option bgred - - = (L748) - - E = [L74E)
Sulrafiny's share oation fagsed . - - [633) . - - - [633)
{Cumency franslation dffeences 1o - [7.975) - 488 - - 7.597 .
At end of the Fnenchl yer 97317 T73B4a 148375 S2EEl 19.042 - [29.798) (95.599) 507,066
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£7. NON-DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES (CONT'D.)

[a) Other reserves (cont'd.)

EDINETOOOO

OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)

Faneign
Equity  cwmendy Share Railakie- Tetal
Capital component translation  options Statutery forsale  Hedging olfuer
resenee  of IOLS  reserve  fedenve  reserve ! refefve  Reenee  neRRVES
RHOO0 RMOO0 AMODD RMDOD RMO000 AMOO0 RWODOD  RMOOD
Groug - 2018
At beginning ef the finarcial pear 102,309 73,848 1334763 7LI9 18733 (1510) (76963] L523.559
Changes in far valee - - - - - 2,333 171143 192476
Enthange diffensnes - (Ma5.3487) - - - = [T05387
Tircal compiefirsie {nss)ncome |or e year - [705,387) - = I3\ L4 (sl
[hanges in composition of she group - (226) - - - - [226)
Share opton expenes - - 5916 - - - 596
Shane option Lipaes - . = [L290) . . = (L290)
Suteidiery's share option lapsed - - (378) - - - (En: ]
Share of reserve of & foint vente [4.285) - - - - = [4.B85)
Curmency ransdation dfemences 3 [161) - L1 - 133 -
&1 end of the frangal year 97427 73848 GZB9GY 75627 1BS554 19623 95517 1,009.785
HNote:
! Tt eprosents o et which moaed (0 be et otide puredal o ineo! st mgdiament of on atednted compony
Share Available- Fair Tatal
option for-sale value ather
resorve reserva Tosarve reservaes
RMO00 RM'ODD RM'ODO RMOOO
Company - 2019
At beginning of the financial year [FRS) 49,109 12,327 - 61,436
Adoption of MFRS 9 = (1z,327) 2.359 (9,968)
At beginning of the fnanciy year (MFRS) 49,109 - 2.359 51.468
Changes in far valug - - 277 277
Share option expenses 16.679 - - 16,679
Share optian lapsed (1.748) - - [1.748)
At end af the financial yeas 64.040 - 2,636 66,676
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27. NON-DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES [CONT'D.)
{a) Other reserves [cont'd.)

Share Available- Fair Tatal

option for-sale valug other

reserde resarve reserve reserves

RM DDO RMOOO RMOOO RMOOO

Company - 2018

At beginning of the financial year 45,353 1,547 - 46,900

Changes in fair vl - 11,533 - 11,533

Share opTisn BXPETLES 5,046 - - 5.046
[isposal of available-for-sale investment secunities - [753) - {753}
Share ogtion lepsed {1.290) - - {1.290)

AT end of thie fmancial year 49,109 1z.3z7 - 61,436

£8. LONG TERM PAYABLES
Group

2019 2018

RM'O00D RM'O00

Detorrad intome 958,774 B7L522

Depasits 123,517 93505

Payable to non-controlling interest 116,365 113,457

Other payatles 32,763 23029

1,231,419 901,513

The defered Income in relation to assets rarsfemed from customer amd services of the water and sewerdge segment
whilch are yet to be provided.

Deposits comprise amount collected from retail customers in relation to the provision of electricity and deposits received
from developers of hausing development in relation to the provicion of water and sewerage infrastructure and seourity
depasits from property tenants. The deferred incame s In relation to assets transferred from customers and services af
the water and sewerage segment which are yet 1o be provided and sharehclder lpan Interest revenue. The fair valus of
payables apmoximates thelr carmying values.
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29. BONDS
Group Company
2019 2018 2019 2018
Mote RMO00 RH'000 RM'000 RM'000
Current:-
Medium Tenm Motes 290} 510,024 2708701 - 500.000
Commercial papers 10.000 - 10.000 -
520,024 2,708,701 10.000 500,000
Mon-current:-
Medium Term Motes 20¢a) 10,373,669 8976529 2,500,000 £.000,000
A52% Retail Price Index Guaranteed Bands  29(b) 422,492 411533 - -
575% Guaranteed Unsecued Bonds 290c) 1,818,003 1839201 - -
5.375% Cuaranteid Unseosed Bords £9(d) 1,043,000 1.053.734 - -
1.75% Index Linked Guarenteed Bonds £9(e) 1.136,533 1,107.059 - -
1. 3059% and 1.374% Index Linked £4(F 1,136,539 1,107,059 - -
Guarant=ed Bonds
1.4B3%, 1.485% and L495% Index Linked  29(g) 1,074,176 1,045,568 - -
Guaranteed Bonds
£186% Index Linked Cuarantesd Bonds 29(h) 349,611 344,367 - -
Due 2039
4.0% Guaranteed Unsacured Bonds 29(1) 1,582,157 1599926 - -
Japan Donds 25{) 25,480 £3,500 - -
18,961,666 17512845 2,500,000 00,000
Total 19,481,690 20,221 647 2.510.000 2,500,000
The bonds are repayable:-
Mot later than 1 year 520,024 2. 708701 10.000 500,000
Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years 6,090,388 5,717.455 - L0og.000
Later than 5 years 12,871.278 11,785,491 2.,500.000 1.000.000
Tatal 19.481.690 20221647 £.510.000 2,500,000
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29. BONDS (CONT'D.)
Tha weighted average affective mterest fates of the bonds of the Group and of the Company a5 at the rapafting date are as

follonws:-
Group Company
2019 2018 2019 Z018
e L s L
Medium Term hotes .21 288 4.47 466
Bands 4,82 405 260

Tha fawr values of the bonds of the Group and the Company as at the repoarting date ane as follews -

Group Company
2019 2018 2019 2018
RM 000 RH'O0O RH'O00 RM'O00
3.52% Retall Price Index Guaranteed Bonds 301,271 313,436 - -
5.75% Guaranieed Unsecured Bonds 2,661,429 2.3368,182 - L
5.375% CGuaranteed Unsecured Bonds 1,335,425 1,313,751 - -
1.75% Index Linked Guaranteed Bonds 1,728,881 1,668, TE0 - -
1359% and L374% ndex Linked
Gunanieed Boncs 1,737,755 1753143 -
1 489%, 1.435% and 1.499% Index Linked
Cuaranteed Bonds 1,730,838 1,746,270 - -
2. 1850 Index Linked Guarantaed
Bonds Due £039 424,696 396,759 = -
4,08 Guaranteed Unsecured Bonds 1,671,827 L.70B. 469 - -
Medium Term hotes 8,704,698 11,670,455 2,366,078 £.4749,533
|apan bands 25,480 23,900 - -
20,322,300 £3.135.125 2,366,078 2479533
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29. BONDS ICONT'D.)
{a) Medium term notes (“MTHs"]
{th The MTNs of the Company weie [ssusd pursuant to-

{a) Commaercinl papers (TP and Madium tarm notes (MTNS") Programme with a combined master limiy of RM5.0
billion and & sub-limit on the 0Ps programme of RM500.0 millon [collectavely the "Band Programmes”) pursuant
1o a programme agreemant dated 17 June 201%

A noming vahue of AMS00 million of MTNS was saeed on 25 June 2009 1o relinane the Comgarm's existing
RMS00 millicay nominal value MTNS, The coupon rate of the MTNS |5 4.60% (2018: 4.475%) por anmum, payable
semi=annually i amears and the MTRS are redeemable on 24 Jone 2054 a1 nominad value

During the financial year, the Company issued new CPs with a nominal value of RMLD million. The coupon rate
af the (Ps s 360% per annum and redeemable on 25 July 2009 at nominal value,

{b)  MTNS Bsuance programme of up 1o RM2.GC Dilian constituted by @ Trust Deed and Programene Agresment. both
dated 26 March 2015

A neoemeraal value of RM1000,000,000 of MTNS was sswed under the programme on 25 Apnl 2013 at & coupon
rate 4.38% (3018: 4.38%) per anmum. payable serrl-annually in amears. The MTNS are redeemable on 25 Aprll
2027 &t noamimal vaue.

A npiminal valee of RMZ00,000,000 of MTNS was Ssued ender the grogrammae on 11 November 2016 3t 3 coupon
fare 5.05% [FO1E: 5.15%) per anmiam, payabie semi-annisally in arears. The MTNS are reesmatie on 11 November
20386 at nominal value

Anominal valse of RMS00,000,000 of MTHs was ssued under thi programme an 11 November 2016 at @ coupon
rate 4 63 (2018 4554 par annum, payable seml-annually In arears. The MTHS are redeemable on 11 November
2085 a1 nominal value.

(¥} The MTHS of YTL Power Intarnational Berhad (Y TLPT) were ssuad pursuant o

{a) A Madium Term Nates programmae of up 1o AMS, 000,000,000 corstituted by a Trust Deed and MTNs Agreament,
bath dated 11 August 2011, The faolity bears interest rates ranging from 4.35% 1o 4.95% (2018 4.35% 1a
#4.95%) per anmam,

0n 24 August 2018, YTUPI has drawn down RMS000000,000 of two MTNS and bears Inerest rates rangng from
465% 0 4.59% per annum, A MTNs of AME200.000.000 has been repaid during the financial year.

{b) The Islamic MTMs of YTLPI wene ssued pursuant to lslamic Medium Term MNotes facilfity of up 1o AM2,500,000,000
in nominal value under the Shariah principle of Murabahah (via Tawameg Amangement}) which constituted by a

Trust Dead and Fadlfity Agency Agreement, both dated 20 April 2017, The facility bears a profit rate of 5059
{2018: S.05%) per anmmam
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£9. BONDS (CONT™D.)
Thia faif valiies of the bends of the Group and the Compary as at the reporting date ane a5 foliows: (cont'd)

{a) Medium term notes ["MTHs™) (cont'd.)
fiily The MTNs of Stashill Globas REIT [SGREITT) were issued pursuant toc-
ja) Sngapore MTHE (Seres 002 Nates)

Thie Grougr ssued 500100 million unseoured seven-ypeal Singapane MTHNS oompised in Seies 002 (he "Serws
002 Motes") in February 2014 (matsing in Fabreary 20215 under s SGO2 billion Multiourrency MTHs Programme,
Thie Senes D02 Notes bear 3 fixed rate interest of L50%h per annum payable semi-annuasly mamears and have
a rating af “BER+" by Standard & Poar's Rating Services

b Sngapore MTHs (Sedes 03 Kotes)

The Group issued SG0125 milion unsecured eghl-year Singapore MTNS comprised in Senies 003 (e “Seties
003 Notes) in May 2015 (maturing i May 2023) unoer its 5002 billion Multiourrency MTNs Programme. The
Sorios D03 Notes baar a fixed rate interest of 3.40% par annum pavable semi-aenually in arears and have 3
raveg of “BEB+" by Standard & Poor's Rating Services.

[} Tndgapore MTHS (Senies 004 Notes)

Thie Group Bsued SCO70 million unsecured ten-year Singapore MTNs comprised in Sedes 004 (the "Series 004
totesT) i Drtober 2006 (matuning in Ooeber Z075) under iv% 5002 billion Multicurrency MTNS Progameme. The
Sories 004 Notes bear a floed rate imterest of 314% per annum payable semi-annually In arears and have 3
rating of "BEE+" by Standard & Poor's Rating Services

[d) Malaysia MTMS

SGREIT has outstanding fase-year fxed-rate senor medium term nanes of a nominal value of RMIZ0 milkon
{Saniar MTN®) msuied at a discounted cash considaration of appresemately RMI2E million. The Semor MTY bear
a fied coupon rate of 4.48% per annum and have a camying amount of approsmat oy RM3Z9.8 million (SC01078
milipr) [2018 RM22E.9 million (S60111.2 millon] as at 30 june 2018, The notes have an expected maturity in
Saptember 2019 anvd legal mansity in March 2021, and are secwred, inter alia, by a fixed and fipating charge
ower all the assets of Ara Bntang Berhad,

(ivy The MINs of YTL REIT were ssed pursuant fo-

Thie MTHs af the Group were Issued pursuamt to a MTNs ssuance programime af up to RM1E50 milllen constituted
by a Trust Deed and Programme Agreement, both dated 11 May 2016, The facility bears coupon rates ranging from
A4.70% 1o 5.10% (2008: 495% to 5.23%) per armum, payable semi-annually in arrears and |s secured by certain
progerties as disclosed in Mote 11 and 12 to the financial statements.
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29. BONDS ICONT'D.)
Thi faif values af the bands of the Gioup and the Company 45 a1 the reporting date ate as fallows:- (tar'd)

{a) Medium term notes (“MTNs") [cont'd.)
{w) The MThs of YTL REIT were issued pursuant tec- {contd )

{a) A nominal value of RM10 million of MTNS was iSsued on 25 May 2016 to refinance part of the Group's existing
RMBZLE million term kaan, The MTNs had been redeemed on 24 May 2019 by the Bsuance of a nominal value
ol RM10 milion of MTHs on 24 May 2009, Tiw MTNs are redeemable on 23 May 2022 at nominal vabae,

(B A& nomeal walue of RMES million of MTNS was amed on 25 May 2007 to hinance e renavition oS carmed
out a1 The Ritz-Carltor. Kuala Lumpur - Sulte Wing and Hotal Wing. The MTNs are redeemable on 23 May 2022
at norminal vishee

&) A nofmonel value of RM3BS millien of MTNS was Hsued of 3 Movember 2007 18 finsnce the acquisition of The
Majest Hotel Kuala Lumpur by YTL REIT, The MTHs ae redeemabie on 1 Novernber 2024 a1 nominal value

{d) - Anommal valee of RMZES million of MTMNG was issued on 23 Novembe: 2017 to refinance the sxsting bormowings
of YTL REIT, The MTNs ara redeamable gn 23 Movernber 2022 a1 nominad value.

(&) A nomnal valoe of RMBS5 milien of MTNS wes nsued on 28 june 2015 1o finance the nencvation Costs carried
out at W Marriott Hotel Kuaa Lumpur, The MTNs arg redeemabbe on 28 [une 2023 a1 nomingd valie,

) The MTRS of YTL Cement Berhad (7Y TL Coment) wara issaed parssant 1.

Ini 2016, Latargn Comant Son Bhd. [MLCSEY, a wholly.swned subsidinry of Lafarge Malaysa Borhad had establishad
A Sulouk Wakalah Programme (Sukuk Wakalah™) for the issuance of up to RMS00,000,000 in nominal value of Sukuk
Wakalah. it provides LCSE the flaxibikty 1o ratse furds froem time 1o time which can be utilised 1o finance andior 1o
reimburse the acquisitian of property, plant and equipment/investmeants, 1o fund warking capital requiremems and
1o refinance exsting bank bomowings of LCSE. The Suk.uk Wakalah Programme has a temee of 7 years from the date
of furst issuance of the Sukuk Wakatah,

On 12 January 2017, LCSE made its first ssuance of RM100,000,000 in nominal value of Sukuk Wakalah based on the
Shanah principle ot Wakalah and Murabahah under the Sukuk Wakalah Programme to fund working capital requrements
af LCSA. The Subuk Wakalah bore profit based a1 4.40% per annum and has been fully settled in 2018

On 13 january 2007 and 13 December 2017, LCSB made 15 second and third Issuance of RM180.000.000 and
HMI00,000,000 in nomnal value of Sukuk Wakalzh, respectively based on the Shariah principle of Wakalah and
Murabahah under the Suicuk Wakalah Programme 1o fund working capital requirements of LCSB. The Sukuk Wakzlah
are due on 12 January 2020 and 12 December 2020 and bear profit at 4 80% and 5.00% per annum, payable semi-
annually.
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29. BONDS (CONT'D.)
{b] 3.52% Retalls price Index guaranteed bonds ["RPIG Bonds”)

The RAG Bonds of Wessax Water Services Finance Pic, bear imerest semi-annually on 30 fanuaty and 30 [uly 4tan interest
rate af 3.52% initally, indexod U by the nflation Fate every yaal. The effective interest rate a3 1 30 june 2015 15 6 71%:
(2018 7.40%:) per annum. The RPIG Bonds will be redeemied in full by fsswer on 30 July 2023 at their indexed value together
with ol scmsed imtenst,

{e) 5.75% Guaranteod unsecured bonds

On 15 October 2003, Wessox Water Services Finanie PiC [Tesuer), a subsidiary ol the Group, issued GEPIS0,000.000
nierminal value 5, 75% Guarmnteed Unseoeed Bonds doe 2033 ("5.75% GL) Bonds™] uncondinonally and irrevocably guarntoeed
by Wessax Water Services Limited, a subsidary of the Group. The 5.75% CU Bands ane constituted wndar a Trust Deed
dated 15 October 2003, The normanal value of 5.75% GU Bonds ssued amounted to GEP 350,000,000 and a5 at 30 june
2019 GBP34E, 358,515 (2016; CBPI47.274,542) remained outstanding. nat of amortised fees and decount, The net proceeds
ol the 5.75% GU Bonds were used for tefinanding al existing finonclal indebtedness snd fof general corparate puipodes

Thie Bonds bear Intenest at 5.75% per annum, payable anmually on 14 October of each yea. The bonds will be redesmed
i Tull by the lssuer on 14 October 2033 a1 thair neminal value tagether with all acerued interast

{d] 5.375% Guaranteed unsccured bonds

On 10 March 2005 Wessex Water Services Finance Pic. {15suer’), a subsidiary of 1the Group, issued GEFZ00,000.000 nominal
vabuis 5.375% Quarantesd Unsecured Bonds due 2028 ["5375% OU Bonds™) widonditlonally aed imevecalbly guarantesd
by Wessax water Services Limited (Guarantor”], & subsidiary of the Group, The 5.375% GU Bonds arg constiiuted unoer
i Truest Deed caned 10 March 205

The nominal value of 5.375% GU Bonds issued amounted 1o GEP200,00C,000, of which GBP1SE,7C8.230 (2018:
GEMO8,064.188) remained sutstanding as at 30 june 2019, net of amortizad fees and discount. The net proceads of the
bords wese used for refinancing of existing finarcal indabtedress and for general cOrporate purposes.

The Bonds bear interest at 5.375% per annum, payable anmually on 10 Masch of each year, The bonds will be redeemed
im fuill by thie |ssuer on 10 March 2088 a1 ths nominal value together with all acerued interest.

(2] 1.75%: Index linked guaranteed bonds

On 31 juy 2006, Wessex Water Services Finance Pic. (Tssuer”) ssued two (&) tranches of GEP7S,000,000 nominal value
1.75% Index Linked Cuarmntesd Bonds (LG Bonds 17 unconditionally and imevecably guarantesd by Wessex Water Sendices
Limiten ("Guarantor). The ILG Bones 1 was each constinted undar a Trust Deed dated 31 July 2006 and 5 unsecured

The ILG Bonds 1 bear interest semi-annually on 31 January and 31 july at an interest rate of 1.75% inivally, indexed up by
the inflation rate every year. The effective interest rate as at 30 |une 2019 is 4.94% (201E: 563%) per annum. The bonds

will be redeemed in full by the lssuer on 31 july 2046 for one tranche, and 31 July 2051 for the other tranche at thelr
indlexad value together with all accrued intenest.
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9. BONDS ICONT'D.)
i1 1.369% AND 1.374% Index linked guaranteed bonds

On 31 jamuary 2007, Wessex Water Services Finance Plc (T1ssuer”) issued GEFYS.000.000 nominal value LI&3% index
Linkad Guaranteed Bonds and GEP75,000,000 nominal vale 1.374% Index Linked Guarameed Bands, bath dua 2067 ['ILG
Bonds 27) unconditionally and rrevecably guaranteed by Wessex Water Services Limited ["Guarantor”), The ILG Bonds 2
were each constituted wnder 2 Trust Deed dated 31 fanuary 2007 and are ursecured,

Thee ILG Bonds 2 beoar interest sems-gnodlly o 31 Jornsary end 31 fuly at an interest rate of 1.359% and 1.374% imitiakly,
Indeead up ty the inflation rate every yoar, The effective inverest rate as at 30 June 2009 15 4.56% 2018 525%) per
annuim, Thie bords will e redeemid 9 Tl by e lssuer an 31 July 2057 a1 their indees valus Together with all aonesd
interest

(g} 1.489%. 1.495% AND 1.499% Index linked guaranteed bonds

O 28 September 2007, Wessex Waler Services Finance Pl [Mssuer™) ssued GBPS0,000,000 nominal value 1LA489%, Index
Linked Guaranteed Bonds, GEPS0.000.000 nominal valug 1 495% Index Linked Guarantied Bonds and GBPSC,000.000
nomingl value 1.499% index Linked Guarantesd Bonds, all due 2058 ("ILG Bongs 37) unconditonally and Irmevocably
guarantesd by Wessex Water Senvices Limitad Guarantar) The ILG Bands 3 were sath constituted under a Trust Deed
dated 28 September 2007 and are unsacured

Thie ILG Dordds 3 bear interest semi-arnually on 29 November and 29 May at an interest rate of 1.489%., 1.495% and
1.459% invitially, indexed g by the nflation rate every year, The effecive mtensst rate o5 a1 30 e 2009 is 3.93% (2008;
£ 83%) per annum. The ILG Bonds will be redesmed In full by the suer on 29 November 2058 at thelr indexed value
TogeTier with all Accnsed intenesT.

(h] 2.186% Index linked guaranteed bonds

On 7 September 2000, Wessex Water Services Finance Pl (Mssuer™) issued GBPS0,000,000 nominal valee 21865 Index
Linked Guaranteed Bonds due 2032 (LG Bonds 47 uncanditionally and imevacably guaramesd by Wesses Water Senvices
Limited { Tasrantor'), The ILG Bonds 4 were constituted under a Tiest Deed dated 7 September 2009 and are unsetuned.

Thie ILG Bends & bear infarest semi-annualy on 1 Decomber and 1 [une at an inferest rite of 2. 186% mitially, ndeed up
by the inflation e svery half year, The effective Interest rate as at 30 june 2019 is 254% (2018: 3.35%) per annum.
The ILC Bords 4 will be redeemed in full by the lsser an 1 june 2039 at thelr indexed value together with all acoreed
EVTErEs].

() 4.0% Guaranteed unsecured bonds

On 24 january 2012, Wessex Water Services Finance Bic. (“lssuer’), a subsidiary of the Group, Bsued GEP200,000.000
nominal value 4.00% Cuaranteed Unsacured Bonds due 2021 (4% OU Bonds"] unconditionally and imevocably guaranteed
by Wessex Water Services Limited ["Guarantor®), a subsidlary of the Group. The 4% GU Bonds are constituted under a Trust
Deed dated 24 [anuary 2012 The nominal value of 4% GU Bonds issued amounted to GBP200.000,000, of which
GEP199,400,879 (2018 GBF199,134,603) remained cutstanding as at 30 June 20019, net of amortised fees and discount.
Tie net procesds of e 4% GU Bonds were used for refinancng of extsting financlal indeliedness and for general ceporate
CUMpOses.
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29. BONDS (CONT'D.)
(i} 4.0% Guaranteed unsecured bonds (cont'd.)

On 30 August 2012, Wessex Water Servites Finance Plc. (Fseer™). a subsidiary of the Group, sswed GBP100.000.000
mofmifal value 4.00% Gusantesd Unsscured Bonds dus 2021 (4% GU Bands”) wneanditionally and irravocably guarantesd
by Wessax Water Services Limited ("Cuarantor), a subsidiary of the Group. The 49 GU Bonds are corstituted under.a Trust
Deed dated 30 August 2012 The nomimal ¥alue of 4% GU Bonds issuved amounted to GBP100,000,000 of which
GEFL02,025,593 (2008: GBPLOZ2.9G0,4E61) remained outstanding &5 at 30 June 2019, net of amortised fees and deicount.
Thue et provesds of the 4% GU Bonds wene wed for relinancng of exsting linencial indebitedness and lon general coponale
purposes,

The Bonds beas interest at 4.00% per anrerm, payablz annually on 24 September of each year, The bonds wil be redeemed
in Tull by thi lzsuer on 24 Septembar 2021 at theif nomatal valus together with all acoroed inlerest.

The 4% GU Bonds GEP100.000,000 due 24 Septemnber 2021 were corsolidated 1o form a single serles with the 4% GU
Bonds GEPZCO.000.000 which was Issued an 24 January 2012,

{i} Japan bonds

Staill Global REIT One TME "SGRET One THMKT, a subsidiary of the Group, has [PY678 millign (SGDES milkien) [2018:
|PYETE milllon [SGDE4 millien)] of lapan bonds cutstanding &4 at 30 june 2009, maturing In August 2021, The interest
rate for the Japan bond was hedged vin interest mie cap. Whilst no security has bean pledged, the bondnalders of the
Jogram bond have a statutory prefemed right, under e japan Asset Liquidation Law, to receive payment of all obligations
uridar the Japan bond prics 1o giher creditors out of the assa1s of the ssuer (SGREIT One TME]).

30. BORROWINGS
Group Company
2019 2018 2019 2018
Note RM'000 RM'000 RM'O00 RHO00
Current
Bankers’ aceplances a0(a] 24,347 31855 -
Bank ovesdrafts Ei] 1] 42,675 33,011 -
Commmitied Lank kans ELL (8] - 52,538 - -
Finance lease llabiites 30(dj 30,265 e 565 BOF
Iredesmable convertible imsacured 3iej 15,609 19.825 - -
Ioan stocks _
Rewabeinig credit Ei] 3,354,043 207,207 1,266,855 1266854
Tarm loans 30¢al 11,370,304 1263303 200,000 .

14,837,243 3529.505 1,467,420 1.2675661
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3). BORROWINGS (CONT™D.)

Group Company

2019 2018 2019 2018
Hote RH'O00 RM"OOD RMOO00D RM'O0D0

Mon-current
Committed bank haans Elld] - 2648 - :
Fianre ease llamites 03[ty 17.489 45417 550 (s
Imedeemable convertible unsecured Inan stocks  30(g) - 4.969 - -
Rewvalving credit I 565,935 381781 - -
Term oant 30 11.177.431 17,600,645 - £00,000
11,760,855 16,035,360 550 200,172

Total

Bankers' acceptances 30(a) 24,347 3,855 - -
Bank averdrafts 1] 42,675 43011 - -
Committed bank nans Eali4] = 55186 = -
Fimanoe lease liabiites 30| 47,754 1225092 1115 974
Imedeemsabie comertible unseoured lnan stocks 30(e) 15,609 24,7495 - -
Revolving credit ] 3,919,978 2,460,988 1,266,855 1.266.854
Term keans J30(g) 22,547,735 10,064,030 200,000 200,000
26,598,098 21,564, 565 1.467.970 1467833

The barrowings af the Group and the Company aoe repayabla o bellows:-

Later than

1 year

but not

Hot later later than Later than
than 1 year S years L years Total
Group RM'000 RM000D RMO0D RM'ODO
At 30 june 2019
Banlkers acceptances 24,347 - - 24.347
Bank awerdrates 42.675 = = 42,675
Firance hease liabiities 30,265 17,489 - 47,754
IcuLs 15.609 - - 15,609
Revalving credit 3,354,043 425,935 140,000 3,919,578
Term loans 11,370,304 0,555,068 1,622,363 22,547,735
14,837 243 9,998,492 1,762,363  26.598.098
260

515/628



EDINETOOOO
Oo0O0000000000000000000000(eo05821)
Oooooooa

ANNUAL REPORT 2019

Notes to the Financial Statements

- 30 June 2019
30. BORROWINGS [CONT'D.)
Thie barrowings of the Group and the Campany & repayable as follows- (cont'd)
Later than
1 year
bt nat
Mot later later than Later than
than 1 year 5 yoars 5 years Tatal
GCroup RM'000 RM'000 RM'O00 RM'O00
At 30 June 2018
Bankers' atceptanies 3855 - . 3,855
Eank ovendra’ts 33,011 - - EERUS|
Committed bank lsans 52,538 2648 - 5E.186
Finance lgase habiities 71675 &5317 12,992
ICLALS 19,826 4,969 - 24,1495
Rewalving credit 2073.207 221,781 160,000 2460588
Term loans 1863353 16,433,057 LIE7.548 18U864,038
3520505 16,707,812 1,327.548 2L.564,865
Company
At 30 June 2019
Finance lease habilities 565 550 - 1115
Fewalving credit 1,266,855 - - 1,266,855
Term lpans 200,000 - - 200,000
LABT. 420 550 - L.467.970
Company
At 30 June 2018
Finance lease habilitles ao? 172 - =]
Revalving credit 1256854 - - 1.266.854
Term leans - 200,000 - 200,000
1.£b/ . Bal PR FFs - 1.&b/ B33

The carrying amounts of the bormowings of the Group and of the Company as at the reporting date approximated their falr
valuss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
- 30 June 2019

30. BORROWINGS (CONT™D.)
The waghted average affective intarest rates of the barmowings of the Group and the Company as at the reparting date ara

at follows:-
Group Company
2019 Z018 2019 2018
L B o Y
Term loans 211 263 4.34 434
Revalving credit 410 L4 3.90 417
Comemitted bank kars - 220 - -
IEULS 7.49 150 - -
Banisrs' acceptances 3.05 258 - -
Bank gwerdrals 2.89 153 - -
Femance lease llabllimes 160 17 2.40 240

{a) Bankers’ acceptances

All the bankers’ acceptances are unsedwed and repayable on demand.

(b) Bank overdrafts
All the bank owerdraft facilities are unsecured and repayable on demand.

{c) Committed bank loans

The loams were repaid in Tull during the financial year,

{d) Finance lease labilities

Group Company

2019 2018 2019 2018

RMO0O0 RM'DDD RMODO RM'O00

Fayable not later than 1 year F. 721 81,250 599 834

Fayable |ater than 1 year and not kater

than § years 17,702 46556 566 /s
Later than 5 years 53 - i :
Tatal minimum lease payments 49,476 127806 1.165 1,009
Less Finamce changes [1.722) (4.814) (50} (309
Present walue of minimuam |ease payments 47,754 122,932 1,115 973
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30. BORROWINGS [CONT'D.)
(&) kredeemable convertible unsecurad loan stocks ("ICULS")
ICULS 201172021

On 31 Ocvober 2001, YTL Land & Devalopmant Bedfhad (YTL Land’), & sulssichiary of the Group istued 582,378,023 tan (10}
years 3% stepping up bo 6% ICULS at & nominal value of AMOLSD each, maturing 31 October 2021 (™aturity Date”).

The =alient terms of the ICULS 2001/2021 are as follows:-

iy The lCULS 20112021 bear & coupon rate of 3.0% per annum from date of issue [Tssue Date”) up 1o faurth anrsversary
of 1he |ssue e and 4.5% por annum from e date after e founh anniversany of the ssue Date us 1o the sewenth
anniversary of the lssue Date, Therealter, the ICULS 201172021 bear a coupan rate af 505 per annum up 1o the
maturity date. Tha ntenest & payable semi-annualy in anmears,

fiiy  The ICULS 2011/2021 e convertibhe 5t any tme o of after (15 ssuance date ifto new ordinery shares of YTL Land
A1 i conviersion price, which is fixed on a step-down basis, 45 follows:-

+  Fod corwersion o1 any time from the date of Ssue up 1o the fourth anniversary, comersion price is RML32

+  Fof convession an any Time a‘ter fourth anmiversary of (ssue up 1o the savienth anniversacy, CONVBISIon price is
AMDES: and

«  Fod conversion at any thme atter seventh annlversary of ssue up 1o the maturity date, converslan price is RMOGE

filip  The KULS 200152021 o not redeemabéa and any ICULS 201172021 remaining immadiately after the maturity date
shall be mandatorlly corveried mte ardinary shares a1 the conversion price.

v} The new oreinary shares issued from the coersion of IKULS 200152021 will be deemed fully pad-up and rank pari
passy in all respects with 2l existing ordnary shares of Y7L Laned

Acertain amount of the ICULS 201152021 ane hald by the Company (refer Mote 14 to the financial statements). Thie relevant
amunis have been aliminated in the Statemants of Financial Position.

{f} Revolving credit
Sawe for RMIB0,000,000 {2016 RM200.000,000] revolving credit facikty of YTL Land & Development Berhad, all the
revolving credit facllities are unsecured and repayable on demand,

{g] Term loans

{l) Term loans denominated in Great British Pounds

{a) The tesm ioans af RM393.66F,500 [GERPTS,000,000] (2018 RMIFYL.207.500 [CBPTS,000,000]) ae unsecured
loans of Wessex Water Sendoes Limited and are guaranteed by Wessex Water Limited. The loans bear Interest
rates ranging firom 1.05% to 1.50% (2018: 0.90% ta 1.O5%) per annum and are repayable in full an 22 july
2021
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YTL CORPORATION BERHAD

Motes to the Financial Statements
- 30 June 2019

30. BORROWINGS (CONT'D.)
(g} Tenm loans (cont'd)

(i) Term loans denominated in Great British Pounds (cont'd.)

{b) The term loans of RM74L454,000 [GBP140,000,000] of previous year were unsecured bans of Wessex 'Water
Serices Limdied and o e guadanieed by Wessex Water Limited, Tha loans biear intérest frates rangang lrosm 0.91%
1o LOB% (2018: 0.57% 10 0.51%) par annum and were fuly repaid during 1he financial year,

{g)  The term loans of RML045. 780,000 [CBPZ00,000,000] (2018: RML.059.220.000 [GEPZ00,000.0007) are
unsecured loans of Wessex Wator Services Limitod and are guarantecd by Wesson Water Limited. The first lean
of GEFS0000L000 was drivwn down an 30 january 2015 bears an interest rate of 2.16% (2018 216%]) per
anmum, the second loan of GBPS0,000.000 was drawn down on 9 Maich 2015 bears interest rates ranging from
L15% 10 L42% (2018: 0.95% 10 L15%) per annwm, the third loan of CEPS0,000,000 was drawn down on 9
Apil 2015 tpars an interest rate of 1.5% (2008: L99%) poe annum, and thea Toeurth laan el GRPS0,000,000 was
drasn Cown an £5 May 2016 bears interest rates ranging from 1453 1o 177% [20168: 1.21% to 1.49%) per
annum. Al the loars ara repayable in full between 30 january and 25 May 2025,

{d)  The term loans of RM7 34,846,000 [GEPL40.000,000) was driawn by Wessex Water Services Limited of which
RMP2E, 262,084 [GEF1ZE,745.658] remened uutstanding a5 ot 30 urie 20150 net of amortised lees, The kans
Dear Interest rates ranging from 183 % 10 £03 % per annum and ane repayable with a B0% DulleT repayment
on J1 january A6 with the remaining 40%: being repald (0 pquad semi-annasal instalments commencing 91
January 2021,

{il} Term loans denominated in US Dollars
@) The term koan of RMB28.400,000 [USD200,000,000] (2018: AMBOY, 700,000 [USL200,000,000]) was drawn
dewn by YTL Powor internaticnal Berhad (YTLPI") on 28 May 2015 and repayablo on 28 May 2020, Tre borrewing
bears interest rates ranging from 363% to £04% (2018: 277 to LEFH) per annum

ik The term loan of RME2E.A00,000 [USDE00.000,000] {2018, RMEOT, 700,000 [USD200,000,0000) was drawn
down by YTLPY an 17 December 2015 and repayable on 17 December 2020, Thie Dorowing bears inenest rates
ranging from 3.36% ta 1.74% (2018: 263% to 3.45%) per annum.

{e)  The torm koan of RM1L035,500,000 [USDES0,000,000] (2016: AMLDOA,625,000 [USD250.000.000)) was drawn
down by YTLP on 3] March 2017 of which RML025 841,237 [USD247.6608,001) (20168: RMOOG6 946,206
[UaD246,660.519]) remained outstanding as at 30 june 2019, ret of amortised fees. The bomowing bears
Interast rates ranging from 3.27% to 3,78%: (2016 2.43% 1o 2.29%) per annum and ks repayable on 31 March
20EL

{di  Term loan of RMOA2,305,000 [US0227 500,000] (2018 RMAT3 336,000 [USD242,500,000]] af YTL Corp. Finznce
{Cayman) Limited guaranteed by the Company and repayable by 8 semi-annual Instalments of USDRS millon,
commencing on 16 March 2006 and a final Instalment of USDE20 miflon on 16 March 2020, The loan bears
interast rate of I74% (2018 3.23%) per annum

(i) Term loans denominated in Ringgit Malaysia
Save for the term loan of RM1.906,313.000 (2018: RM180,500,000) of the Group, all the term loans are unsecured,
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30. BORROWINGS (CONT'D.)
(@) Term loans (cont'd.)

{iv} Term loans denominated in Singapore Dollars
inchuded in e tarm loan are:
[a]l The term loan of RME.03E,72L474 [SC0LA73.180,458] (2018: RME5.B90,552.790 [S001.9590,804,958]) was

drawn down by YTL FowesSeraya Pte, Limited on 14 September 2017 s repayable in full on 12 Septomber 2022.

The batrowing I5 an unsecured |oan and bears interest rates ranging from Z283% to 344 (2018 227 1o
2.759%h).

The hank barrowings 4% subject to laan covenant elauses stipulated i the loan agreement, As at 90 june 20149,
the Groud did nat meet the requaterment af a certain loan covenant and &5 a resull, the bormawings have been
classifiod a5 a current liabiity in the statement of fnancal position of the Group On 13 September 2015, the
Group recerved & waiver from the consortium of banks an the requirement to comply with the above loan
cowenant, Accondingly, the breach that was in existence as at 30 june 2019 has been rectifed and the bank
borrowings nave been re-tassiled 1o non-(ument abdity subseguent 1o 30 jure 2019,

) Tem loan of RM1,123,423,000 [SGD367 084,000 (2018: RM1,145,725,000 [SGOIAE.565,000]) is a secuwed
loan of YTL Westwood Properties Pe. Ltd, (™YTLW). This term loan bears interest rates ranging frem 3,735 10
384% (2018 265% to 3.56%) por annum and is secured by legal mongage af the property of YTLW

Save for item (b) above, all the term loans are unsecuned

(v} Term loans denominated in Australian Dollars
All the: term lean are secured by first fixed charge over the properaes.

{vi} Term loans denominated in |apanese Yen
All the term loan are secured by first fixed charge over the properes.

3L. GRANTS AND CONTRIBUTIONS

Group

2019 Z018

Note RM'ODO RM'DDO

At beginning of the finandal year 548,493 547,775
Currency trarsiation differences {1,124} (29,775)
Amartisation of grants and contributions 7 (15,973} (20,100)
Received during the financial year 29,432 50,5593
At end of the financial year 560,828 548,453

Crarts and contributions represents gavernment grants o forelgn subsidiaries in respect of specific gualitying expenditure an
Infrastruciure assets, nan-infrastructure assEts and a cogeneration plant
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3Z. DEFERRED TAXATION

Group Company

2019 2018 2019 2018
RM 000 RMO00 RMOOO RM'O00
At beginning of the financia year [FRS) 2.073.201 2,068,379 113 113
Effect of adoption of MFRS 155 9 70,766 B2.513 - -
At beginning of the financial year [MFRS) 2,143,967 2150092 113 u3
Tharged ta Inceme Statements 9,395 1774 - -
- Froparty, plart and adquipmet 22,386 5137 - -
- Fraporty developmen? (750) (12.200) - -
- Investment properties 589 (LATE) - -

Retirement benefits 4,360 33,480 -
= Frowison (1.131) (1.338) = -
- Unutifsed capital allowance {5.591) (17,705 - -
- Unabsorbed tax losses (8.289) 1,929 - -
- Others (1.479) 6311 - -

Cusrancy translation difterences

Acquilsition of subsidiary {3.778) (96,750} - -
[Cradited/Charged 1o Other (68,497) EG.747 - -

Comprehensive Inoome * (7.943) 0,518 -
At enid o e financial year 2,073,144 21441081 113 113

*  This is in relation to re-measurement of post-employment benefit obligations.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when thare ks a legally enforceable right to set off income tax assets against income
tax liahilities and when the deferred taxes relate to the same tax authority. The follewing amounts determined after appropriate
offsatting are shown In the Statements of Financial Positionc.

Group Company
2019 2018 2019 2018
RM'O00 RM'000 RM 000 RM'O00
Deferred tax provided are in respect of.-
[efarred tax assets before offsetting
Unuitisad cagital allowances {115.428) (B3.653) - -
Rutiremien banalis (133,293} (116,542) - -
Unabeorbed tax losses (231,316) (27.458) - -
Provision {16.406) (5,811} -
DOthers (20,637) (16510 B z
(517.080) [230.074) = -
Offsetting 517,080 230,074 - -

Ceferred tax assets alter offsetting = - - -
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32. DEFERRED TAXATION (CONT'D.)
Group Company
2019 2018 2019 2018
RM'O00 AM'000 RMO00 RM 000
Detemed tax provided are in respect of:-
Cetemad ta lizhilities batora ohtsatting
Propecty, plant & equipmant
capital allowances i encess of depreciatian 2,530,401 2,308,708 113 113
Land held for property development 37,892 40,594 - -
Others £1.931 24948 -
2,590,224 2,374,255 113 113
Dffsetting (517, 080) (230,074 - =
Defemed tax lizbilities after offsetting 2,073,144 2144.181 113 113
Detemed tax assets have nol been récoghised m respect of the lollowing Rems-
Group
2019 2018
RM'O00 RM'O00
LUnabsorbed tay losses LG81.878 1355652
Linutilised capital Mlvannnes 2.251.985 L5474
Deductble temporary differences TT.406 BO.TTE
Tauable temporary ditferences - property, plart and equipment (1.188.767) (L.092.660)
2,822,502 2376242

Thi unabsorbed tax lesses and unutiised capital allowances are subject 1o agrésment with the infand Revenua Board. On the
othier hand, effectve from year of assessment 20019 as announced In the Annual Budger 2019, the unused tax losses of the
Group as at 31 Decermber 2018 and thereafter will ooly be avalable for carry foreard fior a period of 7 consecutive yoars. Upon

expiry of the 7 years, the unabsorbed kosses will be deregarded.
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33. POST-EMPLOYMENTS BEMEFIT OBLIGATIONS

Group Company
2019 2018 2019 2018
Hote RMO0O0 RM OO0 RH"OOO RM'00D
Defined contribution plan - Curmrent
Malaysla 33a) 4.874 4877 305 23
Group Company
2019 2018 2019 2018
Hote RMO00 RHM'DOO RM OO0 RM'O00
Defined benefit plan - Non-current
- Malaysia EE L] 55,346 - - -
- Unitad Kingdom EE[ (] BET.A50 671629 - -
- Indonesia EEH] 16,350 13,880 - -
759.646 BBS.509 - .

{a) Defined contribution plan

Group companies eorporated in Malaysia contribute 1o thi Employees Provident Fund, the national defined contribution
phan. Once the contributions have been paid, the Group has no further payment obligatons.

(b) Defined benefit plan - Malaysia
The defined benefit plan typlcaily exposes the Group 1o actuanial nsks such as longevity nsk and salary rsic

() Longevity risk

The present value of the defined benefit plan llxbility = calculsted by reference 1o the best estimane of the manality
of plan partcipants during their employment. An increéace in the life expectancy of the plan paricipants wil increase
the plan's Eability.

{il) Satary risk

The presant valle of the defined benefit plan liabilty is calculated by reference to the future salaries of plan participants.
Ac sich, an increase in the calary of the plan participants will increase the plan's Bability,

The most recent actuaral valuation of the plan assets and the present value of the defined bensfit obligation were carmied
out on 4 january 2009 by the external actuary.

The present value ot the defined benafit obligation, and the related current service cost and past service cost, were
mieasured using the projected unit credit method
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33. POST-EMPLOYMENTS BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (CONT'D.)
(b} Defined bencfit plan - Malaysia (cont'd.)
The principal actuarial assumptions a1 the end of the reparting period are as fallows;
Group

2019
ki
Diecount rate 51
Future salay infrasse rata L0

Sensivity analvsls:

Significant actuaria assumprion for the detesmenation of the defined benefit obligaton is the decount rate. The sensltity
analysis below has been determined based on neasonably possibie change of the respective assumption occurring at the
end of the reparting pesiad, while holding ol ather assumptions consiant

I e distownt rate increassd{decease) by 05%, the defined beredit ebillgation would decrease by RM2 37349000 rease
by RMZ.598.869,

The mowements in the net lability recognised in the Statements of Finandcial Positlen are as follows:-

Group
2019

RM'000
At beginning of the financial year =
Accuisition of subsidiaries 54,816
Charge for the financal year

55,346

The: amounts recegnised in the Staterments of Financial Position are aralysed as follows:-

2019

Present walue of wlundad oaligation 55,346
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33. POST-EMPLOYMENTS BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS [CONTD.}
(b} Defined banefit plan - Malaysia {(cont"d.)
Reconciliation of the present value of unfutded chilgation ane as follows:-

Group
2019
RH'O00
At baginning of the financial year -
Acquisition of subsidiarias 54,816
Current service cost 304
Interest cost 226
55,346

The amounts recogrised in the Incame Staterments are a5 follows

Group
2019
RH'O00
Cwrrant senvice cost 304
Interesst cost 226
530

{c) Defined bonefit plan - United Kingdom
A subssdiary of the Group operates. final salary defined benefit plans for its employees in the United Kingdom, the assets
of which are held in separate trustee-administered funds The latest actuaial valuatian of the plan was undertaken by a
gualified actuary as at 30 September 2016, This valuation has been adjusted to the reporting date as at 30 June 2019
taking account of experience over the peviod since 30 September 2016, changes inmarket conditions, and differences in
the financial and demographic assumptions by the gualified actuary.

{i) Profile of the scheme

The defined benelit obBgations include benefits for current employees. former employees and current pensionars.
Broadly, about 34% of the iakelities are attributable 1o current employees. 1796 to former employees and 40% to
current pensioners. The scheme dsation & an indicator of the weighted-average time until bensfit payments are
made. For the stheme as a whole, the duration s sound 20 yesrs rellecting the spproximate split of the defined
benefit abligation between current employees (duration of 25 years], delered mambers (duration of 25 years) and
current pemianers (duration of 15 years)
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33. POST-EMPLOYMENTS BEMNEFIT OBLIGATIONS (CONT'D.)
(€} Defined benefit plan - United Kingdom (cont'd.)
{iiy Funding requirements

LK legrsiation requres that pension schemes are funded prudently, The last funding valuation repart, 30 Saptember
E016 showed a deficit of CEPLE0.S rrifion (RMB44.5 million], The subsidiary i paying defict contributions of,

+  GEPLLFY milllon (RMELTE million) by 31 March 2020
+ GERIZ04 million (RMGI.20 miion) by 31 March 2021
+  LBFIZIE million (RM&4EY million) by 31 March 2022
+  GERLEBO millon (RMES.14 million) by 31 March 2023;
+  LBEFIZ90 millon (RMEZT1 milllen) by 31 March 2024;
+  LEFIZI9milllon (RMES.Z3 million) by 31 March 2025
+  GEPLLS0 miBon (RM70.BE millon) by 31 Manch 2006

witrh, Mong with INWesIment Peturms o feTUm-Seeing asses. s expeced 1o make good this shorfall by 31 March
202E

The next funding valuation s due no later than 30 September 2009 at which progress towards full-funding wall be
risvieaed,

The subsidiary asa pays contributions of Z1.7%6 of pensionable sataries in respect of current accrual and nan-ir/estment
redated expenses, with acthve membess paying 3 further 7, 3% of pensionable salaries on average. A ontrbotion of
GBEPILT? milion (RMELTE méson) is expected to be paid by the subshdiary during the year ending on 30 june 20200

{lii} Risks associated with the scheme

Asser volaulity - The (iabilithes are caleudated using & discoum rate set with reference to corporate bond yields; |f
assa1s underperform s wield, this will create 3 deficit, The scheme halds a significant preportion of growth assets
jequities, dversified growth fund and global absolute retum furd] which, though expected (o outperfom corporate
bonds In the lorg-term, create welatility and risk In the shor-term. The allocation 1o growth assets is mondtcred 1o
EYSLIE (T TRMANnS aEroprate given the scheme's Iong term obiectives.

Changes in bond yeelds - A decrease in cerporate band walds will increase the value placed on the scheme's liabilites
for a<counting purporses, althowgh tis will be partafy offset by an increase in the value of the scheme's bond heldings.

Inflatice risk - The majority of the scheme's benefit ochEgations ae linked 1o inflation and higher inflation will lead 1o
higher liablities {although. In most cases, caps on the level of inflationary increases are In place o protect against
extreme miflation). The majenty af the assets are either unaffected by or only basely comelated weth nflation, meaning
that an ncrease in inflation will aleo increass the defot

Life expectancy - The majority of the scheme's obéfigations ane to provide benefits for the life of the member, so
increases in life expectancy will result in an increase in the liabllities.
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33. POST-EMPLOYMENTS BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (CONTD.)
(e} Defined benefit plan - United Kingdom {cont’d.)
{iii} Risks associated with the scheme [cont'd.}
The trustees insure cerfain benefits payable on death before retirement
A cortingent Babillty exists in relathon 10 the equalisation ol Guarantéed Mnimum Pension (TGHMPTL The UK Gowamment
intends to implement ‘eqgislation which could result @ an increase i the valie of GMP for some categaries ol member

Thes would increasa the defined benalit abligatian of tha plan, At this stage, |t & nal passible to quantify the impast
of this changa,

Thie reovernents during the financlyl vear in thie amounts recogned in the Statements of Financial Pesitian are as follow:-

Group
2019 2018
RM'0D0 RM'OOD
At July 671,629 1,099,962
Fersian costicredit) B80.526 (98,524}
Contributiens and benetits paid {110.153) {107,006}
Cwrrency translation differences {6.355) [44.454)
Re-memiremant gainfloss) 52.309 [178.347)
AT 30 jun 687,950 671623
The amounts recognised in the Statements of Financial Position are as follows-
Group
2019 2018
RM'ODO REOO0
Frosant value of funded obligatons 4,081,555 1582974
Fair value of plan assets (3.393,605) {3,250,745)
Ligtshity in the Statements of Financial Position 587,950 B7LEZ9
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33. POST-EMPLOYMENTS BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (CONTD.)
(e} Defined benefit plan - United Kingdom (cont'd.)
Changes in present value of defined benefit chiigations are as follows:-
Group
2019 2018
RM'000 RM'000
At 1 july 3.922.374 4,416,568
Euchange dittarenies (38.238) (222.810)
Irterest ot 111,022 113,593
Cumant service cost 56,506 &7.802
Contributions by scheme participants 1.068 1098
Past service cost 2,669 (197.006)
Met benefits paid {147.852) (130.056)
Re-messurement (gain}iloss-
= Artuarial gain arising fram demographic Fssumplions (146.250) =
= Actuarial lossfigain) arising fram financal assumprions 27729 (162.58)
- Artuarial [gainj/lass arsing fram experiance adjustments {7.473) 767
Present value of dalined bapelit oblgations. at 30 june 4,081,555 3922374
Changes in fair valie of plan assets are 35 follows:-
Group
2019 2018
RM'O00 RMO00
At 1y 3.250.745 31,316,606
Exchange diferences (31.883) {178,356}
Interest income 92,340 BE.606
Contritestions by employer 110,159 107,008
Contribations by scheme participants 1.060 Losa
Met benefits pasd {147.852) {130,056)
Administration expenrses [2.669) [3.293)
Re-measunement gain-
- Beturn on plan &sets excluding mTerest income 121.697 ETAEF]
Fair value of plan assats. at 30 June 3,393,605 3. 250,745
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33. POST-EMPLOYMENTS BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (CONTD.)
{c) Defined benefit plan - United Kingdom (cont'd.)
The pensicr cost recognised & analysed as follows-

Group

2019 2018

RM'DOO RHOO0

Current senvice cost 56,506 67,202
Inlisfess] Lol 18,682 27,887
Past service Costi{credin® 2,669 197,006}
Administration expanses 2,669 3.293
Total chargef(credited) 1o Income Statements B0.526 {98,524}

During presious Tingrcial year, Tolowing the st sClurisl valuation of the persion schisme, a corsuilation was heid
with members 19 dsguss e futwe funding of The scheme. As part of that consultation, the subsidiany, Trustees and
members agpresd that the measurement of inflation for fubure pension increases would change, From 2020 pension
increases for acthe membes will be measured using Consumaer Price Index (CP1) rather than Retal® Price Index (RP1).
The impact of that change is AMLEB0.5 million (GBF32.3 million), & reduction in the MFR511S measurement of retirement
benalit abligations, wivith hat been shown in the Income Statement a5 3 reducthon n staff corts wethin cost of sales.
A furthier change 10 the scheme in eefation to death in Service benefits payable (o dependens of members came into
etfect during previous hinancal year. The effect of ths change s an additional RMIE.S millon (GEPA0 millier) reduction.
making AM197.0 million (GEP35.9 milkon) In tomal Th AM197.0 million (GBP35.9 million) reduction in expensas generated
o RM33.5 milon [GBFPG ] mélion) defered tax charge.  nét exceptional credit of RMIEE.S million [GEPZ9.8 millicn),

Thi charge to Income Statements was nduded in the followeng ling items:.

Group
2019 2018
RM'000 RHOODO
Cost ol sales 46,383 (34.883)
Administrathon expanses 15,461 (3.6268)
Interest cost 18.682 27.9a7
Total chargefcredited) o Income Statements BO0.526 {28,524}
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33. POST-EMPLOYMENTS BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (CONTD.)
{e]) Defined benefit plan - United Kingdom (cont'd.)
The principal assumptions used i the actuarial caloulations were as folows:-
Group
2019 2018
Yo %
Discaunt rate 2.30 280
Expos T rte of incroate in pension payment 1.90-3.00 220410
Expected rate of salary ncreases 170 180-3.20
Price inflation - RPI 310 3120
Price inflatian - CPI 2.10 220

The Oroup determines the appropriate discount mte at the end of each financial year. This is the interest rate that should
b used 1o dotarming the present value of estimated future cash outflows expected 1o De requened (o setto the pemrssan
cbiigations. In determining the appropriate discount rate, the Group considers the interest mtes of high-guality corpomie
bonds that are denominated in the currency In which the benefits wil be paid, and that have terms to mateity approximataly
the terms of the related pension llability.

Mutality assumotions:
Thie martality assumgtions are based upon the recent actual mortality experience of scheme members, and allow far
expected future Improvements in mortality aies.

2019 2019 2018 2018

Male Female Hale Female

Years Years Years Years

Life expectancy - cument age 50 26.2 283 271 29.2
Life exgectarcy - cument age 40 27.4 £9.5 28.3 304

The mortality table adopted is based upan 95% of standard tables 52PM/FIA adjusted to allow for mdividual years of
birth. Future Enprovements are assumed to be in Ene with the CMI 2018 core projection, with a long term improvement
rate of 1L.0% pa. for all members.

275

530/628



EDINETOOOO
Oo0O0000000000000000000000(eo05821)
Oooooooa

YTL CORPORATION BERHAD

Notes to the Financial Statements
= 30 June 2019

33. POST-EMPLOYMENTS BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS ICONT'D.)
[c] Defined benefit plan - United Kingdom [cont’d.)
it .
Thae kay asswmplicns used for MFRS 119 are: discount rate, inflation and morality. 11 dilferent assumplions are wsed, this
oould have a material affect on the results disclosed. The sensitvity of the results to these assumptions are sa1 out bebaw,

For the parpases of thews Sonsitivitios, i1 has been assumed that the charge in the disoount e and inflation has no
impact on the value of scheme assets,

Scheme labllitles Scheme deficit
Increase Increase Increase Increase Increase
by fram to fram to
Key assumptions RM'000 RM'000 RMO0D RHODD RM'O0O

A reduction in the

descount rate of 0,1%

[From 2 3% to 2% TH734 4,051,555 4,160,789 BHT Y42 'Bh.RTR
An ncrease in tha Inftation

of 0.1% (from 21% to

2.2% for Pl and 21% to

2.2%s far AP Gr.711 4081555 4,149,260 GO7 942 755,653
An increase in life
expectancy of 1 year Ie0616 4,081,555 a4.242171 BET 942 848,558
The plan assets are comgrised as follow:-
2019 2018
RM'O00 " RM"OOOD ki
Equity instrument 1,335,845 39.4 1347856 415
Debt instrument 1,802.472 531 Ledb.432 500
Progary 191,585 56 205483 B3
ners 63,711 13 70,968 L
3,393.613 100.0 3.250.745 1000
Group
2019 2018
RHOOO RM'O00
Actual return on plan assets 214,037 137.738
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33. POST-EMPLOYMENTS BEMNEFIT OBLIGATIONS (CONT'D.)
{d) Defined benefit plan - Indonesia

Summary of obligations relating to employes benefits due under prevailing law and regulations as well a5 under the
Indoresia subsidiary's reguiations are as presented below:-

Group
2019 2018
RM'O00 RMOO00
Cibligation relating to post-employment bensfits 14,021 11816
Cibligation ratating to other long-tenmm emplayee benefits 2,329 1964
Toral 16,350 13.B80

A subsidiary of the Group has 3 defined contribution pension plan covering its gualified permanent national employees in
Indonesia. The subsidiary's contribution ts 5% of emplaoyes bacie safary, while the employees’ comtribution ranges from 3%
o 14%.

The contributions made to the defined contribution plan are acceptable for funding the post-employment benefits undar
the kabowr regulaticns.

The obligations. for post-employment and other keng term employee benefits were recognised with reference to actuarial
reparts prepared by an independent actuary. The lalest actuarial report was dated 30 june 2019

{i} Post-emplayment benetit obligations

The mowvements during the financial year in the amounts recognised in the Statements of Financial Pesition are as

follows:-
Group
2019 2018
RM'000 RHOO0
AL L July 11,916 13.251
Persion cost 1.689 1,656
Contributions and benafits paid (537) (BBE)
Currency translation dillerences 220 {1.530)
Re-measurement lossi{gain) 733 (G5}
At 30 [une 14,021 114816
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33. POST-EMPLOYMENTS BEMEFIT OBLIGATIONS (CONT'D.)

{d) Defined banefit plan - Indonesia (eont'd.)
i) Post-employment benefit ohligations (contd.)

The pblipations relating to past-employment benelits recognised in the Statements of Financial Position are as

Teilaiws:-
Group
2019 2018
RM'DOO RM'O00
Prasent walue of obigations 14,021 11916
Changes in present viiese of detinad benalit obligations ara as faliows:-
Group
2019 2018
RMODD RM'O00
At 1 fuby 11,916 13,258
Currency translation differences 220 (1.530)
Inlerest cast a11 023
Current seryice cost e B33
Met benefits pald (537} {56B)
R-Measurament s/ (gain):
- Actuarial boss/ fgaing arsing from financial assumptions Jra (1.02d]
- Actuanal {gain}/loss anising brom experiente adpustments {456} 3
Frasent walue of delined benelit cbligations at 30 June 14,021 11916
Thie pension oSt recognised can be anstysed a5 Toldws:-
Group
2019 2018
RM'DDO RM'O00
Currant service cosl e B33
Interest cost 911 B23
Total chasge to income Statements 1,689 1656
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33. POST-EMPLOYMENTS BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (CONTD.)
{d] Defined benefit plan - Indonesia (cont'd.)
{ii} Other long term employee benefit obligations

The abligations relating to other long-term employee benefits (Le, long leave sendoe benefits) recognised in U
Staterments of Financial Position are a5 Tokows:-

Group
2019 2018
AM°O00 RMO00
Presant value of abligations 2,329 1964

The movements during the financial year in the amaun? recogrised in the Starements of Financial Position are as

follows:-
Group
RM 000 RM'OOD
At L july 1,964 2,239
Penson cost 636 358
Contributions and benafits paid (311) (425)
Cwrrency wanslation differences 40 {265)
A1 30 |une 2,329 1964
Changes in present value of defined benelit ciligations e o5 Tollows:-
Group
2019 2018
RMO00 RM'O00
At L July 1.964 2,294
Currency translation ditfenences 40 (e
Current serdice Ccost 636 358
Net benefits paid (311) [429)
At 30 june 2,329 1964
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33. POST-EMPLOYMENTS BEMEFIT OBLIGATIONS (CONT'D.)

{d) Defined banefit plan - Indonesia (eont'd.)
{ii} Other lang term employee benefit obligations {cant'd.)
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Th smounls relating 10 ather leng-tenm employee benelits obligation recognised in the Income Statements ae as

Toaws

Current service cast

The charga above was inchuded in the cost of wales

Thé principal assumplions uted in the actuanial calculations wara a5 follows.-

Discount rate
Future sabary incresse rale

Group
2019 Zo1d
RMODD RMO00
636 350
Group
2019 2018
L
7.3 B8O
9.0 90

Sensil |

Reasonably possile changes 1o the ey assumplans, would have affected the detined benefit obligatons by the

amounts shiown below:

Discount rate (1% movemeant]
Fuure sakary Incredse rate (1% movernent)

Increase Decrease
RMOOOD RM'OO00
923 1.029
1,339 1.224

Thies analysis provides an approximation of the sensitivity of the stturmption shown, but does not take account of the

variability in the timing of distribution of benefit payments expected under the plan
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34. PROVISION FOR LIABILITIES AND CHARGES
Afferdable Rectification Damages
housing waorks Restructuring clabms
Note (a) (b} (141 ) Total
Group - 2013 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM OO0 RM OO0
At beginning of the financal year
[FRS) 40,331 B.132 35,382 102,491 186,336
Effect af adaptian of MFRS 15 [40.331) - = = {40.331)
At beginning of the finandal year
[MFRS) - 8.132 35.382 102.491 146,005
Currency transiation ditferences - 134 (79} 165 220
Oharged 1o prafit ar lods 7 - - 8219 (&949) 7.520
Payments - (1.73g) [3.619) (775) (6.132)
At end of the financial year - 6.528 39,903 101182 147.613
Presented as follows:
Current - B.528 39,903 101,182 147,613
Aflordable Rectilication Damages
housing works Restructuring claims
Naote (5] (L] (3] (d) Tatal
Group - 2008 RM'DDD RM'O0O RMO0O RMOOD RMODD
At baginning of the financial year
[FRS) 40,331 5,628 35,035 107,155 188,349
EMect at adaption of MFRS 15 (40.331) [40.331)
At beginning of the financial year
[MFRS) - 5828 35,035 107155 14B.018
Currendy translation dilfemnenies - |268) 12) [4.32B) {4,608
Cnarged 1o profit or less 7 - 3,600 1.981 L 5,58
Fayments - {LEAR) (1.B42) (325 [£.547)
At end ol the tinancis year - 8,132 45,385 10451 146,005
Presented as follows:
Current - B.132 15,382 102,431 146,005
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34. PROVISION FOR LIABILITIES AND CHARGES (CONT'D.}
{a)} Provision for affordable housing

This repressents a provision for foreseeable lasses arising from the present obligation for construction of low cost hounes.

(b} Rectification works

Ther prowision mebates Lo the estimated cost ol reciileation woks Tor completed project

(£} Restructuring

The prowsion Tor liabilives and charges relates 1o scallng down of operations, environmenty! Ladllities and assal retagment
ahligatinn

(d) Damages claims

The provision af domages claims relate 1o projects undartaken by subsidianes. and afe recagnised for expacted damages
chaims basaed on the Term of the applicalle agresments

35. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Group Campany
2019 2018 2019 Zo1a
RMDOO RM000 RMODO0 RM'O00
Trade payabies 2.011,355 L20L202 - -
Other payahieg 633.442 445,744 720 18520
Ceferred income 10,491 135227 - -
Security deposits 112.510 130.863 - -
Aceruals 917.254 BE7.ZIL 16.768 16.469
3,685,052 2 B49.767 17.488 34,580

The credit terms of trade payables granted to the Group vary from 30 days 1o 180 days (20018: 30 days to 1680 days). Other
credit ternms are assessed and aporoved on a rase-by-case basis.
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Tha Groug's and the Company's operations are subject to Tefeign curmency exchange risk, intarast rate risk, price risk, credit risk
arvd liquiiny fisk,

The Croup's and the Company's financlad risk management policy sesks 10 ensura that adequate resources are available to
manage the above risks and to create value for itz shiveholders. it is not the Group’s and the Cormnpany’s policy to engage in
speculative transadtions

The Board of Directars reviews and agrees palicies and procecures for managing each of these risks and hey ane summarised
Bisdias-

{a) Forelgn currency exchange risk

Foreign curtentcy exchange risk is the risk that the far value of future cash flows of a fimancial instrument wll tactuate
because of ehanges in Tesoigh exchange rates

The Group |5 exposed 1o risks arising from various currency exposures primarlly with respect to the Great British Pounds
(GEP) and Sirgapore Dallars (SG07. The Group has ivsestments i foreign operations whose net asses are pxposed 10
foresgn currency Transtation risk. Such exposures are mitigated throwgh Darrowings denaminated in the respective funcional
CUFTRRC S

whera necossary, the Group entors into forward farsign currency exthange contracts to limit i3 cxposure on faresgn
cuffency feceivables and payables, and an cash tlows generated from anticpated wansactions denteminatod i fareign
CUMENCies.

Thisre i na Sgrificant espasane 16 forsnn curmency exchange risk far thie Group and the Company.

{b) Interest rate risk

Interest rate dgk s the rise that the fale valee or future cash Tlows of the Croup’s and the Company's financlal instruments
will fluctuate because of changes in markat intesast rates,

The Group's and the Company's exposure to interest rate risk arise primarily from their ficating rate bonds and bormowings.
which ks partally offset by the deposits and short term investments held at varable rates. The Group and the Company

manage their cash Tlow INTerest rate risk Dy wsing a mix of fiked and variabie rate debrs. Derivative financlal instruments
ang el whiste Appopniate, tn generale the desired nterest rate prafile.
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT ICONT'D.}

(b} Imterest rate risk (contd.)

The intetest rate profile of the Grouo’s and the Company's significant interest-bearing tmancial sstruments, bated on their
CATYing amounts as-a1 the reporting date, wene

Group Company
2019 2018 2019 2018
RMOO0D RM'DDD RM'OOO RM'O00
Fixed rate instruments
Fimancial liabilithes 20,188,682 20,800,281 2,510,000 2.500,000
Variable rate instruments
Financial ssets 11,497,578 11,386,131 995,637 1L.278,064
Financial lakilities 25,891,106 20,986,231 1.467.970 14676833

37.3608,6684 32372362 2,463.607 2745897

At the reporting date. if the interest rates had been 50 basis points lowar/higher, with a8l other variatiles held constant,
the Ghowp's and the Company's profin after tax would be higherfoweer by appronimalely RMLZAS millisn (2008: RM104.9
millign] and RM7.3 million {2018: RM7.3 milion), respactively, as a rasull of warfigher miefes! axpansa on bofowings,

The Group and the Company do not account for any Hed rate instrumants at fair value theough prahit or loss, Therefars,
achange m interest rates at the reporting date would not affect their profit after tau

Thee excess hunds of the Group and the Company e imaested in bank deposits and other sheet term instruments. The
Grow and thi Company manage their liquiginy risks Dy placing such excess funds on Shioft DErm Maturites 1o match irs
cash M nEs0s 11 EEnest oeposit mates inoreasenfdereases by 10 Bass poms, interest inoome of the Lroup and ihe
Company for the hinandial year would increase/dacraasa by RM115 millian (2018 AM11 4 million) and RMLD million (2018:
RM1.3 millon) resoectiely.

[e] Price risk
Equity price risk
The Graup's and the Company's exposaste 10 equity price risk st primarly from ther investments in quoted securities.

To manage Thlr price risk ansing rom MwWesTmenTs in equity sequrities, the Group and the Company oiversify Their portfalio,

At the reporting date, e Greup's ond tha Cempany's expasune 1o quated sguily mvestments o fair vakio are RMLS42,B6E.000
{2018 AMZ,715,327.000) and RMIO,503,000 (2018 RM12,586.000), respectivedy,

The following tabke demonstrates the indicative effects on the Group's and the Company's equity applying reasonably
[oreseedble mnarkel movements in the gquoted market prices at 1he reporing date, assuming @8 other varlables remain
CONATaNT.
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT'D.)
(e} Price risk {cont'd.)
Equity price risk (cont'd.)
Incroase/
Decrease
Carrying in gquoted Effect on
amounts market price equity
AH'000 Ve RM'OOO

Group - 2019
Local equities 647,391 +/-10 64,739
Foreign equities 895,477 +/-10 89,548
Group - 2018
Local equities 1895754 - 10 189,925
Forelgn equities B16.073 +/- 10 B1.607
Company - 2019
Local equities 4,155 +/- 10 416
Foraign equities 6,348 +f- 10 635
Campany - 2018
Local equities L2092 +/- 10 529
Foreign equities 7294 4110 729

Fuel commodity price risk

The Growp hedges its fuel commadity price rsk by the use of derivative instruments against Huctuations in fusl ol prices
which affect the cost of fuel

The Group has contracts for the sale of alactricity Lo the Singapote electricity pool at prices that are Theed in aidvance every
threa months and 10 retail custamers (thase meating a minimum sverage monthly consumption] a1 pricés that are either
Tk In amaunt o 0 priceng Pormula for poriods wup T & monber of years, The fixing of the prices under the contracts is
hased largely an the price of fuel il required 1o genarate tha electricity. The Group enters inta fusl oll Swaps 1o hadge
against adverse price mavenents of tuel ol prices, The Group typically enters into d Swap to pay a fiked price and receive
& wariable price indexed 1o a benchmark fuel price index

Expogure 1o grioe Mucsations arsing from the purchase of Teel ol and natural gas are ulistantially maraged wa swaps
whire the pre 5 ndesd 10 3 bendhmark Toel price nded for example 180 CS5T fual ol and Dated Brent. The Gooups
expirsure 1o the Muctuation of forward price curve s immaterial
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT'D.)
[d) Credit risk

Credit risk s the potential finarcal loss resulting from the faikere of a counterparty to settle their obigations 1o the Group
and the Company.

Th Gronip's expasiine 10 cradit ok arass primatily fram trade and othe recshables. Maamahile, the Company™s axpasures
to credit misk arse from other receivables. For other financial assets (including mwestment securitves. cash and cash
equivalents and derivative fimandial instruments), the Group and the Comparry minimises credit risk by dealing exclusively
with high credit rating counterparties,

Concentration of credit risk

Due 1o the nature of e Group's Dusiness, CUSTomers e mainly segregated Acording 1o busaness segments. In the Group's
power gereration business in Malaysia, trade receivabiles are solely fram its off taker, a national electricly utiity company
and the counter party risk is considered to be minimal, As for the Group's power generation butingss in Singapoos, credit
reviews are perommed on all custemers with established credit limits and generaly supported by collateral in the farm of
guistaritoes, Far the Greud's water Bid dewerage isiness, the credt sk of recehaslis 5 mitgated thagugh strct collection
procedures. The Directors ane of tie view (hat credin sk anising from these busingsses. is Bimited doe 1o the L customer
base.

Trade receivables and controct ossets

The Croup apphkes the MERS 9 sirmpificd approach to measuring ECL whvich uses a Ifetime expocted less aliowance far ol
trisdhe recenvables and contract assets, To measure the ECL. trade receivables and conlract assets have been grouped based
on shared credt risk characteristics and the days past due.

The expected kas @Ales are deternined based on 1 year 10 13 years of histoncal ageing profile and the comespoading
historleal cradin losoas exparienced within thic perod The histadcal st rates ae adiusted 1o refloct fareatd-laaking
infermatson on macroaconome factors affecting the ability of the customers 1o settle the recoivaties. Some of the factors
wihith the Group has identifled Include unemployment rate, economic trends. and amnual Gross Domestic Product (GOP7)
grawih end has adjusted the historical loss rates based on expected changes in such factors.
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT'D.)
{d) Credit risk (cont'd.)

On thist basis. the loss allowance as at 30 june 2019 (on first adoption of MFRS 9] was detarmined as fallows for trade
receivables, contract avsets and raiated parties:-

ssnmssanssssnssaiiansan Past dibg - ooooooemiiiniinniin |
91 - 120
Current 1 - 90 days days 120 days Tatal
RMOOO RHOO0 RM'O00 RM'DOO RM'DOO
Group - 2019
Gross carrying amount
- Trade recelvables 1,794,997 327,834 16,322 BG0,924 2,800,077
- Contract assets 208,806 - - - 208,806
2,003,803 327.834 16,322 660,924 3,008,883
Allpeiznce for impairment
- Trade receivabiss (66.343) {15.971) {5.824) {402.979) (491.117)
- Contract assets (3E8) - - - [2BE)
. 66.731) (15,971) |5.824) (402,979) (491.505)
Mt carrying amount 1.937,012 311.863 10,498 257,945 2.517.378

At the reposting date, the maxmsn exposure 1o oredit sk ansing from receivables i represented by the camying amounts
In1he Statement af Financinl Podition, except Tor trade recelvabies on electricity sa'es and physical Tuel transactions where
collanerals of RM30.3 milion (2018 : RMEE.Z milllon) are heid in the form af security deposits from customers and bankars
Quiram et

Cash and bonk balances

Thie Group snd the Company place 15 cash and bank baldsdes with o numbed ol crad bworthy financial institutions. The
Group's and the Compary’s poalicy limit the condentragion of financisl expodune o any singhe tinancial institution. While cash
and bank balsnces are alsa subject ta the impalrment requirements af MERS 9, the identited impairment 1o5s wiaas imma e s
Derivative financial instruments

Trarsactians imvohving desivative Tmancial instruments are allowed only with countesparties that ace of high credin quality.
AS Such, management does nol Expect any coumterparies 1o fail to meet their shigatiors. The Geoup and the Company
consider the ruk of materlal less on the event of non.performance by a financial counter party to be unlicedy,
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT'D.)
{4y Credit risk [cont'd.)

288

Other receivables

The Group and 1he Companry use the 3-stages approach Tor the ECL an the other receivables and amount due from related
parties, The 3-stages approach reflects thelr recelvables’ credit risk and hiv the less allowance i determined for each of
Thiks Cabegones,

A summiry of the assumptions undermenning the Group's and the Company's ECL maded is o5 Tollows:

Category Group's and Company's definition of category Basis for recognising ECL
Parforming Dettars have a bow risk of default and a strong capacity to meet 12 manth BCL
contractusl cash flows.

Underperformiing  Debtars for which thene is a significent increase in credit vk 5 Lifetime EQL
presurmed if IEest aniion pircpd repayments ang S0 days past

due
Mon-performing Dettars and repayments are more than 36% days past due Lifetime ELL
Writa-off There is evidenca indicating that thara is no reasonabés sxpactation  Asset & written off

of recovery based on unavalalziity of debtor’s sources of ncome
or assets 1o generate sufficient future cash flows to repay the
bl gl

Eased on the above, loss allosanca |5 measured on either 12 month ECL or [Hetima ECL using a PO x LGD x EAD methodalogy
whera:

« PO {probability of default] - the Fwelhaod that the debtor would not be able to repay during the comtractual period:
«  LGD [oss given ﬂEfIIJT'I':I « the parcertage of contractual cash flows will not be collectad If default happens: and
«  EAD {'expasura o1 delaull) - the outstanding amaunt that s esposed 1o dela risk

In deriving the PO and LGD, the Group and the Company cansides historical date by each debror by categary and adjusts
far forward: looking macroeconamic data. The Group and the Company hive idemified the industry and geographical area
which the debitar aperates in 10 he the mest relevant tartors, and accordngly adjusts the histancal lows mtes based on
expected changas in thass facters. Loss allowanoe 5 masssuned at a probability-woighted amount that rellects the possibity
that a credit boss ocowrs and the possibsity 1hat no credit loss octurs. No significant charges to estimation 1echnigues or
assumptions were made duing the reparting period,

The maximum credii rise expasure of the financil assers of the Group and the Company are approxenanely their camying
AMOUNTS i At the end of the reporting period.
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT'D.)
{d] Credit risk (cont'd.)
Other receivables (cont'd.)
Miverment on the Group and the Compasny™s loss allowances 5 as Tollows:
Trade Contract Related Other
racoivables assots partics receivables Tatal
RM'DOD RHOOO RH'OO0 RM'O0D0 RM'000
Group - 2019
AL 1y 2018, as eviously
reparted 328,846 - - 7.344 336,190
Adjusimsnts froen adogthion
of MFRS 9§ 161.163 445 - 76,765 238,373
At 1 uly 2018. restated 490,009 445 - 84,109 574,563
Arsing from acquisitsan 6,625 - - - B.625
Aligwsance far impalrment
of receivables g3, 1z8 - 34 76,001 165,163
\white back of impaiment of
recelvablzs {9.605) {57) - (390} (10,052)
Wiitten off during the
tinancial year a5
uncollectible (80,916 - = - {80,916)
Exchange dfforences (4,124) - - BE0 (3.264)
At 30 Junc 2019 491,117 agg 34 160,580 652,119
Related Other
parties receivables Total
RM'D0D RM'OOO RM"OO0D
Company - 2019
At 1 july 2018, as previously reported - - -
Adjustmeants from adoption of MFRS 9 116.853 1.765 118.624
AT 1 july 2018, restated 116,859 1,765 118.624
At 30 June 2019 116,859 1,765 118,624

{e) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group and the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting financial obligations dus 1o
shortage af funds. The Group's and the Company's exposure 1o liquidity risk arises primarily from mismatches of the
maturities of financial assets and fiabilities.

The Group's and the Company's ohjective are o maintain a balance between confinuity of funding and Haxibility throwgh
the use of stard-by credit facilities
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT [(CONT'D.)
fe} Liguidity risk [cont'd.)

Thee table below summarises the maturity profile of the Group's and the Company's financial liabilithes at the reporting date
based on contraciual undiscounted repayrment ebligations:.

On demand
or within 1t05 Over
1 year years 5 years Total
RM'000 RM'000 RM 00O RHOO0
Group - 2019
Non-derivative:
Trihe and other payables 3,674,378 272,645 - 3.947.023
Bonds and borrowlings 16,906,218 19411741  26.676.237 62,994,196
Related parties 16,007 - - 16,007
20,596,603 19,684,386 26,676,237 66,957,226
Derivative:
Nt - inteswst rata Swaps 19,182 17,559 - 36,741
Gross - fued oll swaps Ei] 13,501 7L 14,311
Grorss - cumency forwards 9,633 1,885 309 11,827
Gross - curmency options contract GGE 2,665 - 3,333
29,522 35,610 1,080 66,212
Company - 2019
Non-derivative:
Trade and ather payables 17,488 - - 17 488
Borwds. and borrowings 4,105,268 2.911.767 2,053,777 9,070,812
Redatad parties 5,546 - - 5.546

4,128,302 2,911,767 2,053,777 9,093,846
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT ICONT'D.)
{e] Liquidity risk [eont'd.)

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Groug's and the Company's finandal liabifties at the reporting date
based om contractual undiscounted repayment obSgations:- [cand}

On demand
or within 1ws Over
1 year years 5 years Tatal
RHOO0 RM'O00 RM'000 RM'000
Group - 2018
Hon-derivative:
Trade and other payabies ZH15.581 229,991 . 3,049,572
Bonds and borrowings 7,396,416 24,003,959 £9,297.566 60,687,953
Related parties 8,105 - - 5,005
10,225,104 24,233,550 £8,207 5656 53,756,630
Derivative:
Net - imterest rate swaps B33 0,569 . 18,302
Cross - fuel ol swaps 10,076 - - 10,076
Cross - cumerdy ferwards E045 2498 B.543
24,654 12067 - I6.9:1
Company - 2018
Non-derivative:
Trade and ofhies payabes 34,585 : . 34.969
Bonds and borrowings 1,882,730 1560077 1.428,650 4 RAO457
Related parties 127.224 - - 127,224
2,044,845 1,550,077 1,428,650 5042670
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
{a) Categories of financial instrumants

The table below provides an analysis ol financial instruments as at 30 june 2019 categorized under MFRS 9 as follows:-

Financial Assets

Fair value
through  Derivatives
Amortised profitor used far

cost loss hedging Fuaci Total
Note RM D00 RM'O00 RM'O00 RM'000 RM'O00
Group - 2019
Non-current
Imvestments 17 - 346,510 - 63,461 409,971
Trade and other
receivablas 9 273,480 B71.752 - - 1.145.232
Derjvative financal
Insrumenis 20 - - 18,722 = 18,722
Current
Imvestments 17 - £.352.947 - - 2,352,947
D fvative Firwsrscial
InSuments 2o - 945 64,077 - 65.022
Trade and other
raceivabies 19 2,927,984 - - - 2,927,984
Amount dus from related
parties 24 31131 - - - 31,131
Fixed deposits 25 10.635,4596 - - = 10,635,496
Cash and bank balances 25 1.171,006 - - - 1,171,006
Tatal 15,039,097 3,572,154 82,799 63,461 18,757,511
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT'D.)
{a) Categories of financial instruments (cont'd.]
Financial Liabilities
Fair value
through  Derlvatives
profit or used for  Amortised
loss hedging cost Tatal
Hote RMO00 RMOOO RM'0DDD RM'DDO
Group - 2019
Hon-current
Leng temm payaties 2B - - 272,645 272,645
Bonds 9 - = 18,961,666 18,961 GGG
Borrawings 30 = = 11760855 11,760,855
Deriatress financial instruments Pkl 9,782 d44.334 - 54 116
Current
Trade and other payablss 15 - - 3,674,561 3,674,561
Derfvatbees fnmancls nstnesents 20 = 63,491 - 63,491
Amaunt due to related parties 24 - - 16,006 16,006
Bonds 28 = - 520.024 520.024
Berrowirgs | - = 14,837,243 14,837,243
Tatal 9,782 107,825 50,043,000 50,160,607
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT'D.}
{a) Categories of financial instruments (cont’d.)

Financial Assets
Fair value
through
Amortised prafit or
cost loss Fvod Total
Note RMODD RM'000 RM'000 RM'O0O
Company - 2019
Non-currgnt
InvEstMEnts i? - 34,968 9,477 44,445
Current
Trade and nther recenables 19 12,982 - = 12,982
Amount doe from related parties. 24 1,014,435 - - 1.014,435
Investmenits 17 - 797,277 - 797.277
Flmed deposits 25 198,360 - - 198,360
Cash and bank balances Fas 122,948 - - 122,948
Total 1,348,725 B32,245 9477 2,190,447
Financial Liabilities
Amortised
cost Total
Hote RAM'000 RM'O00
Company - 2019
Non-current
Bonds 29 2.500.000 2.500,000
Bormrowings 0 550 550
Current
Trade and other payables 3c 17.488 17.488
Amauns due 10 related panias 24 5,546 5,546
Hoani /9 10,000 10,000
Bormowings 30 1,467,420 1467420
Total 4,001,004 4,001,004
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT™D.)

{a) Categories of financial instruments [cont'd.}
The table below provides an analyss of financial instruments o= at 30 june 2008 categorised under MFRS 139 as follows:-

Fimancial Assets

Falr value
through  Derlvatives
Loans and profit or used for Avallable-

recelvables loss hedging for-sale Total
Mote RM'O0D RM'000 RM 000 RM000 RM'O00
Group - 2018
Hon-current
Imvestmeants 17 - Fo0,067 - 346,708 L136,775
Trade and othes
receivables 19 952 B4 - - - 952,684
Dervative fanancial
EvLLrLmELS 20 - . 49,860 . 45,860
Current
Imvestments 17 TGE. 448 1,EB3,669 - - 2650,117
Drirvatlin Tiancial
ISTIUmEnts 20 . Le02 156603 . 156,405
Trade and other
refeivables 19 2,430,838 - - - 2430838
Amaunt due from related
parties 24 36,254 36,254
Fixed deposits &5 10,610,683 - - 10,610,683
Cash and bank balances 25 1014971 - - - 101497
Total 15,821,078 &B75538 246,463 346,708 19,089,787
295

550/628



EDINETOOOO
Oo0O0000000000000000000000(eo05821)
Oooooooa

¥TL CORPORATION BERHAD

Notes to the Financial Statements
- 30 June 2019

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT'D.}

{a) Categories of financial instruments (cont d.)
The tabda below provides an analysis of financial instruments as at 30 june 2018 categorized under MFRS 139 s follows:

{cont'd)
Financial Liabilities
other
Falr value financial
through Derivatives liabilities at
profit or used for amortised
loss hedging cost Total
Nate RM'DDD RM'ODO RMOO0O0 RMODO
Group - 2018
Non-curment
Long term payahles £8 - - 229.94] 229.991
Bonds 49 - . 17512946 17512946
BosTowings iq - - 18.035,360 1B.035,360
Derivatives finandal instruments 20 22115 1219 . 34,308
Current
Trade and other payables ¥ - - 2,714,540 2,714,540
Derivatives financial instruments 20 - 198l? . 1817
Amount due to related parties 24 - - 9,105 9,105
Bonds 49 - . 2.708,701 2,708,701
Borrowings 30 - - 1,520,505 3,520,505
Total 22115 32,010 44,740,140 A4, 794 Z73

296

551/628



EDINETOOOO
Oo0O0000000000000000000000(eo05821)
Oooooooa

ANNUAL REPORT 2019

MNotes to the Financial Statements
- 30 june 2019

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT™D.)

{a) Categories of financial instruments [cont'd.)
The table belaw provides an analyss of financial Instruments a= at 30 June 2018 categorsed under MFRS 139 as folows:-

{cont'd}
Finaneial Assets
Loans and Avallable-
recelvables for-sale Total
Hote RM'000 RM OO0 RM 000
Company - 2018
Hon-current
Investmenis 17 - 42,186 42,166
Current
Trade and other receivablas 18 116593 - 11,693
Amaunt due from related parties 24 1.180.987 - L1B09a7
Investments 17 766,448 . TEE 448
Fixed deposits 25 511616 . 511616
Cash and hank balanes ] 4,508 - 1502
Total 2474246 42,186 2516432
Financial Liabilities
Other
financial
llabllities at
amortised
cost Tatal
Hote RM'DO00 RM'O00
Company - 2018
Hon-current
Bonds 29 2,000,000 2,000,000
Bairmowinigs 30 200172 200,172
Current
Trade and other payables 35 34,989 34,989
Amaunt due 1o related parties 24 127224 127224
Bonds 24 500,000 500,000
Borrowings 30 1.2a7.661 1.267.661
Total 4,130,046 4130046
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT'D.}
(b} Fair wvalue measurameant
The table below analyses financlal instrurments carried ar falr valee, by valuation method. The different levels have been
dafined as follows:-
{1} Lewsl 1 Quisted prices {iinadjusted) @ setve markets 1of entical soats of Lahidinhed

(i} Lewel 2 Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are obsanvable for the asset or liability, elther
diractly [ie, prices) of indirectly (L& derived rom prices)

(| Lewvel 3; Inputs fo the asset o lisbility that are not based on observable market data funobsersable Inputs)

AL the reporting Gate, the Group and 1he Company' hesd the Tallowsg Tinandial irstomsents cormed at Tair vakee an the
statemants of Financial Pasivian:.

Lewell Lewvel 2 Level 3 Total
RM'O00 RM'000 RM'000 RM000

Group - 2019
Assets
Financial assets at fair value through prafit o

fss:

- Trading derivatves - 945 - 945

- Incomefequity funds - 2,377,412 307,902 2,685,314

= Equity Irvestments 10,502 3,640 - 14,143

- Recelvaties from a joing venture - - 871,752 871,752
Derivatives used for hedging - B2.799 - 82,799
Financial assets at fair value through ather

COMOrEnensive income 4z.072 45 21,344 63,461
Total 52,575 2,464,841 1,200,998 3,718.414
Liabilities
Financial liabilives at fair value theough profic

or loss

- Currenty options contracts 3333 - - 3,333

= Trading defivat ves = 6,449 = 6,449
Derivative used for hedging - 107, 825 - 107,825
Total 3,333 114,274 - 117,607
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At the reporting date, the Group and the Company held the following financial instruments carried at far value on the

Statements of Financial Position- {conid.]

Level 1 Laveal 2 Lovel 3 Tatal
RMODO RM'O00 RM'000 RM'OO0
Group - 2018
Assets
Financial assets at fair value throwgh profin
or loss:
- Trading derivatives - 1802 leoz
= Intomefequity funds - 2,665,903 2,669,503
- Equity nestmints 3833 3833
Derivatives used Tor hedging - 246463 248,453
Avallable-for-saba financial assers 45424 - 01284 346,708
Total 45,424 2922001 1264 3868709
Liabifities
Financial liab¥ities at fair value through profit
or loss:
Currency optiohs contracts 18,579 18,574
- Trading derfvatives - 1536 3.556
Derivative used for hedgang - 32,010 32.010
Total 18,579 35546 54,125
Level 1 Lovel 2 Level 3 Tatal
RMO00 RAM'ODD RM'000 RM'000
Campany - 2019
Assats
Financial assets at fair value through profit or
lass 10.503 - 24,465 34.968
Famancind agtets an fair value through ather
tomprehensive Income 5 - 9,472 9,477
Toral 10,508 - 33,937 44,445
Company - 2018
Assets
Avallabie-Tor-sas financial assens 12.586 . £9.600 42,186
Total 12,586 20,600 42166
During the cument financlad year, there were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 fair value measurements.
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38. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

For the purpose of these financial statemeants, parties are consderad 1o be related 1o the Group if the Groud or the Comgaty
has the ability, directly of indirectly, 10 contral the party of exercise significant influende over The pary m makng fmanoal and
operating decmions, of vice versa, or where the Group or the Company and the party ate sulsject 10 common contral of comman
sgnificant infhence, Relsted parties may be individuats or other entities.

Key managament persannel are defined as these persons haning autharity and respansibility for planning, directing and contraling
thix activities of il Group witheer directhy o sadirectly, The key moenagement personig] inchade of e Deectors of (e Group

{a) Signiticant related party transactions

() Inadditlen to related party disclosures mentioned elsewhere In the financlal statements, set out below
are other significant related party transactions,

Group
2019 2018
Entity Relationship Type of transactions RMOODO RM'O00
Busmess & Budgat Associated Manpgement fed, incentva 1.225 1234
Hotels (Kuantan) 5dn,  company fed and soltwar
Bhd, maintenance cast
Lease rental of investment 6,300 6,300
property
Commerclal Central Subrsidiasy of Rental of office and car park 2,735 2850
Sdn. Bhd. haolding company
Corporate Promotions Subsidiany of Advrtising & promation 3,025 5,854
Sdn. Bhd Pl iy compary GRS
Espress Rail Link Sdn Associated Progress billings related to 26,577 30.662
Bid. company civil engineering &
construction works
East West Ventures Subsidiary of Lease rental of imvestment 21.626 2L626
Sdn, B, holding company property
Hotel accommeadation & lease 3,647 3.934
rental of PouiEmRnT
Orientsl Place Sdn. Subsidiany of Rantal of premises expamtes 7.975 B.156
Bid halding company
Shorofromn: Jsint venture Frogriecs billing redatos 1o - 6.226
Development Sdn company COMSRrUCTRan works
Bihd.
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38. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS [CONT'D.)
{a) Significant related party transactions (cont'd.)

{1} Inaddition to related party disclosures mentioned elsewhere in the financial statements, set out below
are other significant related party transactions. (cont'd.]

Group
2019 2018
Entity Relationship Type of transactions RM'O00 RM OO0
Syarical Palantongan  Subsidiary aof Leate rental of invastmeant 8.820 B.B20
Fangl:r.\w Lot hisdcling company property
Sandirian Barhad
Hotel accommodation 2,754 B.B9¢
Management foes & data 2173 2.389
processing fees & royalty
wome
Sale of property, plant and 5,529
BOLipiTEnT
Thundar Match Subsidiary of Commissian, incentives and’ a4, 475 L Pl
Technalogy Sdn. Bhd  assoclated or reimbursement of bundis
COMmparty diowice sold
Xchanging Malaysia Jaimt vonture IT Consultancy & rolated 42,093 37,158
Sdn. Bhd. comgary OB EXPETSES
Yeoh Tiang Lay & Sons  Holdng company Progress. billings for sale of - 3646
Haldings Sdn, Bhd PropErties
- l:u_npan]-
2019 2018
Entity Ralationship Type of transactions RM'O00 RMO00
Autodome Sdn. Bhd Subsidiary ¥TL Platinum Plus Expenses . 1,336
¥TL Majestc Hotel Subskdiary Other interest income - a2
Sdn. Shd
Y7L Land & Sulridiany ICULS nterest income 21,511 17,618
Developmant Barhad
Suni Travel & Touwrs Subsidiary Travell ng expenses 1.290 1219
Sdn. Ghd
Sta® Hill Hotel Sdn. Subsidiary Hotal acoommedation & 705 2080
Bhd refated enpenses
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38. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTD.)
{a) Significant related party transactions {cont'd)

{ii} The follawing significant transactions which have been transacted with close family members of key

management personnel and entities controlled by key management personnol and close family members
are as follows:-

Group
2019 2018
RMDOOD RM'O00
Progress bifings retated to purchase of properties 43.602 25,403

The Directars ara of the oginian 1hat the above transattions have been antared into in the normal coursa af business
and have baen established on tesms and conditiors negatiated and agreed by the related partes

(B) Key management personnel compansation

302

Ky management parsonnel arg those percons having suthonty and responsibiity for planning drectang and contmoliing
thie s Thvitees of the Group and the Campany, directly or indirectly. includng any Director [whether exetutive of gthenanse)
of the Company

Ky managernent pesscrnel of the Group end thie Company irnchades thie Directors of the Cormgany

Group Company
2019 2018 2019 2018
RMO00 RMDODOD RH00D RM'O00
Directors and key management personnels
ramiuneraton
- shart term employee benefits 76,373 98,375 947 723
- defined contribution plans 6,334 8,020 12 -
- benefit in kind Tz 96l - -
= share option expenses 7.909 2308 4,735 L3381
91.388 111164 5.744 2,104

557/628



EDINETOOOO
Oo0O0000000000000000000000(eo05821)
ooOooood

ANNUAL REPORT 2019

MNotes to the Financial Statements

38. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONT'D.)
{€) Significant related party balances

- 30 june 2019

In addition to the information disclosed in Mote 24 to the financial statements, the outstanding balances due from the

related parties a5 at regoning dale are @5 ToBows:-

Group Company

2019 2018 2019 2018
RM'O00 AM'000 RM'O00 RMOOD0

Key management parsonnel and close family

members
Prograss bilngs related o sale of
roperties - 5.236 -
39, COMMITMENTS
{a) Capital commitments
Group

2019 2018
RMTOOD RMO0D
Authorsod but not contracted for 795,078 547,493
Contracted but not provided for 2,517,419 12670913

The abowe commitments mainly comprise purchase of spare parts and property, plant and equipment.

Group Company
2019 2018 2019 2018
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RMOO0O
Capital commitmenis In refation to addition
Investment 72.880 101807 -
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39. COMMITMENTS (CONT'D.}
(b} Operating lease commitments - as lessee
{iy The Group as lessee

T Group leases fand, of fices and warehouses unter non-cancellable operating lease agreements. The keases have
varying tenms. escalation clagses and renewal rights. Except for a few long-term leases in land, the Group's leases
qensrally range from one 1o five wears. Nona of the leases. incluged contirgant rentals

Future minimum lease payables under non-candallable operating keases at the feporting date are a5 follows -

Group
2019 2018
RMO00 RM'O00
Mot later than 1 yea 193,993 158557
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 366,051 384,489
Later than 5 years 473.658 289,802
1,033,702 H3c.H4H

{ii} The Group as lessor

The future minimurm lease recalvables under nan-cancellable operating leases at the reporting date are as lollows:-

Group
2013 2018
RMDDO RM'000
Hot later than 1 year 594,941 e03.4L7
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 1,525,156 1,664,321
Later than § years G72.473 L055.893

2,792,576 3328131

Except for ane long term lease, the Growp's leases fof its retd properties generally range from one to five years. The
tuture minimum lease payments recelvable relating to retail properties from non-related parties are approximately
RM3.3 billion {2018: RM2 4 billicn). The Group leases out its hotel properties under operating leases for the lease term
of filieen years. All lease arrangements are provided with a step-up rate of 5% every five years and an option to
grant tha respective lessees to renew the lease for a further term similar 1o the original lease agreements, The future
minmum Base payments raceivatile relating 16 holal propartes from non-melated parties. Me appeoxamately RM3I34
o (2018 RM7E] milsan),
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39. COMMITHMENTS (CONT'D.)
(b] Operating lease commitments - as lessee (cont'd.)
{ii} The Group as lessor (cant'd.)

In addition, the payments receivable under the power purchase agreement ["PPAT) which are classlied os operating
lease are as follows-

Group
2019 2018
RM'000 RHO00
Naot Water than | year 60,773 BO.T4AT
Later tham 1 year and not later than 5 years B5.821 117536

40. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

The Group has seven reponable segments as described below:

() Corstruction

(b} Information technology & e-commerce related busness
{r)  Horel operatnns

(dy Cemant manufactunng & rading

(e} Management services & others

{1}  Property irvestment & development

{gy  Lhilities

Management has determined the operating segments based on the reports reviewed by the ¢hief operating decision-maker
("COOMT) that are used to make strategic decisions.

The CODM receives separate reports for power generation (contracted), Multi utilites business [merchani), water and sewerage
ard mabile broadband network, they have been aggregated into one reporiable segments (Unilities) as they have similar economas
characterstics and those detall segments information disclosed In YTL Power Intemnational Berhad's annwal tegart which avallable
for pubdc use.

Aithough the construction and information technology & e-commence related business segmants do not meet the guantitative
thresholds required by MFRS B for repotable segments, management has concluded that those segments shoud be reported,
as they are chosely monitored by CODM as Important segments,

The CODM coneaders the business from both a geographic and busiress segment perspective, Geographacally. mansgement

manages and monitors the business in the three primary geographic areas: Malaysia, United Kingdom and Singapare. The details
of the geographical segments are disciosed in the below note of the finangial statements
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40. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION ICONT D.}

The segment infarmation provided 1o the COCM for the repartabile sagnents s as Tollows:-

Information

Technslogy & Cement

BEiRRE mamdac Managament  Propaty

redated Hatal tring  services imvestment &
omstrection  besiness  epeafons Gtrading  Gothems development  Unlides Total
fit] RH000 RMQM0 RM00 R0 RI000 RMO00 R 000 =]
Rzvenue
Total reverue 1360676 BAIS 1239796 2BELSES  THATI  L3A.A9 JL3ELG64 10.829.048
rtrsepert e Qa3 (05 Q6N @3 QELAN) (NS e PEe)
Extanal ipvere 125459 3B L2 REMM2R As5046 LIO3R  1L360ER a7 SE
Results
Intereit icome 9,56 B4 LE31 aZa0 0657 11080 741 BEME
Franes oS 16} = (7SI (E09T]  (BALIM) (200480 (TIZE2H) (LT85
Shave ot semits of assodaed
ComaniEs T verTheEs - . 1326 14,75 [L2.424) B4 400540 411055
Segment prafit betze (m BO.457 2560 2o 1640 14,887 N RS2 LSS
Segment st
irwestrl in atoniatnd nompanes and G e . . I EAs RmE ZR0AT  RIGBESTH  ZBAS3ME
(rhe segment s Logan? 10270 2507660 0485356 13442398 1GSEAM10 30582800 TALEELTM4
Segment luabiliies
Bonds ard bonmmings 15,259 - TR0 4044 14943553 GRS 17EMOATT 4G0TATEE
(rher segrment fisites 91269 SN2 364346 1190630 TRRRE3 BMGET  RO9RET  ATRATHM
Other segment infarmation
Gl pnpercitury 33716 18 150087 LAMS ¥ER TR0 LSS0B0 B0V
gt it back) . mn 203} 6240 La20 L4700 140856 150514
Depeeciation ang anorfEan a.6m (0] B4E82 235 1115 9.1 1067808  L515961
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40. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (CONT'D.)
Thia segment infarmation pravided 16 1he CIOM Tof the repartable segments is a5 fallows:- {eant'd)

Infermation
Tethnoiagy & Centnt
B LOmmHE manuli: Misgenest  Preperty
relabed Heeel wrng  senvices investmint &
Censtruction  business  operations  Gtading  Bobers devehpmest  Uilinies Tatal
2018 RH000 RH000 AWCOa EM000 RHEa0 EW 000 AN 000
Revmsun
Toal rewtnue E13471 MAR LnnEs  IedaaE A LEER  NARAe  AROTM
iz segment e {BT0M) B0t (563 A WA (BTN [0S} jEedsET
Enterral reverue: E=AT) 4450 Ls2H  LEIRESE SRR T 0 BERMT
Rty
Fresed inmme 533 | 2HE b1 1 HEE o LT s
Framnce ts% m - (2518 (R T PRI EHUSE (LBMEH)
St of ety of Maodated
Lomparint and sl weiuns B2 Ll (17588 10 And 34 TEEN
Seqrent profiit befoe 8129 FE 18 Tl [ L MLAT MR LB
Segment 551
Inveitrest in imwciad
perTyaries nd [oird varfines . . ETF S (i e IR A0
Othier segmen ety a7 1688 MWMM SMEBE  MESI0E HSlEl  RaRNE MWL
Segment Extilmies
Bonds and borowing: 13 . RIS LIBL2BE 25848 TS RS0 4LTBeSLE
Dthet sngrmate] lishiities Fk ] 152 JR4AR 01266 feesll w0 A IR ]
Ot sagment inleemation
{[apstd expindture 183 2 1E 5 10853 FET 3 MIMS  IEERS ZEAS
ImparmentTwrts back) - e [43) EiL) s 1B7T EL S £ L]
Depeaciabon i amactiabon 12041 B ED.BE] 1 17180 e 120480 LS00
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40. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION ICONTD.}
{a) Geagraphical information
The Group’s seven business segments operate n four main geographical areas::

{i}  Malaysa - Construction
Tonlgerna i technokogy & e-comnmerce related Dusiness
= Hotel operations
- Cement marrdaciuring & trading
= Management sendtes & others
Propiarty investinient & developinent
= LUnilities

(i} United Kingdam = Lhilties
Hatel operations

(g} Singapare = Lhilities
= Cement manutactusing & trading
Property invesiment & devalopment

Revenue Non-current assets
2019 2018 2019 2018
RMO0O0 RMO0DD RMOD0D RM'000
Malayzia 5,764,796 4782616 10608467 10,373.318
United Kingdam 3,648,577 3,564,561 17,934,854 17,172,606
Singapore 7.447 068 5375068 17.718.828 16,902 856
Char coumtries 1,187,087 L164,302 3,865,355 Ta9,608

18,047,528 15890147 50,127.504 45,218,388

MNan-Curtant assets information presented above consist of the followings ems @5 presented i the Statements of
Finamgial Position

MNon-current assets
2018 2018
RMDOO RM000
Property, plant and equipment 30,759,493 28111233
WWRESTITENT pEOperties 10,217,573 10,003,880
Development expendiiures 1,127.238 1127391
Intangibile assets 8,023,200 5,975,875

50,127,504 45.216,388
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40. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (CONT'D.)
(b) Major customens

The folleeing it the majer customer with revenee egual or more than 10 per cent of the Group's revenue-

2019 2018
RM'000 RM'DDO Segment
Enaigy Market Company 3,184,498 2.883.229 Utifities

41. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The primary objectives of the Group’s and the Company's capital management are to ensure that it maintains healthy capktal
ratios 0 arder to support its existing business and maximise shashalders” valua

The Group and the Company manages its capital structure and makes adustments 1o it. in the light of changes in economic
conditicns. To maintain or adjus: the capital structure, the Group and the Company may adjust the dividend payment 1o
shareholders, retum capital to shareholders or issue new shares. There were no changes in the Group's and the Company's
approach 1o capital management during the year

The Goup and the Company monitors capital using & debt-to-equity ratic, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net
debt The Group incdudes within net debt, total borrowings less cash and cash equivalents. Capital includes egquity attributable
to the owners. of the parent.

Group Company

2019 2018 2019 2018

Note RM'000 RM'D00 RM'00D RMGOO

Bonds 9 19,481,690 20.221.647 2.510,000 2,500,000
Barrowings 30 26,598,098 21,564 BES 1.467 970 L467,833
Bands and barrawings 46,079,788 41,786,512 3.977.970 3967833
Less: Eash and cash equivalents 25 (11,806,502) {11,634 B54) {321.308) {515,118}
Net debt 34,273,286 30,151,658 3.656,662 I 452,715
Equity attributable to owners of the parent 13,262,686 14041832 6,228,889 6,807,396
Capital and red ded 47,535,972 44,193 730 9,885 551 10,260,111
Dert1-no-gguity ratio (%) 2 B8 a7 34

Under the reguirement of Bursa Malaysia Sequrities Berhad Practice Note No. 172005, the Company s reguirad to maintain a
consabdated sharsholders' equity equal to or not less than the 25 percent of the kssued and paid-up capital (escuding treasury
shares) and such shareholders' equity Is not kess than AMA0 million. The Company has complied with this requirement.
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42. SIGNIFICANT EVENTS

fa) On & Decambar 2008, ¥TL Hotels & Proparties Sdn Bhd [Buysr) enterad into & Sake and purchase agreameant ["SPAT) with
KKH Property vwestons, SLU ["Sellert) 1o acgune:

{1} S4B.000 sedinary shares of EURLOO romeral sach ropresenting the antire share capital af S0L HTL Praject, S.LLL
{S0L HTL") a company incorporated in Madrid, Spam and

(i} Loans cwing by S0L HTL 1o the Seller of its affilates on completion date.

lar ar agyregate Comscleration of EURZ20 riwlon jequivalent to RMLO3E rwlon, based on Bank Megars Malaysid's puldefied
middle rate of EURL:AMA.TIED a5 ot close of business on 6 Decomber 201E), which i subject 1o adjustments (Propesed
Arfuisinan™y. The Company S alko a pary 1o e SPA, namiely 5 the quasantar af the Buyer's chigatians,

SCL HTL ofams a proparty which will bo refurbished and comeerted into a 200-room hotel to be operated under tha EDITON
brand of Marriatt International, e group [Progased Hotel™), The property is lacated a1 Flaza de Celenque na, & 28013
Madrid, Spain, which s registeded in the Madid Property Riegistry fumber 4, volure 2879, boak 195, folia L and with
property registration . 56,167, This progerty fomms part of @ buildng which also houses Fundacian Obra Social v Monte
oe Piedad de Madnd

Thia completed Proposed Hoted will coemprise:

UF  theregistered plot {linca registral) iegistoned with the Land Registey of Madnid no, 4 (Section 28), no, 56,167 compeiing
the piot of land located at Plaza de Celengue no. 2, 28013 Madnd, Spiain and bulding ownership nights 1o the buiding
located at Plaza de Celergue no. 2, 260 Madid, Spaln

(i) all gasements or ather rights appurtenant thereta; and
L) all fueniture, FxTunes and ather squipment, foed assats and inventeries as deserbed in the SPA,

Complotlen of the Proposed Acgulsition will take pface aftor satisfaction of certaln conditions o completon as et eut In
the SPA, which Includes. amang others, the operng of the Proposed Hotel as an EDITICHN hotel (*Opening Date”). The
Opening Date is targetad for before 3] Cecember 2020,

(B Om 13 June 2019, Maybank Investment Bank Berhad ("Maybank 187 announced on behalft of the Company, as the ofterar,
A conditional share exchangs otfer in accondance with the Malaysian Code on Take-Owvers and Mergers 2006 and the Rules
on Take-Overs. Margers and Compulsary Acquisitions, 1o acguine the following securities in ¥TL Land & Development Barnad
{TL Lanc™) 1o be satisfeed through e ssuance of rew ordinary shares in the Company ("YTL Corp Shares”) at an ssue
price of BM1.14 each [“Consideration Shares™):-

{h  all the remaining ordinarny shares |excluding treasuery shares) in ¥TL Land {"YTL Land Shares™) and such number of
new YTL Land Shares 1o be Issued purssant 1o the conversion of any outstanding 10-year 3.0% stepping v to 6.0%
medesmanle comertible unseouwed loan stocks £011/2021 with @ nominal value of AM0.S0ssued by YTL Land (YTL
Land ICULST) prior to the close of the Offer (as defined below ] not already cwned by the Company {collectively, “Otfer
Shares”) at an offer price of BMO.35 for each Offer Share, which translates to an exchange ratio of approximatedy
0.32 Corsideration Share for each Offer Share (“Shares Offer™); ond
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42. SIGNIFICANT EVENTS (CONT'D.)

(b () althe outstanding YTL Land ICULS ot afeady ownad by the Company ("Ofer ICULST at an alfer price of RMO.32
for exch Offer ICULS, which transiates 1o a0 exchanga rtio of approsmataly 0.28 Consideratsen Share far each Offar
ICULS (ICULS Offery

{The Qfer Shares and Odfer KULS are collectivaly referred 1o as “Dffer Secunties” and the Shares Offer and KULS Offer
are collectivaly relered 10 as the "Offer™),

Qn 20 June 2019 and 24 june 2015, the fallowing apgrovals were obiained rom Bursa Securities-

{1y Waier Trom having to comaly with Paragraphs B O48(cj(i) and BOBT) of the Main Masket Listing Requirsments. of
Bursa Secwrities in respect of the reguirerment for the Company 1o seek sharehalders’ approval for the allotment and
lszasanca of the Consideration Shases to certain Directors and major shareholdars of the Company and persons connectod
with ther and

{if  Additionsl listing ! and quatstion Tor the Comrderation Shares on thie Man Market of Burss Setufities

On 24 ne 2019, the Offer became untonditional upen 3l the conditions of the Dffer having been fufiled.

On 4 july 2019, the Offer Detwment was despatched to the holders of the Oifer Securlties or their designated agerts and
tha flrst elosing date fer the OMfor was foced at S.00 pman 30 August 2019,

O 27 Asgrest 2012, Maybiank 18 awounced on beball of the Company that the dosing date and tine for acceptande of
e Offer had been extended from 5:00 pm. on 30 August 2019 10 500 pmon 20 September 2019, Subsequently. on
17 Sepamier 2015, Maghank 1B amnaunced on behalf of the Company that the elasandg date and time Tar acceptanne af
this Offee had bosn extended frem 500 pm. en 20 September 2019 1o 5.00 pm on 7 Octaber 2010, being thi final closng
cata for the Offer,

43. MATERIAL LITIGATIONS

{3 In 2015 a foresgn subsidiary of the Group commaenced procesdings in Cowrt 3gainsT TWo CUSTHMENS 10 Fecover monies. due
1o thie subsediary undar confract, followang Termenation of thedr eecincty retal contracts. The trial was heard 3t the end
of 2007 followed by a further hearing n Movember 2018 On 2 fanuary 2015, the High Court ruled In favaur of the subsidiary
but awarded damages on a different bacrs from that claimed. This resulted in nominal damages being paid 1o the subsidiarny.
The foreign subsidiary’s legal counsed has edvised that there are real merits 1o appeal against the High Court’s decision on
the issue of damages. Accordingly, the subsidiary has filed an appeal aganst the decislon and the appeal hearing is 1o be
fixed by Moverrber 2019,

Motwithstanding the outcome of the appeal, the subsidiary has recognised a provision for the sum of RM7005 millicn
(500234 milan] in the quarter ended 31 December 2018 based on the decision of the court.
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43. MATERIAL LITIGATIONS (CONT'D.)

) In an sward recaived in 2007, Syarikat Pembenaan Yeah Tiong Lay Sdn Bhd. ["SPYTLT) succeeded in its asbitration
{ArbTaTion”) apainst Sunway City Sdn, Bhd, (poesiously know a5 Surmaay City Berma) {Sunway Gty for the sutstanding
sums due and owing 12 SPYTL togeiher with damages in respect of the main building contract works for Sumway City
Palazsio project. SPYTL was awarded a totzl final sum of Rrggit Malaysia Sevanty Five Million Five Thausand Seven Hundred
Sty Four ond Sen Sewenty Five (RM75,005.764.75) only plus 4% per arnum simple interest (“Waard™) from 24 june 2017
umitil actual full payment thereof and costs.

Surveilny Ciy however applied 1o High Cowt 1o w1 aside the dward and on 5122017, the judge alowed Sumway Ciry's
appheatian and ardensd the dward o Bie oot adide and rmitted the race back to the Arberator fae fecansidecatiaon (the
“Order”) . SPYTL thereafter filed an appeal to Court of Appeal aganst the Order and on 18.2018, the Court of Appeal set
aside the Onder with costs.

Surwiay Tity filed an application for leave 1o apgeal 1o Federal Count [Survwiay's Application”) agamst the Court of Appeals
decision and an 21.05.2019, the Federal Count dismissed Sunway's Application with costs

(e} Two subsidiaries of the Group have contingent liabdties in respect of a claim for damages for allegatans of non-purchise
of gooids.

In respect of thee said matter, a rotice of arbitration wes filed on 25 May 2018 {Motice of Adbiration”] with the Sngapore
Intemational Arbitration Cestre (SIACT in Singapore clalming for damages for alleged Tahee (o perform cbligatioms 1o
purchase goods contained in & dotwment that has not been signed by the daimant and respondents. A respoanse ta the
Motete ol Arbitrrtion has been fled by the recpondents with the SIAC on B ine 208 (Regonse”) whetein the regpondants
dory af allegations madi in the Notice of Arbitration a5 thare is no vaiid agroament and witheut prajedicn to thi respondents’
jursdictional obpectionis) and condals in the Respense, the respondents aghes 10 the appaintment of a sole arbigrator 1o
determing the matter. As at date of repart, the adetral tribunal has yet 1o be constituted

44. RESTATEMENT OF COMPARATIVES
{a) First time adoption of MFRS Framewark

As disclosed i Mate 2ib), the financia® statements of the Group and the Company for the financial year ended 30 June
2019 are the first set of finantial statements prepared 0 accordance with MPRSs, Including MFRS 1 *First-time adoption
of MFRS". Aside from the short-term exemption on first-time application of MFRS 9 and cerain transition elections as
dischosec below, the Group and the Company have consistently applied the same accounting policies in s opening MFRS
statement of finandal position as at 1 july 2017, belng the transition date, and throughout all years presented, as if these
policies han always been in effect. These policies comply with sach MRS effective as at 30 kme 019, includang MFAS 15
“Reverue from Contracts with Customers”. The financial statements for the finandal year ended 30 jure 2018 was prepared
based on FRS. Accordingly, the comparative figures for 2018 in these financial statements hawe been restated to give
effect 1o these changes.
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44, RESTATEMENT OF COMPARATIVES (CONT'D.)
{a) First time adeption of MERS Framework (cont'd,)
The effects of the Group transition to MFRSS inthuding adaptica of MFRS 3 and MFRS 15 are a5 follows:

{i} MFRS 1 exemption options
a) Exemplion for business comtinations
The Group has elected to apply MFRS 3 “Business Combinations” prospectively 1o business combinations. that

occurred after to 1 July 2017, Business combiration that occutred 1o 1 july 20017 have not boen restated. in
addition, the Group has al=o applied MFRS 10 “Consalidated Financial Statements” an the same date a5 FRS 3.

by Exemprion for @ropeyTy. pimnr and equipment
In accordance with thie exemplion in MFRS 1, the Grodg has elezted to continue o measure all its property, plant
and equipment at cost in accordance with MFRS,

£)  MFRS 9 Financin nstments”
The Group has elected the @xemption in MERS 1 which allows e Group ot to restale comparatie nformatin
in the year of initial application. The Group continues 19 apply FRS 139 Financal instruments © Recogrition and
Maasuremant” and FRS 7 Finarolal instiuments | Distlosunes” fof the comparative infarmatien. Any adiustments
to align the carrying amounts of financial a55ets and tinasoal labilitios under the previous FRS 139 with MFRS
9 are recognised in retained earnings and other reserves a5 at 1 july 2018 The impact of 1he adoption of MFRS
9 =5 shawn in Note 2(r)

d)  MERS 15 Hevenue frem Cantrocts with Customens”

The Group has elected the exemgiion In MFRS 1 wihich allows the Group not to restate any contracts that ae
completed a5 31 the date of transition of 1 july 2017, The impact of the adgoption of MERS 15 is shown in Note
Adaji).

0] Asseds ond vabiities of sebsichones, joint weatLres avid 0ssocares

The assets and liabilites of subsidizries. joint vantures and associates wivich have adopted the MFRS or IFRS
earber that the Group shall remain at the same carmying amounts as in the financial statements of those
subyshdianies. joint veniures and assoclates. afier adjusting for consol dation adjustments.

[l Gorrowing cosrs

MFRS 1 permits the application of the requirements of MFRS 123 ‘Bormowing costs' from the transition date ar
from a date earber than the etfective date of MFRS 123, The Group and the Company elected to apply this
exeEmption on 1 july £017, Accondgngly, the Group and the Company,

+ had not restste the bormwing cost componants that were capitalsed under FRS and that were incuded in
the carmrying amount of assets at that date; and

« accounts for barrowing costs inowmed on or after that date in accordance with MFRS 123, including those
borrowing costs incurred on or after that date on gualifying assets already under construction.

313

568/628



EDINETOOOO
Oo0O0000000000000000000000(eo05821)
Oooooooa

YTL CORPORATION BERHAD

Motes to the Financial Statements
- 30 |une 2019

44, RESTATEMENT OF COMPARATIVES (CONT'D.)
{a) First time adoption of MFRS Framework (cont'd.)

The optianal exemgtions eletted by the Group that hawve an impact on the reported finandal positions prepared in
accordancs with FRSS hawe baen sppsed in the opening MFRS statement ol financial position a a1 1 July 20017 and
throughout all perods presented in the finandal statemants. There is no adjustment made o 1tha separate financial
statements of the Company.

{ill} MFRS 9 : Financial Instruments ("MFRS 97

MFRS S roplices MFRS 133 and amends the previous requirements in theee main areas: (i} ciassification and measurement
af tinancial Assets: (i) impairment of tinancal ssers, mainly by iNTooueing @ tansard inoking expected kss impairment
model and (iii) hedge accounting inchading removing some of the restrictions on applying hedge accounting in MERS
133, The impact of MFRS 9 adoption are described balow:

) Ckrsificatian ond meausment
Under MFRS 9, financial assets are classified according to their cash flaw character stics and the business model
which they ane managed. The Group has categorised its financial assets 45 fnancial assets measuned at amortised
tost, FYTPL drid FYOLL

Thie Group has made an irevocable electon to classify RM346.7 million of the Group's eouity investmants
praviausly clissified as AFS at FVOO on 1 |uly 2018, Faer value changes on equity investments at FYOCI are
presented in 00 and are nat subseguen ty transferred 12 profit or lass, Upon sale of eguity investments at FYOCL
the cumulative gain or loss o 00 is reclassified 1o retained eamings

Other avallable-fior-sale MwWestments in equity ane classified a5 financial assets at FYTPL Certain avadabie-for-
szle Investments in debt instruments and income funds that do not meet the critena Tor classilication sither as
FVOCH o at amortised cost have Been classified & FYTPL Acoordingly. AM342.9 millen hat begn redassifod as
financlal assets a1 PYTPL and ther ralated falr value fosses of RM14.6 million wene ranstarred fram fair value
reserves to refained eamings on 1 july 2018

The other financial assets held by the Group include:

quity IvesTments Clerently measured a1 FYTPL will continue 10 be measurcd on the same basis ungar MFRS
9 and

debt instruments currently classified as loans and recevables and measured at amortised cost meat the
canditions to be dassified at amortised cost under MFRS 9,

There s mo impact an the Growp for financial liablites as the new requirerments only affect the accounting for
financial llabitties that are designated at FYTPL and the Croup coes not kave such liabilities.
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44, RESTATEMENT OF COMPARATIVES (CONT'D.)
{a) First time adeption of MERS Framework (cont'd,)
{ii} MFRS 3 : Financial Instruments {“MFRS 5] (cont'd,)

bl impoirmenr

MFRS 9 changes the recognition of impairmeant aeovision for Tinancial xssets by introducing an ECL model Upan
the adeption ot MERS 5, the Group has revised s impairment methadology wihich depends on whather Thers
has been & sigrificant increase in credit risk. The Group assesses passible increase i oredit risk for fimancial
assels modsured ot amartsed cost, contract assols and lease receivables at the end of each reporting period.
The imoasirment provesion is estimated at an amount equal 10 & 12 months ECL at the current reparting date |f
thizie has ol bien o sigaelicant incisdse i chedit ik The sssessment Has iesulled in o decroase of AM2258
millign in retained earnings and RMZ.2 million in non=-contralling interests with a comesgonding adjiustment 10
trade recevables as an 1 july 2008

tl  Hedge accouniing

Thie Group appied hedge accounting rerospectvedy. AT the date of initial application, all of the Croug's exisTng
hedging relatiombigs were eligiie to be treated as contmuing hedging relationships.

The Group has elected the exemption in MFRS 1 which allows the Group not 1o restate comparative mfermation
in the year of initial applicaton of MFRS 9

(lil} MFRS 15 : Revenue from Contracts with Customers ("MFRS 157)

Thi cone principle-of MERS 15 is that an entity should recognise ravenue which depict tha trarsfer of promited goods
oF SErVICES bO CUETDMETs in an amaunt that refledts the comideration to whch the ontity expects 1o be entitled in
exchange for these geods or sendes. Reverus 5 recagnised when 3 customer sbtains control of goods o senales,
Le_ wihen The customer has the abiity 1 direct the use of and cbeain the benefits from the goods or Services,

MFRS 15 has resulted in changes in accounting polices and adjustments to the amounts recagnisad in the financial
STATEMEnts,

The now accounting policies are set out in Note 2(d)). Thi main changes ane explained below:

o) Liiitdes segment
I} Sale of device as part of bundled tefecommunication serice package

MFRE 15 requires devices which the Group promizes to transfer as part of 3 bundled package with network
senvice plans (o be considerad distingt and thus accounted for as a separate performande obdigation. As a
result, 1ol consideration received from such packages are allocated to the sendce and device based on
redative stand-alone selling prices. This results in an allocation and early recognition of a portion of
TEECOMMUNICATIN ServiCe Mevenus s device revenug, and @ cmespanding reduCTion in SENICe Mevenue
throughout the contract perind. Loss on device sale which was previousty capitalised as customes acquisition
cost within intanghble assets i now expensed to the Income Statement whien the device sde ooours, resulting
n an earlier recognition of oupenses. For devices sold separately, the consideration |s recoteed in full at the
paint of sake, The amount of revenue recogrised |s measured at the consideration specified in the contract.
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44, RESTATEMENT OF COMPARATIVES (CONT'D.)
{a) First time adoption of MFRS Framework [cont'd.)
{iil) MFRS 15 : Revenue from Contracts with Customars ("MFRS 157) (cont'd.)
@) Lniities segment feontd )
| Sabeof deviee & part of bundied telecomimunication service patkage (cantd.)

A conirall assel s recognised whien Uhe Group delivers the devices before D gy mesl b doe, 1T e payriant
hipipens Defore the delivery of device. then a contract Rabty 5 recognised. COMACT 55815 and Conuicn
liatulities pre proseried withen recelvabies ani pagalies reapertael) n the starement af financial positon

i) Costs infurred to obtain o Tlil a contract

Uridar MFRS 15, the Groug capitalises saas commissions as costs 1o obtain & contract with & customer when
thy are incremental and expactied 19 be recovered over mane than a year, Salkes commissions. are amortised
consstenhy over the term af the specific contract to which the cost related to, Pressoutly, the sales commissions
v capitalised as intangible assets and amortised aver the contractual period on a Straight-line methad,

I addition, the Group 50 CARITEEES expEndituTe on ASSETS SUCH &S WATET MBN5SSS0WES OF Ny [ONNECTions
relating to contracts as they are ncurred 1o fulfil the contract. The expenditune on assets ara Ireated as
cost of Lalgs when the contract 15 completa. Pravicusly, the expendsture on i4eets wore classiliod as
irvenTarnos (wark in progross),

Arishing Tran the changes mentaned n Note d4a)0a)0 the de-recognitian of intangible assets have resuhed
in a decrease in net cash outflows for investing acihvities. 2nd a cormesponding decrease in net cash inflows from
npeeatng A Thities.

I accordance with the ransitional provisions in MFRS 15, the Group has elected 1o adopt th full ratrospective
appreach, requlrng the restatemant af the comparative pefiod presanted in the financial statements, The
adgustments made 1o the comparative flgures are 281 aut In Note 44

In applying MFRS 15 reirospectivaly, the Group has applied following practical expedients as allowed by the
standard. Far all reporting period presentid befone the date of eitlal application, the amount of the transaction
price allocated to the remaining performance obligations and an explanation of when the revenue s expected
1o be recognised are not desclosed.

by Propeity segment
il Multiple promises from the sale of development properties.
Contracts with customers may Include madtiple promises to customers and therefore accounted far as
separate parformance obligations. Currently, the Group accounts for the bundled sales as one deliveraliile
and recognises revenue cver time Under MFRS 15, revenue from contracts with customers is recognesed
by reference to ezch distine performance obligation In the contract with custormer, The sale of development
properties and the multiple promises are separate oeliveraties of bundled saies. The transaction price will
be allocated to each performance obligation based on the stand-alone selling prices. |f these are not directly
ob=ervable, they are estimated basad on expected cost-plus margin.
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44, RESTATEMENT OF COMPARATIVES (CONT'D.)
{a) First time adoption of MFRS Framework (cont'd.)
{iii} MFRS 15 : Revenue from Contracts with Customers ["MFRS 15") (cont'd.)

bl Froperry Seqemont foanrd )
i Multiple promi<es from the sale of development properties (cont'd.)

Deperding on the substance of the contracl nevenus & redognised whien the el onmance obligaton s
satistied, which may be a0 & poing in 1Eme o over Time

iy Costincurred in fultiling a contract

Urides thie eLfrent stamdards, the Group expensad off Sales commissans &5 s costs does ot quakly for
RCOGIITIen 35 an asset under any of the other accowntng standands. However, the sales commissions relate
direcily 1o contracts and are expected ta ba recovered through future fees for the services to be provided
Accordingly, under MFRS 15, these cests will be eligible for copitalisation and recognised as progerty
devilopment costs and contract Sales respectively.

i) Recognizion of provesion for foreseeable 1osses for low COST housing
Ui the curent standasids, the Group recognsed woont the provision o fereseeablis lsses Tor anticipated
Insses 1o be ingurmed on the develkopment of involuntary K cost housing as required by approsing awthorities.
The applicatics ab the above is n scordaces to FRSIC Consensiss 17 Develepment of Alosdalils Housing
{FRSIC 177} issued by Makaysia nstitute of Accountants (M),

HERS 15 regueres the accounting 1o be dane on 3 contract bass On 7 March 2008, MIA has withdraswn
FREIC 17 and stated that FRSIC 17 i5 no longer relevant for the adopison of MFRS framework. Tiis has
resulted in the evospective reverszl of the provision for atfordable housing previousty provided for In the
fimancial statements of the Groun

£)  Oparotion omd maintengnce

The Group has reassessed the reverue recognitson In accordance with MFRS 15, whereby reverse arsing from
the operation and maintenance senvices provided to the customer B considared based on the customar's ablity
and intention to pay that amount of consideration when it 5 dee. Ths is an additoral recognition critera in the
mew standard.
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44. RESTATEMENT OF COMPARATIVES (CONT'D.)
{a) First time adoption of MFRS Framework (cont'd.)
(iv) Acquisition acoounting and consolidation elimination restatements

During the lirancial year, it was noted that RM335.4 million (GEPE0.0 milon) of nlrastructure assets had been under
depreciated. This under depreciation wat with effect from 1 july 2014. The continuance of the depreciation resulted
in a chamge of AM1C.4 millon (GEPLO milign) to the retained eamings browght fonwand at 1 July 2007, In additian. it
was also identified that no deferred tax was recagnised on the recognitian of these assets and therefone a deterred
laix Ilaljlli‘l}' Hrs bizen reCognisied on the prior year brought Toreand net book walue of thee sssets with o correspomling
Fmgact o the retained exmings breught fonsard at 1 july 2017 of RMSLO million (G3P9.1 million].

It was further identified that na delered tax was recognised in respect of nen-gualliying assets recognised an the
2002 historical business combination in the consolidation. This has resulted in a charge of RMZLO million (GEP3B
milion) to the retained esmings browught forward at 1 July 2017,

Finaity, it was noted that AM34.3 million (GBPE.L million] of inta-group prodinon ihe wansier of G55615 DETWSEN groug
companees had not been corectly depreciated n accordance with the underiying assets ransferned, As These assers
have substantially reached the and of their usaful ives the whale amaunt has been recogrised [n the brought farsard
balances of 1 july 2017 This has resulted in g RM2.5 million (GBFOS milan ] increase in the brought forward cost of
property, phant and equipment at 1 july 2017 and a AMILA millen (CEPS.E million) reduction in accumuiated depeeciiiion
and impairment of property, plant and equigment a1 1 July 2017, The adjustments have a cormespending Impact to
fetained earnings brought lonsard &t § |uly 2017 of RM34,3 millen (GBPE.1 million) The wrealised intra-groug peotit
artsing from the wansfer of assets was eliminated appropriately. The above restatements dd not have a material
impact to the Income Statement of 30 june 2018

Tisir Crowg adopts the now standards on the reguired affective date wsing the Tull retrospective method. The affected
areas upen the application of the new standards are a5 follow;
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44, RESTATEMENT OF COMPARATIVES (CONT'D.)
{a) First time adoption of MFRS Framework [cont'd.)
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position as at 20 june 2018
Acquisition
atcounting
As and  A$ restated As restated
previsusly Effects of  camsolidation under Effects of under
stated undes  adoption ol elimination MFRSs  adoptian of HFRSS
FRSs MFRS IS5  restatement 300062018 MFRS S  ©l.O72018
Group RM'O0D RM000 RHO0D AM'000 RM'D0Q RH0OO0
As at 30 June 2018
Nen-current assats
Property, plant ard equipment 28,087 322 - 23911 28111233 - 28111233
Coviopmont experciiues 1161417 (34.028) - 1,127,391 - 1127391
Irvpstment in assonated tompanies 2275515 - - 2,275,515 {18) 2,275,497
irEsTment in join seriures 151,646 [4.001) - 147635 - 147,635
Flonghble =sets 5,986,885 {LLO1) - 5975875 - 5,975,875
Imvestmants 1136,775 - - 1,136,775 [27.753)  L109.022
Cardract coat assets - 4,653 - 4,653 - 4,653
Cortract mssets . lL4am - Larz - L4r2
Current assets
Investinies 2.838,059 [29,343) - 808,716 - 2,808,716
Trade and ather regeivabls 3,456,645 137,758 - 3,504,404 (237,928 3,356,476
CRbaf Comend irssers 93,663 [259,683) - . - .
Cortract assets - B9.843 - 89,843 [445) 59,3598
Cortract (o5t assets - 34.700 - 34,700 - 34,700
Equity
Retained samings 10,123,292 [68,128) {25,986) 10,029,178 [225.B02) 9,603,376
Mort-oontroling interest 7.540,331 284 (221100  7.518,505 {2.220)  7.516.285
Ceher resares 1,009,646 139 - 1.009,785 (37, 908) 97Lem
Non-cumrent llabdities
Liang berm payables 908,127 [[AAL]] - 901,513 - 901,513
Cortract kabities - G518 - 6,518 - EELR
Defesred ton Eahilities 2073201 [LO27) 72,007 2144181 (214) 2143967
Prowislon fior Raoties and charges 7077 [7.077) - - - .
Cumrent liabilities
Tradle are other payables 3,187 256 (327,489 - 2,849,767 - 2,843,767
Crhe corent Rabilities 124,135 [124.135) - . - -
Cortract labilties - 451 686 - 51,6685 - 461,666
Prowdsion for Badlties and changes 179,259 {33.254) - 146,005 - 146,005
roome L fabiltes 186,403 [651) - 185,752 - 185,752
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44. RESTATEMENT OF COMPARATIVES (CONT'D.)
{a) First time adoption of MFRS Framework (cont'd.)
Consolidated Statement of Financial Pesition as at 30 June 2018 (cont'd.)

Acquisition
accounting
As and As
previously Effects of consolidation restated
stated under adoption of elimination under
FR5= MFRS 15 restatements MFRSs
Group RM'OO0 RM 000 RMOO0 RM'000
As at 1 July 2007
Non-cument assets
Froperty, plant and equipment 28,518,586 - 23411 28542497
Development expenditures 1060283 [34.086) - 1.026.267
Irvestment @ @ind veniures B4 (£.14L) - .24l
Intangible assets 6,386,034 [32.994) - 6,353,040
Contract assets - 1L9RY - 1,969
Contract cost psgats - Tid - 7l
Current assets
Imventories o825 (37,3800 - B2 445
Property development costs 2,475,214 47100 - 2522314
Trade and other receivables 3135%2338 50,295 - 3,450,633
Other current assats 423857 (423,857) - -
Confract assets - 286,053 - 286,053
Confract cost assets . 50,501 - 56,501
Equity
Retained sarnings 10,606,817 [47.208) [2.755) 10,533,856
Han-contralling interest B.05L734 11,631 [22.341) B.041.024

Hon-current labilitles

Long term payables a32, 304 {L.964) - 930,430
Contract lizbilities - 1964 - 1,964
Deferred tax liahlmies A0hH A1 10,506 EEL T 2.150,Hg2
Provition foe listélities and charges 7077 (7077} - -
Current liabilities

Trade and other payables 3,304,385 [291535) - 3,012,750
Contract Habilitias - 340,837 - 349,837
Other current liabilives 72078 {72.078) - -
Prowision for latulities and charges 181.272 {33.254) - 148,018
Income tax Babilities 210,474 (492) - 209,582
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44, RESTATEMENT OF COMPARATIVES (CONT'D.)
{a) First time adoption of MFRS Frameiwork (cont'd,)
Income statemants for the financial year ended 30 |une 2018
As As
previously Effects of restated
stated under adoption of under
FRSs MFRS 15 MFRSs
Group AM'000 RM'00D RMOOO
Financial year ended 30 June 2018
Rewenue 15,904,731 {4584} 15,890,147
Cost of sales {11.374.507) {26.759) (11.403.26E)
Gross profit 4,530,224 {23,343} 4,486,861
Oithir cperating income 75872 (L2L0} ETid0EE
Seling and destribution costs {358,615) - (358,615)
Administrative expenses (1363834) (sRale ] (1,956,85€)
Cither operaling eapeisis [464.593) - 1464,533)
France costs (1.640,005) [4.568) (L544.573)
Share of resuits of assoclated companies and joint ventures,
net of tax A0, 745 {1.BT} I9H B4
Prafit before tax 1,379,734 143.554) 1,335,740
Ineomea tax experse (376.593) 1L725 [I64,BEE)
Profit after tax 1,003,141 (32,264 =k
Attributable to:-
Cwmer of the parent 362.217 [2L.218) 340,099
Mo -controllng interests B0, 924 (11,051} 520,873
1003141 (32.269) gr0.87e
Earnings per share (sen)
Basic/diluted EPS (samn) 344 324
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44. RESTATEMENT OF COMPARATIVES (CONT'D.)
{a) First time adoption of MFRS Framework (cont'd.)
Statement of Comprehensive income for the financial year ended 30 June 2018

As As
proviously Effacts of restated
stated under  adoption of under
FREs MFRS 15 MFRSs
Group RMOOD RMODO RM'O00
Finaneial year ended 30 June 2018
Profit for the year LO03.141 [32269] EELPR: I
other comprehensive (loss)/income:
ltems that will not be recassifed subsequently 1o Income
Starement
- re-massurement of post-employment benefit obligatans 150319 - 150319
- foreign curency transkation (F00.783) - (700, 783)
Tt that will be reclyssitied subsequantly 10 incoimn
SLoment
- avaiable-tor-sale financial assals 13,383 - 13,383
cash flow hedges 7664 317,664
fosoign curency transkation [fO5, 38E) {705, 388)
Other comprehensive (loss)/income for the year,
net of tax {524, 005) - (924.805)
Total comprehensive income for the year 78336 (32.269) 46,067
Attributable 1a:-
Owner of the parent {69,476) {2L218) [a0,6594)
Hon-comrolling Interests 147612 (11051} 136,761
78336 [32.265) 46,067
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44, RESTATEMENT OF COMPARATIVES (CONT'D.)
{a) First time adeption of MERS Framework (cont'd,)

The Company has adopted the new standard retrospactivey fram 1 july 2008, in line with the transition prowsion pesmitted
undaer the standards. Comparatves Tor finandal yaar ended 2018 are not restated and the Company has recagnised any
difference between the carrying amounts a1 30 June 2018 and 1 july 2018 in the opening retained eamings. The accounting
poficies for financial imstruments under MPRS 9 are disclosed in Note 2(r),

{a} Equity investments reclassified from Available-Tor-sale (“AFS") to Fair Value through Other Comprehensive
Incame {“FVOCI")
The Company b elacted to pecadqnise changes in fair vales of all its PLETy EPETMENTS NOT bl T traihing and
previously classified as AFS, in other comgrehensive income. A i result, “Financial assets, avallable-for-sake”™ of
RMZ, 355,000 were reclassitied to “Financial asse1s at FYOLCT an 1 july 2018

{b) Equity investments reclassilied frem Avallable-for-sale te Fair Value through Prafit of Loss (“FUPL")

The Company has ekecied to recegnise changes in Fair valkes of all 1S equily Bvestments not held (o trading and
previously classified as AFS, in oler comprenensivi income. As @ result. “Financizl assets, avablable-for-sale” of
RME, 368,000 were reclassitied 1o “Financial assers. a1 FVPL on 1 july 2018

{t} Redeemable Preference Shares (“RPS") reclassified from Investment in subsidiaries te Financial assets,
at Fair Value through Profit or Loss (“FWPL")
Investment in certain preference shares amounting 1o RM219.247.000 were reglassified from the “imvesiment in
subsidiares” categony 1o “oiher Investments - FYPL",

(d) Impairment of financial assets
The Comparny has the folowing tnanclal assets subject 1o the expected credit loss impakmient model under MF3S 5

= Trade receivables
= Ampunt due from rélated parties

The impairment mathadolagy under MFRS for each of these classes of financial assets are different, The impalrment
mithodalogy for sach of thess classes of tinancal assats under MERS 9 s a5 disclosed in Naote 2{s)

323

578/628



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)
oOoOooodn

YTL CORPORATION BERHAD

Notes to the Financial Statements
- 30 June 2019

44. RESTATEMENT OF COMPARATIVES (CONT'D.)
{a) First time adoption of MFRS Framework (cont'd.)
{2} The effect on adeption of MFRS 9 are as follows:

Amaunt
Irvestmert  duefrom  Trade and
In related othes Invesiment Investment Investment AF3

subsidiary parties recetvables A FVOD  AAFUFL atAFs  reserve
RMDO0  RMO00  RMDO0  RMO000  RMOD0 RMO00  RMOOD

31
i

Busances at 30 um
oA before
aoption of MFR5 9 BATATL0  L180.9&7 12,055 - - 42,188 12327 = 3742991

Fedrgfraton
Reclristy

s tmend Inom

AFS %0 itreestman

ol AL . - - 3 35345 [ (A7) - 12327
Reclausty

Ivesiment from

AFS 10 imeesimant

at POC andl Far

valie adustments - - - 9,200 - [6.B41) - 2,559 -
Rarlmsty

vesiment in

sutridaries o

other mwestment

Al FvL [215.247) - - = 947 - - . -
Alssane lor

fopated crecit

ke of francal

S - (MRS [L7ES) - (28247 . : - (3

Baances at 1 july 2018
dffter aoogtion of
M5 & 7.953.463 LOB4.128 10.294 5.200 35,345 - - 2359 3417447

45. AUTHORISED FOR ISSUE OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Tha firandial stataments have hepn authnrsed o msue i accardance with a resolgtion of the Board of Directars an

26 Seatembar 2019
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF YTL CORPORATION BERHAD

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of YTL Corporation Berhad, which comprise the Statements of Financial
Position as at 30 June 2018 of the Group and of the Company, and the Income Statements, Statements of
Comprehensive Income, Statements of Changes in Equity and Statements of Cash Flows of the Group and of the
Company for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies, as set out on pages 135 to 304.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group
and of the Company as at 30 June 2018, and of their financial performance and their cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act 2016 in
Malaysia.

Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and International
Standards on Auditing. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’

Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence and Other Ethical Responsibilities
We are independent of the Group and of the Company in accordance with the By-Laws (on Professional Ethics,
Conduct and Practice) of the Malaysian Institute of Accountants (“By-Laws”) and the International Ethics Standards
Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“IESBA Code”), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the By-Laws and the IESBA Code.
Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of
the financial statements of the Group and of the Company for the current year. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the financial statements of the Group and of the Company as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
1. Valuation of investment properties

The risk

We refer to Note 3 and 12 to the Financial Statements respectively.

Investment properties of the Group amounting to RM10,004 million, comprises 14.0% of total assets and is

measured at fair value. Most of the investment properties held by the listed real estate investment trusts
comprise of 94.6% of total investment properties.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF YTL CORPORATION BERHAD - (Continued)

The investment properties held by the listed real estate investment trusts are stated at their fair values based
on independent external valuations using the income capitalisation approach, which capitalise the estimated
rental income stream, net projected operating costs, using a discount rate derived from market vyield.
Valuation of these properties was carried out once a year.

We focused on this area due to the magnitude of the balance and the complexities in determining the fair
value of the investment properties, which involves significant judgement and estimation that could result in
material misstatement.

Our response:

Ours and component auditors audit procedures included the following:

assessed the competencies, objectivity and capabilities of the external valuer;

checked the accuracy and relevance of the input data used in the valuations; and

evaluated the Group’s disclosures on those assumptions to which the outcome of the valuation is most
sensitive, that is, those that have the most significant effect on the determination of the fair value of the
investment properties, by comparing them to the information disclosed in the valuation reports.

2. Impairment assessment of goodwill
The risk
We refer to Note 3 and 18 to the Financial Statements respectively.
As at 30 June 2018, goodwill arising on consolidation amounted to RM5,805 million which represents 8.1% of
the Group’s total assets. The goodwill is primarily allocated to the multi utilities business in Singapore and
water and sewerage business in the United Kingdom. The goodwill for these businesses comprise 87.9% of
total goodwiill.
The recoverable amounts of the cash generating units (“CGU”) are determined based on value-in-use (“VIU")
calculation. The key assumptions and sensitivities are disclosed in Note 18(a) and 18(b) to the Financial
Statements respectively.
We focused on this area as the estimation of the recoverable amount is inherently uncertain and requires

significant judgement on the future cash flows, terminal growth rate and the discount rate applied to the
projected cash flows.
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TO THE MEMBERS OF YTL CORPORATION BERHAD - (Continued)

Our response:

Ours and component auditors audit procedures included the following:

agreed the VIU cash flows of CGU to the financial budgets approved by the Directors;

discussed with management the key assumptions used in the respective VIU cash flows and compared
the revenue growth rates for United Kingdom, and EBITDA growth rates for Singapore to the historical
performance of the respective CGUs;

checked the reasonableness of the discount rates and terminal growth rates with the assistance of
valuation expert by benchmarking to the respective industries; and

checked the sensitivity analysis performed by management over discount rates, terminal growth rates,
and EBITDA growth rates, used in deriving the respective VIU cash flows.

3. Capitalisation policy on infrastructure assets of the water and sewerage business
The risk
We refer to Note 3 and 11 to the Financial Statements respectively.

The water and sewerage business’'s net book value of infrastructure assets comprise 26.9% (RM7,566
million) of the Group’s total property, plant and equipment. The infrastructure assets comprise capital
expenditure incurred to meet the development and regulatory requirement of the business, employee and
overhead costs that are directly attributable to the construction of the asset.

There is a significant judgement involved in determining whether costs incurred, specifically employee and
overhead costs meet the relevant criteria for capitalisation in accordance with FRS 16, Property, Plant and
Equipment (“FRS 16").

Our response:

Ours and component auditors’ audit procedures include the following:

tested the operating effectiveness of the controls over authorisation of selected projects’ infrastructure
assets and identification of capital expenditures attributable to the infrastructure assets;

understood the nature of costs incurred in relation to employee and overhead through discussion with
management and checked whether the costs incurred met the capitalisation criteria in accordance with
FRS 16; and

compared the level of employee and overhead costs capitalised against prior year balances and current
year budget information to identify material changes in the nature or quantum of costs capitalised, with
any significant variances corroborated with management.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF YTL CORPORATION BERHAD - (Continued)

4, Net realisable value of property held for sale in Singapore classified as inventories
The risk
We refer to Note 3 and 23 to the Financial Statements respectively.

As at 30 June 2018, the property held for sale in Singapore comprises 68.1% (RM1,932 million) (after the
write-down) of the Group’s total inventories. The challenging property market environment was mired by the
issues such as cooling measures undertaken by the authorities in Singapore have contributed to the slow
sale of the completed properties during the year. The Group continues to monitor the realisable value of the
inventories to ensure that these inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value (the
estimated selling price less estimated costs necessary to make the sale).

The estimates of net realisable values are based on reliable evidence available at the time the estimates are
made and take into consideration estimated fluctuations of future property prices. Such estimates often
involve certain degree of subjectivity and accordingly, we consider this area to be an area of audit focus.

The net realisable value assessment carried out by the management resulted in a write down of inventories
for the year ended 30 June 2018.

Estimating the selling price and costs necessary to make the sale for the properties often involve certain
degree of objectivity and accordingly, we consider this area to be an area of audit focus.

Our response:

Ours and component auditors’ audit procedures include the following:

assessed the competencies, objectivity and capabilities of the external valuer;

evaluated the management’s estimated selling price (less estimated cost necessary to make the sale) of
these inventories by comparing to the recent transacted prices of similar completed property
development units within the vicinity;

discussed with the independent valuer to obtain an understanding of the related market data used as
input to the valuation models;

evaluated the assumptions applied in estimating cost to sell taking into consideration actual cost incurred
in sale of properties and management’s marketing strategies.

5. Impairment assessment of property, plant and equipment (“PPE”) of the mobile broadband network business
The risk
We refer to Note 3 and 11 to the Financial Statements respectively.

The property, plant and equipment of the mobile broadband network business accounts for 8.3% (RM2,332
million) of the Group’s property, plant and equipment as at 30 June 2018.
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The Group performed an impairment assessment on the carrying values of the PPE due to losses recorded
by the business which is an impairment indicator.

The impairment assessment was performed by management using value-in-use (“VIU") cash flows which
requires significant judgement as the timing and quantum of the cash flows is dependent on the achievement
of the next five years’ business plans and financial budgets which are dependent on the use of key
assumptions comprising its growth targets and sourcing contract renewals.

We focused on this area as the estimation of the recoverable amount is inherently uncertain and requires
significant judgement on the future cash flows, terminal growth rate and the discount rate applied to the
calculation of the VIU.

Our response:

Our audit procedures include the following:

agreed the VIU cash flows of the cash generating unit (“CGU”) to the financial budgets approved by the
management;

checked the assumptions used, in particular the discount rate, average revenue per unit, increase in
subscribers and benchmarked against the comparable companies within the industry;

discussed with management the rationale applied on the assumption of sourcing contract renewals by
considering the Company’s historical experience;

assessed reasonableness of the discount rate which reflects the specific risk relating to the PPE based
on inputs that are publicly available; and

checked sensitivity analysis performed by management on the discount rate used in deriving the VIU.

6. Provision for post-employment benefit obligations of the water and sewerage business
The risk
We refer to Note 3 and 35 to the Financial Statements respectively.

As at 30 June 2018, the water and sewerage business's post-employment benefit obligations comprise
98.0% (RM672 million) of the Group’s total post-employment benefit obligations.

The present value of the funded defined benefit obligations depends on a number of assumptions determined
on an actuarial basis. The key assumptions are disclosed in Note 35(b) to the financial statements.

We focused on this area as the estimation of the present value of the post-employment benefit obligations is

inherently uncertain and requires significant judgement on the future cash flows and the discount rate applied
to the calculation of the present value.
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TO THE MEMBERS OF YTL CORPORATION BERHAD - (Continued)

Our response:

Ours and component auditors’ audit procedures include the following:

assessed the competencies, objectivity and capabilities of external actuary;

obtained the external actuarial report and understood the key assumptions used in determining the post-
employment benefit obligations;

compared the key assumptions used by the actuary against external market data and a range of similar
scheme with assistance of their actuarial specialist;

compared the expected rate of salary increases used by the actuary against historical trend; and
checked the disclosures in respect of the sensitivity of the provision of the post-employment benefit
obligations to changes in the assumptions

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report Thereon

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the annual report, but does not include the financial statements of the Group and of the
Company and our auditors’ report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements of the Group and of the Company does not cover the other information and
we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements of the Group and of the Company, our responsibility is to
read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements of the Group and of the Company or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Directors for the Financial Statements

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of financial statements of the Group and of the
Company that give a true and fair view in accordance with Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of
the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia. The Directors are also responsible for such internal control as the Directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements of the Group and of the Company that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements of the Group and of the Company, the Directors are responsible for assessing
the Group’s and the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Directors either intend to liquidate the
Group or the Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.
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TO THE MEMBERS OF YTL CORPORATION BERHAD - (Continued)

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements of the Group and of the
Company as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and International Standards on
Auditing will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and International Standards on
Auditing, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements of the Group and of the
Company, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s and of the Company’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the Directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s and the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures
in the financial statements of the Group and of the Company or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group and the Company to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements of the Group and of the
Company, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the financial statements of the Group. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.
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We communicate with the Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit

and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

We also provide the Directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Directors, we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the financial statements of the Group and of the Company for the current year and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

In accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia, we report that the subsidiaries of
which we have not acted as auditors, are disclosed in Note 14 to the Financial Statements.

Other Matters

This report is made solely to the members of the Company, as a body, in accordance with Section 266 of the
Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility to any other person
for the content of this report.

HLB LER LUM
AF 0276
Chartered Accountants

LUM TUCK CHEONG

01005/03/2019 J
Dated : 27 September 2018 Chartered Accountant
Kuala Lumpur
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Our ref: GEN/0865/2019

Your ref:

16 December 2019

The Board of Directors

YTL Corporation Berhad

11th Floor, Yeoh Tiong Lay Plaza
55 Jalan Bukit Bintang

55100 Kuala Lumpur

Dear Sirs,

You have informed us that the accompanying financial statements of YTL Corporation Berhad and the Group
financial statements of YTL Corporation Berhad and its subsidiaries as of 30June 2019 and 2018 together with our
reports thereon dated 26 September 2019 and 27 September 2018 are being included as part of the Annual
Securities Report.

At 16 December 2019, we are not aware of any matters which would prevent the inclusion of our audit reports in
the aforementioned Annual Securities Report.

HLB LER LUM PLT
Firm Number:
LLP0021174-LCA & AF0276
Chartered Accountants

LUM TUCK CHEONG
Partner of the Firm

610/628



30

2019

(
IESBA Code

30

IESBA Code

611/628

EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)
oOoOooodn

2019

2016



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)
oOoOooodn

12
10,218 13.3
94.1
( )
18
2019 30 7,840
10.2
88.5
( ol ) ( VIU )
18(a) 18(b)
cGU VIU
VIU el

VIU

612/628



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)

OooooOodd
21
2019 30 57.3 (1,596
)( )
(
)
2019 30
( )
(
)
11
2019 30
7.2 (2,227.7 )
( FVLCD )

FVLCD

613/628



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)
oOoOooodn

CGU FVLCD

FVLCD

11
25.1 (7,735.3

( ) MFRS 116 ( MFRS 116 )

MFRS 116

614/628



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)

OooooOodd
33
2019 30 90.0 (688
)
33(¢c)
19
2019 30 18.9 (445.3
(226.8 )

615/628



616/628

EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)
oOoOooodn

2016



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)
oOoOooodn

(guarantee)

617/628



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)
oOoOooodn

2016
14

€H) 44(a)

2017 2018

2018 30 2017 2018 30

2019 30
2018 2019 30

©) 2016 266

LLP0021174-LCA & AF 0276

0100570372021 J

2019 26

618/628



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00o0oOO00D0DO000D00OnoOodnoeoess21)
oOoOooodn

Company No: 92647-H

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’' REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF YTL CORPORATION BERHAD

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of YTL Corporation Berhad, which comprise the Statements of Financial
Position as at 30 June 2019 of the Group and of the Company, and the Income Statements, Statements of
Comprehensive Income, Statements of Changes in Equity and Statements of Cash Flows of the Group and of the
Company for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies, as set out on pages 117 to 324.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group
and of the Company as at 30 June 2019, and of their financial performance and their cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, International Financial Reporting Standards
and the requirements of the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and International
Standards on Auditing. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence and Other Ethical Responsibilities

We are independent of the Group and of the Company in accordance with the By-Laws (on Professional Ethics,
Conduct and Practice) of the Malaysian Institute of Accountants (“By-Laws”) and the International Ethics Standards
Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“IESBA Code”), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the By-Laws and the IESBA Code.

Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of
the financial statements of the Group and of the Company for the current year. These matters were addressed in

the context of our audit of the financial statements of the Group and of the Company as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’' REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF YTL CORPORATION BERHAD — (Continued)

1. Valuation of investment properties
The risk
We refer to Note 3 and 12 to the Financial Statements respectively.

Investment properties of the Group amounting to RM10,218 million, comprises 13.3% of total assets and is
measured at fair value. Most of the investment properties held by the listed real estate investment trusts
comprise of 94.1% of total investment properties.

The investment properties held by the listed real estate investment trusts are stated at their fair values based
on independent external valuations using the income capitalisation approach, which capitalise the estimated
rental income stream, net projected operating costs, using a discount rate derived from market yield.
Valuation of these properties was carried out once a year.

We focused on this area due to the magnitude of the balance and the complexities in determining the fair

value of the investment properties, which involves significant judgement and estimation that could result in
material misstatement.

Our response:
Ours and component auditors audit procedures included the following:
evaluated the competency and objectivity of the independent valuers;
assessed the appropriateness and reasonableness of the valuation methodology and key assumptions
used; and
reviewed the adequacy of disclosure in the financial statements.
2. Impairment assessment of goodwill
The risk
We refer to Note 3 and 18 to the Financial Statements respectively.
As at 30 June 2019, goodwill arising on consolidation amounted to RM7,840 million which represents 10.2%
of the Group’s total assets. The goodwill is primarily allocated to the multi utilities business in Singapore,

water and sewerage business in the United Kingdom and cement manufacturing business in Malaysia. The
goodwill for these businesses comprise 88.5% of total goodwiill.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’' REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF YTL CORPORATION BERHAD — (Continued)

The recoverable amounts of the cash generating units (“CGU”) are determined based on value-in-use (“VIU")
calculation. The key assumptions and sensitivities are disclosed in Note 18(a) and 18(b) to the Financial
Statements respectively.

We focused on this area as the estimation of the recoverable amount is inherently uncertain and requires
significant judgement on the future cash flows, terminal growth rate and the discount rate applied to the
projected cash flows.

Our response:

Ours and component auditors audit procedures included the following:

agreed the VIU cash flows of each CGU to the financial budgets approved by the Directors;

discussed with management the key assumptions used in the respective VIU cash flows and compared
the revenue growth rates to the historical performance of the respective CGUSs;

checked the reasonableness of the discount rates and terminal growth rates with the assistance of
valuation expert by benchmarking to the respective industries; and

checked the sensitivity analysis performed by management over discount rates, terminal growth rates,
and revenue growth rates, used in deriving the respective VIU cash flows.

3. Net realisable value of property held for sale in Singapore classified as inventories
The risk
We refer to Note 3 and 21 to the Financial Statements respectively.

As at 30 June 2019, the property held for sale in Singapore comprises 57.3% (RM1,596 million) (after the
write-down) of the Group’s total inventories. The challenging property market environment was mired by the
issues such as cooling measures undertaken by the authorities in Singapore have contributed to the slow
sale of the completed properties during the year. The Group continues to monitor the realisable value of the
inventories to ensure that these inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value (the
estimated selling price less estimated costs necessary to make the sale).

The estimates of net realisable values are based on reliable evidence available at the time the estimates are

made and take into consideration estimated fluctuations of future property prices. Such estimates often
involve certain degree of subjectivity and accordingly, we consider this area to be an area of audit focus.
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TO THE MEMBERS OF YTL CORPORATION BERHAD — (Continued)

The net realisable value assessment carried out by the management resulted in a write down of inventories
for the year ended 30 June 2019.

Estimating the selling price and costs necessary to make the sale for the properties often involve certain
degree of objectivity and accordingly, we consider this area to be an area of audit focus.

Our response:

Ours and component auditors’ audit procedures include the following:

evaluated the objectivity, independence and expertise of the firm of independent valuers;
evaluated the management’s assessments and assumptions of the estimated selling price (less
estimated cost necessary to make the sale) of these inventories by making reference to the recent
transacted prices of comparable property within the vicinity;

4. Impairment assessment of property, plant and equipment (“PPE") of the mobile broadband network business
The risk
We refer to Note 3 and 11 to the Financial Statements respectively.

The property, plant and equipment of the mobile broadband network business accounts for 7.2% (RM2,227.7
million) of the Group’s property, plant and equipment as at 30 June 2019.

The Group performed an impairment assessment on the carrying values of the PPE due to losses recorded
by the business which is an impairment indicator.

The impairment assessment was performed by management using fair value less costs of disposal
(“FVLCD") cash flows which requires significant judgement as the timing and quantum of the cash flows is
dependent on the achievement of the next five years’ business plans and financial budgets which are
dependent on the use of key assumptions comprising its growth targets and sourcing contract renewals.

We focused on this area as the estimation of the recoverable amount is inherently uncertain and requires

significant judgement on the future cash flows, average revenue growth rate, discount rate and the useful life
of the assets applied to the calculation of the FVLCD.
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TO THE MEMBERS OF YTL CORPORATION BERHAD — (Continued)

Our response:

Our audit procedures include the following:

agreed the FVLCD cash flows of the cash generating unit (“CGU”) to the financial budgets approved by
the Directors;

checked the assumptions used, in particular the average revenue growth rate and useful life of the
assets and benchmarked against the comparable companies within the industry;

discussed with management the rationale applied on the assumption of sourcing contract renewals by
considering the Company’s historical experience;

assessed reasonableness of the discount rate which reflects the specific risk relating to the PPE based
on inputs that are publicly available; and

checked sensitivity analysis performed by management on the discount rate used in deriving the
FVLCD.

5. Capitalisation policy on infrastructure assets of the water and sewerage business
The risk
We refer to Note 3 and 11 to the Financial Statements respectively.

The water and sewerage business’s net book value of infrastructure assets comprise 25.1% (RM7,735.3
million) of the Group’s total property, plant and equipment. The infrastructure assets comprise capital
expenditure incurred to meet the development and regulatory requirement of the business, employee and
overhead costs that are directly attributable to the construction of the asset.

There is significant judgement involved in determining whether costs incurred, specifically employee and
overhead costs meet the relevant criteria for capitalisation in accordance with MFRS 116, Property, Plant
and Equipment (“MFRS 116”).

Our response:

Ours and component auditors’ audit procedures include the following:

tested the operating effectiveness of the controls over authorisation of selected projects’ infrastructure
assets and identification of capital expenditures attributable to the infrastructure assets;

understood the nature of costs incurred through discussion with management and checked whether the
costs incurred met the capitalisation criteria in accordance with MFRS 116; and

compared the level of employee and overhead costs capitalised against prior year balances and current
year budget information to identify material changes in the nature or quantum of costs capitalised, with
any significant variances corroborated and discussed with management.
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6. Assumptions used in determining the present value of the funded defined benefit obligations of the water and
sewerage segment

The risk
We refer to Note 3 and 33 to the Financial Statements respectively.

As at 30 June 2019, the water and sewerage business’'s post-employment benefit obligations comprise
90.0% (RM688 million) of the Group’s total post-employment benefit obligations.

The present value of the funded defined benefit obligations depends on a number of assumptions determined
on an actuarial basis. The key assumptions are disclosed in Note 33 (c) to the financial statements.

We focused on this area due to the key assumptions used in determining the present value of the funded
defined benefit obligations and any changes in these assumptions will materially impact the carrying amounts
of the post-employment benefit obligations.

Our response:

Ours and component auditors’ audit procedures include the following:

assessed the competencies, objectivity and capabilities of external actuary;

obtained the external actuarial report and understood the key assumptions used in determining the
present value of the funded defined benefit obligations;

compared the key assumptions used by the actuary on discount rate, expected rate of increase in
pension payment, and price inflation against external market data and similar schemes with assistance
of an actuary specialist;

compared the expected rate of salary increases used by the actuary against historical trend; and
checked the disclosures in respect of the sensitivity of the carrying amounts of the post-employment
benefit obligations to changes in the key assumptions, performed by the actuary.

7. Impairment assessment on trade receivables of the Group’s water and sewerage segment
The risk
We refer to Note 3 and 19 to the Financial Statements respectively.

The trade receivables of the water and sewerage segment accounts for 18.9% (RM445.3 million is net of
impairment charges of RM226.8 million) of the Group’s trade receivables as at 30 June 2019.
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As this segment operates in the United Kingdom (“UK”), there is a statutory requirement to continue to
provide water to all customers who has defaulted in payment. Therefore, the Group has estimated the
impairment of trade receivables on a portfolio basis for the year based on the historical cash collection trends
and economic trends, which are subjective in nature.

We focused on this area given the use of significant estimates and judgement in determining the appropriate
level of impairment for trade receivables.

Our response:

Ours and component auditors’ audit procedures include the following:

tested the controls over assessment of impairment of trade receivables and the operating effectiveness
of the key IT systems used for generating billings and cash collection data used for the impairment
assessment;

obtained the historical cash collection trends of each ageing bracket of the trade receivables and
payment methods and compared against the percentage of impairment used by management against
each ageing bracket and payment methods;

checked the appropriateness of the forward-looking forecasts assumptions used to determine the
impairment; and

compared the level of impairment applied against similar companies within the industry in the UK.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report Thereon

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the annual report, but does not include the financial statements of the Group and of the
Company and our auditors’ report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements of the Group and of the Company does not cover the other information and
we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements of the Group and of the Company, our responsibility is to
read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements of the Group and of the Company or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Responsibilities of the Directors for the Financial Statements

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of financial statements of the Group and of the
Company that give a true and fair view in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, International
Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia. The Directors are
also responsible for such internal control as the Directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements of the Group and of the Company that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements of the Group and of the Company, the Directors are responsible for assessing
the Group’s and the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Directors either intend to liquidate the
Group or the Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements of the Group and of the
Company as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and International Standards on
Auditing will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and International Standards on
Auditing, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements of the Group and of the
Company, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the

Group’s and of the Company’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the Directors.
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Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s and the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures
in the financial statements of the Group and of the Company or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report.

However, future events or conditions may cause the Group and the Company to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements of the Group and of the
Company, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the financial statements of the Group. We are responsible

for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with the Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to
bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Directors, we determine those matters that were of most significance in
the audit of the financial statements of the Group and of the Company for the current year and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

In accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia, we report that the subsidiaries of
which we have not acted as auditors, are disclosed in Note 14 to the Financial Statements.
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Other Matters

1. As stated in Note 44(a) to the Financial Statements, YTL Corporation Berhad adopted Malaysian Financial

Reporting Standards on 1 July 2018 with a transition date of 1 July 2017. These standards were applied
retrospectively by Directors to the comparative information in these financial statements, including the
Statements of Financial Position as at 30 June 2018 and 1 July 2017, and the Income Statements,
Statements of Comprehensive Income, Statements of Changes in Equity and Statements of Cash Flows for
the financial year ended 30 June 2018 and related disclosures. We were not engaged to report on the
restated comparative information and it is unaudited. Our responsibilities as part of our audit of the financial
statements of the Group and of the Company for the financial year ended 30 June 2019 have, in these
circumstances, included obtaining sufficient appropriate audit evidence that the opening balances as at 1
July 2018 do not contain misstatements that materially affect the financial position as of 30 June 2019 and
financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended.

2. This report is made solely to the members of the Company, as a body, in accordance with Section 266 of the
Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility to any other
person for the content of this report.

HLB LER LUM PLT
LLP0021174-LCA & AF 0276
Chartered Accountants

LUM TUCK CHEONG
01005/03/2021 J
Dated : 26 September 2019 Chartered Accountant
Kuala Lumpur
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